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Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements, within the meaning of
Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended, that reflect our current estimates, expectations and projections about our future results,
performance, prospects and opportunities. Forward-looking statements include, without limitation,
statements about our market opportunities, our business and growth strategies, our projected revenue and
expense levels, possible future consolidated results of operations, the adequacy of our available cash
resources, our financing plans, our competitive position and the effects of competition and the projected
growth of the industries in which we operate. This Annual Report on Form 10-K also contains forward-
looking statements attributed to third parties relating to their estimates regarding the size of the future
market for products and systems such as our products and systems, and the assumptions underlying such
estimates. Forward-looking statements include all statements that are not historical facts and can be
identified by forward-looking statements such as “may,” “might,” “should,” “could,” “will,” “intends,”
“estimates,” “predicts,” “projects,” “potential,” “continue,” “believes,” “anticipates,” “plans,” “expects”
and similar expressions. Forward-looking statements are only predictions based on our current expectations
and projections, or those of third parties, about future events and involve risks and uncertainties.
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Although we believe that the expectations reflected in the forward-looking statements contained
in this Annual Report on Form 10-K are based upon reasonable assumptions, no assurance can be given
that such expectations will be attained or that any deviations will not be material, In light of these risks,
uncertainties and assumptions, the forward-looking statements, events and circumstances discussed in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K may not occur and actual results could differ materially and adversely from
those anticipated.or implied in the forward-looking statements. Important factors that could cause our
actual results, level of performance or achievements to differ matertally from those expressed or forecasted
in, or implied by, the forward-looking statements we make in this Annual Report on Form 10-K are
discussed under "lItem 1 A. Risk Factors" and elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and include:

e our ability to successfully implement our business strategy;
+ our expectation that we will incur losses, on a consolidated basis, for the foreseeable future;
e our ability to fund our operations;

+ borrowings under our existing bank facility are payable on demand and the facility could be
terminated at any time without notice;

s the impact on our success of the relative maturity in the United States, and limited size, of
the markets for our infant protection and wander prevention systems and vibration
monitoring instruments;

» the degree of success we have in leveraging-our brand reputation, reseller network and end-
use customer-base for our infant protection and wander prevention systems to gain inroads in
the emerging market for asset/staff location and identification systems;

s the rate and extent of the 1).S. healthcare industry’s adoption of radio frequency
identification, or RFID, asset/staff location and identification systems;

+ the relative degree of market acceptance of our zonal, or cell identification, active RFID
systems compared to competing technologies, such as lower power Ultra Wide Band-based
location technologies, 802.11 and Zigbee-based location and wireless networking
technologies;

¢ our ability to complete our efforts to integrate our infant protection, wander prevention and
asset/staff location and identification systems on one technology platform;

» our ability to complete our efforts to introduce a new vibration monitoring instrumentation
platform;




o the impact on our success of uncertainty as to whether we will be able to increase our sales
of infant protection and wander prevention systems outside of North America;

e our success in integrating our Canadian-based businesses;
s our reliance on third-party dealers to successfully market and sell our products;

¢ we may become subject to costly product liability claims and claims that our products
infringe the intellectual property rights of others;

s our ability to comply with current and future regulations relating to our businesses;

s uncertainty as to whether a market for our VeriMed, VeriGuard and VeriTrace systems will
develop and whether we will be able to generate more than a nominal level of revenue from
the sale of these systems;

« the potential for patent infringement claims to be brought against us asserting that we hold
no rights for the use of the implantable microchip technology and that we are violating
another party’s intellectual property rights. If such a claim is successful, we could be
enjoined from engaging in activities to market the systems that utilize the implantable
microchip and be required to pay substantial damages;

o market acceptance of our VeriMed system, which will depend in large part on the future
availability of insurance reimbursement for the VeriMed system microchip implant
procedure from government and private insurers, and the timing of such reimbursement, ifit,
in fact, occurs;

o apotential disruption to our business, loss of sales and higher expense if we are unable to
obtain the implantable microchip used in our VeriMed, VeriGuard and VeriTrace systems
from our sister company Digital Angel Corporation, or Digital Angel, and other risks related
to our supply agreement with Digital Angel,

s our ability to provide uninterrupted, secure access to the VeriMed database;

o conflict of interest risks related to our continued affiliation with Digital Angel and our parent
company, Applied Digital Solutions, Inc., or Applied Digital; and

e our ability to establish and maintain proper and effective internal accounting and financial
controls.

You should not place undue reliance on any forward-looking statements. In addition, past
financial or operating performance is not necessarily a reliable indicator of future performance, and you
should not use our historical performance to anticipate future results or future pertod trends. Except as
otherwise required by federal securities laws, we disclaim any obligation or undertaking to disseminate any
updates or revisions to any forward-looking statement contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K to
reflect any change in our expectations or any change in events, conditions or circumstances on which any
such statement is based. All forward-looking statements attributable to us, or persons acting on our behalf,
are expressly qualified in their entirety by the cautionary statements included in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.




PARTI
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
The Company

We were formed as a Delaware corporation by Applied Digital Solutions, Inc., or Applied
Digital, in November 2001. In January 2002, we began our efforts to create a market for radio frequency
identification, or RFID, systems that utilize our human implantable microchip. Applied Digital owned over
90% of our stock as of December 31, 2006. On February 14, 2007, we completed our initial public offering
in which we sold 3,100,000 shares of our common stock at $6.50 per share. As a result, as of March 27,
2007, Applied Digital owned 60% of our stock.

In March 2005, we acquired EXI Wireless Inc., a Canadian corporation engaged through its
subsidiaties in the business of developing and marketing RFID systems for infant protection, wander
prevention and asset/staff location and identification for use within the healthcare industry and asset
management systems used by indusirial companies to manage and track their mobile equipment and tools.
Subsequent to the acquisition, EX1 Wireless was renamed VeriChip Holdings Inc., or VHI.

In June 2005, we acquired Instantel Inc., a Canadian corporation engaged in the business of
developing and marketing RFID systems for infant protection, wander prevention, emergency response and
asset tracking within the healthcare industry, as well as vibration monitoring instruments for the
construction, mining and blasting industries. In January 2006, we effected an amalgamation of Instantel
and the former EXI Wireless subsidiaries under Canadian law. The combined entities now operate as a
wholly-owned subsidiary of VHI.

In early 2007, we realigned our business into three business segments: healthcare security,
implantable, and industrial. This change was made to align our financial reporting with our new
operational management structure. All segment information in this Annual Report on 10-K has been
reclassified to reflect the segment realignment.

Our principal executive offices are located at 1690 South Congress Avenue, Suite 200, Delray
Beach, Florida 33445. Qur telephone number is (561) 805-8008. Unless the context provides otherwise,
when we refer to the "Company,” "we," "our," or "us" in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, we are
referring to VeriChip Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries.

Hugs, Kisses, Roam Alert, Assetrac, Blastmate, Minimate, and BioBond are our registered
trademarks, and HALO, VeriMed, VeriChip, VeriGuard, VeriTrace and ToolHound are our
trademarks. This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains trademarks and tradenames of other
organizations and corporations.

Available Informatien

We file or fumnish with or to the Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC, our quarterly
reports on Form 10-Q), annual reports on Form 10-K, current reports on Form 8-K, annual reports to
stockholders and annual proxy statements and amendments to such filings. Qur SEC filings are available to
the public on the SEC's website at http://www.sec.gov. These reports are also available free of charge from
our website at http://www.verichipcorp.com as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file or
furnish such material with or to the SEC. The information on our website is not incorporated by reference
into this Annual Report on Form 10-K or any registration statement that incorporates this Annual Report on
Form 10-K by reference.

Overview

We are primarily engaged in the development, marketing and sale of radio frequency
identification systems used to identify, locate and protect people and assets. The healthcare industry
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represents the principal market for our RFID systems. Our goal is to become the leading provider of RFID
systems in the healthcare industry.

Through our acquisitions in the first half of 2005 of two Canadian-based businesses, each of
which has been engaged in the design, marketing and sale of RFID systems for more than 20 years, we
have become one of the leading providers of:

+ infant protection systems that help to prevent mother-baby mismatching and infant
abduction; and .

*  wander prevention systems that help to protect and locate residents in nursing homes and
assisted living facilities. .

As of December 31, 2006, our RFID systems for one or the other of these applications have been
installed in over 4,000 healthcare locations, primarily located in North America. Sales of these systems
currently represent a majority of our revenue.

We are in early stages of marketing an asset/staff location and identification system to hospitals
and other healthcare facilities. This system is designed to efficiently identify, locate and protect medical
staff, patients, visitors and medical equipment. We are seeking to leverage our established brand reputation,
reseller network and extensive end-use customer base for our infant protection and wander prevention
systems to gain inroads in the developing market for RFID real-time location systems in hospitals and other
healthcare facilities. The healthcare market for these systems is just emerging, but several market research
firms predict that these types of systems will develop into the second-largest application for RFID
technology in the healthcare industry over the next decade.

RFID technology involves the use of radio frequency, or RF, transmissions, typically achieved
through communication between a microchip-equipped transponder and a receiver, for identification,
location and other purposes. The basic components of an RFID system consist of:

*  a“tag,” containing a microchip-equipped transponder, an antenna and a capacitor, attached
to the item to be identified, located or tracked, which wirelessly transmits stored
information to a receiver;

+  one or more receivers, also referred to as “readers,” which are devices that read the tag by
sending out an RF signal to which a tag, in the range of the signal, responds;

» the equipment, cabling, computer network and software applications to use the processed
data for one or more applications.

Most RFID systems use either “active™ or “passive” tags, with the choice reflecting the different
characteristics of the tags and the nature of the RFID system application. The key difference in the
technology is that active RFID systems deploy tags with battery-powered microchips that emit a signal at
regular intervals or continuously and do not rely on power from the reader to operate, while passive RFID
systems deploy tags with microchips that have no attached power supply and receive an activating charge
from the reader’s signal. Applications that require receipt of signais between the tag and the reader beyond
approximately 10 meters in range usually need a battery in the tags.

Our infant protection, wander prevention and asset/staff location and identification systems all
make use of active RFID tags which are worn by the people or attached to the objects these systems are
designed to identify, locate or protect, enabling the systems to be used for perimeter control, tamper
notification, and location and tracking purposes. Multiple receivers with radio frequency antennas are
placed in selected locations throughout a facility to receive coded beacon messages from these active tags.
All receivers in range of a particular tag decode the message and send the received information to a central
server. The received tag information is used for multiple purposes across the range of system applications,
including to provide supervisory alerts when tag messages are absent and to provide tag positional location
through triangulation or other context-sensing algorithms. In addition, many of our active tags include a
tamper detection feature to prevent unauthorized removal, enhancing the security features of our systems.




This includes our proprietary skin-sensing and cut band technologies used with our infant protection tags,
as well as our proprietary tamper-proof asset tag used in our asset/staff location and identification system.
We are also in the process of attempting to create a market within the healthcare sector for the
first, and, to date, we believe the only, human-implantable radio frequency transponder systetn cleared for
use for patient identification and health information purposes by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration, or
FDA — our VeriMed patient identification system. To date, we have generated nominal revenue from sales
of our VeriMed system. The key components of the VeriMed system are a passive microchip, which is
approximately the size of a grain of rice, a fixed.location or a wireless handheld scanner used to read the
16-digit identification number contained on the microchip, and a secure, web-enabled database containing
information appropriate for the specific application. The implantable microchip is not worn or attached as
are the tags used in our infant protection, wander prevention and asset/staff location and identification
systems but rather is implanted under the skin in a person’s upper right arm utilizing a different technology.

We are also engaged-in the development, markéting and sale of products with applications
outside the healthcare sector that do not make use of RFID technology. Specifically, we offer:

+  a wide range of vibration monitoring instruments used by enginegering, construction and
mining professionals to monitor and document the effects of human-induced vibrations on
neighboring structures in an area where blasting activity occurs. We believe we are the
leading provider of vibration menitoring instruments. Sales of such instruments currently
represent the second-largest source of our revenue; and

*  an asset management system used by industrial companies to manage and track their
mobile equipment and tools for purposes of, among other things, reducing theft and the
hoarding of assets. Our asset management system provides broad functionality, including
multi-facility management, usage tracking by cost center, remote requisition, employee
certification, third-party enterprise resource planning integration, and time and attendance
capability. : o : ;

Industry Overview
RFID and the Healthcare Industry

RFID technology has been widely adopted and used in a number of industries and for a number
of different applications. Today, RFID is being used to identify objects in retail, transportation and logistics
industries, as.well as to identify and locate livestock and companion pets. RFID technology offers a number
of advantages over other systems used to identify and track objects, such as barcode technology. RFID
technology offers instantaneous Jocation ability without the need for ongoing human intervention, and
provides greater range, accuracy, speed and lower line-of-sight requirements than barcode technology.

According to a 2006 report prepared by IDTechEx, a United Kingdom-based consulting firm,
entitled “RFID in Healthcare 2006-2016,” the market for RFID tags and systems in the healthcare industry
in 2006 amounts to $90 million, representing approximately 3% of the total RFID market. IDTechEx has
forecast that by 2016 the market for RFID tags and systems in the healthcare industry will grow to
approximately $2.1 billion, estimated to then represent 8% of the total market for RFID technology. The
anticipated rapid growth in the healthcare industry’s adoption of RFID technology reflects the many
healthcare-related applications envisioned and the benefits — for example, operational efficiencies, cost
control and error prevention — to be derived from such applications.

Some of the major applications of RFID systems being deployed in the healthcare industry today
include: . <

»  Infant Protection—At present, approximately 50% of maternity wards and other birthing
facilities in the United States, and 65-75% of maternity wards with greater than 1,000
births per year, have some type of infant protection system — though not necessarily an
RFID system. Based on our experience, we anticipate that hospital maternity, wards and
birthing centers will continue to upgrade their security measures, with RFID systems

- designed for these applications achieving greater market penetration. The adoption of
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security measures, such as the implementation of an RFID infant protection system, has
been prompted by problems in dealing with mother-baby mismatching and infant
abduction. The Journal of Healthcare Protection Management has reported that an
estimated 20,000 mismatching incidents occur annually in the United States. Between
1983 and 2004, 223 infants were recorded as being abducted in the United States, with
over 50% taken from healthcare facilities.

»  Wander Prevention—At present, we estimate that roughly 30% of the long-term care
facilities in the United States have deployed an RF1D-type wander prevention system. The
level of system deployment varies by type of facility. Nursing homes reflect the highest
level, followed by assisted living facilities. The implementation of RFID wander
prevention systems has been prompted by the significant number of individuals residing in
long-term care facilities, including nursing homes and assisted living facilities, who are at
risk of wandering away from their care facility. This can result in danger to the individual
and subsequent liability to the healthcare facility and its insurer. According to the National
Institute on Aging of the U.S. National Institutes of Health, in 2005 there were
approximately 37 million people over the age of 65 in the United States alone, and that
number is expected to grow to approximately 58 million by 2025. Furthermore, according
to the National Nursing Home Survey, published by the Center for Disease Control in June
2002, as of 1999, there were 18,000 nursing homes in the United States in which
approximately 27% of the residents suffered from Alzheimer’s disease, dementia or
related disorders. We believe that existing and future state regulations applicable to long-
term facilities, which include security and wander prevention requlrements will drive the
growth in demand for wander prevention systems

IDTechEx expects that over the next ten years the second-largest RFID application, by value,
within the healthcare industry will be real-time location systems for staff, patients, visitors and assets. Real-
time location systems are designed to locate persons or objects from a distance within a defined physical
space, such as an entire hospital, a care unit or a patient’s room. In this context, “real-time” means that the
RFID system checks and updates the location of the persons and/or objects on a frequent basis, such as
every few seconds. The IDTechEx report cites a number of factors underlying the expected growth in real-
time location system applications, including: the increase in incidents of violence towards staff in hospitals
and long-term care facilities; the increase in the dependent elderly as a percentage of the overall population,
which is causing the ratio of patients to staff to increase, necessitating more efticient use of staff; and the
excessive costs and inadequate level of service and safety resulting from the inability to locate assets and
supplies. RFID real-time location systems can enhance the operational flow and productivity of medical
staff, enable appropriate personnel to more quickly respond to incidents of patient violence against staff,
locate patients and assets, and respond to patients’ needs for assistance.

Notwithstanding the predictions of significant growth for RFID real-time location systems in the
healthcare sector, the pace at which healthcare facilities have implemented RFID systems has been slower
than many who follow the industry have anticipated. Market analysts have cited a number of factors that
may be constraining the rate and extent of the U.S. healthcare industry’s adoption of RFID asset/staff
location and identification systems, including:

«  the cost of deployment, coupled with the limited budgets of many hospitals;
»  the uncertainty or unquantifiable nature of the return on investment; -

»  system compatibility issues;

» the low level of awareness; and

*  privacy concerns.

To date, hospitals in the United States that have implemented real-time location systems have
done so primarily on a departmental basis. This reflects, in part, the funding constraints of U.S. hospitals,

nearly two-thirds of which operate at break-even level financially, as well as the difficulty of quantifying
the return on investment derived from deployment of an RFID system. Most of the existing system
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installations represent early adopters of the technology, typically teaching hospitals. IDTechEx expects that’
the future rate of adoption of RFID real-time location systems will depend on the size of the hospital, with
large and mid-sized hospitals more likely being early adopters. IDTechEx also expects that the average
price of real-time location systems will rise as larger-scale and more sophisticated projects are undertaken,
notwithstanding the expected reduction in the costs of tags and some degree of standardization of the
software and modularity of hardware. In general, a real-time location system with a greater coverage area
translates into greater potential for applications that improve productivity, increase revenues and reduce
COSts,

We believe that RFID technology may also be used to address the need of emergency room
personnel and other first responder medical practitioners to identify uncommunicative patients and rapidly
access their personal health records, and we believe that use of such technology has the potential to
improve patient care, enhance productivity and lower costs. The [DTechEx report refers to a study
performed by the U.S. Institute of Medicine that estimated that preventable medical errors in the United
States cause between 44,000 and 98,000 deaths each year, due in part to mistaken patient identification and
lack of information on a patient’s medical history, and results in losses, other than the loss of human life, of
$17 billion to $29 billion annually. These losses include the expense of additional care needed because of
mistakes, disability, and lost productivity and income. One factor that can contribute to the occurrence of
preventable medical errors is the inability to identify a patient and/or access his or her health records.
Recognizing the problem of patient identification and access to medical records, the United States
government is currently attempting to address certain inefficiencies in the healthcare system related to
information technology. In particular, the current administration has developed a National Health
Information Technology Plan which features as one of its main initiatives a plan to establish electronic
health records for a majority of Americans within the next ten years.

RFID and Security and Industrial Applications

The security, industrial and government sectors also stand to benefit from the implementation of
RFID technology. Many high security facilities, such as government and industrial facilities, have a need
for access monitoring. For example, nuclear power plants, national research laboratories and correctional
facilities, among others, require the means to accurately and securely monitor activity, Line of sight
tdentifiers, such as 1D cards, suffer from problems that RFID technology readily overcome, such as reliance
on human visual identification, loss, theft, tampering and slow speed.

Large industrial companies in higher-value asset-intensive industries, such as construction, oil
and gas, and power companies, can face significant costs related to inefficiencies in locating mobile assets
and tools. A January 2005 report by the National Equipment Register cites estimates of the total value of
construction and farm equipment stolen annually in the United States ranging from $300 million and $1
billion. Companies in these industries frequently experience problems and incur costs related to managing
inventory. To address these problems, companies such as SAP, Oracle and Peoplesoft offer enterprise
resource planning, warehouse management, and manufacturing execution systems that include asset
tracking modules and capabilities. To date, RFID solutions have achieved limited market penetration.

Vibration Monitoring

Govemment regulations relating to the monitoring of vibrations resulting from activities, such as
mining, commercial blasting, pile driving and heavy construction, require compliance with specified
standards. These standards serve to limit the potential for damage to neighboring structures and to
minimize human annoyance. The demand for such monitoring, though affected by the level of economic
activity, has, in general, increased over the last 20 years, reflecting the greater degree of blasting and
vibration activities occurring closer to densely populated areas. In addition, the insurance industry requires
monitoring to avoid claims for vibration-related damage.

Our Solutions

We are primarily engaged in the development, marketing and sale of RFID systems used to
identify, locate and protect people and assets. The healthcare industry represents the principal market for
our RFID systems. We also market and sell RFID and non-RFID systems with applications outside the
healthcare sector, specifically for security and industrial applications. In addition, we market and sell
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vibration monitoring instruments used to monitor and document the effects of human-induced vibrations on
neighboring structures in an area where blasting occurs. All of our systems are designed to enable our end-
use customers to enhance operating efficiencies, reduce costs, and reduce the exposure to potential liability.

In early 2007, we realigned our business into three business segments: healthcare security,
implantable, and industrial. This change was made to align our financial reporting with our new
operational management structure. All segment information in this Annual Report on Form 10-K has been
reclassified to reflect the segment realignment.

QOur Healthcare Security Systems
Infant Protection '

We are a leading providér of RFID infant protection systems, which we market and sell under
the Hugs and HALQ brand names. Our systems reduce the risk of infant abductions and mother-baby
mismatching, and enable healthcare professionals to accurately identify infants. Qur systems help protect
infants from abductions.by sounding alarms, locking doors and disabling elevators, While infant abductions
are rare, the impact of a single case can create a severe negative impact on hospitals, birthing centers and
families. With an additional optional component worn by the mother, one of our systems can be used to
help prevent mother baby-mismatching through an audible signal to indicate a match or mismatch.

The benefits of our infant protection systems include:

+ areliable and accurate security system using RFID technology, requiring no manual
checking of infant tags or other devices to make sure they are working (as the system
software continually monitors the status of all key system components, and generates an
alarm if something goes wrong);

«  automatic alerting of mother-baby mismatches (in the case of one of our systems);

»  aproprietary skin-sensing or cut band technology that sounds an alarm if the tag is
e removed-or tampered with; '

+ areduction of potential liability to hospitals and birthing centers; and

»  an enhanced marketability of a hospital or birthing center. :

The Hugs System
: : .

The Hugs system uses a proprietary anklet band containing an active RFID tag: If the band is cut
or tampered with, a signal is emitted to a receiver. The Hugs system software continually monitors the
status of all infant tags, and will generate an alarm if a tag does not send a status message every 12 seconds
— and more frequently when within the range of a mounted receiver at a point of egress. The beacon is
received by receivers positioned above the ceiling or by a door that monitor the tag’s location, Once a
signal is emitted to a receiver, the receiver then sends the signal to a server containing our application
software. L ' :

The Hugs system will alert the staff of a maternity ward or birthing center if:

*  someone tries to exit via a monitored door or elevator with a protected infant, without
authorization,

+  the band is cut or tampered with;
« the tag’s signal is not detected by the system for a specified period of time;

+  the tag’s battery power is low; ' 2




-

. ». an authorized exit occurs but someone tries to ¢ piggyback” through the protected exit with

" another infant; or : S

] . . . - .
+  an authorized exit occurs, but the infant is not retumecl to the demgnated safe areain a
spec1fied time. - . '
In the event of an alarm, the server indicates the tag' 1D number and the exact location on a floor plan map

| of the facility, The Hugs system can automatically activate magnetic door locks or hold an elevator. It'can
, also integrate with and activate other security and access control systems, such as alpha-numenc pagers and

cameras. : . C

Through the use of simple password procedures, the Hugs system allows staff to sign tags out of
the system, so infants can be moved, for example, from the maternity ward for testing or other medical ¢
procedures.

o ) -

The optional Kisses component to the Hugs system is designed to ensure mother infant
matching. With the Kisses option, each mother wears a small Kisses tag. Every time a mother and infant
are brought together, an audible signa! indicates a match or mismatch. In the event of a m1smatch the
infant’s tag 1mmedlately alerts the maternity ward or birthing center

The HALQ system is offered at a lower price point than our Hugs system. The HALQ system
uses a generic bracelet, which goes around an infant’s ankle, containing an active RFID tag incorporating
our proprietary skin-sensing technelogy. If the skin-sensing tag is removed from the infant’s skin, a signal

' is emitted to a receiver. Any unauthorized attempt to remove the HALO tag, or to take the infant through a
' monitored exit, immediately results in an alarm at the HALO computer. The alarm identifies the infant and
exact location.

‘ : The Halo System '

The HALQ system supports easy, secure bypass of exits via a keypad or card-access system,
recording the identity of the staff member and the baby being transported. With optlonal staff tags, this
pracess becomes completely automatic.

The HALO system is modular in design and can be easily expanded to new areas of the medical
facility — for example, the pediatrics wing — with the addition of more receivers and tags.

Wander Prevention .

We believe that we are one of the leading providers of active, wearable tag RFID wander
prevention systems, which we market and sell under the Roam Alert brand name. Our systems allow
healthcare professionals to accurately identify and locate residents of long-term care facilities, including
nursing homes and assisted living facilities, as well as hospital psychiatric wards and trauma units. Our
systems help protect residents from wandering by sounding alarms, locking doors and disabling elevators.
Residents wearing our tags are typically individuals who suffer from a dementia-related disorder, such as
Alzheimer’s disease. In addition, hospitals can use our wander preventlon systems in their pediatric wards
to help protect their patients and reduce potential liability.

The benefits of our wander prevention systems include:

v

» the protection of residents without physical restraint, providing them freedom to move
throughout their place of residence; '

»  the reduction of staffing requirements and the increased ability to focus on care rather than
“protection; and : )

»  the reduction of potential Hability to long-term care and related facilities.




With the Roam Alert wander prevention system, an at-risk resident of a long-term care facility
wears an active tag RFID bracelet, which we believe to be one of the smallest and lightest on the market.
Exits are protected by door receivers. When the resident approaches an exit, the door controller tocks the
door to prevent the resident from leaving or, if the door is open, an alarm sounds. All alarm information is
presented in an intuitive visual format: the name of the resident, his/her location and even a picture can be
displayed on PCs installed at one or several nurse stations around the long-term care facility. For bypassing
doors, staff members wear staff pendant tags. Doors will unlock automatically and the system will record
the identity of the staff member, as well as the resident(s) the staff member is escorting.

The Roam Alert system allows for customization of resident care so as to give each resident the
maximum possible freedom compatible with his/her safety. The system can be programmed to enable a
resident to pass through certain exits, for example to reach a common area, while all other exits and _
residents remain protected. !

The system provides not only wander prevention, but can also be expanded to include personal
emergency response and resident locating. Residents and staff can call for help fronm.anywhere in the
facility at any time. ' |
Our Roam Alert ECO product, which we sell at a lower price point, is targeted at facilities with
only a few exits to monitor and/or only a few residents in need of protection. The Roam Alert ECO can
cover elevators, and supports display of the resident tag D number at the door with the optional ID display
unit. It is easily integrated with nurse call, access control and fire safely systems. In addition, the ECO
product can be upgraded to the fuller functionality of the Roam Alert system.

Asset/Staff Location and Identification

Our Assetrac asset/staff location and identification system provides a reliable and efficient
method for hospitals and other healthcare facilities to locate high-value mobile medical equipment, which
we believe can be of help in providing ready access to such equipment when needed and reducing losses
due to misplacement or theft. The location information provided by the system can also be used to establish
whether that equipment has been sterilized since its last use. This information helps to ensure that patients
are treated with sterile and safe equipment.

QOur location and identification system can be utilized for other applications, such as:

+  tracking patients for identification purposes prior to the administration of medications or
surgery;

« tracking the location of caregivers in healthcare facilities to ensure timely response to
‘ emergencies; and

»  facilitating staff alarms in the event-of patient violence.

Hospitals have the ability to deploy asset/staff location and identification systems of varying
scale, ranging from a system covering a single department, such as the emergency room or the operating
room, to one covering the entire facility. The system can provide a combination of portal-based tracking
and true real-time tracking. To date, five of our asset/staff location and identification systems have been
sold and three of those systems have been installed, with the other two expected to be completed by the
third quarter of 2007, These systems were sold through a single distributor on a private label basis.

Qur VeriMed System

Our VeriMed system is designed to rapidly and accurately identify people who are unconscious,
confused or unable to communicate at the time of medical treatment, for example, upen arrival at a hospital
emergency room. Our VeriMed system provides emergency room physicians and staff who have access to
our scanner and either our or a third-party database with rapid access to patient pre-approved information,
including the patient’s name, primary care physician, emergency contact information, advance directives
and, if the patient elects, other pertinent data, such as personal health records. In addition, we believe that
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our.recent introduction of our wireless handheld scanner will make the VeriMed system an important
identification tool for EMTs and other emergency personnel outside the hospital emergency room setting.
The components of our system include:

*  a glass-encapsulated microchip-equipped transponder, antenna, and capacitor; .
« afixed location, and now a wireless handheld, scanner; and
*  asccure, web-enabled database containing patient-approved information.

The microchip used in the VeriMed system is a passive RFID microchip, approximately the size
of a grain of rice, which is implanted under the skinin a patlent s upper right arm by the patient’s
physician. The capsule is coated with a polymer, BioBond™ to form adherence to human tissue, thereby
preventing migration in the body. Each microchip contains a unique 16-digit identification number. The
identification nuriber can be read by one of our handheld scanners. When the scanner is placed within a
few inches of the microchip, a small amount of radio frequency energy passes from the scanner, energizing
the dormant microchip, which then emits a radio frequency signal transmitting the identification number.
With that identification number, emergency room personnel or EMTs can securely obtain from our or a
third party’s database the patient’s pre-approved information, including the patient’s name, primary care
physician, emergency contact information, advance dlrectlves and, if the patient elects, other pertinent data,
such as personal health records.

We currently envision offering patients two annual subscription levels to our database, basic and
full-featured. The following table sets forth the type of information that a patient can store on our database
at each subscription level.

Basic Full-Featured
Type of Information Subscription Level Subscription Level
Personal identification and contact information ...............ccceee.e. v v
Physician and emergency contact information v v
Blood type and allergies ... e v v
Information about medical facilities where additional
information is stored v v

Advance directives: .....cooeeeeeerennanennie. v v

* living will

* power of attorney

» health care agent

» do-not-resuscitate order

» organ/tissue donor card
Personal health records:........ccoviiiiiniiinnnnnne e v

+ medical conditions

+ medications and over-the-counter drugs and
supplements

» medical device implants

= previous surgeries and recent hospital admissions and
medical tests

* specialty physicians

An individual implanted with our microchip is under no obligation to subscribe to our database
and, instead, may have his or her information stored solely on a third-party database, such as that
maintained by a nearby hospital. In such case, we would not derive the recurrent revenue associated with
the subscription to our database. Alternatively, a patient may decide to store his or her information in both
our database and a third-party database. If a hospital or other healthcare facility desires, we will, in general,
seek to integrate our database with its own database.

Initially, we anticipate that a microchip-implanted individual will take responsibility for
inputting all of his or her information into our database, including personal health records, as physicians
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currently have little interest in being involved in this process — primarily because of liability concems and
because they are not generally paid for this service. However, in time we envision that persons with our
microchip may prevail upon their physicians to assist them with the inputting-of information for which, by
virtue of their medical training, physicians are better equipped to provide. This, in turn, should provide
emergency room personnel and EMTs with greater confidence in the accuracy and completeness of
patients’ personal health records in the database.

An individual implanted with our microchip whose information is included in our database may
grant access to such information to any of the following categories of persons, at the sole discretion of the
patient:

public safety personnel, including local policé,‘« ﬁrela.nd rescue workers;
“»  emergency medical personnel, including EMTs and paramedics;

«  medical facilities, including hospitals, urgent care centers apd physician offices; and
. law ‘enforcement personnel, including sheriff’s departments, state police and the FBIL.

Unless a patient decides otherwise, such persons will have read-only access to a patient’s
information.

There are a number of risks associated with our VeriMed business, inbluding without limitation:

*  uncertainty as to whether a market for the VeriMed system will develop and whether we will be’
able to generate more than a nominal level of revenue from the sale of such systems;

+  uncertainty as to the future availability of insurance reimbursement for the microchip implant
procedure from government and private insurers;

«  a potential disruption in our operations, loss of sales and higher expense in the event we are
unable to obtain the implantable microchip from Digital Angel Corporation, our sole supplier of
the microchip, or have to make alternative arrangements for the manufacture of the microchip;

+  our obligation to meet annual minimum purchase requirements beginning in 2007 under our
supply agreement with Digital Angel, as a condition to maintaining the exclusivity of our supply
arrangement, that may exceed our sales of the microchip; and N

+  possible third-party claims asserting that we hold no rights for the use of the implantable
microchip technology and are violating the third party’s intellectual property rights. If such a
claim were successful, we could be enjoined from marketing this technology and could be
required to pay substantial damages.

For additional information relating to the risks associated with our VeriMed business, see “Item 1A. Risk
Factors—Risks Related to Our Businesses Which Utilize the Implantable Microchip.”

QOur Industrial Systems
Vibration Monitoring Instruments

Our Blastmate and Minimate vibration monitoring instruments provide engineering, construction
and mining professionals with an accurate and efficient means to monitor and document the effects of
human-induced vibrations on neighboring structures in an area where blasting occurs. Government
regulations relating to vibration monitoring require comipliance with specified standards to limit the
potential for damage to neighboring structures and to minimize human annoyance that may result from
commercial blasting or heavy construction. Our instruments assist in evaluating the peak vibration level,
which is a key statistic in the prevention of structural damage.
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We are in the process of developing and introducing a new instrumentation platform. The new
platform will replace our existing platforms for our vibration monitoring instruments, for which we are
facing certain manufacturing challenges due to the discontinuation and unavailability of key components,
We believe the new platform, when completed, will better integrate with contemporary data
communications protocols so as to improve our products’ remote monitoring capabilities. In addition, we
expect the new platform will entail the addition of several sensors and peripherals that will enhance the
ability to monitor additional environmental and structural parameters related to vibration and overpressure
monitoring,.

Asset Management System

Qur asset management system, ToolHound, is used by industrial companies to manage and track
their mobile equipment and tools, Our primary markets for the ToolHound system are the heavy
construction, power generation and petrochemical processing industries. ToolHound is a turnkey system
consisting of barcodes, durable scanners, wireless.access points and management application software that
includes a check-out and return system for mobile equipment and tools. The information relating to the
equipment is maintained in a database enabling a company to monitor inventory, equipment maintenance
status and job activity status. The ToolHound system provides broad functionality relative to competitive
products, including multi-facility management, usage tracking by cost center, remote requisition, employee
certification, third-party enterprise resource planning integration, and time and attendance capability. In
addition, our core competency in RFID technology provides us with expanded product development
possibilities, such as the ability to read data from RFID tags.

Our Strategy - o

'For the foreseeable future, we expect that our revenue will continue to be derived primarily from
sales of our infant protection and wander prevention systems, which along with out asset/staff location and
identification system, make up our healthcare security system offerings, and sales of our vibration
monitoring instruments. :

Healthcare Security System Offerings

We believe that the global market for infant protection systems, including components of such
systems that are consumable items, is currently growing at a rate of approximately 10-15% per year,
although we consider the market relative mature. The United States currently accounts for more than 95%
of the global market for infant protection systems. There are approximately 3,400 birthing hospitals in the
United States. We estimate that infant security systems have been implemented in approximately half of
these facilities. Management.estimates that approximately one in three, or 1,100, U.S. hospitals and
birthing centers use our infant protection systems, In 2006, we achieved record sales of our infant
protection products. These sales were across all of our product platforms and multiple geographies,
focused in North America. We believe that growth opportunities exist among the remaining facilities that
do not yet have infant protection systems in place, as well as through replacement of legacy systems.
Presently, approximately halt of our infant protection system sales are replacement system sales.

We estimate that within the United States RFID-type wander prevention systems are currently
installed in approximately 30% of the more than 52,000 nursing homes and assisted living facilities. While
the nursing home segment is considered fairly well penetrated, we believe that existing and future state
regulations applicable to long-term facilities, which include security and wander prevention requirements,
will continue to drive growth in demand for wander prevention systems for the next several years. - Over
340 of our wander prevention systems were purchased by long-term care facilities in 2006.

In view of the relative maturity of the markets for our infant protection and wander prevention
systems — at least in the United States -- our growth strategy for these businesses encompasses the
following:

s Market and sell these systems internationally through distribution relationships. We are only
Just beginning to penetrate geographic markets outside of North America for our infant
protection and wander prevention systems. In an effort to aceelerate this process, we intend to
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enter into distribution agreements with a combination of both local distributors who have an in-
_ depth knowledge of the relevant geographic region, as well as larger distributors with a global or
near-global reach.

«  Leverage our established brand recognition, reseller network and extensive end-use customer
base for our infani protection and wander prevention systems to gain inroads in the emerging
market for asset/staff location and identification systems. We intend to leverage our established
‘brand reputation, reseller network and extensive end-use customer base for our infant protection
and wander prevention systems to gain inroads in the emerging market for RFID location and
identification systems in the healthcare industry. We are in the process of building out our
distribution network for our asset/staff location and identification system and providing the
requisite training to certain dealers in an effort to be on the forefront of the emerging market for
these systems in the healthcare sector. We effected a limited commercial launch of our asset/staff
location and identification system to our dealer channel for this system in the first quarter of
2007. We believe that it is important for our asset/staff location and identification system to
capture market share in this emerging market within the next 12-24 months, as we expect that a
significant factor in hospitals’ choice of system vendors will be referrals to other healthcare
facilities that have deployed, and are pleased with, such systems. To achieve this, we will need
to be on the forefront of the effort to educate the healthcare industry regarding the benefits,
including the return on investment, achievable through implementation of RFID location and
identification systems.

«  Offer healthcare security applications that are flexible, scalable and expandable. Our current
product development efforts for our infant protection, wander prevention and asset/staff location
and identification systems include having all of these systems share a common technology
platform. This platform consists of a networked hardware infrastructure and a software-based
server running on an industry standard computing platform thereby allowing it to be integrated
with a customer’s existing technology platform. On top of this common hardware and software
platform, each of the applications, such as infant protection, augments the platform with specific
RFID tags designed for that application and a software module that provides the application-
specific graphical user interface. We believe that a common technology platform for our
healthcare security system offerings will help us to migrate our existing end-use customers into
deployment of asset/staff location and identification systems. A common technology platform
will also allow us to provide our end-use customers with an enhanced value proposition through
the ability to maximize their return on investment from deployment of an RFID system, and
distribute the infrastructure and installation costs, across multiple applications. We are also in the
process of interfacing our technology platform with other location technologies. The first
interface we have completed is with WiFi. This has been done to illustrate the platform’s
flexibility to interface to other wireless air interfaces and perform an even higher level of system
integration that coilects location-based information. This capability will make the platform more
flexible, scalable and expandable.

The VeriMed System and Other Applications for Our Implantable Microchip

We believe that our VeriMed system, which is one of our systems that utilizes our implantable
microchip, may make a significant contribution to our revenue in-the future. As part of our growth strategy,
we intend to dedicate a portion of the operating cash flows generated by our healthcare security systems
and security and industrial products, as well as a significant portion of the proceeds of our initial public
offering, to our efforts to create markets for the VeriMed system, as well as our other systems that utilize
the implantable microchip.

Healthcare Application

We believe our VeriMed system will prove of use to emergency room personnel and other first
responder medical practitioners in identifying uncommunicative patients and rapidly accessing their
personal health records at the time of initial treatment. The primary target market for our VeriMed system
consists of people who are more likely to require emergency medical care, persons with cognitive
impairment, persons with chronic diseases and refated conditions, and persons with implanted medical
devices. According to a study we commissioned by Fletcher Spaght, Inc., there are approximately
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45 million patients in the United States alone who fit this profile. Through use of our VeriMed system, a
person can be scanned for the unique, 16-digit identification number on the implanted microchip, enabling
access from our or a third party’s database to that person’s pre-approved information, including the
person’s name, primary care physician, emergency contact information, advance directives, and if the
person elects, other pertinent data, such as personal health records. See “Item 1A. Risk Factors—Risks
Related to Our Businesses Which Utilize the Implantable Microchip.”

Our sales and marketing strategy for our VeriMed systern is to contemporaneously market our
system to hospitals, hospital networks, third-party emergency department management companies and
nursing homes, as well as to physicians who treat at-risk patients: persons with diabetes, cancer, coronary
heart disease, chronic obstructive pulmonary disease, cerebrovascular disease (stroke), congestive heart
failure, Alzheimer’s, epilepsy and other diseases or conditions, including persons with implanted devices.
This sales and marketing approach is intended to accelerate the adoption of the VeriMed system by
healthcare facilities, as well as by physicians and patients.

In the initial phase of our efforts to create a market for the VeriMed system, we have focused on
getting hospitals and third-party emergency room management companies to adopt the VeriMed system in
their emergency rooms. This focus reflects our recognition that physicians who treat patients within our
target market may be disinclined to discuss with their patients, and patients may not be persuaded by, the
benefits of the VeriMed system in the absence of some or all of the hospital emergency rooms in their
immediate geographic area having become part of our network. To build out our network, we have been
providing our scanners, at no charge, to hospitals and third-party emergency room companies. As of
December 31, 2006, 392 hospitals and other medical facilities, approximately 80 of which were protocol
adopted, have agreed to adopt our VeriMed system in their emergency rooms. Approximately 20% of these
facilities have received training in the use of our system and, as part of their standard protocol, are scanning
patients who arrive in their emergency rooms unconscious, confused or unable to communicate. During the
six-month period from July to December 2006, we recorded a 266% increase in the number of medical
facilities enrolled in the VeriMed network. We expect to continue this “seeding” process for the foreseeable
future, as we endeavor to build out the network across the United States and overseas.

Physicians whose patients fit within our target market are the focus of the second phase of our
commercialization efforts. At present, cur sales and marketing strategy for physicians who treat patients
who fit the profile for which our VeriMed system is intended to benefit includes using our sales force to
directly market to and educate such physicians in those geographic regions surrounding hospitals that have
adopted the VeriMed system as part of their standard protocol. We are distributing marketing materials,
such as brochures and posters, intended to be displayed in physicians’ offices. Qur focus on physicians
reflects our belief that, as with all medical treatments and procedures, it is the physician who is responsible
for discussing and recommending a particular course of action, knowing the particular circumstances of the
individual patient. Our plan is to sell VeriMed kits directly to physicians, who will charge their patients for
the cost of the implant process on a fee for service basis.

As of December 31, 2006, over 1,200 physicians have registered in our VeriMed physician
network and, as such, have agreed to make the VeriMed system available to their patients. Through-March
23, 2007, these physicians have implanted 222 people, from which we have generated nominal revenues.
We attribute the modest number of people who have undergone the microchip implant procedure to a
number of factors:

»  Many people who fit the profile for which the VeriMed system was designed may not be
willing to have a microchip implanted in their upper right arms.

»  Physicians may be reluctant to discuss the implant procedure with their patients until a
greater number of hospital emergency rooms have adopted the VeriMed system as part of
their standard protocol.

»  The media has from time to time reported, and may continue to report, on the VeriMed
system in an unfavorable and, on occasion, an inaceurate manner. For example, there have
been articles published asserting, despite at least one study to the contrary, that the
implanted microchip is not MRI compatible.
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«  Privacy concerns may influence individuals to refrain from undergoing the implant
procedure or dissuade physicians from recommending the VeriMed system to their
patients. Misperceptions that a microchip-implanted person can be “tracked” and that the
microchip itself contains a person’s basic information and personal health records may
contribute to such concerns.

«  Misperceptions and/or negative publicity may prompt legislative or administrative efforts
by politicians or groups opposed to the development and use of human-implantable RFID
microchips. In that regard, in 2006, a number of states have introduced, and at least one
state has enacted, legislation that would prohibit any requirement that an individual
undergo a microchip-implant procedure. While we support ali pending and enacted
legislation that would preclude anything other than voluntary implantation, legislative
bodies or government agencies may determine to go further, and their actions may have
the effect, directly or indirectly, of delaying, limiting or preventing the use of human-
implantable RFID microchips or the sale, manufacture or use of RFID systems utilizing
such microchips.

« At present, the cost of the microchip implant procedure is not covered by Medicare,
Medicaid or private health insurance.

«  Atpresent, no clinical studies to assess the impact of the VeriMed system on the quality of
emergency department care have been completed.

With respect to the last two factors listed above, we are in the process of facilitating and, in one
case, funding clinical studies that we believe may demonstrate the efficacy of the VeriMed system. We
believe that once this is established, govérmment and private insurers may be more likely to cover the cost
of the microchip implant process. In any event, these studies are hkely to be of considerable interest to
physicians who treat at-risk patients. -

In- June 2006, we entered into a memorandum of understanding with Horizon Blue Cross Blue
Shield of New Jersey, the largest health insurer in the State of New Jersey (Horizon BCBSNJ), the
Hackensack University Medical Center Independent Physicians Association (IPA) and the Hackensack
University Medical Center, under which Hackensack University Medical Center and its physicians have the
right to test the VeriMed systerh over a period of approximately two years. We have been advised that
Horizon BCBSNJ has recently initiated efforts to enroll in a pilot program 250 members of Horizon
BCBSNJ who were treated for an episode of care by a Hackensack IPA physician between January 1, 2004
and December 31, 2006. Each participant in the program is to be tested for a period of two years after
receiving the.microchip implant, The objective of this clinical study is to assess the impact of the VeriMed
systemn on emergency department care provided to patients with specified chronic medical conditions. This
will include an assessment of: the insertion technique; patient data selection and input; staff acceptance and
use of the technology; frequency of database access; the time involved for information gathering with
current methods compared to the VeriMed System; the impact of the VeriMed system on clinical
presentation and treatment; and the functionality of the VeriMed system in an application environment. The
memorandum of understanding contemplates that Horizon BCBSNJ, as the sponsor of the program, will
prepare a report no less than six months after the program has ended. To facilitate this clinical study, we
have agreed, among other things, to enter Horizon BCBSNJ-furnished patient data in each program
participant’s personal health record, such that the information can be passed through to Horizon BCBSNJ
or its designee in an automated manner. We are also supplying our handheld scanners at no cost, as is
typical for clinical studies. No patient or third party will be billed for use of the VeriMed system during the
study. The study has been reviewed by the Horizon BCBSNJ privacy board and will be managed by the
Horizon BCBSNI clinical innovations department At the end of the study, implanted patients will have the
option of subscribing to our database or the database of Hackensack University Medical Center, or having
the microchip removed.

We are currently in discussions with the American Medical Directors Association (AMDA)
regarding a proposed study to assess the efficacy of the VeriMed system in improving patient outcomes and
improving access to patient medical information while patients are in route to emergency rooms from long-
term care facilities, both skilted nursing facilities and assisted living facilities. The proposed study would
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involve 10 facilities, either skilled nursing facilities or assisted living facilities, with an estimated study
population of 225 people. The inclusion criteria for.the study participants would include being age 65 or
above and having two or more of the following conditions: dementia, stroke, diabetes, chronic obstructive
pulmonary disease, congestive heart failure, coronary heart disease and epilepsy. No patient or third party
will be billed for use of the VeriMed system during the study. At the end of the study, implanted patients
will have the option of subscribing to our database or having the microchip removed.

In carly 2007, we entered into a partnership with Alzheimer's Community Care, or ACC, of West
Palm Beach, Florida, in which VeriChip and ACC will conduct a study of the effectiveness of the VeriMed
Patient Identification System in managing the records of Alzheimer's patients and their caregivers. In the
two-year, 200 patient study, participating individuals suffering from Alzheimer's disease and other forms of
dementia, as well as their caregivers, would receive the VeriMed implantable microchip to provide
emergency department staff easy access to those patients' identification and medical information.
Alzheimer's disease is one of several medical conditions we identify as being ideally suited for the benefits
of the VeriMed system since individuals with the disease or other forms of dementia are often unable to
give necessary identifying information or critical medical history upon being admitted to a hospital. ACC
also believes it is important for caregivers to obtain the implantable VeriMed. [f a caregiver becomes ill,
the VeriMed database will inform medical personnel that he or she is the caregiver for someone unable to
care for themselves. All participanis in the study will be voluntary. The legally designated responsible party
of an Alzheimer's patient unable to make medical decisions must give permission for the patient to
participate,

We believe that if the results of these and other clinical studies that may be undertaken are
sufficiently compelling, the Center for Medicare and Medicaid Services may determine that the. VeriMed
microchip implant procedure is reimbursable under Medicare and Medicaid. If this were to occur, we
believe many private insurers would follow suit.. We can provide no assurance as to if and when .
government or private insurers will decide to take such action. [t may take a considerable period of time for
this to occur, if, in fact, it does occur. If government and private insurers do not determine to reimburse the
cost of the implant procedure, we would not expect to realize the currently anticipated level of sales of our
implantable microchip and the database subscription fees.

We are also in the process of seeking endorsements of the VeriMed system from patient
advocacy groups, which we believe would greatly enhance our efforts to reach out directly to at-risk
patients. To date, we have engaged in very limited direct marketing to at-risk patients. We are also seeking
to develop physician “champions” to serve as spokespersons for the VeriMed system.

Other Applications

We have also developed two other systems that utilize the implantable microchip, our VeriGuard
and VeriTrace systems. : ‘

Our VeriGuard system uses our implantable microchip and/or active RFID tags to provide secure
access control into restricted areas, map/track visitors throughout a facility, and track assets. We believe
these applications could be of value to high security facilities, such as government facilities, nuclear power
plants, national research laboratories and correction facilities, by providing secure ingress and egress and
local area location. In 2003-2004, we derived minimal revenue from sales of the VeriGuard system. We
have focused most of our efforts on creating a market for our VeriMed system since receipt of the FDA’s
clearance of the human-implantable radio frequency transponder system for patient identification and
healih information purposes in October 2004. Currently, we are not actively marketing our VeriGuard
system,

Our VeriTrace system was conceived of in the wake of Hurricane Katrina, when we donated
implantable microchips to FEMA’s Department of Mortuary Services in Mississippi and Louisiana to help
with FEMA’s efforts to identify corpses. Qur implantable microchips were used to provide an end-to-end
tagging solution for the accurate tracking and identification of human remains and associated evidentiary
items. We have recently begun marketing our VeriTrace system.

Since our VeriGuard and VeriTrace systems, like our VeriMed syétem, incorporate our
implantable microchip, many of the risks associated with the VeriMed system apply to the VeriGuard and
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VeriTrace systems, including the risk of possible third-party claims asserting we are violating rights with
respect to certain patented intellectual property underlying each of these systems. We do not anticipate
generating more than nominal revenues from the sale of the VeriGuard and VeriTrace systems prior to the
expiration of the patent in April 2008.

Industrial System Offerings

We perceive the market for vibration monitoring instruments, like that for our healthcare
security system offerings, to be of limited size and growth potential. Our primary strategy to grow this
business is through the introduction of a new instrumentation platform. We believe that the new platform,
which we anticipate will be completed in the fourth quarter of 2007, will better integrate with contemporary
data communications protocels so as to improve our products’ remote monitoring capabilities. In addition,
we expect the new platform will entail the addition of several sensors and peripherals that will enhance the
ability to monitor additional environmental and structural parameters related to vibration and overpressure
monitoring.

Technology
Active Tags and Readers

Our infant protection, wander prevention and asset/staff location and identification systems all
make use of active RFID tags, enabling the systems to be used for perimeter control, tamper notification,
location and tracking purposes. These active tags include an internal lithium battery enabling them to
transmit a coded radio frequency beacon on a continual or intermittent basis. The beacon has a reliable
range of approximately 30 to 50 feet indoors and up to 100 feet outdoors. Multiple receivers with radio
frequency antennas are placed in selected locations throughout a facility to receive coded beacon messages
from these active tags. All receivers in range of a particular tag decode the message and send the received
information to a central server. The received tag information is used for multiple purposes across the range
of applications, including to provide supervisory alerts when tag messages are missing and to provide tag
positional location by triangulation and other context sensing algorithms.

In addition, many of our active tags include a tamper detection feature to prevent unauthorized
removal, enhancing the security features of our systems. This includes our proprietary skin-sensing and cut
band technologies used with our infant protection tags, as well as our proprietary tamper-proof asset tag
used in our asset/staff location and identification system.

Technology Platform/Application Software

Qur current product development efforts for our infant protection, wander prevention and
asset/staff location and identification systems include having all of these systems share a common
technology platform. This platform consists of a networked hardware infrastructure and a software-based
server running on an industry standard computing platform. On top of this common hardware and software
platform, each of the applications, such as infant protection, augments the platform with specific RFID tags
optimally designed for that application and a software module that presents the application-specific
graphical user interface. We have already developed application software that provides graphical user
interfaces for our Hugs infant protection, patient identification and asset/staff location and identification
systems on the platform. We will be completing the wander prevention and our Halo infant protection
system application software in the coming months. The graphical user interfaces allow users to monitor the
system and be alerted to, among other things, security alarms, identification and location information, tag
associations, activity reports, tamper alaris, pager notifications and doors locking.

We are in the process of interfacing our technology platform with other location technologies.
The first interface we have completed is with WiFi. This has been done to iliustrate the platform’s
flexibility to interface to other wireless air interfaces and perform an even higher level of system
integration that collects location-based information. In addition, the platform can interface with other
vertically integrated systems for work flow management within the healthcare industry. In such cases, the
platform serves as the RFID engine, processing data from third-party software applications. This capability
makes the platform more flexible, scalable and expandable.
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Research and Development

Our research and development group consists of 43 staff members, currently based in Ottawa
and Vancouver, Canada, who have an average of approximately 18 years of research and development
experience. These employees are responsible for the development of hardware, software and the
mechanical design of our systems. Further enhancements to our current systems and the development of
new systems are important components of our ability to remain competitive in our marketplace. In
November 2006, we decided to consolidate our Canadian operations into our existing facility in Ottawa.
The consolidation will entail the closing of our Vancouver facility, expected to be completed in mid-2007.

Intellectual Property

We rely on a combination of patents, copyrights trade secrets (including know-how), employee,
inteliectual property agreements and third-party. agreements to establish and protect proprietary rights in
our products. .

Our patent portfollo consists of patents issued in the United States and patents tssued in Canada, .
including the followmg -

« U.S. Patent No. 6,144,303, “Tag and Systern for Patient Safety Monitoring,” applies to infant
protection tags that sense when they are in contact with the skin. The tag can generate an alarm
when it is removed. The 1.8, patent expires in 2019. The corresponding issued patent in Canada.
is Canadian Patent No. 2,260,577, which expires in 2319.

»  U.S. Patent No. 5,977,877, “Multiple Conductor Security Tag,” applies to tags attached with
bands that can detect unauthorized cutting of a band attached to a person or object, This patent
expires in 2018. '

*  U.S. Patent No. 5,374,921, “Fiber Optic Security and Communications Link™ applies to security
tags with an optical fiber in the band to detect unauthorized removal. This patent expires in - |
2011. The corresponding issued patent in Canada is Canadian Patent No. 2,055,266, which

. expires in 2011.

*  U.S. Patent No. 6,137,414, “Asset Security Tag,” applies to asset protection tags that can
generate an alarm if the asset to which it is attached (such as a piece of hospital equipment) is
moved to an unauthorized area or if the tag is removed without authorization. This patent expires
in 2019,

*  U.S. Patent No. 6,456,191, “Tag System with Anti-Collision Features,” applies to RFID tags
with communication features that allow communications with multiple tags in close proximity to
one another. The U.S. patent expires in 2019. The corresponding issued patent in Canada is
Canadian Patent No. 2,266,337, which expires in 2019.

+  U.S. Patent No. 7,116,230, “Asset Location System, applies to an RFID tagging system that
utilizes a portable receiver, instead of a network of fixed receivers, to track, analyze and
prioritize information on the location of tagged assets within a building or warehouse. This
patent expires in 2025.

The technology covered by the above-listed patents is widely used in our healthcare security
systems. We also have patents relating to our seismic monitoring business, including U.S. Patent
No. 4,935,748, “Blast Recorder and Method of Displaying Blast Energy,” which applies to devices for
displaying seismic signals detected from a blast and expires June 19, 2007.

In addition to the patents described above, we have a license from Digital Angel Corporation
under U.S. Patent No. 5,952,935, “Programmable Channel Search Reader,” which applies to RFID tag
readers that are capable of reading different kinds of RFID tags with differing communications protocols.
The patent expires on May 3, 2016. We also have a license from BI Incorporated under U.S. Patent
No. 4,952,913, *Tag for Use with Personnel Monitoring System,” which applies to tags, for individuals,
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that sense and report tampering. The patent expires in 2007. This patented technology is used in our Hugs
infant protection system.

We obtain the implantable microchip used in our VeriMed, VeriGuard and VeriTrace systems
from Digital Angel Corporation, a majority-owned subsidiary of our parent company, Applied Digital,
under the terms of a supply agreement. Digital Angel, in turn, obtains the implantable microchip from a
- subsidiary of Raytheon Company under a separate supply agreement. The technology underlying these
systems is covered, in part, by U.S. Patent No. 5,211,129, “Syringe-implantable Identification
Transponders.” In 1994, Destron/ID1, Inc., a predecessor company to Digital Angel, granted a co-exclusive
license under this patent, other than for certain specified fields of use retained by the predecessor company,
to Hughes Aircraft Company, or Hughes, and its then wholly-owned subsidiary, Hughes Identification
Devices, Inc., or HID. The specified fields of use retained by the predecessor company do not include
human identification applications. The rights licensed to Hughes and HID were freely assignable, and we
do not know which party or parties currently have these rights or whether these rights have been assigned,
conveyed or transferred to any third party. We source the implantable microchip indirectly from a
subsidiary of Raytheon Company, with which Hughes, then known as HE Holdings, Inc. was merged in
1997. However, we have no documentation that establishes our right to use the patented technology for
human identification applications. We do not anticipate generating more than nominal revenue from the
sale of the VerniMed, VeriGuard or VeriTrace systems prior to the expiration of the patent in April 2008.
Hughes, HID, any of their respective successors in interest, or any party to whom one of the foregoing
parties may have assigned its rights under the 1994 license agreement may commence a claim-against us
asserting that we are violating its rights. If such a claim is successful, sales of our VeriMed, VeriGuard and
VeriTrace systems could be enjoined, and we could be required to cease-our efforts to create a market for
these systems, until the patent expires in April 2008. In addition, we could be required to pay damages,
which may be substantial. Regardless of whether any claimant is successful, we would face the prospect of
the expenditure of funds in litigation, the diversion of management time and resources, damage to our
reputation and the potential impairment in the marketability of our systems even after the expiration of the
patent, which could harm our business and negatively affect our prospects. .

- Our employees, consultants and advisors are required to-enter into confidentiality agreements
that prohibit the disclosure or'use of our confidential and proprietary information, We also have entered
into confidentiality agreements to protect our confidential information delivered to third.parties. Our RFID
tag designs benefit from confidential know how we have developed through experience. Our middleware
product that is a component of our technology platform for our healthcare security applications, as well as
other software products, are protected by copyright and trade secret rights.

We are secking registration of our VeriChip trade name in various product markets in the United
States and elsewhere in the world. However, in June 2004, VeriSign, Inc. filed oppositions with the U.S.
Patent and Trademark Office, objecting to our registration of the VeriChip irade name and our trademarks
that begin with the “Veri” prefix. We and VeriSign are seeking to amicably resolve the opposition
proceeding. In the event an amicable resolution is not reached and VeriSign is successful in the opposition
proceedings, our applications to register VeriChip and other “Veri-” marks will be refused. It is also
possible that VeriSign could bring a court action seeking to enjoin our use of VeriChip and the other “Veri-
» marks and/or seek monetary damages from our use of these marks. If VeriSign were to bring a court
action and prevail in that action, we may be required to re-name our Company and re-brand some of our
products, such as VeriMed, VeriGuard and VeriTrace, as well as to possibly pay damages to VeriSign for
our use of any trademarks found to have been confusingly similar to those of VeriSign.

Despite our efforts to protect our intellectual property rights, it may be possible for unauthorized
third parties to copy porticns of our products or to reverse engineer or otherwise obtain and use some
technology and information that we regard as proprietary. Our reliance on intellectual property rights is
subject to a number of risks. See “Item 1 A. Risk Factors.”

Sales, Marketing and Distribution

Qur end-use customers consist of healthcare facilities, such as hospitals and long-term care
facilities, healthcare professionals, such as physicians, individual patients, and other customers that
purchase our systems for non-healthcare applications, such as construction, oil and gas companies and
power companies.
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Our sales and marketing strategy is to sell our systems through muitiple channels. However, to
date we have sold essentially all of our active RFID systems through dealers. Most of our largest dealers,
by volume of systems sold, are focused exclusively or primarily on the healthcare industry. As of
December 31, 2006, our sales and marketing staff consists of a total of 47 people, based primarily in
Ottawa, Canada and at our corporate headquarters in Florida- We have a limited number of sales
representatives strategically located in other places in North America, where we have a number of hospltals
that have adopted our VenMed system :

'In general the terms- of our dealer agreements for our healthcare security systems obligate our
dealers to provide us with reports, on a monthly basis, regardmg information such as:

» sales and inventory levels for the precedmg month;

»  sales analyses within the dealers’ territories;

.t

»  forecasts for future sales on a rolling one month, three month and annuat basis; and

*  service and support activity.
We use these reports, amoeng other things, to effectively plan our inventory levels, manage'dealer
performance against sales targets, identify and resolve channel conflicts, and manage our customer support.

‘We market our systems primarily by attending trade shows and medical conferences and by
advertising in publications. N . .
! . . IR ' t
Our Healthcare Security Systems

¢

Infant Protection/Wander Prevention

We currently sell our infant protection and wander prevention systems through dealers. These
dealers are typically appointed, on a non-exclusive basis, to cover a specific geographic sales territory. The
term of such appointment is generally for one year, but subject to automatic renewal from year-to-year in
the absence of a termination by us or the dealer. In general, our agreements with our dealers impose no
minimum purchase requirements. Some of our dealer agreements include price protection provisions, under
which we undertake not to charge the dealer prices higher than the best price we are offerlng our systems to
any of our other dealers,

QOur dealers of our.infant protection and wander prevention systems have responsibility for the:
installation and after-sale servicing and maintenance of such systems. System installation requires
relationships with cable.companies, knowledge of the other products that need to be integrated with our
hardware and knowledge of local codes. To ensure that our systems'are installed in accordance with our
standards, we have established a distribution technical training and certification program. In addition to
system installation, our dealers provide end-use customers w1th post-sale customer service and system
maintenance.

Asset/Staff Location and Identification System

The three asset/staff location and identification systems that have been sold and successfully
installed, and the two systems curtently being installed, were sold through Agility Healthcare Solutions
LLC, a company engaged in logistical management of mobile assets for the healthcare provider industry.
These systems were sold on a private label basis. Agility Healthcare markets our systems under its name - -
using its sales force, as well as through some of our dealers that also sell our infant protection systems.

P . v
“r

‘We are itr the process of building out our distribution network for our asset/staff location and -
identification system and providing the requisite training to certain dealers. We anticipate that the optimal
size of our dealer network for this system will be smaller than that for our infant protection and wander
prevention systems, given the higher price points for asset/staff location and identification systems, the
need to reach senior level executives of targeted healthcare facilities and the anticipated longer sales eycle.
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Our VeriMed System

To date, our marketing efforts w1th respect to our VeriMed system have been to provide our
scanners to hospitals and third-party emergency room management companies at no charge in order to
build out the geographic footprint of the healthcare facilities that can and will use our VeriMed system as
part of their standard protocol. We expect to continue this “seeding” process for the foreseeable future as
we endeavor to build out our network across the United States and overseas. In addition, we have been
marketing our VeriMed system to physicians, who treat patients who fit the profile for which our VeriMed
system is intended to benefit, in those geographic areas surrounding hospitals that have adopted the
VeriMed system. In the future we expect to utilize dealer arrangements to allow us to more widely
distribute the VeriMed system and the microchip insertion kits.

Qur Industrial Systems
Vibration Monitoring Instruments

We distribute our Blastmate and Minimate systems to engineering, construction and mining
professionals through an independent network consisting of approximately 75 dealers, approximately half
of which operate in North America.

ToolHound . .

We market and sell our ToolHound system primarily through our direct sales force based in
Ottawa, Canada. We market our ToolHound system predominately in North America to approx:mately 150
accounts, which mclude construction companies and other industrial organizations.

4

Competition

Maost of our systems utilize RFID technologies. While certain of our competitors in certain of
our system applications also sell products that use RFID technologies, some sell products that incorporate
other technologies, such as high frequency radio signals, or WiFi, barcode technology and biometric
technology. With respect to the healthcare industry in particular, we are unable to predict which technology
will be most widely adopted in the future. In addition, some of our current competitors, as well as
companies who utilize RFID technologies in applications outside of our target markets, have significantly
greater financial, marketing and product development resources than we do. Low barriers to entry across
most of our product lines may result in new competitors entering the markets we serve. Also, our
competitors may be able to respond more quickly to new or improved technologies by devoting greater
resources to the development, promotion and sale of products. We expect our competitors to continue to
improve the performance of and suppott for their current products. We also expect that, like us, they will
introduce new products, technologies or services. Qur competitors” new or upgraded products could
adversely affect sales of our current and future products.

With respect to our infant protection and wander prevention systems, several other companies
offer solutions for these applications, including Visonic Technologies, RF Technologies, Innovative
Control Systems and Senior Technologies. We believe that competition in these markets is mainly based on
product features, reputation, including endorsements by other healthcare facilities, and brand awareness.
Based on the Fletcher Spaght study, we believe we possess a leading market share in infant protection
systems and are one of the leading providers of wander prevention systems in North America.

With respect to our VeriMed system, we do not believe any other company currently offers a
human implantable microchip-based patient identification system. However, various media sources have
reported on people who have been implanted with RFID chips obtained over the Internet for as little as
$2.00. We do not know if the RFID microchips obtained over the Internet are in compliance with the
Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act;-its regulations or the FDA special controls guidance document
applicable to this technology. See “Our Business — Government Regulation.” In addition, various -
alternative patient identification solutions are currently available, such as bracelets sold by MedicAlert,
health information wallet cards, biometric systems and key fobs that store personal health records. We are
currently in the process of seeking to create a market for our VeriMed system, and our competitive position
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in this market will depend on whether hospitals and other healthcare providers accept this new technology
and incorporate it into their standard protocol. Our competitive position will also depend on whether
patients prefer our VeriMed system to existing or future identification systems, as well as whether the
implant process becomes subject to reimbursement by government and private insurers.

With respect to the other systems we offer, we believe that competition is mainly based on -
product performance and ease of use, purchase price and operating cost. We believe that our systems are
designed and manufactured to compete favorably based on these criteria with competitive systems currently
in the market.

Manufacturing; Supply Arrangements

We outsource the manufacturing of all the hardware components of our active RFID systems to
third-party contractors, but conduct final assembly, testing and quality control functions internally. To date,
we have not had material difficultics obtaining system components, Except as discussed below, we believe
that if any of our manufacturers or suppliers were to cease supplying us with system components, we would
be able to procure alternative sources without material disruption to our business.

We source the custom straps used with our Hugs infant protection systems from a sole suppiier,
Emerson & Cuming Microwave Products, Emerson & Cuming manufactures the straps at a single facility
located in New England, although it operates another facility in Belgium from which the straps could be
manufactured. While we and our dealers maintain excess inventory to ensure that we maintain an adequate
supply of the straps, we believe it would take several months to make alternative arrangements should we
be unable to source these custom straps from Emerson & Cuming. Under the agreement with Emerson &
Cuming, we are subject to minimum purchase requirements, with the aggregate amount of our minimum
purchase requirements hemg $4 million over the next five years. .

- We and Digital Angel, another majority-owned subsidiary of Apphed Digital, are parties to an
agreement dated December 27, 2005, pursuant to which Digital Angel supplies us with the implantable
microchips,-readers, other products, and the underlying technelogy relating to the microchip, for use in
secure implantable human applications. The microchip and the related underlying technology are used in
our VeriMed, VeriGuard and VeriTrace systems. Digital Angel is our sole supplier of the implantable
microchips, which it obtains from Raytheon Microelectronics Espaiia, a subsidiary of Raytheon Company,
or RME, under the terms of a separate supply agreement as discussed below. The following is a summary
of the principal terms of our amended and restated supply agreement with Digital Angel:

*  Digital Angel has agreed to sell to us and our resellers, on an exclusive basis, the
transponders and reader equipment for our VeriMed system, as well any upgrades,
enhancements and improvements, which are to be used for the primary purpose of secure
human identification. Digital Angel has committed not to sell these products to any other
party if Digital Angel knows or should know that such products are to be used prmmpally
for secure identification applications.

. D:gltal Angel has committed to use it best efforts to supply all of our requirements for the
transponders and reader equipment as and when required. However, if Digital Angel is
unable or unwilling to meet our requirements, we may obtain additional suppliers and
Digital Angel is obligated to permit the use of the underlying intellectual property for that
purpose. We also have the right to design and build, or cause to be designed and built, and
sell, our own readers, to be used for human applications only, and Digital Angel has

" granted to us a fully-paid, royalty-free, non-exclusive license to utilize one of its patents
for that purpose.

. Digital Angel may not supply human implantable microchips to other parties if we meet
certain minimum purchase requirements, specifically: $0 in 2006; $0.9 million in 2007, net
.0f 2006 purchases; $1.8 million in 2008; $2.5 million i 2009; $3.8 million in 2010; and
$3.8 million in each year thereafler, subject to the parties reaching agreement on a
different amount. If during any year we purchase in excess of the minimum purchase
requirement for that year, the excess will be credited against the minimum purchase
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requirement for the following year or years. We purchased $0.4 million of implantable
microchips from Digital Angel in 2006.

= In the event a competitor makes, uses, sells or offers any similar product or service, the
price we are required to pay for products is subject to downward adjustment to enable us
to more effectively compete.

»  The term of the agreement ends on March 4, 2013, subject to earlier termination in the
event of either party’s default or bankruptcy. However, so long as we meet the minimum
purchase obligations under the agreement, the term is to be automatically renewed on an
annual basis until the expiration of the last of the patents covering any of the supplied
products.

»  Ifwe desire to have a third party manufacture any of the products, product upgrades,
enhancements or improvements, or any new products — for reasons other than Digital
Angel’s inability or unwillingness to supply us — we have the right to do so. In such event,
we are obligated to pay Digital Angel a royalty on each product manufactured by third
parties that would otherwise infringe Digital Ange}’s underlying intellectual property
rights.

Our implantable microchip is manufactured for Digital Angel by RME under the terms of a
supply agreement between Digital Angel and RME. The term of that agreement ends on June 30, 2010,
subject to earlier termination by either party if, among other things, the other party breaches the agreement
and does not remedy the breach within 30 days of receiving notice. Under the agreement, RME is Digital
Angel’s preferred supplier of the glass encapsulated, syringe-implantable transponders, provided that
RME’s pricing remains market competitive. Certain of the automated equipment and tooling used in the
production of the transponders is owned by Digital Angel; other automated equipment and tooling is owned
by RME. It would be difficult and time-consuming for Digital Angel to arrange for production of the
transponders by a third party. Accordingly, we cannot assure you that we will be able to procure alternative
manufacturing capability if we are unable to obtain the implantable microchip from Digital Angel or if
Digital Angel is unable to obtam it from RME or another supplier. :

Environmental Regulation

We must comply with local, state, federal, and international environmental laws and regulations
in the countries in which we do business, including laws and regulations governing the management and
disposal of hazardous substances and wastes. We expect our operations and products will be affected by
future environmental laws and regulations, but we cannot predict the effects of any such future laws and
regulations at this time. Our distributors who place our products on the market in the European Union are
required to comply with EU Directive 2002/96/EC on waste electrical and electronic equipment, known as
the WEEE Directive. Noncompliance by our distributors with EU Directive 2002/96/EC may adversely
affect the success of our business in that market. Additionally, we are investigating the applicability of EU
Directive 2002/95/EC on the restriction of the use of certain hazardous substances in electrical and
electronic equipment, known as the RoHS Directive which took effect on July 1, 2006. We do not expect
the RoHS Directivc will have a significant impact on our business.

Government Regulanon
Laws and Regulations Pertaining to RFID T echnalog.res

Our active RFID systems, as well as our RFID systems that use our implantable microchip, rely
on low-power, localized use of radio frequency spectrum to operate. As a result, we must comply with U.S.
Federal Communications Commission, or FCC, and Industry Canada regulations, as well as the laws and
regulations of other jurisdictions that we sell our products, governing the design, testing, marketing,
operation and sale of RFID devices. Accordingly, all of our products and systems have a paired FCC and
Industry Canada equipment authorization. .
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U.S. Federal Communications Commission Regulations
.

Under FCC regulations and Section 302 of the Communications Act, RFID devices, including
those we market and sell, must be authorized and comply with all applicable technical standards and
labeling requirements prior to being marketed in the United States. The FCC’s rules prescribe technical,
operational and design requirements for devices that operate on the electromagnetic spectrum at very low
powers. The rules ensure that such devices do not cause interference to licensed spectrum-services, mislead
consumers regarding their operational capabilities or produce emissions that are harmful to human health.
Our RFID devices are intentional radiators, as defined in the FCC’s rules. As such, our devices may not
cause harmful interference to licensed services and must accept any interference received. We must
construct all equipment in accordance with good engineering design as well as manufacturers’ practices.

g Manufacturers of RFIID devices must submit testing results and/or other technical information
demonstrating compliance with the FCC’s rules in the form of an application for equipment authorization. -
The FCC processes each application when it is in a form acceptable for filing and, upon grant, issues an
equipment identification number. Each of our RFID devices must bear a label which displays the *
equipment authorization number, as well as specific language set forth in the FCC’s rules, In addition, each
device must include a user manual cautioning users that changes or modifications not expressly approved
by the manufacturer could void the equipment authorization. As a condition of each FCC equipment
authorization, we warrant that each of our devices marked under the grant and bearing the grant identifier
will conform to all the technical and operational measurements submitted with the application. RFID
devices used and/or sold in interstate commerce must meet these requirements or the equipment
authorization may be revoked, the devices may be seized and a forfeiture may be assessed against the
equipment authorization grantee. The FCC requires all holders of equipment authorizations to maintain a
copy of each authorization together with all supporting documentation and make these records available for
FCC inspection upon request. The FCC may also conduct periodic sampling tests of equipment to ensure
compliarice. We believe we are in substantial compliance with all FCC requirements applicable to our
products and systems.

Industry Canada Regulations : ‘ ' ‘ -

Industry Canada regulates the design, sale and use of radio communications devices in
accordance with its Radio Standards Specifications, or RSS, and Radio Standards Procedures, or RSP. As
intentional emitters, our RFID devices are subject to Industry Canada’s RSP-100, which establishes the
procedures by which RFID communications equipment receives certification by Industry Canada. The
RSP-100 certification procedure and RSS standards ensure that RFID radio devices do not cause
interference to licensed spectrum services and that the devices do not produce emissions that are harmfu] to
human health. . ' - Ct >

Manufacturers of RF1D devices must demonstrate compliance with RSP-100 and RSS-210.
Industry Canada requires manufacturers of RFID devices to file-an application and agreement for
certification of services. A manufacturer of active RFID equipment must submit testing results and/or other
technical information demonstrating compliance with RS$S-210 along with the manufacturer’s application.
Industry Canada’s Certification and Engineering Bureau processes the application and, upon grant, issues a
unique certification/registration number, which is required to be displayed on each certified piece of
equipment. In addition, in accordance with RSS-Gen, the following information must appear on any radio
frequency device: the certification/registration number; the manufacturer s name, trade name or brand
name; and the model name or number. v : '

Each RFID device must include a user manual. The user manual must identify that the radio
frequency device operates on a no interference, no protection basis, meaning that the device may not cause
radio interference and cannot claim protection from interference. Radio frequency devices that do not meet
the certification, labeling and user manual provision requirements and are sold within or between the
Canadian territories/provinces are subject to penalty by Industry Canada, which may include seizure of the
devices and/or assessment of forfeitures. Industry Canada will also conduct audit checks, from time to time,
to ensure compliance. We believe we are in substantial compliance with all Industry Canada requirements
applicable to our products and systems.
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Regulation by the FDA

Our VeriMed patient identification system is a medical device subject to extensive regulation by
the FDA, as well as other federal and state regulatory bodies in the United States and comparable
authorities in other countries. In October 2004, the VeriMed system received classification as a Class II
medical device by the FDA for patient identification and health information purposes. This allows us to
market the VeriMed system in the United States.

FDA Premarket Clearance and Approval Requirements. Generally speaking, unless an
exemption applies, each medical device we wish to distribute commercially in the United States will
require either prior clearance under Section 510(k) of the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, or
FFDCA, or a premarket approval application, or PMA, from the FDA, Medical devices are classified into
one of three classes — Class I, Class 11 or Class 111 - depending on the degree of risk to the patient
associated with the medical device and the extent of conirol needed to ensure safety and effectiveness.
Devices deemed to pose lower risks are placed in either Class I or II. The manufacturer of a Class 1l device
is typically required to submit to the FDA a premarket notification requesting permission to commercially
distribute the device and demonstrating that the proposed device is substantially equivalent to a previously
cleared and legally marketed 510(k) device or a device that was in commercial distribution before May 28,
1976 for which the FDA has not yet called for the submission of a PMA. This process is known as 510(k)
clearance. Devices deemed by the FDA to pose the greatest risk, such as life-sustaining, life-supporting or
implantable devices, or devices deemed not substantially equivalent to a previously cleared 510(k) device,
are generally placed in Class 11, requiring premarket approval.

In October 2004, we received classification of our VeriMed system as a Class II device. In
granting this clearance, the FDA created a new device category for “implantable radiofrequency
transponder systems for patient identification and health information.” The FDA also determined that
devices that meet this description will be exempt from 510(k) premarket clearance so long as they comply
with the FFDCA, its implementing regulations and the provisions of an FDA guidance document issued by
the FDA in December 2004, entitled “Guidance for Industry and FDA Staff, Class II Special Controls
Guidance Document: Implantable Radiofrequency Transponder System for Patient Identification and
Health Information,” that establishes special controls for this type of device. The special controls, which
are intended to ensure that the device is safe and effective for its intended use, include the following:
biocompatibility testing, information security procedures, performance standard verification, software
validation, electro-magnetic compatibility and sterility testing. We believe that we are in compliance with
FFDCA, its implementing regulations and the December 2004 guidance document. A company that wishes
to market products that will compete with the VeriMed system will not be required to submit a 510(k)
premarket clearance application to the FDA if the company complies with the requirements of the special
controls guidance document, o

In January, 2007, the FDA published a Draft Guidance entitled “Radio-Frequency Wireless
Technology in Medical Devices.” This document includes the FDA’s current recommendations regarding
specific risks and limitations to be considered when developing and implementing a Quality System for
medical devices using radio frequency wireless technology, as well as additional information to be included
in the labeling for such devices. We believe our Quality System and labeling for our VeriMed System
substantially meet the recommendations outlined in the draft guidance.

Pervasive and Continuing Regulation. After a device is placed on the market, numerous
regulatory requirements continue to apply. These include:

»  quality system regulations, or QSR, which require manufacturers, including third-party
manufacturers, to follow siringent design, testing, control, documentation and other quality
assurance procedures during all aspects of the manufacturing process; ‘

+ labeling regulations and FDA prohibitions against the promotion of products for uncleared,
unapproved or off-label uses;

+  clearance or approval of product modifications that could significantly affect safety or
effectiveness or that would constitute a major change in intended use;
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+  medical device reporting, or MDR, regulations, which require that a manufacturer report to the
FDA if the manufacturer’s device may have caused or contributed to a death or serious injury or
malfunctioned in a way that would likely cause or contribute to a death or serious injury if the
malfunction were to recur; and

«  post-market surveillance regulations, which apply when necessary to protect the public health or
to provide additional safety and effectiveness data for the device.

We have registered with the FDA as a medical device manufacturer. The FDA has broad post-market and
regulatory enforcement powers. We are subject to unannounced inspections by the FDA to determine our
compliance with the QSR and other regulations, and these inspections may include the manufacturing
facilities of our suppliers. The Digital Angel manufacturing facility located in St. Paul, Minnesota, was
inspected by the FDA in late May and early June 2006, during which the FDA inspecter conducted a
routine Level 1l Quality System Inspectional Technique inspection. During the inspection, the FDA
inspector made three verbal observations regarding deviations in Digital Angel’s quality system unrelated
to our implantable microchip. It is our understanding that Digital Angel has corrected the three deviations.
To our knowledge, the Raytheon Microelectronics Espafia facility has not yet been inspected by the FDA.

Failure to comply with applicable regulatory requirements can result in enforcement action by
the FDA, which may include any of the following sanctions:

»  warning letters, fines, injunctions, consent decrees and civil penalties;
*  repair, replacement, refunds, recall or seizure of products;
*  operating restrictions, partial suspension or total shutdown of production;

+  refusing requests for 510(k) clearance or premarket approval of new products, new intended uses
or modifications to existing products;

+  withdrawing 510(k) clearance or premarket approvals that have already been granted; and
. crim.inal prosecution.
Fraud and Abuse

We are subject to various federal and state laws pertaining to healthcare fraud and abuse,
including anti-kickback laws and false claims laws. Violations of these laws are punishable by criminal
and/or civil sanctions, including, in some instances, imprisonment and exclusion from participation in
federal and state healthcare programs, including Medicare, Medicaid and Veterans Affairs health programs.
We have never been challenged by a government authority under any of these laws and believe that our
operations are in material compliance with such laws. However, because of the far-reaching nature of these
laws, there can be no assurance that we would not be required to alter one or more of our practices to be in
compliance with these laws. In addition, there can be no assurance that the occurrence of one or more
violations of these laws would not result in a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results
of operations.

Anti-Kickback Laws

We may directly or indirectly be subject to various federal and state laws pertaining to healthcare
fraud and abuse, including anti-kickback laws. In particular, the federal healthcare program Anti-Kickback
Statute prohibits persons from knowingly and willfully soliciting, offering, receiving or providing
remuneration, directly or indirectly, in exchange for or to induce either the referral of an individual, or the
fumishing, arranging for or recommending a good or service, for which payment may be made in whole or
part under federal healthcare programs, such as the Medicare and Medicaid programs. Penalties for
violations include criminal penalties and civil sanctions such as fines, imprisonment and possible exclusion
from Medicare, Medicaid and other federal healthcare programs.
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Federal False Claims Act -

We may become subject to the Federal False Claims Act, or FCA, The FCA imposes civil fines
and penalties against anyone who knowingly submits or causes to be submitted to a government agency a
false claim for payment. The FCA contains so-called “whistle-blower” provisions that permit a private
individual to bring a claim on behalf of the government to recover payments made as a result of a false
claim. The statute provides that the whistle-blower may be paid a portion of any funds recovered as a result
of the lawsuit. Even though the VeriMed system is not reimbursed by federal healthcare programs, it is still
possible that we may be liable for violations of the FCA, for instance, if a sales representative were to assist
or instruct a physician to bill a government program for microchip implantation by listing on the claim
form some other service that is reimbursable.

State Laws and Regulations

Many states have enacted laws similar to the federal Anti-Kickback Statute and FCA. The
Deficit Reduction Act of 2005 contains provisions that give monetary incentives to states (o enact new state
false claims acts. The state Attorneys General are actively engaged in promoting the passage and
enforcement of these laws. While the Federal Anti-Kickback Statute and FCA apply only to federal
programs, many similar state laws apply both to state funded and to commercial health care programs. In
addition to these laws, all states have passed various consumer protection statutes. These statutes generally
prohibit deceptive and unfair marketing practices, including making untrue or exaggerated claims regarding
consumer products. There are potentially a wide variety of other state laws, including state privacy laws, to
which we might be subject. We have not conducted an exhaustive examination of these state laws.

Privacy Laws and Regulations

Qur VeriMed business is subject to various federal and state laws regulating the protection of
consumer privacy. We have never been challenged by a governmental authority under any of these laws
and believe that out operations are in material compliance with such laws. However, because of the far-
reaching nature of these laws, there can be no assurance that we would not be required to alter one or more
of our systems and data security procedures to be in compliance with these laws. Our failure to protect
health information received from customers could subject us to liability and adverse publicity and could
harm our business and impair our ability to attract new customers.

U.S. Federal Trade Commission Oversight

An increasing focus of the United States Federal Trade Commission’s (FTC’s) consumer
protection regulation is the impact of technological change on protection of consumer privacy. Under the
FTC’s statutory authority to prosecute unfair and deceptive advertising practices, the FTC vigorously
enforces promises a business makes about how personal information is collected, used and secured. More
recently, the FTC has found that failure to take reasonable and appropriate security measures to protect
sensitive personal information is an unfair practice violating federal law. In the consent decree context,
offenders are routinely required to adopt very specific cybersecurity and internal compliance mechanisms,
as well as submit to twenty years of independent compliance audits. Businesses that do not adopt
reasonable and appropriate data security controls have been found liable for as much as $10 million in civil
penalties and $5 million in consumer redress. To date, the FTC has concluded nine prosecutions for failure
to adopt reasonable and appropriate data security controls.

Recent events demonstrate that the FTC continues to actively consider the potential impact of
RFID on consumer protection issues. This year, the FTC launched a new initiative, “Protecting Consumers
in the Next Tech-ade” and convened public hearings on November 6-8, 2006 that brought together experts
from the business, government and technology sectors as well as consumer advocates, academics and law
enforcement officials to explore ways in which convergence and the globalization of commerce impact
consumer protection. Panelists examined changes in marketing and technology over the past decade and
challenges facing consumers, business and government. One of the panels, entitled “RFID Technology in
the Next Tech-ade,” focused on the role of RFID in the healthcare and retail sectors.
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State Legislation

During 2006, a number of state legislatures have considered legislation addressing RFID and
consumer privacy concerns. Among the laws passed was & Wisconsin bill prohibiting any requirement that
an individual undergo implantatior of a microchip, with violators subject to a forfeiture of not more than
$10,000. Other state legislatures have introduced similar legislation, such as Ohio, which introduced a bill
prohtbiting employers from requiring an employee to insert a “radio frequency identification tag” into the
employee’s body, and South Dakota, which introduced a bill declaring that no person may require
implantation of an RFID microchip in another person. The States of Georgia and New Hampshire have
recently passed laws convening an expert study committee to consider the impact of RFID technology on
consumer privacy, including providing healthcare and issue recommendations. A number of states also ;
have introduced legislation focusing on the consumer privacy implications of RFID use in government.
identification documents, prescription drug tracking and retail sales. To date, none of this legislative
activity restricts our current or planned operations.

Many states have privacy laws relating specifically to the use and disclosure of healthcare
information, Federal healthcare privacy laws preempt state laws that are less restrictive than the federal
law, but more restrictive state laws still may apply to us. Therefore, we may be required to comply with one
or more of these multiple state privacy laws. Statutory penalties for violation of these state privacy laws
varies widely. Violations also may subject us to lawsuits for invasion of privacy claims.
The European Union
In the European Union (EU), promotion of RFID technology is viewed as a critical economic
issue. It is established that insofar as RFID is a technology involving collection, sharing and storage of
personally identifiable information, the mandates of Directive 95/46/EC of the European Parlioment and of
the Council of 24 October 1995 on the Protection of Individuals With Regard to the Processing of Personal
Data and On the Free Movement of Such Data (“EU Data Directive™) applies. All 25 EU member countries
have implemented the EU data directive. At issue today is whether additional privacy protection laws
beyond those prescribed by the EU data directive and its country-specific laws are needed for privacy
issues raised by RFID technology. On January 19, 2003, the EU"s Working Party 29, charged with
interpretation and expansion of EU data protection law and policy, adopted Working Document 105,
addressing data protection issues related to RFID technology. That document reinforced the need to comply
with the basic principles of the EU data directive and related documents whenever personal data-is
collected via RFID technology. Guidance to RFID manufacturers was also provided regarding
responsibilities to design privacy compliant technology. . .

The EU recently completed a six-month consultation with public and industry stakeholders on
the use of RFID tags. At a conference held on October 16, 2006, the Commissioner for Information Society
and Media, the top official leading the RFID consultation, announced that the EU must consider adopting a
specialized legal framework to ensure that RFID technology does not infringe on privacy. The consultation
results indicated that while the EU was prepared to be convinced of the benefits of RFID, the public
expressed great concerns about ensuring that privacy is not compromised.

Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996

We are not a health care provider, heaith plan or health care ¢learinghouse. Therefore, we are not
subject to the Health Insurance Portabitity and Accountability Act of 1996, or HIPAA. To the extent
required by HIPAA, we have entered into business associate agreements with certain health care providers
and health plans relating to the privacy and security of protected health information. We have implemented
policies and procedures to enable us to comply with these HIPAA business associate agreements.

Employees

As of March 23, 2007, we had 168 employees, of whom 45 were in our sales and marketing
group, 32 in project management/technical support, 44 in research and development, 28 in operations and
19 in finance and administration. We consider our relationship with our employees to be satisfactory and
have not experienced any interruptions of our operations as a result of labor disagreements. None of our
employees are represented by labor unions or covered by collective bargaining agreements.

29

Sy




Financial Information About Segments and Geographic Areas

For a discussion of revenues attributed to our three business segments and to geographic areas
over the past three years, refer to Note 13 to our Consolidated Financial Statements.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

The following risks and the risks described elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K,
including the section entitled *Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations, " could materially affect our business, prospects, financial condition, operating results and
cash flows. If any these risks materialize, the trading price of our common stock could decline, and you
may lose all or part of your investment.

Risks Related to Our Business
If we cannot successfully implement our business strategy, we expect that our business, results of
operations and potential for growth will be adversely affected.

If our market assessments, or the assumptions, estimates.and judgments underlying such
assessments, on which we have charted our course for our business, prove to be incorrect, we may not be
successful in implementing our strategy or achieving our objectives. In that case, we would expect that our
business, results of operations, financial condition and potential for growth will be adversely affected.

Our business strategy for our Canadian-based businesses, from which we are currently
generating substantially all of our revenue, includes:

«  endeavoring to market and sell, through international distributors, an increasing number of our
infant protection, wander prevention and asset/staff Jocation and identification systems outside
of North America, where the market for these products is largely undeveloped;

+  leveraging our established brand recognition, reseller network and extensive end-use customer
base for our infant protection and wander prevention systems to gain inroads in the emerging
market for asset/staff location and identification systems;

«  working to complete our efforts to integrate our infant protection, wander prevention and
asset/staff location and identification systems on one technology platform to enhance the
flexibility, scalability and expandability of our system offerings; and

+  introducing a new vibration monitoring instrumentation platform that better integrates with
contemporary data communications protocols so as to improve our v1brat10n monitoring:
instruments’ remote monitoring capabilities. -

Our business strategy also includes dedicating a portion of the operating cash flows derived from
our healthcare security, implantable and industrial, businesses, as well as a portion of the net proceeds from
our initial public offering, to funding our efforts to create markets for our systems that utilize our
implantable microchip, principally our VeriMed system, from which, to date, we have generated only
nominal revenue. We do not expect to generate more than nominal revenue from these systems over the
next 12 to 18 months and possibly for a longer period of time.

We may decide to alter or discontinue aspects of our business strategy and may adopt alternative
or additional strategies because of business or competitive factors or factors not currently foreseen, such as
the introduction of new products by our competitors or the emergence of new technologies that would
make our products and systems obsolete. If we are unable to successfully implement our current or future
business strategy, our business, results of operations, financial condition and potentlal for growth may be
adversely affected.
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We have a history of losses, and expect to incur additional losses in the future, We are unable to predict
the extent of future losses or when we will become profitable,

We were formed by Applied Digital in November 2001 and have incurred operating losses since
that time, Our accumulated deficit was $17.0 million as of December 31, 2006. Our net losses for the years
ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 were $6.7 million, $5.3 million and $2.0 million, respectively.
We expect to continue to incur operating losses for the foreseeable future.

Cur ability in the future to achieve or sustain profitability is based on a number of factors, many
of which are beyond our control, including the future demand for our active RFID systems targeted at the
healthcare sector and the development of the market for our VeriMed system. [f demand for our RFID
systems generally, and the VeriMed system in particular, does not reach anticipated levels, or if we fail to
manage our cost structure, we may not achicve.or be able to sustain profitability.

Our expense levels will increase over the next several years, contributing to our expectation that we will
incur losses for the foreseeable future.
' * ] .

We expect our operating expenses to increase over the next several years. For example, our
operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 2006 were 6% higher than our pro forma combined
operating expenscs for the year ended December 31, 2005, The 2006 increase was due, in part, to the
restructuring charges taken in the fourth quarter of 2006 relating to the consolidation of our Canadian
operations. The increase in future operating expenses will result from, among other things: .

» the expansion of our sales and marketing efforts to create a market for our VeriMed system as
we expect to continue the buildout of our VeriMed infrastructure in the geographies in which we
currently operate and to expand our geographical reach during 2007; and

= our having become an SEC-reporting and Nasdag-listed company and, as such, being subject to
the requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, SEC rules and regulations to implement
certain of the Act’s provisions, including the requirement to have in place, and evaluate, internal
control over financial reporting, and Nasdaq listing standards. This Annual Report on Form 10-K
does not include a report of management's assessment regarding internal control over financial
reporting or an attestation report of the Company's registered public accounting firm due to a
transition period established by rules of the SEC for newly public companies. We will have to
include a report of management's assessment regarding internal control over financial reporting,
beginning with our annual report on Form 10-K for our fiscal year ending December 31, 2007.
Assuming we do not become an accelerated filer by the time we file our annual report on Form
10-K. for our fiscal year ending December 31, 2007, our independent registered public
accounting firm will not be engaged to attest to management’s assessment of our internal control
over financial reporting until our annual report on Form 10-K for our fiscal year ending
December 31, 2008.

*  Asaresult of stock based compensation granted in late 2006 and through March 23, 2007, we
expect to record between $2.5 million and $3.0 million in stock-based compensation expense in
2007.

In addition, we will incur significant amortization expense associated with intangible assets that
we acqulred as a result of the acquisition of our Canadian-based businesses in the first half of 2005.
Specifically, we incurred approximately $1.8 million in amortization expense associated with these
intangible assets in the year ended December 31, 2006 :

VHDI’s existing bank credit facility may be terminated, or the lender may limir the availability of
borrowings under that facility, at any time without notice. Further, all borrowings under the facility are
repayable upon the lender’s demand. A demand for repayment or any restriction on the availability of
borrowings under the facility would adversely affect our liguidity and financial condition.

Our wholly-owned subsidiary, VHI, is a party to loan agreements providing it with a bank credit
facility of up to CDN$1.5 miilion, or approximately $1.3 million based on the exchange rate as of
December 31, 2006, in revolving credit loans. The facility is not a committed facility, as it provides that
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loans are made available at the sole discretion of the lender. The lender may cancel or restrict the
availability of the facility, or any unutilized portion of the facility, at any time or from time to time.
Borrowings under the facility are repayable on demand, as a result of which outstanding borrowings are
reflected as current liabilities in our consolidated financial statements. In addition, the payment and other
obligations under the loan agreements are secured by all of the assets of VHI and its subsidiary. If the.
lender demands repayment of the borrowings under the facility, we may not have sufficient funds, or may
be required to use a portion of any then remaining proceeds of our initial public offering to honor such
demand. In such event, the lender would have the right to foreclose on the assets securing such borrowings.
In addition, if the lender cancels or restricts our available borrowings under the facility, our ability to fund
our operations may be materially and adversely affected and our prospects for growth would be harmed.

To support the expected increase in our working capital requirements, we will seek to obtain a
larger, committed bank credit facitity. However, no assurance can be given that we will be successful in
obtaining such a facility. [f we are unable to do so, our ability to grow our business and our prospects may
be adversely affected. ‘

We may need additional funding and may be unable to raise capital when needed, which would force us
to delay, reduce or eliminate our product development programs or efforts to create a market for our
VeriMed system.

We expect to require funding in future years, in addition to the proceeds from our initial public
offering, to create a market for our VeriMed system and any additional technologies or systems that we
may license or develop. To the extent we raise additional capital by issuing equity securities, our
stockholders may experience substantial dilution. In addition, our business and operations may change in a
manner that would consume available resources at a greater rate than we anticipated. In such event, we may
need to raise substantial additional capital.-

We may seek to raise necessary funds through public or private equity offerings, debt financings
or strategic alliance and licensing arrangements. If adequate funds are not available, we may be required to
delay, reduce the scope of or eliminate one or more of our development programs, and our business,
financial performance and stock price may be materially and adversely affected. To raise additional funds
through strategic alliance or licensing arrangements, we may be required to relinquish rights to our
technologies or systems, or grant licenses on terms that are not favorable to us.

The markets for our infant protection and wander prevention systems, and our vibration monitoring
instruments, in the United States are relatively mature markets of limited size, which may limit our
ability to increase our sales of these systems.

In the near term, we expect that our revenue will continue to be derived primarily from sales of
our infant protection and wander prevention systems, and our vibration monitoring instruments. The
markets for these systems—at least in the United States, where historically we have sold the substantial
majority of our sales of these systems—can all be characterized as being of limited size and relatively
mature. In the event we are not able to develop new markets, our future growth prospects wili be modest.
We cannot assure you that our historical revenue growth rates from these systems will continue.

To date, we have sold and had installed a limited number of our asset/staff location and identification
systems. There are a numnber of factors beyond our control that may limit future sales of these systems.

To date, we have sold and had installed three of our asset/staff location and identification
systems. These systems were sold through a single distributor on a private label basis. While we believe
that the potential for RFID real-time location systems, such as our asset/staff location and identification
system, to improve the quality and decrease the cost of healthcare is significant, the market for such
systems in the healthcare sector is just emerging. The pace at which healthcare facilities have implemented
RFID systems has been slower than many who follow the industry have anticipated. Market analysts have
cited a number of factors that may be constraining the rate and extent of the U.S. healthcare industry’s
adoption of RFID asset/staff location and identification systems, including:

»  the cost of deployment, coupled with the limited budgets of many hospitals;
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= the uncertainty or unquantifiable nature of the return on investment;
»  system compatibility issues;

«  the low level of awareness; and

»  privacy concerns,

We believe that our asset/staff tocation and identification system will need to capture market
share in this emerging market within the next 12-24 months, as we expect that a significant factor in
hospitals’ choice of system vendors will be referrals to other healthceare facilities that have deployed, and
are pleased with, such systems. To achieve this, we will need to be on the forefront of the effort to educate
healthcare industry personnel regarding the benefits, including the return on investment, achievable through
implementation of RFID location and identification systems.

We may be unable to increase our sales of infant protection and wander prevention systems outside of
North America,

We currently sell substantially all of our infant protection and wander prevention systems in
North America. Part of our growth strategy is to increase our penctration of markets outside of North
America for these systems. Conducting business internationally entails numerous risks, which could disrupt
or otherwise adversely affect our business, including:

»  unexpected changes in regulatory requirements,.taxes, trade laws, tariffs, import and export
controls, customs duties and other trade restrictions or barriers;

*  more stringent regulations relating to data privacy and the unautherized use of| or access to,
commercial and personal information, particularly in Europe;

= regulations, such as with respect to radio frequency bands, that require us to redesign our
existing systems or develop new systems to comply;

*  restrictions on the transfer of funds;

» changes in governmental policies and regulations;

= limitations on the level of intellectual property protectio:{s; and
+  political unrest, terrorism and war.

If we are unable to expand our international distribution network in a timely and cost-effective
manner, we could miss sales opportunities, which could constrain our growth.

Sales of our vibration monitoring instruments will be adversely affected if the introduction of our new
instrumentation platform for these instruments is delayed or if the new platform does not achieve market
acceplance.

If the introduction of our new vibration monitoring instrumentation platform is delayed or if the
new platform does not achieve market acceptance, sates of our vibration monitoring instruments, which
currently represent the primary source of revenue in our industrial segment, will be adversely affected. The
new platform will replace our existing platform for vibration monitoring instruments for which we are
facing certain manufacturing challenges due to the discontinuation and unavailability of key components.
The introduction of the new platform represents our primary strategy to grow our vibration monitoring
business. If we fail to timely introduce the new platform or if the new platform does not achieve market
acceptance, our ability to grow this business will be materially and adversely affected.
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Our competitors, including those who have greater resources and experience than we do, may
commercialize technologies that make ours obsolete or noncompetitive.

There are many public and private companies, universities, governmental agencies and research
organizations actively engaged in research and development of RFID and other competing technologies
with the same or similar functionality as our systems and that target the same markets that we target.

Our active RFID systems, such as our infant protection, wander prevention and asset/staff
location and identification systems, utilize a zonal, also known as cell ID, system in which a network of
readers are positioned to cover a defined area, including points of ingress or egress, to read tagged persons
or objects within the defined area. There are a number of other technologies, such as UHF-based active
RFID technologies, lower power Ultra Wide Band-based location technologies, 802.11 and Zigbee-based
location and wireless networking technologies, and advanced, long range, encrypted passive RFID
technology, that are being developed and sold that can be employed for our target applications. One or
more of these technologies may prove to be a better or more cost-effective solution than our RFID systems
for customers in our target markets and thus achieve greater market acceptance than the technologies used
in our systems. If this were to occur, our ability to sell our systems, as well as our results of operations,
financial cendition and business prospects, would be adversely affected.

Some of our current competitors, as well as companies who utilize RFID technologies in
applications outside of our target markets, have significantly greater financial, marketing and product
development resources than we do. Low barriers to entry across most of our product lines may result in
new competitors entering the markets we serve. If a current or future competitor were to successfully
develop or acquire rights to more effective or lower cost systems for applications targeted by our systems,
then sales of our systems could suffer and our business, results of operations and financial condition could
be materially and adversely affected.

If we are unable to successfully integrate the operations, systems and personnel of the two Canadian-
based businesses we acquired in the first half of 2005, our management team may be distracted or
ineffective and our sales efforts may be impaired,

In the first half of 2005, we acquired two Canadian-based businesses that currently account for
essentially all of our revenue. The acquired companies significantly expanded the scope of our operations
in a rapid manner, and the integration of their operations, systems and personnel is ongoing and continues
to present us with challenges, including:

»  the consolidation of the acquired companies’ respective facilities, scheduled to be completed in
the first half of 2007,

*  managing our relationships with the acquired companies’ dealers and end-use customers;

»  entering markets or types of businesses in which certain members of our management team (who
were not affiliated with either of the acquired companies) have little or no prior experience; and

= integrating different and complex accounting and financial reporting systems,

As part of our integration of the acquired companies, we are in the process of integrating
virtually all of our infant protection, wander prevention and asset/staff location and identification systems
onto a common technelogy platform, capable of being integrated with other wireless technologies to
enhance the flexibility, scalability and expandability of these system offerings. A key element of our
growth strategy is to demonstrate the advantages of this common platform and cross-market to our
customers our full portfolio of systems. If we are unable to successfully integrate these systems onto a
single platform, our sales efforts and ability to cross-market our systems may be impaired, and our revenue
may be adversely affected.
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We rely upon third-party dealers to market and sell, as well as install, service and maintain, our infant
protection, wander prevention and asset/staff location and identification systems, and to market and sell
our vibration monitoring instruments. As such, our revenue from sales of these products significantly
depends on their efforts, as does the level of end-use customer satisfaction.

We currently have a limited sales, marketing and distribution infrastructure. We market and sell
our infant protection, wander prevention and asset/staff location and identification systems, as well as
vibration monitoring instruments, through third-party dealers. We currently derive substantially all of our
revenue from these systems and instruments. In general, our dealer agreements impose no minimum
purchase requirements. '

By virtue of our reliance on dealers, our revenue significantly depends cn the efforts of others. in
addition, we are at risk that an end-use customer may have an unfavorable view of one of our systems
based on a dealer’s improper installation, support or maintenance of that system.

Our dealers of our infant protection, wander prevention and asset/staff location and identiftcation
systems also have responsibility for the installation and after-sale servicing and maintenance of such
systems. System installation requires relationships with cable companies, knowledge of the other products
that need to be integrated with our hardware and knowledge of local codes. After-market customer service
and maintenance is an important aspect of overall end-use customer satisfaction.

We may be subject to costly product liability claims from the use of our systems, which could damage our
reputation, impair the marketability of our systems and force us to pay costs and damages that may not
be covered by adequate insurance.

Manufacturing, marketing, selling, testing and operation of our systems entail a risk of product
liability, We could be subject to product liability claims in the event our systems fail to perform as
intended. Even unsuccessful claims against us could result in the expenditure of funds in litigation, the
diversion of management time and resources, damage to our reputation and impairment in the marketability
of our systems. While we maintain liability insurance, it is possible that a successful claim could be made
against us, that the amount of our insurance coverage would not be adequate to cover the costs of defending
against or paying such a claim, or that damages payable by us would harm our business.

If others assert that our products infringe their intellectual property rights, including rights to the patent
covering our implantable microchip, we may be drawn into costly disputes and risk paying substantial
damages or losing the right to sell our products. '

We face the risk of adverse claims and litigation alleging our infringement of the intellectual
property rights of others. If infringement claims are brought against us or our suppliers, including, in the
case of our implantable microchip, Digital Angel, these assertions could distract management and
necessitate our expending potentially significant funds and resources to defend or settle such claims, We
cannot be certain that we will have the financial resources to defend ourselves against any patent or other
intellectual property litigation.

[f we or our suppliers are unsuccessful in any challenge to our rights to market and sell our
products, we may, among other things, be required to:

»  pay actual damages, royalties, lost profits and/or increased damages and the third party’s
attorneys’ fees, which may be substantial;

» cease the development, manufacture, use and/or sale of products that use the intellectual property
in question through a court-imposed sanction called an injunction;

«  expend significant resources to modify or redesign our products, manufacturing processes or

other technology so that it does not infringe others” intellectual property rights or to develop or
acquire non-infringing technology, which may not be possible; or
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«  obtain licenses to the disputed rights, which-could require us to pay substantial upfront fees and
future royalty payments and may not be available to us on acceptable terms, if at all, or to cease
marketing the challenged products. .

Ultimately, we could be prevented from selling a product or otherwise forced to cease some
aspect of our business operations as a result of any intellectual property litigation. Even if we or our
suppliers are successful in defending an infringement claim, the expense, time delay, and burden on
management of litigation and negative publicity could have a material adverse effect on our business. See
also “Item 1A. Risks Related to Our Businesses Which Utilize the Implantable Microchip—QOur sales of
systems that incorporate our implantable microchip may be enjoined by third parties who have rights to the
intellectual property used in these systems and we may be required to pay damages which could have an
adverse effect on our business.”

Our inability to safeguard our intellectual property may adversely affect our business by causing us to
lose a competitive advantage or by forcing us to engage in costly and time-consuming litigation to defend
or enforce our rights, '

We rely on copyrights, trademarks, trade secret protections, know-how and contractual
safeguards to protect our non-patented intellectual property, including our software technologies. Our
employees, consultants and advisors are required to enter into confidentiality agreements that prohibit the
disclosure or use of our confidential information. We also have entered into confidentiality agreements to
protect our confidential information delivered to third parties for research and other purposes. There can be
no assurance that we will be able to effectively enforce these agreements, the confidential information will
not be disclosed, others will not independently develop substantially equivalent confidential information
and technigues or otherwise gain access to our confidential information, or that we can meaningfully
protect our confidential information. Costly and time-consuming litigation coutd be necessary to enforce
and determine the scope of our confidential information, and failure to maintain the confidentiality of our
confidential information could adversely affect our business by causing us to lose a competitive advantage
maintained through such confidential information. .

Disputes may arise in the future with respect to the ownership of rights to any technology
developed with third parties. These and other possible disagreements could lead to delays in the
collaborative research, development or commercialization of our systems, or could require or result in
costly and time-consuming litigation that may not be decided in our favor. Any such event could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations by delaying our ability
to commercialize innovations or by diverting our resources away from revenue-generating projects,

Our efforts to protect our intellectual property may be less effective in some foreign countries where
intellectual property rights are not as well protected as in the United States.

The laws of some foreign countries do not protect intellectual property to as great an ¢xtent as do
the laws of the United States. Policing unauthorized use of the intellectual property utilized in our systems
and system components is difficult, and there is a risk that our means of protecting our intellectual property
may prove inadequate in these countries. Qur competitors in these countries may independently develop
similar technology or duplicate our systems, which would likely reduce our sales in these countries.
Furthermore, some of our patent rights may be limited in enforceability to the United States or certain other
select countries, which may limit our intellectual property rights abroad.

We may not be successful in our efforts to obtain federal registration of our trademarks containing the
“Veri” prefix with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office.

In June 2004, VeriSign, Inc. filed oppositions with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office,
objecting to our registration of the VeriChip trade name and our trademarks that begin with the “Veri”
prefix. We and VeriSign are seeking to amicably resolve the opposition proceeding. In the event an
amicable resolution is not reached and VeriSign is successful in the opposition proceedings, our
applications to register VeriChip and our other “Veri-” marks will be refused. It is also possible that
VeriSign could bring a court action seeking to enjoin our use of VeriChip and the other “Veri-" marks
and/or seek monetary damages from our use of these marks. If VeriSign were to bring a court action and

36




prevatl in that action, we may required to re-name our Company and re-brand some of our products, such
as VeriMed, VeriGuard and VeriTrace, as well as to possibly pay damages to VeriSign for our use of any
trademarks found to have been confusingly similar to those of VeriSign.

We depend on key personnel to manage our business effectively, and, if we are unable to hire, retain or
motivate qualified personnel, our ability to design, develop, market and sell our systems could be
harmed. .

Our future success depends, in part, on certain key employees, including Scott R. Silverman, our
chief executive officer, acting president and the chairman of our board of directors, and key technical and
operations personnel, and on our ability to attract and retain highly skilled personnel. The loss of the
services of any of our key personnel may seriously harm our business, financial condition and results of
operations. In this regard, only five of the 15 people who served as vice presidents of the Company in June
2003, the time we completed the second of our two acquisitions in the first half of 2005, remained as our
employees as of December 31, 2006. In addition, the inability to attract or retain qualified personnel, or
delays in hiring required personnel, particularly engineering, operations, finance, accounting, sales and
marketing personnel, may also seriously harm our business, financial condition and results of operations.
Our ability to attract and retain highly skitled personnel will be a critical factor in determining whether we
will be successful in the future.

We are subject to various environmental laws and regulations that could impose substantial costs upon
us.

We must comply with local, state, federal, and international environmental laws and regulations
in the countries in which we do business, including those govemning the management and disposal of
hazardous substances and wastes. [f we were to violate or become liable under environmental laws, we
could incur costs or fines, or be subject to third-party property damage or personal injury claims, or be
required to incur investigation or remediation costs. Qur operations and products will be atfected by future
environmental laws and regulations, but we cannot predict the ultimate impact of any such future laws and
regulations at this time. Our distributors who place our products on the market in the European Union, or
EU, are required to comply with EU Directive 2002/96/EC on waste electrical and electronic equipment,
known-as the WEEE Directive. Noncompliance by our distributors may adversely affect the success of our
business in that market. Additionally, we are investigating the applicability of EU Directive 2002/95/EC on
the restriction of the use of certain hazardous substances in electrical and electronic equipment, known as
the RoHS Directive. We do not expect the ReHS Directive will have a significant impact on our business.

Risks Related to Our Businesses-Which Utilize the Implantabte Microchip

We are endeavoring to create a market for our VeriMed system. We may never achieve market
acceptance or significant sales of this system.

We have been in the process of endeavoring to create a market for our VeriMed system since the
FDA cleared the VeriMed system for use for patient identification and health information purposes in
Qctober 2004. Through December 31, 2006, we had only generated approximately $0.1 million in revenue
from sales of the microchip inserter kits. We may never achieve market acceptance or more than nominal
or modest sales of this system.

We attribute the modest number of people who, through the date of this Annual Repon have
undergone the microchip implant procedure to the following factors:

»  Many people who fit the profile for which the VeriMed system was desugned may not be willing
to have a microchip implanted in their upper right arm.

= Physicians may be reluctant to discuss the implant procedure with their patients until a greater
number of hospital emergency rooms have adopted the VeriMed system as part of their standard
protocol.

»  The media has from time to time reported, and may continue to report, on the VeriMed system in
an unfavorable and, on occasion, an inaccurate manner. For example, there have been articles
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published asserting, despite at least one study to the contrary, that the implanted microchip is not
magnetic resonance imaging, or MRI, compatible.

+  Privacy concerns may influence individuals to refrain from undergoing the implant procedure or
dissuade physicians from recommending the VeriMed system to their patients. Misperceptions
that a microchip-implanted person can be “tracked” and that the microchip itself contains a
person’s basic information, such as name, contact information, and personal health records, may
contribute to such concerns.

= Misperceptions and/or negative publicity may prompt legislative or administrative efforts by
politicians or groups opposed to the development and use of human-implantable RFID
microchips. In 2006, a number of states have introduced, and at least one state, Wisconsin, has
enacted, legislation that would prohibit any requirement that an individual undergo a microchip-
implant procedure. While we support all pending and enacted legislation that would preclude
anything other than voluntary implantation, legislative bodies or government agencies may
determine to go further, and their actions may have the effect, directly or indirectly, of delaying,
limiting or preventing the use of human-implantable RFID microchips or the sale, manufacture
ot use of RFID systems utilizing such microchips.

* At present, the cost of the microchip implant procedure is not covered by Medicare, Medlcald or
private health insurance.

= At present, no clinical studies to assess the impact of the VeriMed system on the quality of
emergency departiment care have been completed.

In light of these and perhaps other factors, it is difficult to predict whether our VeriMed system
will achieve market acceptance, how widespread that market acceptance will be, and the timing of such
acceptance. Accordingly, we are uncertain as to whether we will generate the level of future revenue and
revenue growth we have forecast from sales of the VeriMed system. ’

We believe that sales of our implantable microchip, and the extent to which our VeriMed system
achieves market acceptance, will depend, in part, on the availability of insurance reimbursement from
third-party payers, including federal and state governments under programs, such as Medicare and
Medicaid, and private insurance plans. Insurers may not determine to cover the cost of the implant
procedure, or it may take a considerable period of time for this to occur.

We believe that sales of our implantable microchip, and the extent to which our VeriMed system
achieves market acceptance, will depend, in part, on the availability of insurance reimbursement from third-
party payers, including federal and state government programs, such as Medicare and Medicaid, private
health insurers, managed care organizations and other healthcare providers. Both governmental and private
third-party payers are increasingly challenging the coverage and prices of medical products and services,
and require proven efficacy and cost effectiveness for reimbursement. If patients undergoing the microchip
implant procedure, or health institutions and doctors using the VeriMed system, are not able to obtain
adequate reimbursement for the cost of using these products and services, they may forego or reduce their
use. While we are in the process of facilitating and, in one case, funding clinical studies that may
demonstrate the efficacy of the VeriMed system, which we believe will make it more likely that '
government and private insurers will cover the cost of the microchip implant process, it may take a
considerable period of time for this to occur, if, in fact, it does occur. If government and private insurers do
not determine to reimburse the cost of the implant process, we would not expect to realize the anticipated
level of future sales of our implantable microchip and the database subscription fees.

Our sales of systems that incorporate our implantable microchip may be enjoined by third parties who
have rights to the intellectual property used in these systems and we may be reqmred to pay damages
which would have an adverse effect on our business.

We may face a claim that we are violating the intellectual property rights of one or more third
parties with respect to U.S. Patent No. 5,211,129, “Syringe-Implantable [dentification Transponders.” If
such a claim is successful, we could be required to cease engaging in activities to market our systems that
utilize the implantable microchip and to pay damages, which may be substantial.
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We obtain the implantable microchip used in our VeriMed, VeriGuard and VeriTrace systems
from Digital Angel, a majority-owned subsidiary of our parent company, Applied Digital, under the terms
of a supply agreement. Digital Angel, in turmn, obtains the implantable microchip from a subsidiary of
Raytheon Company under a separate supply agreement. The technology underlying our VeriMed,
VeriGuard and VeriTrace systems is covered, in part, by U.S. Patent No. 5,211,129. In 1994, Destrow/IDI,
Inc., a predecessor company to Digital Angel Corporation, granted a co-exclusive license under this patent,
other than for certain specified fields of use retained by the predecessor company, to Hughes Aircraft
Company, or Hughes, and its then wholly-owned subsidiary, Hughes Identification Devices, Inc., or HID.
The specified fields of use retained by the predecessor company do not include human identification and
security applications. The rights licensed in 1994 to Hughes and HID were freely assignable, and we do not
know which party or parties currently have these rights or whether these rights have been assigned,
transferred or conveyed to any third party. We source the implantable microchip indirectly from a -
subsidiary of Raytheon Company, with which Hughes, then known as HE Holdings, Inc. was merged in
1997. However, we have no documentation that establishes our right to use the patented technology for
human identification and security applications. Hughes, HID, any of their respective successors in interest,
or any party to whom any of the foregoing parties may have assigned its rights under the 1994 license
agreement may commence a claim against us asserting that we are violating its rights. If such a claim is
successful, sales of our VeriMed, VeriGuard and VeriTrace systems could be enjoined, and we could be
required to cease our efforts to create a market for these systems, until the patent expires in April 2008. In
addition, we could be required to pay damages, which may be substantial. Regardless of whether any
claimant is successful, we would face the prospect of the expenditure of funds in litigation, the diversion of
management time and resources, damage to our reputation and the potential impairment in the
marketability of our systems even after the expiration of the patent, which could harm our business and
negatively affect our prospects.

Even if our VeriMed system achieves some level of market acceptance, the anticipated significant and
growing recurrent revenue from microchip-implanted persons’ subscribing to our database may not be
realized,

Our business model envisages that our VeriMed system will achieve some level of penetration
within our target market for such system: the approximately 45 million at-risk people in the United States
with cognitive impairment, chronic diseases and related conditions, or implanted medical devices. The.
medel also anticipates our deriving significant and growing recurrent revenue from subscriptions to our
database by persons implanted with our microchip. However, a person implanted with our microchip may
decide not to subscribe to our database if, for example, the hospital emergency room where he or she would
most likely be taken in an emergency maintains its own database. We do not currently anticipate that a
significant percentage of VeriMed-adopting hospitals and other healthcare facilities will choose to provide -
databases for this purpose. However, future regulatory changes, such as in connection with the U.S.
government’s efforts to address inefficiencies in the U.S. healthcare system related to information
technology, could spur hospitals and other healthcare facilities to establish systems to maintain electronic
health records. This might have the effect of reducing the number of peopie implanted with our microchip
who might otherwise subscribe to our database which could, in turn, negatively affect the future revenue
that we anticipate we will derive from the VeriMed system.

We intend to offer two annual subscription levels to our database: basic, which will allow an
individual to include personal identification and contact information, physician and emergency contact
information, blood type and advance directives, and full-featured, which will allow an individual to include
all information provided by the basic subscription as well as personal health records. Initially, we anticipate
that individuals implanted with our microchip will take responsibility for inputting all of their information
into our database, including personal health records, as physicians currently have little interest in being
involved in this process — primarily because of liability concerns and because they are generally not paid
for this service. Over time, we envision that persons implanted with our microchip may prevail upon their
physicians to assist them with the inputting of information for which, by virtue of their medical training,
physicians are better equipped to handle, If this does not occur, emergency room personnel and emergency
medical technictans may lack confidence in the accuracy and completeness of implanted persons’ personal
health records in the database. This may prompt some persons implanted with our microchip to choose to
subscribe to our database only at the basic level, for which we plan to charge a lower annual fee. This
could negatively affect the revenue we anticipate we will derive in the future from the VeriMed system.
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We obtain the implantable microchip used in our VeriMed, VeriGuard and VeriTrace systems from a
single supplier, making us vulnerable to supply disruptions that could constrain our sales of such
systems and/or increase our per-unit cost of production of the microchip.

At present, Digital Angel is our sole supplier of our implantable microchip under the terms of an
agreement we entered into with Digital Angel in December 2005, Digital Angel, in turn, sources the
microchip from Raytheon Microelectronics Esparia, or RME, the actual manufacturer, under a supply -
agreement between Digital Angel and RME. The term of that agreement expires on June 30, 2010, subject
to earlier termination by either party if, among other things, the other party breaches the agreement and
does not remedy the breach within 30 days of receiving notice. Digital Angel and RME each own certain of
the automated equipment and tooling used in the manufacture of the microchip. Accordingly, it would be
difficult for Digital Angel to arrange for a third party other than RME to manufacture the implantable
microchip if for any reason RME was unable to manufacture the implantable microchip or RME did not
manufacture sufficient implantable microchips for Digital Angel to satisfy our requirements. Even if
Digital Angel were able to arrange to have the implantable microchip manufactured in another facility, we
currently believe making such arrangements and commencement of production could take at least three to
six months. A supply disruption of this length could cause customers to cancel orders, negatively affect
future sales and damage our business reputation. In addition, the per-unit cost of production at another
facility could be more than the price per unit we pay to Digital Angel.

If we do not meet the minimum purchase requirements under our agreement with Digital Angel, Digital
Angel may sell implantable microchips for secure human identification applications to third parties. Our
loss of this exclusive supply arrangement may result in our facing competition with respect to our
implantable microchip-based systems, which could have a material adverse effect on the expected growth
of our business.

Our agreement with Digital Angel, under which we source our implantable microchip, includes a
provision that Digital Angel may not sell to parties other than us and our resellers the implantable
microchips, as well as the reader equipment, for secure human identification applications, provided we
meet specified minimum purchase requirements. If we do not meet the minimum purchase requirements,
Digital Angel is free to sell to other parties implantable microchips for secure hurnan identification
applications. :

The minimum purchase requirements for implantable microchips under the agreement are as

follows:
Minimum
Purchase
Year , - . Requirement
2007 it et e ettt et et atarasnanatren $875,000
2008......o et eeeee e e s ssssssssasssen ettt s s sranean S $1,750,000
200D, e et e e e arat 1 earab e tratnta e e anrenenrnres $2,500,000
20T ettt r ettt at et ae e e e anneeanes $3,750,000

2011 and thereafter..........cooviieirce e $3,750,000

For the years ended December 31, 2006 and 20035, the aggregate amount of our purchases under
our agreement with Digital Angel were $0.4 million and $0.7 million, respectively.

If we lose the benefit of the exclusivity provision under our agreement with Digital Angel, we
may face competition in the various target markets for our systems that use our implantable microchip,
such as VeriMed, VeriGuard and VeriTrace, or face such competition at an earlier point in time than might
otherwise have been the case, which could negatively affect our revenue, cash flows from operations,
operating margins and profitability, as well as our growth prospects.
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If Digital Angel were to terminate its agreement with us, we would not be able to ebtain our implantable
microchip. This would make it difficult to fulfill our expectations for future revenue and revenue growth
Jrom the sale of systems that use the implantable microchip,

Provided we meet our minimum purchase requirements, our agreement with Digital Angel is
scheduled to remain in force until the last of the patents covering the supplied products expire. However,
Digital Angel can terminate the agreement upon the occurrence of any of the following events:

+  our defanlt in the performance of any of our obligations under the agreement (e.g., our failure to
take delivery and pay for products) that is not cured within 90 days of receiving written notice of
the default;

= cither party to the agreement filing a petition in bankruptcy; or
*  a petition in bankruptcy is filed against us and is not discharged within 30 days.

If the agreement were to be terminated, we would not be able to purchase our impiantable
microchip from Digitat Angel. Further, if the termination occurred while the patents covering our
implantable ticrochip remain in force, we could not obtain implantable microchips for secure human
identification applications from any other source. As a result, we would not be able to sell our VeriMed
system or any other products that incorporate our implantable microchip, such as our VeriGuard and
VeriTrace systems. This would make it difficult for us to fulfill our expectations of future revenue and
revenue growth from sales of such systems.

Implantation of our implantable microchip may be found to cause risks to a person’s health, which
could adversely affect sales of our systems which incorporate the implantable microchip.

The implantation of our implantable microchip may be found, or be perceived, to cause risks to a
person’s health. Potential or perceived risks include adverse tissue reactions, migration of the microchip
and infection from implantation. As more people are implanted with our implantable microchip, it is
possible that these and other risks to health will manifest themselves. Actual or perceived risks to a
person’s health associated with the microchip implantation process could constrain our sales of the
VeriMed system or result in costly and expensive litigation. Further, the potential resultant negative.
publicity could damage our business reputation, leading to loss in sales of our other systems targeted at the
healthcare market which would harm our business and negatively affect our prospects.

If we are required to effect a recall of our implantable microchip, our reputation could be materially and
adversely affected and the cost of any such recall could be substantial, which could adversely ajfecr our
results of operations and financial condition. .

From time to time, implanted devices have become subject to recall due to safety, efficacy,
product faitures or other concerns. To date, we have not had to recall any of our implantable microchips.
However, if, in the future, we are required to effect such a recall, the cost of the recall, and the likely
related loss of system sales, could be substantial and could materially and adversely affect our results of
operations and financial condition. In addition, any such recall could materially adversely affect our
reputation and our ability to sell our systems that make use of the implantable microchip which would harm
our business and negatively affect our prospects. ;

Interruptions in access fo, or the hacking into, our VeriMed patient information databuse may have a
negative impact on our revenue, damage our reputation and expose us to litigation,
s .

Reliable access to the VeriMed patient information database is a key component of the
functionality of our VeriMed system. Qur ability to provide uninterrupted access to the database, whether
operated by us ar one or more third parties with whom we contract, will depend on the efficient and
uninterrupted. operation of the computer and communications systems involved. Although certain elements
of technological, power, communications, personnel and site redundancy are maintained, the database may
not be fully redundant, Further, the database may not function properly if certain necessary third-party
systems fail, or if some other unforeseen act or natural disaster should occur. In the past, we have
experienced short periods during which the database was inaccessible as a result of development work,
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system maintenance and power outages. Any disruption of the database services, computer systems or
communications networks, or those of third parties that we rely on, could result in the inability of users to
access the database for an indeterminate period of time. This, in turn, could cause us to lose the confidence
of the healthcare community and persons who have undergone the microchip implant procedure, resulting
in a loss of revenue and possible litigation.

In addition, if the firewall software protecting the information contained in our database fails or
someone is successful in hacking into the database, we could face damage to our business reputation and
litigation.

Regulation of products and services that collect personally-identifiable information or otherwise monitor
an individual’s activities may make the provision of our services more difficult or expensive and could
Jjeopardize our growth prospects.

Certain technologies that we currently, or may in the future, support are capable of collecting
personally-identifiable information. A growing body of laws designed to protect the privacy of personally-
identifiable information, as well as to protect against its misuse, and the judicial interpretations of such
laws, may adversely affect the growth of our business. In the United Siates, these laws include the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, or HIPAA, the Federal Trade Commission Act, the
Electronic Communications Privacy Act, the Fair Credit Reporting Act, and the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act,
as well as various state laws and related regulations. Although we are not a covered entity under HIPAA,
we have entered into agreements with certain covered entities in which we are considered to be a “business
associate” under HIPAA. As a business associate, we are required to implement policies, procedures and
reasonable and appropriate security measures to protect individually identifiable health information we
receive from covered entities. Qur failure to protect health information received from customers could
subject us to liability and adverse publicity, and could harm our business and impair our ability to attract
NewW Customers.

In addition, certain governmental agencies, like the U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services and the Federal Trade Commission, have the authority to protect against the misuse of consumer
information by targeting companies that collect, disseminate or maintain personal information in an unfair
or deceptive manner. We are also subject to the laws of those foreign jurisdictions in which we operate,
some of which currently have more protective privacy laws. If we fail to comply with applicable
regulations in this area, our business and prospects could be harmed.

Certain regulatory approvals generally must be obtained from the governments of the countries
in which our foreign distributors sell our systems. However, any such approval may be subject to
significant delays or may not be obtained. Any actions by regulatory agencies could materially and
adversely affect our growth plans and the success of our business.

Ifwe fail to comply with anti-kickback and false claims laws, we could be subject to costly and time-
consuming litigation and possible fines or other penaities.

We are, or may become subject to, various federal and state laws designed to address healthcare
fraud and abuse, including anti-kickback laws and faise claims laws. The federal anti-kickback statute
prohibits the offer, payment, solicitation or receipt of any form of remuneration in return for referring items
or services payable by Medicare, Medicaid or any other federally-funded healthcare program. This statute
also prohibits remuneration in return for purchasing, leasing or ordering or arranging, or recommending the
purchasing, leasing or ordering, of items or services payable by Medicare, Medicaid or any other federally-
funded healthcare program. The anti-kickback laws of various states apply mare broadly to prohibit
remuneration in return for referrals of business payable by payers other than federal healthcare programs.

False claims laws prohibit anyone from knowingly presenting, or causing to be presented, for
payment to third-party payers, including Medicare and Medicaid, which currently do not provide
reimbursement for our microchip implant procedure, claims for reimbursed drugs or services that are false
or fraudulent, claims for items or services not provided as claimed, or claims for medically unnecessary
items or services. Our activities relating to the reporting of wholesale or estimated retail prices of our
VeriMed system, the reporting of Medicaid rebate information, and other information affecting federal,
state and third-party payment for the VeriMed system, will be subject to scrutiny under these laws.
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The anti-kickback statute and other fraud and abuse laws are very broad in scope, and many of
their provisions have not been uniformly or definitively interpreted by existing case law or regulations.
Violations of the anti-kickback statute and other fraud and abuse laws may be punishable by criminal
and/or civil sanctions, including fines and civil monetary penalties, as well as the possibility of exclusion
from federal healthcare programs, including Medicare and Medicaid, which currently do not provide
reimbursement for our microchip implant procedure. We have not been challenged by a governmental
authority under any of these laws and believe that our operations are in compliance with such laws.
However, because of the far-reaching nature of these laws, we may be required to alter one or more of our
practices to be in compliance with these laws. Healthcare fraud and abuse regulations are complex and even
minor, inadvertent irregularities in submissions can potentially give rise to claims that the statute has been
violated. If we are found to have violated these laws, or are charged with violating them, our business,
financial condition and results of operations could suffer, and our management team could be required to
dedicate significant time addressing the actual or alleged violations.

Risks Related to Our Continued Affiliation with Applied Digital and Digital Angel

Applied Digital maintains significant voting control over us. This may delay, prevent or deter corporate
actions that may be in the best interest of our stockholders.

Applied Digital controls 60% of our outstanding common steck and 45.7% of our common
stock on a fully-diluted basis. As a result, Applied Digital controls and may exercise significant influence
over all matters requiring approval of our stockhiolders, including the election of directors and approval of
significant corporate transactions. This concentration of ownership may have the effect of delaying,
preventing or deterring a change in control of our Company even when such a change may be in the best
interests of all our stockholders. It could also have the effect of depriving stockholders of an opportunity to
receive a premium for their common stock as part of a sale of our Company or assets and might affect the
prevailing market price of our common stock. -

Conflicts of interest may arise among Applied Digital, Digital Angel and us that could be resolved in a
manner unfavorable to us. :

Questions relating to conflicts of interest may arise between Applied Digital, our parent
company, and/or Digital Angel, a subsidiary of Applied Digital, on the one hand, and us, on the other, in a
number of areas relating to our past and ongoing relationships. Three of our five directors serve as directors
of Applied Digital. This includes Scott R. Silverman, our new chief executive officer, acting president and
the chairman of our board of directors, who serves as the chairman of the board of Applied Digital and also
as a director of Digital Angel.

Areas in which conflicts of interest between or among Applied Digital, Digital Angel and us
could arise include, but are not limited to, the following;:

Cross directorships and stock ownership. The equity interests of our directors in Applied Digital
or service as a director of both Applied Digital and us could create, or appear to create, conflicts of interest
when directors are faced with decisions that could have different implications for the two companies. For
example, these decisions could relate to, among other matters:

» the nature, quality and cost of services rendered to us by Applied Digital;

+ the desirability of a potential acquisition or joint venture opportunity;
*+  employee retention or recruiting; or
= ourdividend policy.- . .

Intercompany transactions. From time to time, Applied Digital or its affiliates, including Digital
Angel, may enter into transactions with us or our subsidiaries or other affiliates. Although the terms of any
such transactions will be established based upon negotiations between employees of Applied Digital and/or
the applicable affiliate and us and, when appropriate, subject to the approval of the independent directors
on our board or a committee of disinterested directors, there can be no assurance that the terms of any such
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transactions will be as favorable to us or our subsidiaries or affiliates as may otherwise be obtained in
arm’s-length negotiations with an-unaffiliated third party.

Intercompany agreements. We have entered several agreements with Applied Digital, including:

«  atransition services agreement under which Applied Digital provides us certain management,
administrative, accounting, tax, legal and other services;

*  aloan agreement; and

»  atax allocation agreement setting forth Applied Digital’s and our rights and obligations with
respect to the handling and allocation of taxes and related matters for all periods prior to the
consummation of our initial public offering, which occurred on February 14, 2007.

The terms of these agreements were established while we have been controlled by Applied
Digital and were not the result of arm’s-length negotiations. In addition, conflicts could arise in the
interpretation, or in connection with any extension of renegotiation, of these existing agreements.

Risks Related to Qur Common Stock

We expect that our stock price will fluctuate significantly due to events and developments unique to our
business or the healthcare industry generally.

The stock market has from time to time experienced significant volatility. Factors that could
cause volatility in the market price of our common stock include:

+  failure of any of our products, particularly our asset/staff location and identification system and
our VeriMed system, to achieve commercial success;

*  FDA or international regulatory actions;
« announcements of new products by our competitors;
»  market conditions in the healthcare sector;

+  litigation or public concern about the efficacy or safety of existing, new or potential products or
technologies;

«  comments by securitics analysts; and .
»  rumors relating to us or our competitors,

These and other factors may cause the market price sand demand for our common stock to
fluctuate substantially, which may limit or prevent investors from readily selling their shares of our
common stock and may otherwise negatively affect the liquidity of our commeon stock. In addition, in the
past, when the market price of our common stock has been volatile, holders of that stock have instituted
securities class action litigation against the company that issued the stock. If any of our stockholders
brought a lawsuit against us, we could incur substantial costs defending the lawsuit and the time and
attention of our management may be diverted.

Provisions of our second amended and restated certificate of incorporation or our amended and restated
bylaws could delay or prevent an acquisition of our company, even if the acquisition would be beneficial
to our stockholders, and could make it more difficult for you to change management.

Provisions of our second amended and restated certificate of incorporation and our amended and
restated bylaws may discourage, delay or prevent a merger, acquisition or other change in control that
stockholders may consider favorable, including transactions in which stockholders might otherwise receive
a premium for their shares. This is because these provisions may prevent or frustrate attempts by
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stockholders to replace or remove our current management or members of our board of directors. These
provisions, among other things:

» - .prohibit cumulative voting in the election of directors, which might otherwise allow holders of
less than a majority of our outstanding shares of voting stock to elect one or more director
+ candidates;

*  permit our board of directors to issue, without further action by our stockholders, up to
5,000,000 shares of “blank check” preferred stock, with any rights, preferences and privileges as
they may designate (including the right to approve an acquisition or other change in control);

+  establish advance notice procedures with respect to stockholder proposals and the nomination of
candidates for election as directors, other than nominations made by or at the direction of our
board of directors;

* »  prohibit stockholders from calling special meetings of stockholders;

«  prohibit stockholder action by written consent, thereby requiring all actions to be taken at a

" meeting of the stockholders; and

»  provide that members of our board of directors may only be removed for cause by the
affirmative vote of holders of at least a majority of the voting power of all then cutstanding
shares of capital stock entitled to vote generally in the election of directors, voting together as a
single class.

As a result, these provisions and others available under Delaware’s General Corporation Law
could limit the price that investors are willing to pay in the future for shares of our common stock.

We will need to dedicate significant time and expense to enhancing, documenting, testing and certifying
our internal control over financial reporting.

As a publicly-traded company, we are required to file annual and quarterly reports containing our
financial statements within specified time periods. SEC rules will require that our chief executive officer
and chief financial officer periodically provide certifications as to, among other things, the existence and
effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting and disclosure controls and procedures. In
general, this process requires significant documentation of policies, procedures and controls, review of that
documentation by ocur internal accounting staff, and testing of our intemal controls by our internal
accounting staft and our outside independent registered public accounting firm. Documentation and testing
of our internal controls will involve considerable time and expense and may strain our internal resources.
Ensuring that we have adequate internal financial and accounting controls and procedures in place to help
ensure that we can produce accurate. financial statements on a timely basis is a costly and time-consuming
effort that needs to be re-evaluated on a periodic basis.

This Annual Report on Form 10-K does not include a report of management's assessment
regarding internal control over financial reporting or an attestation report of the Company's registered
public accounting firm duc to a transition period established by rules of the SEC for newly pubtic
companies. We will have to include a report of management's assessment regarding internal control over
financial reporting, beginning with our annual report on Form 10-K for our fiscal year ending December
31, 2007. Assuming we do not become an accelerated filer by the time we file our annual report on Form
10-K for.cur fiscal year ending December 31, 2007, our independent registered public accounting firm will
not be engaged to attest to management’s.assessment of our internal control over financial reporting until
our annual report on Form 10-K for our fiscal year ending December 31, 2008.

If we fail to maintain proper and effective internal controls, our ability to produce accurate
Jinancial statements could be impaired, which could adversely affect our operating results, our ability to

operate our business and our stock price.

During the course of our testing of our internal controls, we may identify, and have to disclose,
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in our internal controls that will have to be remediated.
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Implementing any appropriate changes to our internal controls may require specific compliance training of
our directors, officers and employees, entail substantial costs in order to modify our existing accounting
systems, and take a significant period of time to complete. Such changes may not, however, be effective in
maintaining the adequacy of our internal controls, and any failure to maintain that adequacy, or consequent
inability to produce accurate financial statements on a timely basis, could increase our operating costs and
could materially impair our ability to operate our business. In addition, investors’ perceptions that our
internal controls are inadequate or that we are unable to produce accurate financial statements may
negatively affect our stock price.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our corporate headquarters is located in Delray Beach, Florida, where we occupy approximately
2,200 square feet of office space pursuant to a transition services agreement with Applied Digital. The
transition services agreement expires December 27, 2007. -

We occupy approximately 21,000 square feet of office space in Ottawa, Canada, at an annual
rental rate of Canadian $11.00 per square foot, under the terms of a lease that expires May 31, 2009. We
have an option to renew the lease for a further five-year term. At the Ottawa facility, 13,000 square feet is
utilized for the final assembly of certain of our active RFID systems and our vibration monitoring
equipment. In addition, 8,000 square feet is utilized to provide customer service, product support and
engineering functions from this facility. The operations conducted at our Ottawa facility are certified to the
ISO 9001 international quality standard. v

We currently lease approximately 11,500 square feet of office space in Vancouver, Canada. The
lease expires May 31, 2009. We are in the process of shifting our operations in Vancouver, which have
included research and development, business development and a portion of our sales and administration
functions, to our Ottawa facility. We expect to complete the relocation of the Vancouver activities to
Ottawa in mid-2007. We are in the process of exploring various arrangements with respect to the lease.

Each of our business segments, healthcare security, implantable and industrial, utilizes the
properties identificd above. ' '

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

On January 10, 2005, we commenced an action in the Circuit Court for Palm Beach County,
Florida, against Metro Risk Management Group, LLC, or Metro Risk. In this suit, we have claimed that
Metro Risk breached the parties’ three international distribution agreements by failing to meet required
minimum purchase obligations. On July 1, 2005, Metro Risk asserted a counterclaim against us for breach
of contract and fraud in the inducement. Specifically, in its claim for breach of contract, Metro Risk alleged
that we breached the exclusivity provision of the parties’ distribution agreements by later signing a
different distribution agreement with a large distributor of medical supplies. Metro Risk asserted that the
distribution agreement with this other distributor included areas in Europe. Moreover, regarding its claim
for fraud in the inducement, Metro Risk alleged that we fraudulently induced Metro Risk into signing the
distribution agreements by promising millions of dollars in profits. By virtue of its counterclaim, Metro
Risk seeks reliance damages in the amount of $155,000, which represents the amount of money advanced
by Metro Risk for the project, lost profits, and attorneys’ fees. Given the early stage of the matter and
because discovery has recently begun, counsel is currently unable to assess our risk.

We are a party to various legal actions, as either plaintiff or defendant, including the matter
identified above, arising in the ordinary course of business, none of which is expected to have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations. However, litigation is inherently
unpredictable, and the costs and other effects of pending or future litigation, governmental investigations,
legal and administrative cases and proceedings, whether civil or criminal, settlements, judgments and
investigations, claims or charges in any such matters, and developments or assertions by or against us
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relating to us or to our intellectual property rights and intellectual property licenses could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating resuits,

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

On December 3, 2006, in connection with our initial public offering, Applied Digital, our sole
stockholder, approved the following matters by written consent in lieu of a special or annual meeting:

»  The ratification of each person serving as a member of the board of directors - Paul C. Green,
Tommy G. Thompson, Constance K, Weaver, Daniel E. Penni and Scott R. Silverman;

e  Approval of amendments to the VeriChip Corporation 2002 Flexible Stock Ptan and the VeriChip
Corporation 2005 Flexible Stock Plan to reduce the number of shares authorized for issuance
under each plan;

s Ratification of prior acts of the persons serving as officers and directors of the Company from and
after the date of incorporation;

s Approval of a one-for-three reverse stock split of our common stock and a change in the par value
per share of our common stock from $0.0015 to $0.01 in connection with the reverse stock split;
and

»  Approval of our Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, which among other
things, provided for a decrease in the number of our authonzed shares of common stock from
70,000,000 to 40,000,000. -

| : - PARTII

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS, AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES.

Our common stock is traded on the Nasdaq Stock Market under the symbol “CHIP.” Trading of
our common stock commenced on February 9, 2007. Prior to that date, there was no public market for our
common stock.

Holders

* According to the records of our transfer agent, as of March 20, 2007, there were approximately
3 holders of record of our common stock, which number does not reflect beneficial stockholders who hold
their stock in nominee or "street” name through various brokerage firms.

Dividend Policy

We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our capital stock. We presently intend to
retain future earnings, if any, to finance the development and growth of our business, and we do not expect
to pay any cash dividends in the foreseeable future. Any future determination with respect to the payment
of dividends will be at the discretion of our board of directors and will be dependent upon our financial
condition, results of operations, capital requirements, general business conditions, terms of financing
arrangements and other factors that our board of directors may deem relevant.

Equity Compel;sntion Plan Information .

The following table presents information regarding optibns and rights outstanding under our
compensation plans as of December 31, 2006:
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Pian Category "

(a)
Number of
securities to

(b) (c}
Weighted- Number of
average exercise securities

be issued upon  price per share  remaining

exercise of available for
of outstanding  outstanding future
options, options, warrants  issuance
warrants and and rights under
rights equity
compensation
plans
(excluding
securities
reflected in
column (a))
Equity compensation,plans approved by ' ,
security holders 1,744,892 $1.31 499,553 @
Equity compensation plans not approved by
security holders 357,556 $6.00 —
Total 2,102,448 $2.11 499,553

a

A narrative description of the material terms of our equity compensation plans is set forth in

Note § to our consolidated financia) statements for the year ended December 31, 2006.
@ As of December 31, 2006, includes 221,775 shares available for future issuance under our 2002
Flexible Stock Plan and 277,778 shares available for future issuance under our 2005 Flexible

Stock Plan.

@ As of December 31, 2006, we have made grants outside of our equity plans and have
outstanding options exercisable for 357,556 shares of our common stock. These options were
granted to employees, officers, directors and consultants under individual employee benefit plans

pursuant to stock option award agreements.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

The following list sets forth information regarding all securities sold by us for the past three

vears that were not registered under the Securities Act:

(1) On June 9, 2005, we issued 1,111,111 shares of our common stock to Applied
Digital Solutions, Inc. in consideration for shares of EXI. The value of the exchange was

approximately $l3 3 million.

(2) On December 18, 2006, we issued 500,000 restricted shares of common stock to

our chief executive officer in connection with his assuming such position.

(3) On June 10, 2005, we issued warrants to acquire 33,333 shares of our common
stock to two institutional investors in connection with the acquisition of Instantel Inc. The
exercise price of the warrants is $36.00 per share.

(4) Since the adoption of our 2002 Flexible Stock Plan and our 2005 Flexible Stock
Plan, we have granted options to purchase 2,590,432 shares of common stock to employees,
directors and consultants at exercise prices ranging from $0.225 to $20.25 per share. Of the
2,590,432 shares underlying the options granted, 2,048,505 shares remain outstanding and
541,927 options have terminated.

(5) On March 2, 2007, we issued 100,000 restricted shares of our common stock to
officers under our 2002 Flexible Stock Plan.

(6) We have granted options to purchase 585,344 shares of cur common stock
outside of our plans as an inducement to employment or for consulting services at exercise prices
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ranging from $0.225 to $8.55 per share. Of the 585,344 shares underlymg the options granted
357,566 remain outstanding and 227,778 have terminated.

The offers, sales, and issuances of the securities described in paragraphs 1, 3 and 5 were deemed
to be exempt from registration under the Securities Act in reliance on Section 4(2) of the Securities Act in
that the issuance of securities to the recipients did not involve a public offering.

The offers, sales and issuances of the options described in paragraphs 2, 4 and 6 were deemed to
be exempt from registration under the Securities Act in reliance on Rule 701 in that the transactions were
under compensatory benefit plans and contracts relating to compensation as provided under such rule. The
recipients of such options were our employees, directors or bona fide consultants and either received these
options under our stock plans or outside our plans as an inducement to employment or for consulting
services.

- Appropriate legends were affixed to the securities issued in these transactions. Each of the
recipients of securities in these transactions had adequate access, through employment, business or other
relationships, to information about us.

Use of Proceeds from Registered Securities

We registered shares of our common stock in connection with our initial public offering under
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. Our Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Reg. No. 333-130754) in
connection with our initial public offering was declared effective by the SEC on February 9, 2007, the date
our offering commenced. We consurnmated our initial public offering on February 14, 2007. The offering
did not terminate before all securities were sold. The lead managers of the offering were Merriman
Curhan Ford & Co., C.E. Unterberg, Towbin and Kaufman Bros., L.P,

All 3.1 million shares of our common stock registered in the offering were sold at the initial
public offering price per share of $6.50. The aggregate proceeds of the offering were $20.2 million.

The net initial proceeds to us afier deducting $1.8 million in underwriting discounts and
commissions, $2.7 million in legal, accounting, and printing fees, and $3.5 million to repay a portion of our
indebtedness to Applied Digital, in accordance with the terms of amended loan documents between
Applied Digital, as lender, and us, as borrower, was approximately $12.2 million.

We will not receive any proceeds from the sale of shares subject to the over-allotment option
granted by Applied Digital to the underwriters, which in any event, was not exercised.

No payments for such expenses were made directly or indirectly to {i) any of our directors,
officers or their associates, (ii) any person(s) owning 10% or more of any class of our equity securities or
{(ii1) any of our affiliates.

We expect that approximately $8.0 million to $10.0 million of the net proceeds of this offering
will be used over the next 24 months to continue our efforts to create a market for our VeriMed system,
principally through an increase in our sales and marketing efforts.

We intend to use the remaining net proceeds for working capital and general corporate purposes,
which may include research and development, capital expenditures and other sales and marketing expenses.
We have not determined the amounts to be used for any of these purposes and may find it necessary or
advisable to use the remaining portion of the net proceeds for other purposes.

The amount and timing of what we actually spend for any of these or other purposes will depend
on a number of factors, including our future revenue and cash generated by operations and the other factors
described under “Item | A. Risk Factors.” Accordingly, our management will have broad discretion in
applying this portion of the net proceeds of the offering remaining after repayment of a portion of the
amount owed to Applied Digital. Pending these uses, we intend to invest the net proceeds that are not
dedicated to repayment of our outstanding indebtedness, and accrued interest, owed to Applied Digital in
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short-term interest-bearing, investment grade securities. We cannot predict whether such securities wiil
yield a favorable return.

Performance Graph

Because the Company's common stock did not commence trading until Febrvary 9, 2007, we do
not provide in this Annual Report on Form 10-K a line graph illustrating the yearly percentage change in
the registrant's total stockholder return.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

VeriChip Corporation

The following table sets forth consolidated financial data with respect to the Company for each
of the five years in the period ended December 31, 2006. The selected financial data at December 31, 2006
and 2005, and for the three years ended December 31, 2006, have been derived from, and should be read in
conjunction with, the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and related notés appearing
elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The selected financial data at December 31, 2004, 2003,
and 2002, and for the two fiscal years ended December 31, 2003, have been derived from our audited
financial statements which are not included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The information below
should be read in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations,” included in Item 7 of the Annual Report on Form 10-K.

We acquired two Canadian-based businesses during the first half of 2005 and, accordingly, our
historical results only include their results of operations since their respective dates of acquisition. The pro
forma results reflected below give effect to the acquisitions of these two businesses as if they had occurred
on January 1, 2005.
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Consolidated Statements of Operations Data

Consolidated
Statements of
Operations Data:

Total revenue

Total cost of products
and services

Gross profit

Selling, general and
administrative
expense

Research and
development

Other income

Interest expense

Loss before benefit
for income taxes
Provision for (benefit

from) income taxes

Net loss
Deemed dividends

Net loss attributable
to common
stockholder

Net loss attributable
to common
stockholder per
common share-
basic and diluted

Weighted average
number of common
shares outstanding:
Basic and diluted

Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005
Historical Pro forma 2005 2004 2003 2002
(unaudited) Historical Historical  Historical Historical
(in thousands, except per share data)

§27304 § 24554 $ 15869 $ 247 $ 545 § -
11,779 10,332 6,395 199 200 ~
15,525 14220 9,474 48 345 -

17,620 16,990 12,442 1930 1,977 1320
3,786 3,260 1,958 - - -

(57) (83) (63) (15) - -
868 343 343 144 78 21
(6,692) (6,288) (5,206) {2,001} (1,710) (1,341)
33 (761) 56 - - -
6,725)  (5,527) (5,262) (2,011) (1,710) (1,341)
- (1) (1) - " - (44)
$(6,725) § (5,528) §  (5,263) $(2,011) $(1,710) $(1,385)

§ (21§ (099) § (1.00) § (0.45) $ (0.38) $ (0.31)
5,556 5,556 5279 4,444 4,444 4,444
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At December 31,

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
(in thousands)

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:
Cash.......ccoovornens ettt $ 996 $ 1,440 S 23 8 269 8 -
Equipment, net of accumulated depreciation and

AMOTHZATION ..o senser e 950 890 131 147 184
GOOAWIlL.... e 16,025 16,982 - - -
TOLAl ASSETS .oveverereereenrereesrresfenreemnmreeseseneseeneaen 50,888 48,438 283 782 245
Long-term debt .......ocoeccciiinieccceeccecnniens 13,635 ' - - - -
Total debt.......ocooieeecteccei e e 14,488 6,975 4,221 2,864 1,236
Stockholder’s equity (deficit) .......occovivenieininrnennes 22,345 28,527 (4,012) (2.258) (1,264)

EXI Wireless Inc.

We have presented the following selected consolidated financial data for EXI Wireless Inc.
because EXI Wireless is considered to be a predecessor of ours. The information presented is for periods
prior to our acquisition of EXI Wireless. We acquired EXI Wireless effective March 31, 2005.

You should read the following selected consolidated financial data in conjunction with the EXI
Wireless consolidated financial statements and related notes and “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Resuits of Operations” appearing elsewhere in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K. The consolidated statements of operations and balance sheet data at and for the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002, and at and for the three menths ended March 31, 2005, are derived
from the EXI Wireless audited consolidated financial statements.

Three

months

ended

March 31, Year Ended December 31,
2005 2004 2003 2002
(in thousands)
Consolidated Statements of Operations Data: :
SaleS i e v 3 1,986 § 6004 5 6118 § 6,383
CoSt 0T SAlES (vt esirar s e e see e e 575 1,763 1,735 1,754
Gross profit ......ececvviniin 1,411 4.24] 4,383 4,629
Selling, general and administrative expense and :
depreciation and amortization ................cveeeee.. 1,355 3,524 3,222 3,276
Research and dévelopment.............ccccocvvvevnvnenen. 262 918 741 728
Interest and other INCOME....vovvenreevrceercrner e {2) (17) (4) (7N
Foreign exchange loss (gain) ..o (18) 169 334 36
Eamings (loss) before income taxes ... (186) (353) 90 596
Benefit from income taxes .......cccocvvvivririinninninns - 24 {55} (75)
Loss from discontinued operations net of tax ...... - - - (512)
Net inCome (10S8) cveoveeverriererreirrernereisrssesreseeees $ (186) § (329) % 145 % 159
At March 31,
2005 2004 2003 2002

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:
CaSh ...t erses e D 554 § 1,127 § 1,025 § 1,296
Property, plant and equipment ............occocervvenrrnn, 191 189 294 318
GOOdWill ..o 1,441 1,450 1,348 1,103
Total ASSCIS..cviiiieeieerecieeeer e reee s e e 4,975 5,338 5,203 4,847

Long-term debt
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Three

months
ended ! )
March 31, Year Ended December 31,
2005 2004 ' 2003 2002
S ’ ' (in thousands) ‘
Total debt...oiinereieenns e ———_ : - - - -
Stockholder’s equity ....lvveeoeriveiireeieneaen, e ©3,971 4,025 4,070 3,184

Instantel Inc.

We have presented the following selected consolidated financial data for Instantel Inc. because
Instantel is considered to be a predecessor of ours. The information presented is for pertods prior to our
acquisition of Instantel. We acquired Instantel effective June 10, 2005.

You should read the following selected consolidated financial data in conjunction with
Instantel’s consolidated financial statements and related notes and “Item 7. Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations™ appearing elsewhere in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K. The consolidated statements of operations and balance sheet data at and for the years ended -
December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002, and at and for the peried ended June 9, 2003, are derived from

Instantel’s audited financial statements.
- . ! * . - '

".* Period
ended : .
June 9, } Year Ended December 31,
2005 2004 . 2003 2002
, (in thousands)
Consolidated Statements. of Operations Data: )
Revenue.....cooovevvvveieveeeenee, ettt ettt $ 6759 $ 13595 § 11,382 § 11,344
Cost of g00ds S0l ..cvoeeieci e 3 226 5,450 4,645 4,430
Gross margin................ VR, e T 3,533 8,145 - 6,737 6,914
Selling, general and administrative expense............. : 4,205 6,928 - 6,281 6,447
Research and developmient............... e ———— © 1,040 1,688 1,397 1,138
Interest and other iINCOMIE ..o evereeeeeeeeeerenen, - - - to— -
Interest expense ........... et esasiarns RO : 367 943 11,055 1,265
Eammgs (loss) before INCOME AXES ..vvvvvrrereerereenen (2,079) (1,414) - {1,996) (1,939
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes................ (1,221 {660) (795) (697)
INELLOSS ..ot v st o $ (B38) 8§ (754) & (1,201) § (1,238)
. ) At June 9, , ‘At December 31, o
. " 2005 t 2004 2003 | 2002
' (in thousands)
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data: -
Cash and cash equivalents............ccoervvvnviiriiviiniinns 3 4.8 46 3 167 § 659
Property and EQUIPIMEnt .........cooeoeeirriirnrininininensn, 493 474 . 278 . 273
GoOdWIll....c.ooirrriisiri e e e, 593 593 - 593 593 °
Total ASSEES ....ooveeeeeeee et ]0 280 11,593 14,418 17,925
Long-termdebt. ... 5,500 ©5500 ¢ B,633
Total debt...........o.ovvrerrrreereennn. e R . 6,214 6,087 8,133 9,892
Stockholder’s (deficit) equity .......covvececviceciieeene, (222) 634 1,382 2,463
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should
be read in conjunction with the “Selected Financial Data” and our audited annual financial statements
and the notes o those financial statements included elsewhere in this Annuaf Report on Form 10-K. Our
discussion contains forward-looking statements based upon current expectations that involve risks and
uncertainties. Our actual results and the timing of events could differ materially from those anticipated in,
or implied by, these forward-looking statements as a result of various factors, including those set forth
under “ltem 1A. Risk Factors,” “Item 1. Business,” and elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
Due to our limited operating history and our acquisition of two Canadiun-based businesses in the first half
of 2003 which significantly expanded our operations and product offerings, period to period comparisons
of or changes in financial data are not necessarily indicative of, and you should not rely upon them as an
indicator of, our fiture financial performance.

Overview
Our History

We were formed as a Delaware corporation by Applied Digital in November 2001. In January
2002, we began our efforts to create a market for our RFID systems that utilize our human-implantable
microchip. These efforts included obtaining FDA approval, which occurred in October 2004, of our
VeriMed system for use for patient identification and health information purposes. Applied Digital owned
over 90% of our stock as of December 31, 2006. On February 14, 2007, we completed our initial public
offering in which we sold 3,100,000 shares of our common stock. As a result, as of March 27, 2007,
Apptied Digital owned 60% of our stock.

On March 31, 2005, Applied Digital acquired EX] Wireless through a plan of arrangement under
which Applied Digital issued 3,388,407 shares of its common stock valued at approximately $11.7 million
to EX1 Wireless’ sharcholders. In addition, all outstanding EX1 Wireless options and warrants were
converted into options or warrants exercisable for shares of Applied Digital’s common stock. The value of
the options and warrants exchanged was approximately $0.7 million. Included in the aggregate $13.3
million purchase price was approximately $0.9 million of acquisition costs consisting primarily of a
finder’s fee and legal and accounting related services that were direct costs of the acquisition. Applied
Digital contributed EXI Wireless to us effective March 31, 2005 under the terms of an exchange agreement
dated June 9, 2005, in consideration for approximately 1.1 million shares of our common stock.

On June 10, 2005, we aciluired Instantel under the terms of a share purchase agreement. The
purchase price for Instantel was $24.5 million payable in two installments. Applied Digital funded the
initial purchase price payment of $22.0 million with such funding being recorded as a capital contribution
to us. In September 2006, the sellers of Instantel exercised their election to receive the second purchase
price payment in cash. Accordingly, in 2006 we paid the sellers 32.1 million, which amount reflected a
holdback of $0.4 million for an indemnification claim we have asserted against the sellers of Instantel. We
funded this payment through borrowings under our loan agreement with Applied Digital. A final payment
of up to $0.4 miilion may be due upon resclution of the indemnification claim. In addition, we incurred
approximately $0.3 million in acquisition costs. Under the terms of the share purchase agreement, Instantel
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of VHIL

In January 2006, we effected an amalgamation of Instantel and the former EXI Wireless
subsidiaries under Canadian law. The combined entities now operate as a wholly-owned subsidiary of VHL

Our Business
In early 2007, we reatigned our business into three business segments: healthcare security,
implantable, and industrial. This change was made to align our financial reporting with our new

operational management structure. All segment information in this Annual Report on Form 10-K has been
reclassified to reflect the segment realignment,
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Healthcare Security Segment

Our healthcare security segment encompa{sses the development, marketing and sale of our
healthcare and patient identificalion systems, specifically:

«  infant protection systems used in hospital maternity wards and birthing centers'to prevent *
infant abduction and mother-baby mismatching; .

»  wander prevention systems used by long-term care facilities to locate and protect their
residents; and

»  an asset/staff location and identification system used by hospitals and other healthcare
facilities to identify, locate and protect medical staff, pauents visitors and medical
equipment.

Infant Profection Systems
Our infant protection systems are sold through dealers. Under the terms of our dealer

agreements, our dealers are responsible for system installation and post-sale customer service and system
maintenance. We derive revenue from the sale of the systems, specifically the tags, bracelets, anklets and
wristbands, receivers, the computer hardware and application software. The average sales price of our
infant protection systems generally ranges from $30,000 to $40,000. However, system prices can vary
widely depending on the hardware and software requirements of the particular system instattation, the
number of RFID transponders or tags needed in a particular installation, the desired level of integration
with a facility’s existing communication and security systems, the size and general layout or floor plan of*
the facility and the number of egress points in the facility that need to be covered by the system. The RFID
tags, bracelets, anklets, wristbands and receivers that are component parts of our infant protection systems
are consumable items. During the year ended December 31, 2006, revenue from consumables represented
approx1mately 37% of our aggregate infant protection revenue.

We believe that the global market for infant protection products, including consumables, is
currently growing at approximately 10-15% per year, although we consider the market relatively mature.
The United States currently accounts for more than 95% of the global market for infant protection systems,
There are approximately 3,400 birthing hospitals in the United States. We estimate that infant security
systems have been implemented in approximately half of these facilities. Approximately 1,100 U.S.
hospitals and birthing centers use our infant protection systems. We believe that growth opportunities exist
among the remaining facilities that do not yet have infant protection systems in place, as well as through
replacement of legacy systems. Presently, approximately half of our mfant protection system sales are
replacement system sales.

The Joint Commission on Acereditation of Healthcare Organizations, or JCAHO, has begun to
recommend the installation of electronic security systems in hospitals® pediatric departments. Although this
is a largely untapped market, we believe that we can leverage our existing end-use customer base and
expand such customers’ infant protection systems into pediatrics. : . :

T Wander Prevention Systems

We sell our wander prevention systerns through dealers. As with our dealer agreements for our
infant protection systems, our dealer agreements for our wander prevention systems provide that our
dealers are responsible for system installation and post-sale customer service and system maintenance. We
derive revenues from the sale of the systems, specifically the tags, bracelets, anklets and wristbands,
receivers, the computer hardware and application software. The average sales price of our wander
prevention systems generally ranges from $8,000 to $10,000. However, as with our infant protection
systems, system prices can vary. The RFID tags and wristbands that are component parts of our wander
prevention systems are consumable items. Duting the year ended December 31, 2006, revenue from
consumabiles represented approximately 43% of our aggregate wander prevention revenue.

- We estimate that within the United States RFID-type wander prevention systems are currently
installed in approximately 30% of the more than 52,000 nursing homes and assisted living facilities. While
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the nursing home segment is fairly well penetrated, we believe that existing and future state regulations
applicable to long-term facilities, which include security and wander prevention requirements, will
continue to drive growth in demand for wander prevention systems for the next several years. We also
believe that our wander prevention business will benefit from key demographic trends. In that regard, the
U.S. Census Bureau has estimated that the 65 and older population in the United States will reach
70.million people by the year 2030. An estimated half of ali elderly people now require nursing home care
in their lifetime, with the highest use occurring after age 85. We believe the aging of the U.S. population,
combined with the increased prevalence of Alzheimer’s (nearly half of all nursing home residents have
Alzheimer’s or a related disorder), has caused nursing homes and assisted living facilities to place
increased emphasis on wander prevention systems. In light of the problems that exist in controlling
residents suffering from dementia or Alzheimer’s, a number of assisted llvmg facilities are building special
wings to accommodate such residents’ special needs. \

Asset/Staff Location and Identiﬁcation Systems

Through March 23, 2007, a limited number of our asset/staff location and identification systems
have been sold and installed. Those systems were sold through a dealer on a private label basis. We are in
the process of building out our distribution network for our asset/staff location and identification system
and providing the requisite training to certain dealers in an effort to be at the forefront of the emerging
market for such systems in the healthcare sector. We effected a limited commercial launch of our asset/staff
location and identification system to our dealer channel for this system in the first quarter of 2007.

We expect the sales price for our asset/staff location and identification system will vary widely -
based on the level of system implementation and specific application of each system. For instance, the
number of departments within a healthcare facility, the desired resolution, such as the degree of precision in
location, and the number of asset/stafT tags required will have a significant impact on the price of a system.
Based on our system sales to date, we- expect the average system sales price will be between $175,000 to
$225,000.

According to a report prepared by IDTechEx, a United Kingdom-based consulting firm, over the
next ten years the second-largest RFID application, by value, within the healthcare industry will be real-
time location systems for staff, patients, visitors and assets. The largest RFID application is anticipated to
be item-leve! tagging of pharmaceuticals. IDTechEx predicts that these two applications, on a combined
basis, will represent an $800 million market by 2016. We believe that it is important for our asset/staff
location and identification system to capture market share in the emerging market for real-time location and
identification systems in the healthcare industry within the next 12-24 months, as we expect that a
significant factor in hospitals’ choice of system vendors will be referrals to other healthcare facilities that
have deployed, and are pleased with, such systems. To achieve this, we will need to be on the forefront of
the effort to educate healthcare industry professionals regarding the benefits, including the return on
investment, we believe can be achleved through implementation of RFID location and identification
systems. ) A

. We intend to leverage our established brand, reseller network and extensive end-use customner
base for our infant protection and wander prevention systems to gain inroads in the emerging market for
asset/staff location and identification systems. We believe that our efforts to develop a common technology
platform for our infant protection, wander prevention and asset/staff location and identification systems
will help us to migrate our existing end-use customers into deployment of our asset/staff location and
identification systems. See “Item 1. Business — Technology — Technology Platform/Application Software.”
We believe that a common technology platform will allow us to provide our end-use customers with an
enhanced value proposition through the ability to maximize their return on investment from deployment of
an RFID system, and distribute the infrastructure and installation costs, across multiple applications.

Historically, we have sold each of our healthcare security systems separately. However, through
our efforts to develop a common technology platform for our healthcare security systems, we have the
ability to offer customers an integrated security solution comprising two or more of our applications on a.
common hardware and software platform. A common technology platform will allow us to provide our
end-use customers with an enhanced value proposition through the ability to maximize their return on
investment from deployment of an RFID system, and distribate the infrastructure and installation costs,
across multiple applications. We anticipate that, if we are successful in migrating our end-use customers to
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deployment of our asset/staff location and identification systems in conjunction-with our other healthcare
security system applications, application software will represent a greater proportion of the purchase price
of such systems. In addition, we expect that competitive forces will result in reductions in the prices of
system hardware components. We believe that the ability to offer current and prospective end-use )
customers an integrated RFID solution is a key competitive advantage that should contribute to future
growth, . o -

Implantable Segment

The principal offering of our implantable segment is our VeriMed system using the impiantable
microchip, a human-implantable RFID microchip that can be used in a variety of patient identification and
security applications. Each implantable microchip contains a unique verification number that is read when °
it is scanned by our scanner, In October 2004, the FDA cleated our VeriMed system for use in medlcal
apphcatlons in the United States,

For information relating to the risks associated with our implantable segment, see “Item 1A.
Risk Factors—Risks Related to Our Businesses Which Utilize the Implantable Microchip.”

VeriMed Patient ldentification System

Through December 31, 2006, we have generated less than $0.1 million in revenue from our
VeriMed system, primarily from the sale of the implantable microchip inserter Kits.

Currently, we are providing scanners to hospitals and third party emergency room management
companies at no charge in order to build out the geographic footprint of the healthcare facilities that can
and will use our VeriMed system as part of their standard protocol. The cost of the scanners, which was
approxirately $7,000 in 2005 and approximately $57,000 in 2006, is included as selling, general and
administrative expense in our consolidated statements of operations included elsewhere in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K. We expect to continue this “seeding” process for the foreseeable future as we
endeavor to build out our network across the United States and overseas. Ultimately, we intend to sell our
scanners directly to hospitals, third-party emergency room management companies and other potential
users of our VeriMed system, such as emergency medical technicians and other emergency personnel
outside the hospital emergency room setting, and to sell our implantable microchips and scanners to
doctors, primarily through distributors. At the time that we begin selling scanners, the cost of the scannets
will be reflected in cost of products sold in our consolidated statements of operations.

There are a number of risks associated with our VeriMed business including:

*  uncertainty as to whether a market for the VeriMed systém will develop and whether we will be
able to generate more than a nominal level of revenue from the sale of such systems;

*  uncertainty as to the future availability of insurance reimbursement for the microchip ifnplant
procedure from govermnment and private insurers;

+  apotential diSruption in our operations, loss of sales and higher expense in the event we are
unable to obtain the implantable microchip from Digital Angel, our sole supplier of the -
microchip, or have to make alternative arrangements for the manufacture of the microchip;

»  our obligation to meet annual minimum purchase requirements beginning in 2007 under our
supply agreement with Digital Angel, as a condition to maintaining the exclusmty of our supply
arrangement, that may exceed our sales ofithe microchip; and :

= possible third-party claims asserting that we hold no rights for the use of the implantable
microchip technology and are violating the third party’s intellectual property rights, If such a
claim were successful, we could be enjoined from marketing this technology and could be
‘required to pay substantlal damages. :

. .
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Systems Incorporating the Implantable Microchip for Other Applications

Through March 23, 2007, we have derived limited revenue from sales of our VeriGuard system,
which uses our implantable microchip and/or active RFID tags to provide secure access control into: .
restricted areas, map/track visitors throughout a facility, and track assets, in part reflecting our recent focus
on commercializing our VeriMed system. We have recently began to market our VeriTrace system which
uses our implantable microchip and wirelessly integrates with a Ricoh® digital camera for accurate tagging
and identification of human remains and associated evidentiary items. Currently, we are not actively
marketing our VeriGuard system.

Since our VeriGuard and VeriTrace systems, like our VeriMed system, incorporate our
implantable microchip, many of the risks associated with the VeriMed system apply to the VeriGuard and
VeriTrace systems, including the risk of possible third-party claims asserting we are violating rights with
respect to certain patented intellectual property underlying each of these systems. We do not anticipate
generating more than nominal revenues from the sale of the VeriGuard and VeriTrace systems prior to the
expiration of the patent in April 2008.

Industrial Segment
Our industrial segment encompasses the sale of:

+  vibration monitoring instruments used by engineering, construction and mining
professionals to monitor the effects of human induced vibrations, such as blasting activity;
and

*  asset management systems used by industrial companies to manage and track their mobile
equipment and tools.

Vibration Monitoring Instruments

Sales of vibration monitoring instruments currently represent the primary source of revenue in
our industrial segment. We sell our vibration monitoring instruments through an independent network of
approximately 75 dealers, approximately half of which operate in North America. The average sales price
of our vibration monitoring instruments ranges from $4,500 to $5,000. We also generate revenues from
rendering post-sale calibration services. On a historical basis, revenues from these services have
represented approximately 20% of our instrument sales.

Our vibration monitoring business is currently the most international of our business activities.
We have a strong market presence in North America, Southeast Asia, India and Scandinavia, and a growing
market presence in South Africa, Europe and Australia. We believe the greater geographical diversity of
this business serves as a buffer against declines in construction and mining activity in any one geographic
area or region, though this business continues to be influenced by changes in global ECONOMmIC activity.

We are in the process of developing and introducing a new instrumentation platform. The new
platform will replace our existing platforms for our vibration monitering instruments, for which we are
facing certain manufacturing challenges due to the discontinuation and unavailability of key components.
We believe the new platform, when completed, will better integrate with contemporary data
communications protocols so as to improve our products’ remote monitoring capabilities. In addition, we
expect the new platform will entail the addition of several sensors and peripherals that will enhance the
ability to monitor additional environmental and structural parameters related to vibration and overpressure
monitoring.

Asset Management Systems

We sell our entry-level asset management systems through our direct sales force at price points
that vary widely based on the size and scope of the system. We are currently in the process of seeking to
sell our ToolHound systems through an indirect distribution channels. We believe that creating indirect
distribution channels for these systems will provide a basis for increased sales and operating profit for these
systems through at a lower overall gross margin which will reflect the cost of the dealer discounts.
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Based on feedback from our customers obtained in connection with the studies we
commissioned by Fletcher Spaght, Inc., we believe that the return on investment from deployment of
industrial asset tracking solutions, such as our ToolHound asset management system, can be attractive
(reflecting the significant savings associated with reducing the amount of theft of tracked assets), but
implementation of such solutions is often a low priority for our target customers: companies in asset-
intensive industries (e.g., construction, mining, utilities) which tend to have higher-value mobile assets and
are thus more likely to invest in more comprehensive solutions such as our ToolHound system, These
customers are generally affected by the same macroeconomic drivers, making this business vuinerable to
changes in those drivers.

Basis of Presentation

For the reasons discussed below, our historical consolidated financial statements included
elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, and those of the Canadian-based businesses acquired in the
first half of 2005, are not necessarily indicative of our future operating results or financial condition. You
should not rely upon such financial statements as an indicator of our future financial performance.

Our Acquisition of the Canadian-Based Businesses

On March 31, 2005 and June 10, 2005, we acquired two Canadian-based businesses that were
primarily engaged in the development, marketing and sale of healthcare security systems utilizing RFID
technology. Prior to that time, our operations were comprised of efforts to create markets for our human-
implantable microchip. As a result of these acquisitions, we acquired approximately $21.5 million of
intangible assets and recorded approximately $16.0 million of goodwill. Of the intangible assets acquired,
approximately $5.4 million represents patented and non-patented proprietary technology that is being
amortized in cost of products sold on a straight line basis over finite lives ranging from 11.8 to 12.3 years.
Approximately §1 1.1 million represents customer relationships and distribution networks with finite lives
ranging from 4-10 years. These intangible assets are being amortized on a straight line basis as selling,
general and administrative expense. The remaining $4.9 million of intangible assets acquired represents
trademarks with indefinite lives.

Efforts to Create Markets for Our Systems that Utilize the Implantable Microchip

For the next several years, we expect that we will generate significant operating losses in
connection with our efforts to create markets for our VeriMed system. Our expectations in this regard
reflect our belief that revenue derived from sales of our VeriMed system will remain at a nominal level or
show only modest growth in revenue from the sale of the system prior to government and private insurers’
determinations to reimburse the cost of the microchip implant procedure. However, we can provide no
assurance as to when or if government or private insurers will decide to take such action The expected
significant operating losses from our systems which utilize the implantable microchip, and in particular, the
VeriMed system, also reflect an anticipated increase in our selling, general and administrative expenses as
we augment our direct sales force, seck to develop a distribution network for the VeriMed system, enhance
our marketing efforts directed toward physicians and patients, and fund or otherwise facilitate clinical
studies of the VeriMed system that we hope prove successful in demonstrating the efficacy of the system to
fulfill its intended functions. While we anticipate that we will continue to generate operating profits from
our Canadian-based businesses, on a consolidated basis we expect to incur operating losses for at least the
next 12-24 months.

Transition Services Agreement with Applied Digital

Applied Digital currently provides certain general and administrative support to us. We and
Applied Digital entered into an amended and restated transition services agreement, which became
effective upon the consummation of our initial public offering in February 2007, under which Applied
Digital has agreed to provide this support through February 14, 2009, subject to earlier termination of the
agreement. Under the agreement, we are obligated to reimburse Applied Digital for providing us with
certain administrative transition services and related expenses, including payroll, legal, finance, accounting,
information technology, and tax services, and services related to our initial public offering. We anticipate
that the aggregate cost of such services in 2007 and subsequent years during the term of the agreement will
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be approximately $0.9 million per year for fixed costs, such as insurance, rent, payroll services, legal and
accounting services. On or, if we elect, prior to the end of the term of the agreement, we will be responsible
for providing these services internally or engaging third parties, which may result in an increase in selling,
general and administrative expense. We believe that the cost of these services reflects an amount consistent
with what we would have to pay to independent parties.

Additional Expenses Associated with Being a Public Company; Compensation Expenses

We anticipate that expenses related to our being a public company will add approximately $0.8
million to our selling, general and administrative expense in 2007. The expenses relate to costs for
directors and officers’ insurance, independent directors’ fees, professional fees, external reporting
requirements, Sarbanes Oxley compliance, investor relations and other costs associated with operating as a
publicly traded company. As a result of stock based compensation granted in late 2006 and through March
23, 2007, we expect to record between $2.5 million and $3.0 million in stock-based compensation expense
in 2007, '

Research and Development

Our research and development expenses primarily retate to research staff associated with our
healthcare security and industrial operations that we acquired during the first half of 2005, our efforts to
complete the integration of our software and hardware platforms underlying our RFID systems during 2006
and early 2007, and development efforts related to potential new applications for our implantable
microchip. Our research and development expenses for the year ended December 31, 2006 were
approximately 93.4% higher than our research and development expenses for the year ended December 31,
2005, and we expect it to remain consistent with 2006 levels in 2007.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The following is a description of the accounting policies that our management believes involve a
high degree of judgment and complexity, and that, in turn, could materially affect our consolidated
financial statements if various estimates and assumptions made in connection with the application of such
policies were changed significantly. The preparation of our consolidated financial statements requires that
we make certain estimates and judgments that affect the amounts reported and disclosed in our consolidated
financial statements and related notes. We base our estimates on historical experience and on other
assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these
estimates. For more detailed information on our significant accounting policies, see Note 1 to our audited
consolidated financial statements as of and for the vear ended December 31, 2006, included elsewhere in
this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Revenue Recognition

Our revenue recognition policies provide very specific and detailed guidelines in measuring
revenue; however, certain estimates and judgments affect the application of our revenue recognition
policies. The complexity of the estimation process and all issues related to the assumptions, risks and
uncertainties inherent in our revenue recognition policies affect the amounts reported in our financial
statements. A number of internal and external factors affect the timing of our revenue recognition,
including estimates of customer returns and the timing of customer acceptance.

Revenue Recognition Policy for Our Healtheare Security Systems and Industrial Systems
We recognize revenue from the sale of the hardware and software components of our healthcare
security and asset management systems, as well as our vibration monitoring instruments, when the

following criteria are met:

»  persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists (e g.,4a purchase order has been received or a
contract has been executed); .

« the system components are shipped;
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« title has transferred,
» the price is fixed or determinable; and -
»  collection of the sales proceeds is reasonably assured.

Revenue from software implementation and consulting services is recognized as the services are
performed. Revenue from post-contract support services is recognized over the term of the service
agreement.

When software arrangements include multiple elements to which contract accounting does not
apply, the individual elements are accounted for separately if vendor specific objective evidence, or VSOE,
of fair value exists for the undelivered elements. Generally, the residual method is applied in allocating
revenue between delivered and undelivered elements. If VSOE does not exist, the revenue associated with
the entire agreement is deferred until the earlier of VSOE being established or all of the undelivered
elements are delivered or performed with the foliowing exceptions: ‘

s . If the only undelivered element is post-contract support, the deferred amount'is recognized
ratably over the post-contract support period. : '
+« Ifthe only undelivered element is services that do not require significant production,
' modification or customization of the software, the deferred amount is recognized as the
services are performed.

Maintenance revenue is deferred and recognized ratably over the terms of the maintenance
agreements.

Revenue Recognifion' Policy for Systems Using Our Implantable Microchip

Revenue from the sale of systems using our implantable microchip are recorded at gross
amounts. As we are in the initial process of commercializing these systems, the level of distributor or
physician returns cannot yet be reasonably estimated. Accordingly, we do not recognize revenues until the
following criteria are met: Co

»  apurchase order has been received or a contract has been executed;

+  the system is shipped; '
+ _ title has transferred,;
«  the price is fixed or determinable;
»  there are no uncertainties regarding customer acceptance;

+  collection of the sales proceeds is reasonably assured; and

»  the period during which the distributor or physician has a right to return the product has
elapsed. .

. We intend to recognize revenue from consignment sales, if any, when all of the cniteria listed
above have been met and after the receipt of notification of such product sales from the distributor’s
customers (e.g., physicians). Once the level of returns can be reasonably estimated, revenues (net of
expected returns) will be recognized when all of the criteria above are met for either direct or consignment
sales.
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Revenue Recognition Policy for VeriMed Services

The services for maintaining subscriber information on our VeriMed database will be soldon a
stand-alone contract basis, separate and apart from the implant procedure itself, and treated according to the
terms of the contractual arrangements then in effect. Revenue from the database service will be recognized
over the term of the subscription period or the terms of the contractual arrangements then in effect.

The above revenue recognition policies notwithstanding, with respect to the sales of products
and services sold in tandem, the revenue recognition policy will follow the ultimate arrangements to be
negotiated between independent third parties or related parties, subject to the aforementioned revenue
recognition criteria and determining whether there is VSOE.

Inventory

Estimates are used in determining the likelihood that inventory on hand can be sold. Historical
inventory usage and current revenue trends are.considered in estimating both obsolescence and slow-
moving inventory. Inventory is stated at the lower of cost or market, determined by the first-in, first-out
method, net of any reserves for obsolete or slow-moving inventory. As of December 31, 2006, 2005 and
2004, inventory reserves were $0.2 million, $0.1 million and 30.1 million, respectively. The estimated
market value of our inventory is based upon assumptions about future demand and market conditions. If
actual market conditions are less favorable than those projected by management, additional inventory
write-downs may be required, which could have a material effect on our financial condition and results of
operations.

Goeodwill and Other Intangible Assets

We account for goodwill and other intangible assets in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standard No. 142, Geodwill and Other Intangible Assets, or FAS 142. FAS 142 eliminated the
amortization of goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite lives and instead requires that goodwill
and other imangible assets with indefinite lives be tested for impairment at least annually. Intangible assets
with finite lives are amortized over their useful lives.

In accordance with FAS 142, we are required to test our goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite lives for impairment annually. We test our goodwill and intangible assists with indefinite lives
annually as part of our business planning cycle during the fourth quarter of each fiscal year. The
determination of the value of our intangible assets requires management to make estimates and assumptions
about the future operating results of our “reporting units,” as that term is defined in FAS 142. Our reporting
units are those businesses for which discrete financial information is available and upon which segment
management makes operating decisions. As of December 31, 2006, we operated in two reporting segments:
healthcare, and security and industrial. In early 2007, we realigned our business into three business
segments: healthcare security, implantable, and industrial. This change was made to align our financial
reporting with our new operational management structure. All segment information in this Annual Report
on 10-K has been reclassified to reflect the segment realignment. As of December 31, 2004, we did not
have goodwill or other intangible assets. As a result of the acquisitions of the two Canadian-based
businesses during the first half of 2005, as of December 31, 2006, our consolidated goodwill was $16.0
million and the value of our intangible assets with indefinite lives totaled $4.9 million.

In the fourth quarter of 2006, we tested its goodwill and other intangible assets at each reporting
unit level in accordance with FAS 142. The fair value of our reporting units, substantially ali of the
operations of which were acquired during 2005, was based on valuations prepared by management. Based
on these assessments, there was no impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets at December 31,
2006. ‘ :

Acquisition Date Valuation of Trademarks
Our intangible assets with indefinite lives consist of trademarks, acquired in connection with the

acquisition of our Canadian-based businesses. In determining the value of these trademarks at the time of
the acquisitions, we employed the income approach. We used the discounted cash flow method to calculate
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the present value of the projected income from the product lines to which the EXI Wireless and Instantel
trademarks relate. In our valuation model, we considered the “relief from royalty” concept, which assumes
that if a company owns a trademark it does not have to “rent” one and therefore is “relieved” from paying a
royalty. The amount of the phantom payment (after-tax)} is used as a surrogate for income attributable to the
trademark. : :

In valuing these trademarks, at the time of the acquisitions, we applied a market-based royalty
rate to projections of revenue for the various product lines to which the trademarks relate. The projected
royalty cash flows, on an after-tax basis, were discounted to present value using a discount rate that
adequately reflected the inherent risks of such cash flows. We applied what we believe to be appropriate
discount rates, ranging from 17.0% to 23.7%, and used a terminal revenue growth rate of 5%. '

Future events, such as market conditions or operational performance of our acquired businesses,
could cause us to conclude that impairment exists relating to our goodwill and trademarks. In such event,
we would record impairment charges, which could have a material impact on our financial condition and
results of operations. Specifically, our annual test of the estimated fair value of our trademarks is subject to
assumptions regarding:

+ the future level of royalty cash flows related to the trademarks;

»  the “relief from royalty” rate applied to the future revenue;

« the discount rate used to bring the future cash flows to present value; and

* any changes in our determination regarding the estimated useful life of the trademarks. .

The acquisition date valuations for the EX1 Wireless and Instantel trademarks were $1,131,000
and $3,790,000, respectively. We evaluated the sensitivity of our trademark valuations to variations in our
estimated useful life assumptions for these trademarks. We concluded that our valuations would not change
significantly due to variations in the estimated useful life assumptions. Approximately 86.0% of the present
value of the trademark cash flows is contributed by the cash flows generated between year i (2005) and
year 20 (2025). Therefore, a sensitivity analysis based on variations of the estimated useful lives of the
trademarks would not significantly change our valuations.

We evaluated the sensitivity of the trademark valuations to variations in the projected revenue
estimates for fiscal years 2005 through 2009 and variations in the 5.0% terminal revenue growth rate for
fiscal years 2010 and beyond, A summary of the valuation scenarios is as follows:

Scenario 1: A 10.0% increase in the projected annual revenue for 2005 through 2009 and a
10.0% increase in the terminal revenue growth rate from 5.0% to 5.5%. The Scenario 1 assumptions result
in the following valuations:

EXI Wireless Trademarks: $1,266,000 (1 1.9% greater than acquisition date valuation)
Instantel Trademarks: $4,290,000 (13.2% greater than acquisition date valuation)

Scenario 2: A 10.0% decrease in the projected annual revenue for 2005 through 2009 and a
10.0% decrease in the terminal revenue growth rate from 5.0% to 4.5%. The Scenario 2 assumptions result
in the following valuations:

EXI Wireless Trademarks: $1,001,000 (11.5% less than acquisition date valuation)
Instantel Trademarks: $3,310,000 (12.7% less than acquisition date valuation)

- Based on our analysis of the uncertainties associated with the assumptions used in our trademark
valuations, we concluded that, when performing our annual tests for impairment, variations in the level of
projected revenue represent the most significant variable affecting the future estimated fair value of our
trademarks.
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Stock-Based Compensation .

Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted Financial Auditing Standard, or FAS, 123R, using the
modified prospective transition method. Under this method, stock-based compensation expense is
recognized using the fair-value based method for all awards granted on or after the date of adoption.
Compensation expense for new awards granted after lanuary 1, 2006 is recognized over the requlslte
service period based on the grant-date fair value of those optlons

Prior to the adoption of FAS 123R, we used the intrinsic value method under APB 25 and
Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 44, Accounting for Certain Transactions
Invelving Stock Compensation—an Interpretation of APB Opinion No. 25, and provided the pro forma and
disclosure information required by FAS 123. Under the intrinsic value method, no stock-based
compensation was recognized in our consolidated statements of operations for options granted to our
employees and directors because the exercise price of such stock options granted to employees and
directors equaled or exceeded the fair value of the underlying stock on the dates of grant.

FAS 123R requires forfeitures of stock-based grants to be estimated at the time of grant and
revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates. In our pro
forma information required under FAS 123 for the periods prior to January 1, 2006, we accounted for
forfeitures as they occurred. -

In the year ended December 31, 2006, we incurred stock-based compensation expense of
approximately $0.1 million as a result of our adoption of FAS 123R on January 1, 2006. This expense
resulted from the issnance of 52,012 stock options.during the year ended December 31, 2006, which were
granted with a weighted average exercise price of $9.88 per share. The weighted-average fair market value
of the options was determined to be $5.96 per share.

In 2006, as a result of the termination of certain employees whose options were in-the-money at
the time their options were accelerated, we incurred additional equity based compensation of approximately
$0.4 million. :

In December 2006, we issued 0.5 million shares of our,restricted common stock to our chairman
and chief executive officer, which shares will vest on December 31, 2008. We determined the value of the
stock to be $4.5 million based on the estimated value of our common stock of $9.00 per share on the date of
the grant. The value of the restricted stock is being amortized as compensation expense over the vesting
period. We recorded compensation expense of approximately $0.2 million in 2006 related to this restricted
stock, The (.5 million restricted shares have been considered outstanding as the chairman and chief
exccutive officer is entitled to voting rights, however, they are excluded in calculating the basic loss per
share,

Stock-based compensation expense is reflected in the condensed consolidated statement of
operations in selling, general and administrative expense.

During the peried January 1; 2005 to August 11, 2005, we granted to certain of our employees
and directors options exercisable for approximately 0.3 million shares of our common stock. These options
have exercise prices ranging from $6.93 to $8.55 per share. These exercise prices were equal to or greater
than the estimated fair value, as determined by our management, of the underlying common stock on the
date of each grant. We did not grant any options to employees from August 12, 2005 through December 31,
2005.

Prior to our initial public offering, our management determined the value of our common stock
principally based upon internal valuation estimates, as well as arm’s-length transactions involving the fair
value of the businesses we acquired. Due to management’s familiarity with discounted cash flow analyses
and the readily available values of the businesses we acquired during the first half of 2005, management
chose not to obtain contemporaneous valuations by an unrelated valuation specialist. The assumptions used
by management during this period related to:

*  our projected operating performance;
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+  risk of non-achievement of projected operating performance;

+ the purchase prices of the two businesses acquired during the first half of 2003, including
the risk that the acquisitions might not have been completed at certain interim valuation
dates; and

» trends and comparable valuations in the broad market for privately-held and publicly-
traded technology and medical device companies.

Management’s valuation methodology, including terminal and enterprise values, was based on
the following factors:

»  Unlevered free cash flows for the Company’s implantable microchip business were
projected for five years, which was deemed to be the appropriate valuation period.

«  Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization, or EBITDA, was used to
estimate terminal value.

*  Management considered the relevant multiples for RFID and medical device companies to
determine the appropriate terminal value multiple.

* A discount rate was applied to the net free cash flows and terminal value. The rate was
determined based on the risk-free rate of the 10-year U.S. Treasury Bond plus an
applicable market risk premium and the specific risk premium associated with our facts
and circumstances. The discount rate utilized by us was the rate of return expected from
the market or the rate of return for a similar investment with similar risks.

»  The purchase prices of the acquired businesses, adjusted for the risk that the acquisitions
might not have been completed at certain interim valuation dates, were added to the value
of the implantable microchip business to determine enterprise value.

*  Management computed the fully diluted value of each share of our common stock in order
to factor in the dilutive effect of reflecting in-the-money stock options and warrants at
each vaiuation date,

There are inherent uncertainties in forecasting future operating results and identifying
comparable companies and transactions that may be indicative of the fair value of our common stock. We
believe that the estimates of the fair value of our common stock at each option grant date occurring prior to
our initial public offering were reasonable under the circumstances.

During 2005, we granted to consultants and employees of Applied Digital and Digital Angel
options exercisable for approximately 0.1 million shares of our comimon stock. In accordance with FAS
123, we recorded compensation expense associated with these options based on an estimate of the fair
value, as determined by our management (using the methodology discussed above), of our common stock
on each date of grant and using the Black-Scholes valuation model. We were required to re-measure the
stock-based compensation expense associated with these options on December 30, 2005, the date of
acceleration of the vesting of all of these options, as more fully discussed below. This re-measurement was
based on the estimated fair value of our common stock on December 30, 2005, which was assumed to be
the then estimated initial public offering price, and using the Black-Scholes valuation medel, This re-
measurement resulted in stock-based compensation expense being recorded in 2005 based upon the fair
value of these stock options on the accelerated vesting date.

During 2005 and 2004, we granted to employees of Applied Digital, and other non-employees
who had provided services to us, options exercisable for approximately 1.1 million shares of our common
stock. We recognized compensation expense related to these option grants using the same methodology as
was used for the 2005 option grants, as discussed above. We recorded aggregate compensation expense of
approximately $2.3 million, and $0.3 million during the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004,
respectively, in connection with these stock options.
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The Black-Scholes option pricing model, which we use to value our stock options, requires us to
make several key judgments including:

the estimated vatue of our common stock;

the expected life of issued stock options;

the expected volatility of our stock price;

the expected dividend yield to be realized over the life of the stock options; and

the risk-free interest rate over the expected life of the stock options.

Our computation of the expected life of issued stock options was determined based on historical
experience of similar awards giving consideration to the contractual terms of the stock-based awards,
vesting schedules and expectations about employees’ future length of service. The interest rate was based
on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant. Historically, our computation of expected
volatility was based on the historical volatility of Applied Digital’s common stock. Now that we are a
public company, our computation of expected volatility will be based on the historical volatitity of our
common stock, or comparable public companies in our industry.

The significant factors contributing to the difference between the fair value of the stock options
granted during the period January 1, 2005 to August 11, 2005 and the estimated initial public offering price
of shares of our common stock as of December 30, 2005, included, among others:

Certain hospital emergency rooms adopted our VeriMed system beginning in the latter
part of the third quarter of 2005. Specifically, as of August 1, 2005, five hospitals had
agreed to adopt our VeriMed system in their emergency departments and we had a goal of
having 20 to 25 hospitals agree to adopt our VeriMed system by December 31, 2005,
Having an infrastructure of hospitals that have adopted the VeriMed system as part of their
standard protocol is considered a necessary step in the commercialization of the VeriMed
system, because, without that infrastructure, those persons who fit the profile for which the
VeriMed system was designed have little or no reason to undergo the microchip implant
procedure. Afier our attendance at the American College of Emergency Physicians’
Scientific Assembly, which took place in Washington D.C. from September 26 to 29,
2005, 49 hospitals had agreed to adopt our VeriMed system in their emergency rooms. As
of December 15, 2005, 66 hospitals had agreed to do so.

During the latter part of 2005, we began the groundwark for the integration of all of our
RFID healthcare security systems onto a single technology platform, which we expected to
have completed by late 2006. We believe that an integrated platform and infrastructure for
our portfolio of RFID healthcare security systems will provide us with a significant
competitive advantage.

We came to the view that there is a significant market opportunity for our asset/staff
location and identification system. Today, our asset/staff location and identification system
is essentially a new product. It was the first healthcare security application adapted to our
technology platform. The new platform has expanded the deployment options for our
asset/staff location and identification system, which can range from a portal-based system
to a full, real-time location system.

We identified additional strategic markets for the implantable microchip. For example,
during the second half of 2005 and specifically in the wake of Hurricane Katrina, we
donated implantable microchips to FEMA’s Department of Mortuary Services in
Mississippi and Louisiana to help with FEMA’s efforts to identify corpses. The acceptance
of this new use for the implantable microchip has led to the development of VeriTrace, the
only end-to-end implantable tagging solution for the accurate tracking and identification of
human remains and associated evidentiary items.
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*  We expanded our sales of certan of our healthcare security systems into international
markets. On October 19, 2005, we shipped our first Hugs infant protection system for use
in the United Kingdom, and in early January 2006 we completed the negotiations of an
agreement with Ingersoll Rand Security Technologies, a sector of [ngersoll-Rand
Company Limited. Under the terms of the agreement, Ingersoll Rand Security
Technologies has the non-exclusive right to promote, sell, install and maintain certain of
our infant protection, wander prevention and asset/staff location and identification
systems, as well as the related technology platform and application development interface,
in healthcare, commercial and industrial markets in North and South America, including
the Caribbean and Hawaii,

*  We used the enterprise value to forward-looking revenue valuation approach to determine
the estimated [PO value on December 30, 2005. Under this approach, fair value was
determined based upon a range of multiples of projected future revenue. The multiples
used represented those multiples of revenue that our peers’ common stock were trading for
in the public markets. This approach was deemed appropriate because revenue multiples
for publicly traded companies provide the highest correlation of public company trading
values. Specifically, publicly-traded companies in comparable industries tend to have
similar revenue multiples, whereas their EBITDA and net income multiples are not
deemed to be as consistent in part because certain companies in comparable industries are
not EBITDA paositive or do not earn net income.

On December 12, 2005, our board of directors approved a proposal which provided for vesting
on December 30, 2005 of all of our then outstanding and unvested stock options previously awarded to
employees, directors, one employee of Applied Digital, one employee of Digital Angel and consultants. In
connection with the acceleration of these options, we stipulated that a grantee that acquires any shares
through exercise of any of such options shall not be permitted to sell such shares until the earlier of (i) the
original vesting date applicable to such option or (ii) the date on which such grantee’s employment
terminates for any reason.

The purpose of accelerating the vesting of the options granted 10 our directors and employees
was to enable us to avoid recognizing in future periods non-cash compensation expense associated with
such options in our consolidated statements of operations, which would have otherwise been required upon
our adoption of FAS 123R on January 1, 2006. As a result of the acceleration, we avoided recognition of up
to approximately $0.6 million of compensation expense in our consolidated statements of operations over
the course of the original vesting period, substantially all of which was avoided in 2006. Such expense is
included in our pro forma stock-based compensation footnote disclosure for the year ended December 31,
2003. FASB Financial Interpretation No. 44 requires us to recognize compensation expense under certain
circumstances, such as a change in the vesting schedule when the options whose vesting schedule was
changed are in-the-money on the date of change, which would allow an employee to vest in an option that
would have otherwise been forfeited based on the award’s original terms. We would be required to begin to
recognize compensation expense over the new expected vesting period based on estimates of the number of
options that employees ultimately will retain that otherwise would have been forfeited, absent the
modifications. The majority of the accelerated options, absent the acceleration, would have vested during
the first half of 2006, with a smaller percentage vesting over 30 months from December 31, 2006. Such
estimates of compéensation expense would be based on such factors as historical and expected employee
turnover rates and similar statistics. Of options exercisable for approximately 0.3 million shares of our
common stock that were affected by the acceleration of vesting, substantially all of the $4.4 million of
intrinsic value of these options is attributable to our executive officers and directors at that time. We are
unable to estimate the number of options that our employees and directors will ultimately retain that
otherwise would have been forfeited, absent our acceleration of the vesting of these options. Based on the
then current circumstances, the high concentration of such options awarded to officers and directors and
our historical turnover rates, no compensation expense resulting from the new measurement date was
recognized by us upon acceleration of vesting on December 30, 2005. We will recognize compensation
expense in future periods, should a benefit be realized by the holders of the aforementioned options, which
they would not otherwise have been entitled to receive. During the year ended December 31, 2006, we
recognized approximately $0.4 million of compensation expense as a result of three terminated employees
receiving a benefit related to the accelerated vesting of their options that they would not otherwise have
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received. If we are required to recognize additional compensation expense in connection with the
accelerated vesting of in-the-money stock options, it could have a material impact on-our future results of
operations.

Accounting for Income Taxes

As part of the process of preparing our consolidated financial statements, we are required to
estimate our income tax liability in each of the jurisdictions in which we do business. This process involves
estimating our actual current tax expense together with assessing temporary differences resulting from
differing treatment of items, such as deferred revenues, for tax and accounting purposes. These differences
result in deferred tax assets and liabilities, which are included in our consolidated balance sheet. We must
then assess the likelihood that our net deferred tax assets in each tax jurisdiction will be recovered from
future taxable income in the applicable jurisdiction and, to the extent we believe that recovery is not more
likely than not or is unknown, we must establish a valuation allowance.

Significant management judgment is required in determining the provision for income taxes,
deferred tax assets and liabilitics and any valuation allowance recorded against the deferred tax assets. As
of December 31, 2006, we had $4.9 million in net.deferred tax liabilities, associated with our Canadian-
based operations. As of December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, we had recorded a full valuation allowance
against our U.S. net deferred tax assets due to uncertainties related to our ability to utilize these deferred tax
assets, primarily consisting of net operating loss carryforwards. The valuation allowance was based on our
historical operating performance and estimates of taxable income in the United States and the period over
which our deferred tax assets will be recoverable. As of December 31, 2006, we have provided a valuation
allowance of $0.1 million against our Canadian deferred tax assets, based on management’s analysis of the
amount of deferred tax assets that are not expected to be realized over their respective lives.

If we continue to incur U.S. operating losses we will continue to provide a full valuation
allowance against our U.S. net deferred tax assets. Conversely, if our U.S. operations become profitable in
the future, we may reduce some or all of our valuation aliowance, which could result in a significant tax
benefit and a favorable impact on our financial condition and operating results,

If for Canadian tax purposes we incur operating losses in the future or if we are unable to
generate sufficient future Canadian taxable income, or if there is a material change in the actual effective
tax rates or time period within which the underlying temporary differences become taxable or deductible,
and we were to establish a valuation allowance against all or a significant portion of our Canadian deferred
tax assets, it could result in a material adverse impact on our operating results.

Results of Operations

The table below sets forth data from our consolidated statements of operations for the years
ended December 31, 2006, 20035 and 2004, expressed as a percentage of total revenue. To date,
substantially all of our revenue consists of revenue from our Canadian-based healthcare security and
industrial businesses, which were acquired in the first half of 2005. Prior to the acquisitions of these
businesses, we had minimal revenue and, therefore, period-to-period results are not corparable.
Accordingly, our historical results are not necessarily indicative of our future results,

Through December 31, 2006, we have recorded nominal revenue from sales of our VeriMed
system. Over time, we expect that sales of our VeriMed system will become a significant part of our -
revenue, although there can be no assurance that they will. |

All pro forma revenue information discussed in this Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations concerning our 2005 fiscal year assumes that the
acquisitions of EXI Wireless and Instantel occurred on January 1, 2005. The discussion also assumes that
these companies’ segment reporting was consistent with our current segment reporting. Such pro forma
information is not necessarily indicative of what our results of operations would have been had EXI
Wireless and Instantel been owned and operated by us as of January 1, 2005, nor does it purport to
represent our results of operations for futire periods. o
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Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Product revenue......ccoveevvnvrccvvcccn e, 93.9% 91.5% 100.0%
L SEIVICE TEVENUE ..oooveiiiecceee e 6.1% 8.5% -

" Total revenue ................ ettt 100.0%  100.0% 100.0%
Cost of products sold ............ccoooviiiieivcnincnininnn 40.0% 34.4% 80.6%
Cost of services S0ld .......c.ovvrivivieninniciiiciie i 3.1% 5.9% -
GTOSS PrOfit cooverevvrerercrcrnennersrmsnnnnns e reeeenes 56.9%  59.7% 19.4%
Selling, general and administrative expense...........  64.5% 78.4% 781.4%
Research and development ..o 13.9% 12.3% -
Other INCOME ..o erensrsreresesnssssressas 0.2)% (0% {6.1)%
INETESE EXPENSE ..veuirier e nre e 3.1% 2.2% 58.3%
Loss before provision for income taxes................. (24.5)%  (32.8)%  (B14.2Y%
Benefit (provision) for income taxes.........cceueue... {0.1)% (0.4)% -
Net loss attributable to common stockholder.......... (24.6)%  (332)% (814.i)%

Years Ended December 31, 2006 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2005

The table below presents statement of operations data by segment and in total for the years

ended December 31, 2006 and 2005,

+

2006
Healtheare - .
Security _ Implantable Industrial Corporate Tatal’
{in thousands) - )

Productrevenue..............ccovoven $ 20,035 % tHe $ 5480 % - $ 25,631
Service revenue........ococeveieeeiens i 380 - 1,293 - 1,673
Total revenue ........oocrrvrerrire 20,415 116 6,773 - 27,304
Gross profit (10s8) ....ocoovvvevervrennne, 11,717 (340) 4,148 - 15,525
Selling, general and

administrative.......cooeeevveren, 8,328 3,833 2,312 3,047 17,620
Research and development ......... 2,609 - 1,177 - 3,786

Total operating expenses... 10,937 3,933 3,489 3,047 21,400
Operating income (1088).............. $ 780 % (4273 % 639 § (3,047 % (588D
2005
Healthcare 1
Security Implantable Industrial Corporate Total
(in thousands)

Product revenue..........c.ccooveennn. $ 11,200 % 68 § 3252 § - $ 14,520
Service revenue...... SIS 849 - 500 - 1,349
Total TeVENUe ..........rvrersrrrreerenee 12,049 68 3,752 . - 15,869
Gross profit......ccoceveccececnvenennnne, 7.115 33 2,326 - 9,474
Selling, general and

administrative.......ccooceeesinenenne. 4,855 3,637 1,195 2,757 .. 12,444
Research and development .......... 1,313 - 643 - 1,956
' Total operating expenses.... - 6,168 3,637 1,838 2,757 14,400
Operaﬁﬁg income (loss)............... $ 947 § (3,604) § 488 8% (2,757) § (4,926)

.
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Revenue

Revenue for the year ended December 31, 2006 was $27.3 million, an increase of $11.4 million
compared to the comparable period of the prior year. Revenue for the year ended December 31, 2005
includes only nine months of revenue from EXI Wireless, which we acquired on March 31, 2005, and
revenue from Instantet for the period from June 10, 2005 (the date of acquisition) to December 31, 2005.

On a pro forma basis, revenue for the year ended December 31, 2006 increased $2.8 million, or
11.2%, to $27.3 million compared to pro forma revenue of $24.6 million for the vear ended December 31,
2005.

Our healthcare security segment’s revenue was $20.4 million for the year ended December 31,
2006 compared to $12.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. The $8.4 million increase in
revenue in our healthcare security segment reflects a full year of revenue from our acquisitions of Instantel
and EXI Wireless in 2006 compared to only a portion of the 2005 period.

On a pro forma basis, our healthcare security segment’s revenue increased $2.1 million, or
11.6%, to $20.4. million for the year ended December 31, 2006 compared to pro forina revenue of $18.3
million for the year ended December 31, 2005, This increase is the result of a $2.2 million increase in sales
to the hospital market, principally relating to sales of our infant protection and asset/staff location and
identification systems. The year over year increase is attributable to increased sales of infant protection
systems primarily reflecting our efforts in 2006 to consolidate and rationalize our dealer network so as to
increase our sales volumes generated by our key dealers. Additionally, we experienced revenue growth
associated with our sale of RFID tags and other consumables relating to our infant protection system. This
increase in consumable sales was driven by our installed base of healtheare facilities. In 2005 and 2006, we
continued the development of our new asset/staff location and identification RFID system, and sold three of
these systems in 2005 and two systems in 2006. Revenue from asset/staff location and identification
systems decreased in 2006 as compared to 2005 as the initial systems sold in 2005 and early 2006 were
installed during 2006. Two of the five initial systems sold are expected to be installed during the third
quarter of 2007. We launched our asset/staff location and identification system through the dealer channel
for this system on a limited basis in the first quarter of 2007. On a pro forma basis, revenue from the sale
of our wander protection systems was consistent from 2005 to 2006. The lack of year over year growth was
the result of our efforts in 2006 to consolidate the product lines from EXI and Instantel, which was
accomplished in 2006, as well as the two separate distribution channels, which was accomplished in the
first quarter of 2007.

Our industrial segment’s revenue was $6.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2006
compared to $3.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. The $3.0 million increase in revenue in
our industrial segment reflects a full year of revenue from our Canadian-based businesses in 2006
compared to only a portion of the 2005 period. Segment sales consist principally of sales of our vibration
monitoring instruments.

On a pro forma basis, our industrial segment’s revenue increased $0.6 million, or 9.4%, to $6.8
miltion for the year ended December 31, 2006 compared to $6.2 million for the year ended December 31,
2005, The increase was primarily the result of a $0.7 million increase in revenue from our vibration
monitoring instruments due to continued strong demand in the worldwide construction market. The
strength or weakness of the worldwide construction market has historically had a significant influence on
the sales volumes of our vibration monitoring instruments.

Our implantable segment’s revenue was $116,000 for the year ended December 31, 2006
compared to $68,000 for the year ended December 31, 2005. This increase is attributable to increased sales
of VeriMed and VeriTrace systems.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Our cost of products consists of component parts, direct labor and finished goods. Component
parts and finished goods are purchased from contract manufacturers, including our implantabie microchip
and scanners used in our VeriMed system, which are purchased as finished goods under the terms of our
agreement with Digital Angel. Moreover, included in our cost of products is amortization of intangible
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assets acquired in the acquisitions of our Canadian-based businesses during the first half of 2005. Such
amortization amounted to $0.4 million and $0.2 million in the years ended December 31,2006 and 2005,
respectively, -

Cost of services consists primarily of third-party installation services in connection with direct
sales to healthcare customers. In addition, cost of services sold in our industrial segment consists of
servicing our existing systems, principally the calibration services we provide with respect to our vibration
monitoring instruments.

Gross profit for the year ended December 31, 2006 was $15.5 million compared to $9.5 million
for the year ended December 31, 2005. As a percentage of revenue, our gross profit margin was 56,9% and
59.7% for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Our healthcare security segment’s gross profit for the year ended December 31, 2006 was $11.7
million compared to $7.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. The increase in gross profit of
$4.6 million was primarily the result of the 2006 period including a full year of operations from our
Canadian-based businesses as compared to only a portion of the 2005 period. Our healthcare security
segment’s gross profit margin decreased to 57.4% in the year ended December 31, 2006 compared to
59.1% in the year ended December 31, 2005, The decline in gross profit margin reflected an increase in
excess inventory and warranty reserves of $0.5 million resultmg from the consolidation of the operations of
our Canadian-based businesses and changes in product mix,

Our industrial segment’s gross profit for the year ended December 31, 2006 was $4.1 million
compared to $2.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2005, The increase in gross profit of $1.8
million was attributable to sales of our vibration monitoring instruments as a result of our acquisition of
Instantel on June 10, 2005. Our industrial segment’s gross profit margin was 61.2% and 62.0% for the
years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Our implantable segment’s gross profit decreased from $33,000 in 2005 to a loss of $(340,000)
in 2006. The $373,000 decrease was almost entirely the result of a charge recorded to reduce the carrying
amount of our VeriMed inventory to the lower of cost or market.

Selling, General and Administrative Expense

Selling, general and administrative expense consists primarily of compensation for employees in
executive, sales, marketing and operational functions, including finance and accounting, and corporate
development. Other significant costs include depreciation and amortization,.professional fees for
accounting and legal services, consulting fees and facilities costs.

Selling, general and administrative expense increased $5.2 million to $17.6 million for the year
ended December 31, 2006 as compared to $12.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2005, As a
percentage of revenue, selling, general and administrative expense was 64.3% and 78.4% for the years
ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively: Included in selling, general and administrative expense
for the year ended December 31, 2006 was $0.9 million (of which $0.6 million are non-cash charges) for
exit costs in Vancouver, British Columbia related to the consolidation of the operations of our Canadian-
based businesses in Ottawa, Ontario. The charges resulted from severance payments and related charges,
fixed asset write-offs and a valuation allowance for certain Canadian tax assets, We expect to record
additional charges during the first quarter of 2007 of approxxmale]y $0.3 million, consisting of charges
relating to termination benefits. :

Included in selling, general and administrative expense for the years ended December 31, 2006
and 2005 was $0.8 million and $0.5 million, respectively, of certain general and administrative services
provided to us by Applied Digital, including accounting, finance and legal services, insurance, telephone,
rent and other miscellaneous items. We expect the annual cost of the services being provided by Applied
Digital under the terms of the amended and restated transition services agreement will be approximately
$0.9 million in 2007 and thereafter, reflecting that the scope of the services provided by Applied Digital
under the agreement was expanded at the end of 2005.
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Selling, general and administrative expense for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005
included approximately $2.0 million and $1.1 million, respectively, of depreciation and amortization
expense. The increase was due to increased amortization of intangible assets as a result of the acquisition of
the Canadian-based businesses in the first half of 2005.

Included in selling, general and administrative expense for the years ended December 31, 2005
was $2.3 million of compensation expense associated with stock options granted to employees of Applied
Digital and consultants. Our board of directors accelerated the vesting of all of our then unvested employee
and director stock options on December 30, 2005. During the year ended December 31, 2006, we incurred
compensation expense associated with granting 52,012 stock options to employees of $0.1 million.
Moreover, as a result of the termination of certain employees whose options were in-the-money at the time
their options were accelerated, we incurred equity based compensation of approximately $0.4 million
during the year ended December 31, 2006. Also, effective December 18, 2006, we granted our chief
executive officer 500,000 restricted shares and incurred equity based compensation of $0.2 million relating
to this grant, which is also included in selling, general and-administrative expense for 2006.

Our healthcare security segment’s selling, general and administrative expense was $8.3 million
in the year ended December 31, 2006, an increase of $3.5 million compared to the prior year. The increase
was primarily a result of a full year of operations from our Canadian-based businesses as compared to the
2005 period. As a percentage of our healthcare security segment’s revenue, selling, general and
administrative expense was 40.8% and 40.3% for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. We attribute the increase in selling, general, and administrative expense as a percentage of
revenue primarily to the charges related to- the exit of our facility in Vancouvcr British Columbia. '

Our mdusmal segment’s selling, general and administrative expense mcreased $1.1 million to
$2.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2006 compared to the prior year. The increase was primarily
the result of our acquisition of Instantel in June 2005. As a percentage of our industrial segment’s revenue,
selling, general and administrative expense was 34.1% and 31.8% for the years ended December 31, 2006
and 2005, respectively. We attribute the increase in selling, general, and administrative expense as a
percentage of segment revenue primarily to the inclusion of the results of Instantel for the full year in 2006.

Our implantable segment’s selling, general and administrative expense increased $0.3 million to
$3.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 compared to the prior year. The increase was due to our
increased staffing and associated costs related to the build out of our VeriMed infrastructure.

Our corporate segment’s selling, general and administrative expense increased $0.2 million to
$3.0 million in 2006 compared to the prior year. This 10.5% increase was due to increased legal and
accounting fees related to our preparation for becoming a public company.

We expect selling, general and administrative expense to increase in the future due to
contemplated additions of sales and marketing staff related to our marketing and sale of our VeriMed
system and database services, increased compensation expense, as well as the additional costs resulting
from equity based compensation and from our being a publicly held company effective February 9, 2007.

Research and Developmient

Our research and development expense consists primarily of payroll costs for engineering
personnel and costs associated with various projects, including testing, developing prototypes and related
expenses. Research and development expenses are incurred only in our healthcare security and industrial
segments.

Research and development expense was $3.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2006
compared to $2.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. As a percentage of revenue, research and
development expense was 13.9% and 12.3% for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively.

Our healthcare security segment’s research and development expense increased $1.3 million to
approximately $2.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 compared to the prior year. The increase
in our healthcare security segment’s research and development expense was primarily due to the
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acquisitions of our Canadian-based businesses during the first half of 2005, the continued development of
our asset/staff location and identification system, and our initiative to integrate virtually all of our
healthcare security systems on to a common technology platform.

Our industriat segment’s research and development expense increased $0.6 million to
approximately $1.2 million for the year énded Décember 31, 2006 compared to the prior year. The increase
in our industrial segment’s research and development expense was primarily due to the acquisition of
Instantel on June 10, 2005. The period-over-period increase also reflected costs associated with the .
development efforts for our next generation vibration monitoring instruments.

Interest Expense

Interest expense was 30.9 million and $0.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2006 and
2005, respectively. The increase in interest expense was primarily due to our increased level of outstanding
borrowings owed to Applied Digital and our increased borrowings under our revolving credit facility with
the Royal Bank of Canada. We used a portion of the proceeds from our initial public offering to repay $3.5
million of outstanding indebtedness owed to Applied Digital at the closing of our initial public offering.
Through October 5, 2006, the interest rate under our loan agreement with Applied Digital was baséd upon
the prevailing prime rate as published by The Wall Street Journal in effect during the applicable periods.
Since that date, the interest rate on our loan was fixed at 12% per annum,

Income Taxes

We had an effective tax rate of 0.1% and 0.4% for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively, related to our Canadian-based businesses. We incurred consolidated losses before taxes for the
years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005. However, we have not recorded a tax benefit for the resulting
U.S. net operating loss carryforwards, as we have determined that a valuation allowance against our net
U.S. deferred tax assets was appropriate based primarily on our historical operating results.

Year Ended December 31, 2005 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2004

' The tables below present statement of operations data by segment and in total for the years
ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, ’

2005
Healthcare
Security Implantable Industrial Corporate Total
(in thousands)

Product revenue.......occoceeevvnnen, $ 11,200 % 68 $ 3252 % - $ 14,520
Service revenue ...........o.oovveee. 849 - 500 - 1,349
Total revenue.........covveveeveveeennn. 12,049 68 3,752 - 15,869
Gross profit......ococceeviiiveenen, 7,115 Lo 33 2,326 - 9,474

Selling, general and ‘
administrative .................c..... 4,855 3,637 1,195 2,757 12,444
Research and development ........ 1,313 - 643 - 1,956
Total operating expenses.. 6,168 3,637 - 1,838 2,757 14,400

Operating income (loss) ............ £ 947 § (3,604) $ 48 $ (2,757 § (4,926)
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2004

Healthcare
Security Implantable Industrial Corporate

(in thousands)r

Product revenue 247 § - 3
Service revenue - -
Tolal revenue.........cocemnvnernnenens - 247 - - 247
Gross profit .......cceevviciicniennn - 48 - - 48
Selling, general and

administrative ... - 1,110 - 820 1,930
Research and development........ - - - - -

Total operating expenses . - 1,110 - 820 1,930
Operating 108 ....vvvvocorerrreeeeene $ -8 (1,062) $ - $  (R20) $ (1,882)
Revenue

Revenue for the year ended December 31, 2005 increased $15.7 million to $15.9 million
compared to the prior year. The increase was attributable to the acquisition of our Canadian-based
businesses in the first half of 2005. On a pro-forma basis, our revenues were $24.6 million for the year
ended December 31, 2005.

Qur healthcare security segment’s revenue was $12.0 million for the year ended December 31,
2005, reflecting sales of our healthcare security systems following the acquisition of our Canadian-based
businesses in the first half of 2005. Our healthcare security segment did not generate any revenue during
the year ended December 31, 2004,

Our industrial segment’s revenue was $3.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2005,
reflecting sales of our asset management systems and vibration monitoring instruments foliowing the
acquisition of our Canadian-based businesses during the first half of 2005.

Our implantable segment’s revenue was $0.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2005
compared to $0.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. The decrease of $0.1 million was
primarily due to a decrease in sales of our VeriGuard system. In October 2004, the FDA cleared our
VeriMed system as a Class [ medical device, which has allowed us to focus our marketing efforts on the
VeriMed system.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Our cost of products consists of component parts, direct labor and finished goods. Component
parts and finished goods are purchased from contract manufacturers, including our implantable microchip
and scanners used in our VeriMed system, which are purchased as finished goods under the terms of our
agreement with Digital Angel. Moreover, included in our cost of products is amortization of intangible
assets acquired in the acquisitions of our Canadian-based businesses during the first half of 2005. Such
amortization amounted to $0.2 million in the year ended December 31, 2005.

Cost of services consists primarily of third-party installation services in connection with direct
sales to healthcare customers. In addition, cost of services sold in our healthcare security and industrial
segments consists of servicing our existing systems, principaily the calibration services we provide with
respect to our vibration monitoring instruments.

Gross profit for the year ended December 31, 2005 was $9.5 million, an increase of $9.4 million

compared to the prior year. As a percentage of revenue, our gross profit margin increased to 59.7% for the
year ended December 31, 2005, compared to 19.4% in the prior year.
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During the year ended December 31, 2005, our healthcare security segment’s gross profit was
$7.1 million and its gross profit margin was 59.0%. Our healthcare security segment did not generate any
revenue or gross profit margin during the year ended December 31, 2004. The gross profit of $7.1 miliion
was due to the acquisition of gur Canadian-based businesses in the first half of 2005 and, specifically, sales
of our healthcare security systems,

In the year ended December 31, 2005, our industrial segment’s gross profit was $2.3 million and
our gross profit margin was 62.0%. Our industrial segment did not generate any revenue or gross profit
margin during the year ended December 31, 2004. The gross profit of $2.3 million was attributable to sales
of our asset management systems and vibration monitoring instruments to our customers.

QOur implantable segment’s gross profit remained relatively constant for the years ended
December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. This decrease in gross profit margin from December 31, 2005
and 2004, respectively, was attributable to a writedown of inventory of approximately $79,000 in 2004,

Selling, General and Administrative Expense

Selling, general and administrative expense increased $10.5 million to $12.4 million in the year
ended December 31, 2005 as compared to $1.9 million in the year ended December 31, 2004, As a
percentage of revenue, selling, general and administrative expense was 78.4% for the year ended
December 31, 2005. As we generated nominal revenue in 2004, the comparative 2004 percentage is not
meaningful, -

Included in selling, general and administrative expense for the years ended December 31, 2005
and 2004 was: '

= $0.5 million and $0.4 million, respectively, of certain general and administrative services
provided to us by Applied Digital, including accounting, finance and legal services,
telephone, rent and other miscellaneous items;

+  $2.3 million and $0.3 million, respectively, of compensation expense associated with stock
options granted to employees of Applied Digital and consultants; and

= approximately $1.1 million and $48,000, respectively, of depreciation and amortization
expense, with the increase in 2005 resulting from the amortization of intangible assets
acquired in connection with the acquisitien of our Canadian-based businesses during the
first half of 2003.

Our healthcare security segment’s selling, general and administrative expense was $4.9 million
in the year ended December 31, 2005. As a percentage of the healthcare security segment’s revenue,
segment selling, general and administrative expense was 40.3% in the year ended December 31, 2005. Our
healthcare security segment’s sclling, general and administrative expense related primarily 1o salaries and
other employee expenses incurred in the selling and marketing of our infant protection systems and our
asset/staff location and identification systems. :

Our industrial segment’s selling, general and administrative expense was $1.2 million in the year
ended December 31, 2005, As a percentage of the industrial segment’s revenue, segment selling, general
and administrative expense was 31.8% in the year ended December 31, 2005. Our industrial segment’s
selling, general and administrative expense related primarily to salaries and other employee expenses
incurred in the selling and marketing of our vibration monitoring systems.

Our implantable segment’s selling, general and administrative expense increased $2.5 million to
$3.6 million in the year ended December 31, 2005 from $1.1 million in the year ended December 31, 2004,
We received FDA clearance for use of our VeriMed system for paticnt identification and health information
purposes in October 2004. Prior to that time, we had undertaken only a limited degree of sales and
marketing cfforts to create a market for our VeriMed system. Subsequent to receiving FDA clearance, in
2003, we increased our sales and marketing efforts for our VeriMed system, specifically through additions
of sales and marketing employees and consultants, and other associated market development costs.
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Qur corporate segment’s selling, general and administrative expense increased $2.0 million to
$2.8 million in the year ended December 31, 2005 from $0.8 million in the year ended December 31, 2004.
The increase was primarily a result of the addition of staff due to the acquisition of our Canadian-based
businesses in 2005 and the build out of our corporate infrastructure including accounting, legal, insurance
and other costs.

Research and Development

Research and development expense was approximately $2.0 million in the year ended
December 31, 2005. We did not incur any research and development expense during the year ended
December 31, 2004, As a percentage of revenue, research and development expense was 12.3% for the year
ended December 31, 2005.

During the year ended December 31, 2005, research and development expense was
approximately $1.3 million for our healthcare security segment and approximately $0.6 million for our
industrial segment. Our research and development expense related primarily to salaries and other employee
expenses incurred in the development of our asset/staff location and identification system and the
development of our common healthcare security technology platform.

Interest Expense

Interest expense was $0.3 million and $0.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2005 and
2004, respectively. The interest expense was due to our level of outstanding borrowings owed to Applied
Digital. The interest rate used to compute such interest was based upon the prevailing prime rate as
published by The Wall Street Journal in effect during the applicable periods.

Income Taxes

We had an effective income tax expense rate of 1.1% for the year ended December 31, 2005
related to our Canadian operations. We incurred a consolidated loss before taxes for the years ended
December 31, 2005 and 2004. We have not recorded a tax benefit for the resulting U.S. net operating loss
carryforwards, as we have determined that a valuation allowance against our net U.S, deferred tax assets
was appropniate based primarily on our historical operating results.

EXI Wireless Inc.

Three Months Ended March 31, 2005 Compared to Three Months Ended March 31, 2004 (unaudited)
Revenue

Revenue for the three-month period ended March 31, 2005 increased $0.5 million, to 32.0
million, from $1.5 million for the three-month period ended March 31, 2004,

The healthcare security segment’s revenue was $1.7 million for the three-month period ended
March 31, 2005, compared to $1.4 million for the three-month period ended March 31, 2004. The increase
was due to increased sales of EXI Wireless’ asset location, infant protection and wander prevention
products to new and existing customers.

The industrial segment’s revenue was $0.3 million for the three-month period ended March 31,
2005, compared to $0.1 million for the three-month period ended March 31, 2004. The increase was due to
increased sales of asset management systems.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit for the three-month period ended March 31, 2005 was $1.4 million, an increase of
$0.3 million from $1.1 million for the three-month period ended March 31, 2004. As a percentage of
revenue, the gross profit margin decreased slightly to 71.1% for the three-month period ended March 31,
2005 from 72.3% for the three-month period ended March 31, 2004. The decrease in percentage was due to
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differences in the product mix with less of the revenue generated by higher margin software sales in 2005
than the same period in 2004,

Selling, General and Administrative Expense

Selling, general and administrative expense for the three-month period ended March 31, 2005
was $1.4 million, an increase of $0.6 million, or 69:4%, from $0.8 million for the three-month period ended
March 31, 2004, Selling, general and administrative expense, as a percentage of revenue, increased to
68.3% in the three-month period ended March 31, 2005, compared to 52.2% in the three-month period
ended March 31, 2004. The increase was due to increased sales and marketing initiatives related to EXI
Wireless’ asset/staff location and identification systems. -

Included in EXI Wireless’ selling, general and administrative expense for the three-month period
ended March 31, 2005 was $0.1 million of depreciation and amortization expense, compared to $0.1
miflion for the three-month period ended March 31, 2004, Such amounts are based on EXI Wireless’
historical cost basis and do not reflect the amount of our depreciation and amortization expense following
our acquisition of EX1 Wireless as a resuit of purchase accounting treatment for its amortizable and
depreciable assets,

Research and Development

Research and development expense was approximately $0.3 million in the three-month period
ended March 31, 2005, compared to $0.2 million the three-month period ended March 31, 2004. Research -
and development expenditures primarily consisted of salaries for.technical personnel, cost of related
engineering materials, information technology infrastructure support, and subcontracted costs. As a
percentage of revenue, research and development expense was 13.2% for the three-month period ended
March 31, 2005 compared to 14.6% for the three-month period ended March 31, 2004. The increase for the
period was primarily due to salaries and other employee expenses related to the development of EXI
Wireless” asset/staff location and identification systems

fncome Taxes

Income tax recovery was $0 for the three months ended March 31, 2005 and 2004. EXI Wireless
utilized $0.1 million of investment tax credits during the three-month period ended March 31, 2005
compared to $0 during the three-month period-ended March 31, 2004 to reduce its current taxes payabie.
After utilizing the credits, EX]I Wireless continued to have federal and provincial investment tax credits
totaling $1.1 million at March 31, 2005 that may be applied to taxes payable in the future.

Instantel Inc.
January 1, 2005 to June 9, 2005 Compared to January 1, 2004 10 June 9, 2004 (unoudited)
Revenue

Revenue for the period ended June 9, 2005 increased $1.3 million to $6.8 million from $5.5
million for the period ended June 9, 2004. The increase was primarily a result of increased revenues
derived from the sale of Instantel’s infant protection systems. During the period ended June 9, 2005
Instantel introduced new products into the market that helped increase revenues.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit for the period ended June 9, 2005 was $3.5 million, an increase of $0.3 million,
from $3.2 million for the period ended June 9, 2004. As a percentage of revenue, gross profit margin
decreased to 52.3% for the period ended June 9;2005 from 58.2% for the period ended June 9, 2004. The
decrease in gross profit margin was due to a $0.2 million bonus paid out as a result of our acquisition of
Instantel on June 10, 2005. The decrease in the gross margin percentage was also due to differences in the
product mix, with less high margin software sales in 2005 compared to 2004.
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Selling, Marketing, General and Adminisirative Expense

~ Selling, marketing, general and administrative expense increased $1.3 million, to $4.2 million in
the period ended June 9, 2005 as compared to $2.9 million in the period ended June 9, 2004. Selling,
marketing, general and administrative expense, as a percentage of revenue, increased to 62.2% in 2003,
compared to 51.8% in 2004. The increase was primarily due to a $0.7 million bonus paid out as a result of
our acquisition of Instantel on June 10, 2005. The remaining increase was due to increased sales and
marketing initiatives related to Instantel’s infant protection and wander prevention systems, and vibration
monitoring instruments. :

Included in selling, marketing, general and administrative expense for the periods ended June 9,
2005 and 2004 was approximately $1.5 million of depreciation and amortization expense. Such amounts
are based on Instantel’s historical cost basis and do not reflect the amount of our depreciation and
amortization expense following our acquisition of Instantel as a result of purchase accounting treatment for
Instantel’s amortizable and depreciable assets.

Research and Development

Research and development expenses were approximately $1.0 million in the period ended
June 9, 2005, compared to $0.7 million in the period ended June 9, 2004. Research and development
expenditures primarily consisted of salaries for technical personnel, cost of related engineering materials,
information technology infrastructure support, and subcontracted costs. As a percentage of revenue,
research and development expense was 15.4% for the period ended June 9, 2005 compared to 12.2% for the
period ended June 9, 2004. The increase for the period was primarily due to a $0.3 million bonus paid out
as a result of our acquisition of Instantel on June 10, 2005, '

Interest expense

Interest expense was $0.4 million in each of the periods ended June 9, 2005 and 2004. The
interest expense was due to Instantel’s level of debt outstanding.

fncome Taxes

Income tax recoverv was $1.2 million in the period ended June 9, 2005, compared to a recovery
of $0.4 million in the period ended June 9, 2004. The increase in the income tax recovery was primarily
due to reversal of temporary differences related to intangible assets as the amortization for accounting
purposes was higher than the tax basis resulting in a reduction of the deferred income tax liability.

Liquidity and Capital Resources -

As of December 31, 2006, cash totaled $1.0 million compared to cash of approximately $1.4
million at December 31, 2005.

i Cash Flows Used in Operating Activities

| Net cash used in operating activities totaled $2.2 miilion, $2.3 million and $1.6 million during
! the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. For each of the periods presented, cash
was used primarily to fund operating losses, accounts receivable and for purchases of inventory, partially
| offset by an increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses.

Since our acquisitions of our Canadian-based businesses in the first half of 2005, we have
generated operating cash flows from such operations that have partially funded our efforts to create a
market for our VeriMed system. We expect to continue to generate significant net cash operating outflows
for the foreseeable future in our VeriMed business as a result of our continuing investment in marketing
and sales efforts related to our VeriMed business. We expect that these net cash operating outflows will
continue to be funded through cash flows generated by our Canadian-based operations, as well as from the
net proceeds of our initial public offering. As a result, we expect that our consolidated statements of cash
. flows will reflect significant cash flows used in operating activities for at least the next 12-24 months.
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The components of our VeriMed system (i.e., scanners, insertion kits and the implantable
microchips) are purchased as finished goods under the terms of our agreement with Digital Angel. The
agreement imposes minimum purchase requirements as follows: $0 in 2006; $875,000 in 2007; $1,750,000
in 2008; $2,500,000 in 2009; $3.750,000 in 2010; and $3,750,000 in each year thereafter, subject to the
parties reaching agreement on a different amount. Under the terms of the agreement, Digital Angel may not
supply human implantable microchips to other parties if we meet the minimum purchase requirements. If
sales of the implantable microchip do not materialize or do not reach the level of the applicable minimum
purchase requirement in any year, we intend to satisfy the minimum purchase requirements nonetheless. In
such event, our inventory of implantable microchips will increase. We believe that we will have sufficient
liquidity to meet the minimum purchase requirements under the agreement for the next few years,

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Tnvesting activities (used) provided cash of $(2.9) million, $1.4 million and $(32,000) during the
years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. In the year ended December 31, 2006, $0.8
million was used to purchase equipment. In the year ended December 31, 2005, $0.4 million was used to
purchase equipment. In the year ended December 31, 2003, net cash acquired in business acquisitions
contributed by Applied Digital was $1.8 million, During the year ended December 31, 2004, $0.4 million
was used to purchase equipment. Tn October 2006, the Company paid the second installment of the
purchase price for the acquisition of Instantel of $2.1 million.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Financing activities provided cash of $2.5 million, $2.2 million and $1.4 million during the years
ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. In the year ended December 31, 2006, cash of $0.8
million was provided from net borrowings under our credit agreement with the Royal Bank of Canada and
cash of $6.8 million was provided by borrowings from Applied Digital. In each of the other periods
presented, cash was provided primarily by borrowings from Applied Digital. In the year ended December
31, 2006, cash of $2.9 million was used to pay professional fees related to our initial public offering.

Applied Digital contributed to us the shares of EXI Wireless that it acquired in exchange for
approximately 1.1 million shares of our common stock. It also funded the initial purchase price of our
acquisition of Instantel in the amount of $22.3 million which was treated as a capital contribution to us
under generally accepted accounting principles.

Credit Facilities

Prior to the date of our initial public offering, which was consummated on February 14, 2007,
we financed a significant portion of our operations and investing activities primarily through funds
provided by Applied Digital. As of December 31, 2006, we were indebted to Applied Digital in the amount
of $13.6 million, including $0.8 million of accrued interest. Through October 5, 2006, our loan with
Applied Digital bore interest at the prevailing prime rate of interest as published by The Wall Street
Journal, which as of September 30, 2006 was 8.25% per annum. On October 6, 2006, we entered into an
amendment to the loan agreement which increased the principal amount available thereunder to $13.0
million and we borrowed an additional $2.0 miilion under the agreement to make the second purchase price
payment with respect to our acquisition of Instantel. In connection with that amendment, the interest rate
was also changed to a fixed rate of 12% per annum. Previously, our indebtedness to Applied Digital bore
interest at the prevailing prime rate of interest as published from time to time by The Wall Street Journal.
That amendment further provided that the loan matured on July 1, 2008, but could be extended at the
option of Applied D1g1tal through December 27, 2010.

On January 19, 2007, February 8, 2007 and February 13, 2007, we entered into further
amendments to the loan documents which increased the maximum principal amount of indebtedness that
we may incur to $14.5 million. A portion of this increase was used to cover approximately $0.7 million of
intercompany advances made to us by Applied Digital during the first week of January 2007. Upon the
consummation of our initial public offering in February 2007, the loan ceased to be a revolving line of
credit, and we have no ability to incur additional indebtedness under the loan documents. The interest
continues to accrue on the outstanding indebtedness at a rate of 12% per annum. On February 14, 2007, the
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closing date of our initial public offering, we were indebted to Applied Digital in the amount of $15.1
million, including $1.0 million of accrued interest and, in accordance with the terms of the loan agreement
as most recently amended on February 13, 2007, we used $3.5 million of the net proceeds of our initial
public offering to repay a portion of our indebtedness to Applied Digital upon consummation of our initial
public offering. We are not obligated to repay an additional amount of our indebtedness until January 1,
2008. Effective with the payment of the $3.5 million, all interest which accrues on the loan as of the last
day of each month, commencing with February 2007, shall be added to the principal amount, Commencing
January 1, 2008 through January 1, 2010, we are obligated to repay $300,000 on the first day of each
month. A ﬁnal balloon payment equal to the outstanding principal amount then due under the loan plus all
accrued and unpaid interest will be due and payable on February 1, 2010. We amended the repayment
terms of the loan to allow us to retain a greater portion of the net proceeds of our initial public offering for
use in our business, thereby improving our liquidity for at least the next 12 to 18 months,

Our subsidiary, VHI, has entered into a credit facility dated March 15, 2006 with the Royal Bank
of Canada, or RBC, providing for up to CDN§$1.5 million, or approximately $1.3 million based on the
exchange rate as of December 31, 2006, of revolving credit loans, provided that outstanding borrowings
under the facility may not exceed at any time an amount determined by reference to eligible accounts
receivable plus eligible inventory, in each case as defined in the agreement, of VHI, or CDN$3.8 million at
December 31, 2006. At December 31, 2006, $0.9 million was outstanding under the facility. The facility is
not a committed facility as it provides that loans are made available to VHI at the sole discretion of RBC
and that RBC may cancel or restrict the availability or any unutilized portion thereof at any time or from
time to time. Borrowings may be made in either Canadian or U.S. dollars, are repayable on demand, as a
result of which outstanding borrowings under the facility are reflected as current liabilities in our
consolidated financial statements, and bear interest at a floating rate per annum equal to the Canadian or
U.S. dollar prime rate, as applicable, announced by RBC from time to time, plus in each case 1%. The
facility also provides for letters of credit and letters of guarantee denominated in Canadian dollars.
Boirrowings, letters of credit and letters of guarantee under the facility are secured by all of the assets of
VHI and its subsidiary, and is guaranteed by VHI's subsidiary in the amount of CDN$2.0 miilion. The loan
agreements contain customary representations and warranties and events of default for loan arrangements
of this type. In addition, the loan agreements contain customary covenants restricting VHI’s ability to,
among other things, merge or enter into business combinations, create liens, or sell or otherwise transfer
assets. The foregoing is a summary of the material terms of the credit facility and related agreements, and is
qualified in its entirety by reference to the terms and provisions of those agreements.

In order to support the expected growth in our working capital requirements as our business
expands, we will seek to obtain a larger, committed bank credit facility. However, no assurance can be
given that we will be successful in this regard.

Financial Condition

As bf December 3 l; 2006, we had working capital of approximately $0.8 fnillibn and an
accumulated deficit of $17.0 million. .

After giving effect to the repayment of borrowings under our loan agreement with Applied
Digital from the proceeds of our initial public offering, we believe that with the remaining net proceeds our
initial public offering, together with the cash we have on hand, our expected borrowing capacity under
current and new bank facilities and operating cash flows we expect to generate, we will have sufficient
funds available to cover our cash requirements, including capital expenditures, debt service requirements
and the minimum purchase obligations under our supply agreement with Digital Angel, through at least the
end of 2008. However, a decrease in operating cash flows from our healthcare security and industrial
businesses, or our inability to enter into a larger, committed bank credit facility, or failure to control or, as
necessary, reduce costs related to our continuing investment in our VeriMed business, would have a
material adverse effect on our planned business operations, financial condition, results of operations and

liquidity.
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* Contractual Obligations : T . .

The following table summarizes our significant contractual obligations as of December 31, 2006

and the effect such obligations are expected to have on our hquldlty and cash flows in future periods:

]

Total 2007 2008- 2009 2010- 2011 After 2011
Contractual Obligations
Amount due Applied Digital® '$13,635  $3,500  $7,2000  $2935 ' $--
Other debt® R N 1 D - .
Employment related contract | 2,406 420 - 970 1,016 o
Operating lease obligations 1789 621 ¢ 1,168 . o
Purchase cominitments™ * sqg01 1560 5875 9288  37.869

" ©§73,284 © $6,963  $15213  $13,239  §37,869

0

)

(3)

* The approximately $13.6 million reflected in the table represents the amount owed to Applied

Digital as of December 31, 2006, including accrued interest. Since that date, the total principal
amount available under the loan agreement was increased to $14.5 million, and we borrowed
additional amounts to fund our operations through the consummation of our initial public

+ offering, which occurred on February 14, 2007. On that date, approximately $15.1' million.-was

outstanding under the loan, including accrued interest. Under the térms of the loan agreement,
as most recently amended on February:13, 2007, wé paid $3.5 million of our indebtedness to
Applied Digital upon consummation of our initial public offering, which amount is reflected in
the table under the 2007 column. We are not required to maké any additional payments of our
indebtedness in 2007 and interest on the outstanding principal amount of the loan will continue

- to accrue at the rate of 12% per annum. Commencing on Januiry 1, 2008 through January 1;

2010, we must repay $300,000 on the first day of éach month. - On February 1, 2010, a balloon -
payment equat to the outstanding principal amount then due under the loan plus alt accrued and
unpaid interest is due. Accordingly, the amount to be due during the 2008-2009 period, will be
approximately $7.2 million and the amount to be due during the 2010-2011 period; including the

‘balloon payment, will be approximately $4.4 million. For a description of the matena] terms of

the loan agreement with Applied Digital, see “Credit Facilities™ above.

. Represents borrowings under our revolving credit facility with Royal Bank of Canada Such
borrowings are repayable on demand and are thus reflected as a current liability in the above

table and in our consolidated financial statements. The table assumes the accrual of interest
through December 31, 2006. For a description of the terms of the loan agreement with Royal
Bank of Canada, see “Credit Facilities” above.

Includes the minimum purchase requirements for our implantable microchips under our supply
agreement with Digital Angel and for cur custom straps under our'supply agreement with
Emerson & Cuming Microwave Products. Our exclusivity rights under the supply agreement

“with Digital Angel can be terminated if we do not purchase the prescribed minimum quantities. -
- Under the agreement with Digital Angel, if during any year we purchase-in excess of the

minimum purchase requirement for that year, the excess will be credited against the minimum
purchase requirement for the following year or years. The agreement with Digital Angel ends in

2013, subject to earlier termination in the event of either party’s'default or bankrupicy, except

that, so long as we meet the minimum purchase obligations under the agreement, the term is
automatically renewed on an annual basis until the expiration of the last patents covering any of
the supplied products (Gurrently in 2021), Accordingly, the amount shown ini the After 2011
column includes the annual purchase commitment of $3,750,000 through 2021. See “Item 1.
Business — Manufacturing; Supply Arrangemems : '

Impact of Recently Issued Accountmg Standards

o

In June 2006, the FASB issued lnterpretatmn No 48, Accountlng for Uncertamty n Income

Taxes — an interpretation of FAS No. 109, or FIN 48, which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in
income taxes.  Previously, the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes is subject to significant and
varied interpretations that had resulted in diverse and inconsistent accounting practices and measurements.
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Addressing such diversity, FIN 48 prescribes a consistent recognition threshold and measurement attribute,
as well as clear criteria for subsequently recognizing, derecognizing and measuring changes in such tax
positions for financial statement purposes. FIN 48 also requires expanded disclosure with respect to the
uncertainty in income taxes. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after Deceniber 15, 2006.- We
have not yet determined the impact of FIN 48 on consolidated financial position, results of operations, cash
flows or financial statement disclosures.

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standard 157 — Fair
Value Measurements, or FAS 157. FAS 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair
value in generally accepted accounting principles, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements.
FAS 157 applies under other accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair value measurements,
Accordingly, FAS 157 does not require any new fair value measurements. However, for some entities, the
application of FAS 157 will change current practice. FAS 157 is effective for financial statements issued
for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, and interim periods within those fiscal years. We have
not yet determined the impact of FAS 157 on consolidated financial position, results of operations, cash
flows or financial statement disclosures.

In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin
No. 108, “Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current
Year Financial Statements,” or SAB 108, that requires public companies to utilize a “dual approach” to
assessing the quantitative effects of financial misstatements. This dual approach includes both an income
statement focused assessment and a balance sheet focused assessment. SAB 108 is effective for annual
financial statements covering the first fiscal year ending after November 15, 2006. We do not expect that
SAB 108 will have a material effect on results of operations or financial condition. :

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standard 158 —
Employers® Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans, or FAS 158. FAS 158
amends of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106,.and 132(R), or FAS 158. FAS 158 requires an employer to
recognize the overfunded or underfunded status of a defined benefit postretirement plan (other than a
multiemployer plan) as an asset or liability in its statement of financial position and to recognize changes in
the funded status in the year in which the changes occur through comprehensive income. It also requires an
employer to measure the funded status of a plan as of the date of its,year-end statement of financial
position, with-limited exceptions. Under FAS 158, the requirement to initially recognize the funded status
of a defined benefit postretirement plan-and to provide the required disclosures is effective for us as of the
end of our first fiscal year ending after December 15, 2006. The requirement to measure plan assets and
benefit obligations as of the date of the employer’s fiscal year-end statement of financial position is
effective for us for our first fiscal year ending after December 15, 2008. The adoption of FAS 158 is not
expected to have a material effect on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or, cash
flows, .

In February 2007, FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Ligbilities including an amendment-of FAS 115. This statement provides companies with an
option to report selected financial assets and liabilities at fair value. This statement is effective for fiscal
years beginning after November 15, 2007with early adoption permitted. We are currently assessing the
impact that the adoption of FAS 159 could have on results of operations or financial position, if any.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE IMSCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

. We presently do not use any derivative financial instruments to hedge our exposure.to adverse
fluctuations in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, fluctuations in commeodity prices or other market risks,
nor do we invest in speculative financial instruments. Our-line of credit with the Royal Bank of Canada
bears interest at the Bank of Canada prime rate plus 1%. Our interest income is sensitive to changes in the
general level of U.S, interest rates, particularly since our investments are short-term.

Due to the nature of our short-term investinents, we have concluded that there is no material
market risk exposure and, therefore, no quantitative tabular disclosures are required. Due to the minimal
amounts of foreign currency exchange gains and losses and translation adjustments during the year ended
December 31, 2006, a sensitivity analysis of fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates is not required.

s . . i
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The table below presents the principal amount, including accrued interest, and weighted-average
interest rate for our debt portfolio:

PR ‘ . i . ‘ December 31, 2006

T ' . ' : : : : "« (dollars in thousands)
Loan due Applied Digital ..........coooiiiimiiiiiiieiieceeee e : $13,635
Credit agreement with Royal Bank of Canada ..., $853
Weighted-average interest rate for the year ended Decemmber 31,2006.................... Co : 9.32%

Based upon the average variable rate debt outstanding during 2006 and 2005, a 1% change in our
variable interest rates would have affected our loss before i income taxes by approx1mately $0 1 m1|11on and
$0.1 mrlhon respectlvely ‘

The estimated fair value of our mdebtedness to Applled Digital is not reasonably determmable due to the
related party nature of the instrument.

)

ITEMS. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The consolidated financial statements, including supplementary data and the accompanying
report of independent registered public accounting firm filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K,
are listed in the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedules on page F-
1. . . 4 ‘
ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING
AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

i’ T

None. 7
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls. We evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation
of our "disclosure controls and procedures” as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended (the ,"Exchange Act") as of December 31, 2006. This evaluation (the "disclosure
controls evaluatron") was ‘done under the supervision and with the participation of management, lncludmg
our chief executive officer {("CEO") and chief financial officer ("CFO"). Rules adopted by the SEC require
that in this sectlon of our Annual Report on Form 10-K we present the conclusions of the CEO and CFO
about the effectiveness of our dlsclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2006 based on the
disclosure controls evaluation.

Objective of Controls. Qur disclosure controls and procedures are designed so that information
required to be disclosed in our reports filed under the Exchange Act, such as this Annual Report on Form
10-K,, is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC's rules
and forms. Qur disclosure controls and procedures are also intended to ensure that such information is
accumulated and communicated to our management, including the CEO and CFO, as appropriate to allow
timely decisions regarding requrred disclosure. There are inherent limitations to the effectiveness of any
system of disclosure controls and procedures, including the possibility of human error and the
circumventiof or overrldmg of the controls and procedures. Accordingly, even effective disclosure controls
and procedures can only provrde reasonable assurance of. achieving their control objectives, and
management necessarily is required to use’ 1ts Judgment in evaluatmg the cost-benefit relationship of
possible dlsclosure controls and procedures.

Conclusion. Based upon the disclosure controls evaluation, our CEO and CFO have concluded

that, as of December 31, 2006, our disclosure controls and procedures were effective to provide reasonable
assurance that the foregomg objectives are achieved.
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Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

As described above, we reviewed our internal controls over financial reporting and there were
no changes in our internal control over financial reporting identified in connection with the evaluation
required by paragraph (d) of Rule 13a-15 under the Exchange Act that occurred during the fourth quarter of
our last fiscal year and have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal
control over financial reporting.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

This Annual Report does not include a report of management's assessment regarding internal
control over financial reporting or an attestation report of the Company's registered public accounting firm
due to a transition period established by rules of the SEC for newly public companies. We will have to
include a report of management's assessment regarding internal control over financial reporting, beginning
with our annual report on Form 10-K for our fiscal year ending December 31, 2007. Assuming we do not
become an accelerated filer by the time we file our annual report on Form 10-K for our fiscal year ending
December 31, 2007, our independent registered public accounting firm will not be engaged to attest to
management’s assessment of our internal control over financial reporting until our annual report on Form
10-K for our fiscal year ending December 31, 2008.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION . r

On April 2, 2007, our board of directors approved the 2007 VeriChip Corporation Executive
Management Incentive Plan. The plan is designed to recognize and reward the contributions of
management that result in the achievement of goals and objectives. The persons eligible to participate are
Scott R. Silverman, Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and Acting President, William J.
Caragol, Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, and Michael Feder, Senior Vice President of
Implantable Operations and Strategic Initiatives (collectively, the “Participants”). Under the plan, each
Participant earns points for meeting or exceeding enumerated goals, such as revenue, total cash, common
stock price, strategic partnerships and distribution agreements and analyst coverage for common stock.
Under the plan, Messrs. Silverman, Caragol and Feder may eamn up to $1,550,000, $875,000 and $525,000,
respectively. The 2007 VeriChip Corporation Executive Management Incentive Plan is filed as an exhibit
to this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

PART III
The information required in Item 10 (Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance),
Item 11 (Executive Compensation), Item 12 (Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and
Managers and Equity Compensation Plan Information), Item 13 (Certain Relationships and Related
Transactions, and Director Independence), and Item 14 (Principal Accountant Fees and Services) is
incorporated by reference to the Company’s definitive proxy statement for the 2007 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
PART 1V
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
The following documents are filed as a part of this Annual Report on Form' 10-K:
{a)(1) List of Financial Statements Filed as Part of this Annual Report on Fom3 10-K:
A list of the consolidated financial statements, notes to consolidated financial statements,
and accompanying report of independent registered public accounting firm appears on

page F-1 of the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements and Financial Statement
Schedules, which is filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

(2)(2) Financial Statement Schedules:
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Schedule II — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts, for each of the fiscal years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, which appears on page F-37, is filed as part of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

All other schedules are omitted because they are not applicable, the amounts are not
significant, or the required information is shown in our consolidated financial statements
or the notes thereto.

(a)(3) Exhibits:

See the Exhibit Index filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized. ' :

VERICHIP CORPORATION

By: /s/ Scott R. Silverman

Date: April 2, 2007 Scott R. Silverman
Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive
Officer and Acting President

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

/8 /SCOTT R. SILVERMAN Chairman of the Board, Chief April 2, 2007
Executive Officer (Principal
Executive Officer) and Acting

Scott R. Silverman

President
/S /WILLIAM J. CARAGOL Chief Financial Ofticer (Principal April 2, 2007
Financial Officer and Principal
William J. Caragel Accounting Officer)

/S /PAUL C. GREEN* Director April 2, 2007
Paul C. Green

{ S /DANIEL E. PENNI* Director April 2, 2007
Daniel E. Penni

/S /JEFFREY COBB* Director April 2, 2007

Jeffrey Cobb
{ S /CONSTANCE K. WEAVER* Director April 2, 2007

Constance K. Weaver

*By: /s/ William J. Caragol
William J. Caragol

{Attormey-in-Fact)
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Exhibit Index : s

Exhibit

Number Description

2.1 Acquisition Agreement dated as of January 25, 2003 between Applled Digital Solutions,
Inc. and EXI Wireless Inc. ! ‘

22 Amendment to Acquisition Ag'reement dated as of March 11, 2005 between Applied
Digital Solutions, Inc. and EX1 Wireless Systems Inc. ¢"

23 Exchange Agreement dated as of June 9, 2005 between Applied Digital Solutions, Inc.

- and VeriChip Corporation‘ o .

2.4 Waiver and Release between Applied Digital Solutions, Inc. and VeriChip Corporation'”

2.5 Share Purchase Agreement dated as of June 10, 2005 by and among Instantel Inc.,
Instantel Holding Company s.ar.l. Perceptls L.P. VerlChlp Inc., Applied Digital
Solutions, Inc. and VeriChip Corporation!” c

2.6 Letter Agreement dated as of December 21, 2005, by and among VeriChip Corporation,
VeriChip Inc., and Applied Digital Solutions, Inc. "

2.7 ' Registration Rights Agreement dated as of June 10, 2003 between VeriChip Corporation
and Perceptis, Lp.M. ' .

3.1 Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of VeriChip Corporation filed
with the Secretary of State of Delaware on December 18, 2006

32 Amended and Restated By-laws of VeriChip Corporation adopted as of December 12,
2005

4.1 Warrant Agreement dated as of August 21, 2002 between VeriChip Corporatlon and IBM
Credit Corporauon“) ‘ '

4.3 Form of Specimen Common Stock Certificate'"

42 "Form of Warrant to Purchase Commion Stock of VeriChip Corporation‘”_

10.1* VeriChip Corporation 2002 Flexible Stock Pian, as amended through December 21, 2006

10.2* VeriChip Corporation 2005 Flexible Stock Plan, as amended thfough December 21, 2006

10.3* Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement

10.4* Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Award Agreement o

10.5 Securities Purchase Agreement dated as of June 9, 2005 between Applied Digital
Solutions, Inc., Satellite Strategic Finance Associates, LLC and Satellite Strategic
Finance Partners, Lid. o -

10.6 Commercial Loan Agreement dated as of December 27, 2005 between VeriChip
Corporation and Applied Digital Solutions, Inc. . .

10.7 Revolving Line of Credit Note Working Capltai of VenChlp Corporatlon dated as of
December 27, 2005" :

10.8 Security Agreement dated as of‘ December 27,2005 between VeriChip Corparation and
Applied Digital Solutions, Inc.¢ : '

10.9 First Amendment to Commercial Loan Agreement dated as of October 6, 2006 between
Applied Digital Solutions, Inc. and VeriChip Corporationt"

10.10 Amended-and Restated Revolving Line of Credit Note dated as of October 6, 2006

10.11

between Applied Digital Solutions, Inc.and VeriChip Corporation’”

First Amendment to Security Agreement dated as of October 6, 2(}(}6 between Applied
Digital Solutions, In¢. and VeriChip Corporation”
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10.12
10.13
10.14
10.15
10.16
10.17
10.18
10.19
1020
10.21
10.22
10.23
10.24%
10.25
10.26
10.27
10.28
10.29
10.30
1031 |

10.32

10.33

10.34

Second Amendment to Commercial Loan Agreement dated as of January 19, 2007
between Applied Digital Solutions, Inc. and VeriChip Corporation'"

Second Amended and Restated Revolving Line of Credit Note dated as of January 19,
2007 between Applied Digital Solutions, Inc. and VeriChip Corporation®"

Second Amendment to Security Agreement dated as of January 19, 2007 between
Applied Digital Solutions, Inc. and VeriChip Corporation'”’

Third Amendment to Commercial Loan Agreement dated as of Fébruary 8, 2007 between

. Applied Digitai Solutions, Inc. and VeriChip Corporation'"

Third Amended and Restated Revolving Line of Credit Note dated as of February 8, 2007

. between Applied Digital Solutions, Inc. and VeriChip Corporation'"

Third Amendment to Security Agreement dated as of February 8, 2007 between Applied

- Digital Solutions, Inc. and VeriChip Corporation'

Fourth Amendment to Commercial Loan Agreement and Security Agreement dated as of
February 13, 2007 between Applied Digital Solutions, Inc. and VeriChip Corporation”

Letter Agreement dated as of Aprll 18, 2005 between Royal Bank of Canada and EXI
Wireless Inc. " .

General Security Agreement dated as of May 26, 2003 between Royal Bank of Canada
and EXI Wireless Systems Inc. n/k/a VeriChip Corporation, a Canadian corporation™

Credit Facility Agreement dated as of March 15, 2006 between VeriChip Holdings Inc.
and Royal Bank of Canada m

General Secunty Agreement dated as of March 27; 2006 between Royal Bank of Canada
and VeriChip Holdings Inc. "

Guarantee and Postponement of Claim dated as of March 27, 2006 between Royal Bank
of Canada and VeriChip Corporation, a Canadian corporation'”

Amended and Restated Supply, License and Development Agreement dated as of
December 27, 2005 between VeriChip Corporatton and Digital Angel Corporation™”

Amended and Restated Transition Services Agreement dated as of December 21, 2006
between VeriChip Corporatlon and Applied Dlgltal Solutlons Inc.

Lease dated as of July 6, 1998 between Kanata Research Park Corporation and Instantel
Inc.’ :

Amendment 1 to Lease dated as of September 30, 1999 between Kanata Research Park
Corporation and Instantel Inc. !

Amendment 2 to Lease dated as of October 5, 1999 between Kanata Research Park
Corporation and Instantel Inc. (”

Amendment 3 to Lease dated as of October 28, 2003 between Kanata Research Park
Corporation and Instantel Inc. " -

Lease dated as of August 16, 2000 between Princeton Developments Ltd., Gratrend
Holdings Ltd. and Software Integration Services Ltd. -

Lease Agreement dated as of December 18, 2000 between Bentall Propetties Lid.,
Westminster Management and EXI Wireless Systems Inc. M

Lease Extension and Amending Agreement dated as of June 1, 2004 between BTC

Properties II Ltd., Westminster Management Corporation and EXI Wireless Systems Inc.
1y .

Strategic Alliance Agl'eement dated as of October 25, 2004 by and among Agility
Healthcare Solutions LLC, Trenstar Inc. and VeriChip Inc. m

Patient Security Systems Capital Equipment Supplier Agreement dated as of April 18,
2005 between Novation, LLC and EX] Wireless Systems, Inc. )
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10.35*
10.36*
10.37*
10.38*
10.39*
10.40*
10.41*
10.42%

10.43*
10.44*
10.45*
10.46

10.47
10.48*
10.49*
10.50*
10.51
10.52*
10.53
10.54
10.55*

10.56*
21.1 -
231
23.2
24.1

Letter Agreement dated as of August 11, 2005 between VenChlp Corperation and Daniel
A. Gunther™

Amendment to Letter Agreement dated as of March 2, 2007 between VeriChip

Corporation and Daniel A. Gunther™

Executive Agreement dated as of February 1, 2000 between EXI Wireless Inc. and Malik
Tatib™"

Executive Agreement Addendum dated as of April 1, 2005 between VeriChip Inc. and
Malik Tatib'"

Executive Agreement dated as of December 17, 2001 between EXI Wireless Inc. and
Nurez Khimijit"

Amendment to Executlve Apreement dated as of April 29, 2004 between VeriChip Inc.
and Nurez Khimjit"

Executive Agreement Addendum dated as of April 1, 2005 between VeriChip Inc, and
Nurez Khimji‘"

VeriChip Authorized Dealer Agreement dated as of January 4, 2006, by and between
VeriChip Corporation and Ingersoll Rand Security Technologies'"

2006 Incentive Compensation Plan for Nurez Khimji dated as of April 20, 2006"
2006 Incentive Compensation Plan for Daniel A. Gunther dated as of April 14, 2006
2006 Incentive Compensation Plan for Kevin McLaughlin dated as of April 20, 2006"!

Amendment to Lease dated as of May 19, 2006 between Kanata Research Park
Corporation and VeriChip Corporation'"

Trademark Assignment Agreement dated as of December 21, 2006 between Applied
Digital Solutions, Inc. and VeriChip Corporation”

Letter Agreement dated as of August 2, 2006 between VeriChip Corporation and William
J. Caragol®

2007 Senior Management Incentive Plan for Daniel A. Gunther dated as of March 2,
2007

Revised 2006 Incentive Compensation Plan for Daniel A. Gunther dated October 27,
2006

2006 Tax Allocation Agreement dated as of December 21, 2006 between VeriChip
Corporation, Applied Digital Solutions, Inc. and the Consolidated Group

Employment and Non-Compete Agreement dated as of December 5, 2006 between Scott
R. Silverman and VeriChip Corporation’"

BI Patent Llcense Agreement dated as of March 6, 2000 between B! Incorporated and
Instantel Inc. ¢

Amendment No. | to BI Patent License Agreement dated as of March 6, 2000 between BI
Incorporated and Instantel Inc.

VeriChip Corporation Executive Management Change in Control Plan dated March 2,
2007

VeriChip Corporation Executive Management Incentive Plan dated April 2, 2007
List of Subsidiaries of VeriChip Corporation

Consent of Fletcher Spaght Inc.

Consent of IDTechEx Ltd.

Power of Attorney
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31.1 Certification by Scott R. Silverman, Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to Exchange Act
Rules 13A-14(a) and 15d-14(a)

31.2 Centification by William J. Caragol, Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to Exchange Act
Rules 13A-14(a) and 15d-14(a)
32.1 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of

the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

M Incorporated by reference to the Registration Statement on Form S-1 previously filed by VeriChip
Corporation (Registration No. 333-130754).

@ ncorporated by reference to the Form 8-K previously filed by VeriChip Corporation on February 15,
2007.

® Incorporated by reference to the Form 8-K previously filed by VeriChip Corporation on March 8, 2007.

* Management contract or compensatory plan.

+ Confidential treatment has been obtained with respect to certain portions of this exhibit. Omitted portions
have been filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission.
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VERICHIP CORPORATION
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Scott R. Silverman_, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of VeriChip Corporation;,

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowiedge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and
have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including
its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this report is being prepared,

b) [reserved]:

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the
period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case

of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s

internal control over financial reporting.

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a} All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: April 2, 2007

/s/ Scott R. Silverman
Scott R. Stlverman
Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and Acting President
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VERICHIP CORPORATION
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, William J. Caragol, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of VeriChip Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and
have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervisiun to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including
its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this report is being prepared;

b) [reserved];

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the
period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case
of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the reglstrant ]
internal control over financial reporting.

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: April 2, 2007

/s William J. Caragol
William J. Caragol
Chief Financial Officer, Vice President, Treasurer and Secretary
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CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION %06 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of VeriChip Corporation (the “Company”} on Form 10-K for the
year ending December 31, 2006 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof
(the “Report™), I, Scott R. Silverman, Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and Acting
President of the Company, and 1, William J. Caragol, Chief Financial Officer, Vice President, Treasurer
and Secretary of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents in all materlal respects, the financial condition
and result of operations of the Company.

/s/ Scott R. Silverman

Scott R. Silverman

Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer and Acting President
Date: April 2, 2007

/s William J. Caragol

William J. Caragol

Chief Financial Officer, Vice President, Treasurer and Secretary
Date: April 2, 2007

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to VeriChip
Corporation and will be retained by VeriChip Corporation and furnished to the Securities and Exchange
Commission or its staff upon request.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders
VeriChip Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of VeriChip Corporation and subsidiaries (the
“Company”’) as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’
equity and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2006. Our audits also included
the financial statement schedule - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts. These conselidated financial statements and
schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements and schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Compary Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements and schedule are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overalt financial
statsment presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements enumerated above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of VeriChip Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the
consolidated results of their operations and their consolidated cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period
ended December 31, 2006, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Also, in our opinion, the financial statement schedule referred to above, when considered in relation to the financial
statzments taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information stated therein.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, effective January 1, 2006, the Company
adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment,” applying
the modified - prospective method.

As more fully described in Note 14, the Company sells, markets and distributes human-implantable passive
radio frequency identification microchips which it obtains from an affiliate. These microchips depend on a key
teckinology for which the Company may have insufficient rights to support its use of or to protect such intellectual

property. -

s/ Eisner LLP
New York, New York
March 14, 2007




" VERICHIP CORPORATION
Consolidated Balance Sheets '
(In thousands, except par value)

. December  December
31, 31,
2006 2005
Assets
Current Assets: < Coe
CaSh oo e RS, SRR ereresrasaeencreas $, 996 § 1,440
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for ; " ' '
doubtful accounts of $146 (2005 = B12) oo e " 4,486 5,264
Inventories, net of allowance .............cccceceeeenn, e s e s 3,698 2,477
Prepaid expenses and other current assets ... 567 263
Deferred tax asset.......c.oceeverieeninieeninioiein s L eberiesbeerae s ansaan et e r e st e sa e s e s et 520 227
Total Current Assets 10,267 9,671
Equipment, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization ..........oooveeecnesd eereereieeiens - 950 890
Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization....... 18,567 19,755
Goodwill ..ot et s e eeeeeeeens e 16,025 16,982
Deferred offering costs.................... et s et s - 5,079 1,140
‘ ' ' § 50888 § 48438
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current Liabilities:
BanK INAeDEANESS. ... .vooeeeececeeeeeecteci e ren s s e seae s s s ara st e s et eessasiaetscisbeiens D 853 % 04
Accounts payable.......oooininin e e 3,671 1,635
Accrued expenses and other current Habilities............oinn e 4,968 6,237
Note payable to PATEnt.......coooiiiiriiminnsrsssniece s st e - 6.881
Total Current LiabilItIES ... ..ccoeiiiuriiiiiieiiceeiressresnsissssansassssseeamseeesesstsssssataessssanasninsnessnsnnsessorne 9,492 14,847
Deferred tax HabilIY ........coooooeveierieicanae e e rsmerastsassssesresssssmsss s et s s at e sa e s 5,415 5,064
Note payable t0 PArenit ..........ovviiiimiiimiin e st sessssssee e s 13,635 -
TOtAl LIDILIEES v v visves et st b s s s s e a s e e cen s e bbb e b s s b s s n e 28,542 19,911
Stockholders” Equity:
Capital stock:
Preferred stock:
Authorized 5,000 shares of $.00! par value; no shares issued
OF OUESEANAINIE . ....c.voeiievicisice et ses b assm s emem e et et s s et as s e e e - -
Common stock:
Authorized 40,000 shares, of $.01 par value; 6,056 and 5,556 shares
issued and outstanding at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.............ee.. 61 55
Additional paid-in CapItal........cccoveerirernr e e 39,371 38,833
Accumulated defiCit ..ottt e e en (17,049) (10,324)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss — foreign currency translation adjustment............ 37 (37)
Total Stockholders’ Equity 22,346 28,527
$ 50838 § 48438

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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PrOUCE TEVRIIUE ..ot ee s e s e s mr e s st e e e s atas s sbeae s rasasaarestissns
Service revenue ........ccccpeeenene J, e ieeestereiee e e e erers eeerresneenra et

Toral Tevenue..........ocove o st s -

COSL OF PTOAUCE ...ttt et sn s sns s et sbesrsn s esenees
05 OF SBIVICES <o iecee vttt sttt e e e e e e e e e eme e e e e e e emae s e e e s e enmaeeres satasatees

Operating expenses:

Selling, general and adminiSIrative .........ocovviiinininiii e
Research and development ...t e
Total OPErating EXPENSES ..........cccviereeeeseeieie sttt e eee e eesees s eaeeseeeereessnses

OPETAENEG L0S5. ..ttt e ettt bbbttt
OLHEEL INCOME vo. ettt s b sens b s s nie s
INEETESE EXDPEIISE ...eocrevirieiciiriee e et e e e sttt ettt saemnesessen e e e e
Tolal OThEr EXPENSE .....ovvereereeeeiistie ettt be st e e ereens
Loss before income tax ProvisSion............ccocveirnvmnnniennseiesesaen s cenerenenes

Provision fOr INCOIME tAXES ..ecvvvervivreerreiiriereereseeses e saesassaeseesareseeetesstesstosnres s
I 08 11 viiiureiiiciiiesiteeieisbeesesanssasansbes e imsaessbasaessat e s s b at e eeat et e eanmeeeeenteee e ameeesnbeaes

Net loss per share attributable to common stockholders — basic and diluted ...

Weighted average number of shares outstanding — basic and diluted

VERICHIP CORPORATION

Consolidated Statements of Operations

(In thousands, except per,share data)

For the Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

$ 25,631 $ 14520 % 247

1,673. 1,349 -
27,304 15,369 247
10,918 5,455, 199
861 940 -
11,779 6,395 199
15,525 0474 48
17,620 12,442 1,930 -

3,786 1,958 -
21,406 14,400 1930
{5.881) (4926) ' _ (1.882)
(57) (63) (15)

868 343 144

811 280 129
(6,692) (5,206) (2,011)

33 56 -

$ (6,725 $(5.262) $(2,011)
- (1) . . -

$ (6,725) $ (5263) 2,011
$ (121 $_(1.00) § (045
5,556 5279 - 4444

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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VERICHIP CORPORATION-
Consolidated Statement of Stockholders’ Equity
(In thousands)

1 For the Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

Accumulated
Additional Other
Common Shares Paid-in Accumulated Comprehensive
Number Amount Capital - Deficit Loss * Total
Balance December 31, 2003 4444 § 44 § 749 $ (305D $ - $"(2,258)
INETL0SS «rovevreeervreoreresseessnea . - - (2,011 - (2,011)
Stock based compensation ..., - - 257 - - 257
Balance December 31, 2004 ..... 4444 § 44 § 1,006 $ (5,062) 5 - $ (4,012)
NeEt 1088 coovvieiicirieiecnercenienen, Co- - - (5,262) - (5,262)
Comprehensive loss -
Foreign currency : . :
translation........ccooeeerennennne - . {371 37} -
Total comprehensive loss...... - - - (5,262) 37 . (5;299)
Issuance of common shares .
to the Parent Company
for the contribution of
VeriChip Holdings Inc.
to the Company ................ I,111 11 13,272 - - 13,283
Contribution of Instantel ) '
Inc. to VeriChip Inc. by ) .
Parent Company (1) ......... - - 22,272 - - 22,272
Issuance of warrants to
INVESLOrS ..vveee e eeeenens - - 1 - - o1
Deemed dividend (value of
warrants issued to
INVESIOIS) e e - - (1) - - (1)
Issuance of options at fair -
value for services .............. - - 2,283 - - 2,283
Balance December 31, 2005 ..... 5,556 3 55 § 38,833 § (10,324) 5 37 $ 28,527
NEt OS5 cevvviviricrirereicnneneines - - - (6,725) - {6,725)
Stock based compensation .... - - 579 - - 579
Adjustment to Instantel :
purchase price ..., - - (35 - - (35)
Issuance of restricted stock 500 6 (6) - - -
Balance December 31, 2006 ... 6,056 $ 61 § 39371 $_(17,049) h (37 $ 22,346

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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VERICHIP CORPORATION
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
{In thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to
net cash used in operating activities

Depreciation and amortiZation.............ccvveceirrcninriiisessssessessiecsssiennns
Stock based compensation ................................................................................
Deferred income taxes.. s

Allowance for doubtful ACCOUIMLS..ooiiiiriinsiise st sssssera s cstsrs s e
Allowance for eXCess INVEMOIY ......ovieiireie e st s
EQUipMent IMPAITIMNENL .,..cc.oveeieetrrerecresaeesasseesessessessessees i sneesaeeseeaseseesesnesses .

Changzes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effects of acquired businesses

Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable.......cooiviicercvcn e,
{Increase) decrease in INVENTOTIES .......veceieeseree et
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses and other current assets.........ccceeevene.
Decrease in income tax payable, net...........oooo
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued expenses

Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue..............iocieecee bbb

For the Years Ended December 31,

Net cash used in OPErating aCtiVItiCs. ... ..o e verererrnrerarereercceemecarmmmmneeneeesessrreenens

Cash flows from investing activities:
Payments for equipment...................c...... UV UOU OO UUOTOROUOTOTITOU
Cash acquired in businesses contributed by Parent ................ocoooeveeocereeiecreena.
Payment of purchase price inStallment ...........c.coooirriiic e
Net cash {used in) provided by investing Activities ..........c.corvvrnniminis i

Cash flows from financing activities: .
Short termm DOITOWINEGS, TIEL ....coieeererrereerereesereteeeeeeaseresesaeseee e resreseeesreseenesseseens
Borrowings from Parent, net of repayments .....,...coooeieii e,
Offering costs .. ceerererenrenerene
Net cash prowded by ﬁnancmg actwlues .................... L O

Net (decrease) increase i CASN.........cocovvviviveveeee vt eesessesessss s sssrsssssssas e
Cash, beginning OF YEAT .......ocooo. oottt bt

Cash, end Of Year ..o e e

Supplementary disclosures of cash flow information is presented in Note 17.

2006 2005 2004
$ (6,725) $(5262) $ (2,011)
2,428 1,383 43
579 2,283 257
(160) n -
134 12 -
69 17 79
150 22 -
644 (877) (33) -
(1,290) (137) 124
(304) 119 1
(61) (86) -
2,258 342 (74)
113 14) (28)
(2,165) (2,269) (1,571)
" (810) (424) (32)
- 1,783 -
(2.058) - .
(2,868) 1,359 (32)
759 94 -
6,754 2,659 1,357
(2,924) (426) -
4,589 2,327 1,357
(444) 1,417 * (246)
_ 1440 23 269
$ 996 § 1440 5§ 23

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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VERICHIP CORPORATION
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(tabulated amounts in thousands of dollars, except per share amounts)

Basis of Presentation

VeriChip Corporation (the “Company™) is a Delaware corporation formed in November 2001. The Company
commenced operations in January 2002. As of December 31, 2006, Applied Digital Solutions, Inc., or Applied Digital
or Parent, owned over 90% of the Company’s stock.

On February 14, 2007, the Company completed an initial public offering of common stock. In connection
with the initial public offering, the Company sold 3,100,000 shares of its common stock at a price of $6.50 per share. As
a result, Applied Digital owned 5,555,556 shares or approximately 60.7% of the Company’s outstanding stock as of
February 14, 2007.

The Company develops markets and sells radio frequency identification, frequently referred to as RFID,
systems used for the identification, location and protection of people and assets in the healthcare market. The Company’s
healthcare security systems utilize external, active RFID tags to locate and protect people and assets, The Company’s
VeriMed system uses the implantable microchip, a human-implantable passive RFID microchip that can be used in
patient identification and security applications. Each implantable microchip contains a unique verification number that is
read when it is scanned by the Company’s scanner. In October 2004, the U.S. Food and Drug Administration, or FDA,
cleared the Company’s VeriMed system for use in medical applications in the United States.

The Company obtains the implantable microchip from Digital Angel Corporation, or Digital Angel, under the
terms of an amended and restated supply agreement. The supply agreement is discussed in Note 16. Digital Angel is a
majority-owned subsidiary of Applied Digital. Digital Angel, in turn, obtains the implantable microchip, a component
of the VeriChip, from a subsidiary of Raytheon Company, under a separate supply agreement. The technology
underlying these systems is covered, in part, by U.S. Patent No. 5,211,129 “Syringe-Implantable Identification
Transponders.” In 1994, Destron/IDI, Inc., a predecessor company to Digital Angel, granted a co-exclusive license
under this patent, other than for certain specified fields of use retained by the predecessor company, to Hughes Aircraft
Company, or Hughes, and its then wholly-owned subsidiary, Hughes Identification Devices, Inc., or HID. The specified
fields of use retained by the predecessor company do not include human identification or security applications. The
rights licensed to Hughes and HID were freely assignable, and the Company does not know which party or parties
currently have these rights or whether these rights have been assigned, conveyed or transferred to any third party. The
Company sources the implantable microchip indirectly from a subsidiary of Raytheon Company, with which Hughes,
then known as HE Holdings, Inc. was merged in 1997. However, the Company has no decumentation that establishes its
right to use the patented technology for human identification or security applications. Through December 31, 2006, no
intellectual property claims against the Company have been asserted. (See Note 14 “Unasserted Claim — Potential
Intellectual Property Conflict” and Note 16 “Related Party Transactions™).

Through December 31, 2005, all research and development efforts related to the implantable microchip were
performed by Digital Angel and its predecessors. Subsequent to that time, research and development efforts related to the
implantable microchip were performed by both the Company and Digital Angel.

Effective March 31, 2005, Applied Digital acquired VeriChip Holdings [nc., formerly eXI Wireless, Inc.,
(“EX1”) and contributed EXI to the Company under the terms of an exchange agreement as more {ully discussed in Note
4. In addition, on June 10, 2005, Instantel Inc., or Instantel, became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company under
the terms of a share purchase agreement as more fully discussed in Note 4. EXI and Instantel offered infant protection,
wander prevention, asset/staff location and identification systems and vibration monitoring systems.

In December 2005, a 2-for-3 reverse stock split was approved. In addition, in December 2003, the Company’s
board of directors proposed and the Company’s stockholder approved the authorization of 5 million shares of blank
check preferred stock and an increase in the authorized shares of the Company’s common stock from 50 million to 70
million. In December 2006, the Company effectuated a 1-for-3 reverse stock split. All share amounts reflected in these
statements have been retroactively adjusted for the reverse stock split for all periods presented. In addition, the
Company amended and restated it certificate of incorporation to decrease the authorized number of shares of its comnmon
stock from 70 million to 40 million shares and to change the par value of its common stock to $0.01 per share.

Certain items in the consolidated financial statements for the 2005 and 2004 periods have been reclassified to
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conform to the current period presentation.
Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation .

The financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, VeriChip
Holdings inc. and VeriChip Corporation, a Canadian corporation (formerly EXI Wireless and Instantel respectively)
from their respective date of acquisition. All significant inter-company transactions and balances have been eliminated
in conselidation.

Use of Estimates v '

The preparation.of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America, or U.S., requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Although these estimates are based on the
knowledge of current events and actions the Company may undertake in the future, they may ultimately differ from
actual results. Included in these estimates are assumptions about allowances for excess inventory, bad debt reserves, lives
of long lived assets, lives of intangible assets, assumptions used in Black-Scholes valuation models, estimates of the fair
value of acquired assets and assumed liabilities, the determination of whether any impairment is to be recognized on
goodwill or intangibles, among others.

Forzign Cﬁrrency

Effective March 31, 2005, Applied Digital contributed EXI to the Company. From Apri! 1, 2005 until June 30,
2003, the subsidiary used its local currency, the Canadian dollar, as is functional currency. Results of operations and
cash flow were translated to U.S. dollars at average exchange rates during the period, and assets and liabilities were
translated at end of period exchange rates. Translation adjustments resulting from this process are included in
accumulated other comprehensive loss in the statement of stockholders’ equity.

On July 1, 20035, the functional currency changed from the local currency to the reporting currency. This was
done as a result of a functional currency determination test that showed that the majority of EXI’s business operations
wersz transacted in the reporting currency. Translation adjustments for the period April 1 to June 30, 2005 were not
removed from equity, and will remain in equity until a sale or substantially complete liquidation of the investment in
EXI. The translated amounts for non-monetary assets at the end of the period became the accountmg basis for those
assets in the period of the change and subsequent penods

Transaction gains and losses that arise from exchange rate fluctuations on transactions denominated in a
curtency other than the functional currency are included in the results of operations as incurred. These amounts are not
material to the consolidated financial statements. -

Inventories

Inventories consist of raw materials, work in process, and finished goods. [nventory is valued at the lower of
cost, determined by the first-in, first-out method, or market. The Company monitors and analyzes inventory for potential
obsolescence and slow-moving items based upon the aging of the inventory and the inventory turns by product.
Inventory items designated as slow moving are reduced to net realizable value. Inventory items designated as obsolete
are written off. The allowance for excess inventory and obsolescence was approximately $0.2 million and $0.1 million
as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Equipment

Equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation computed using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the useful life or life of the lease,
sofiware is depreciated over 2 years, and equipment is depreciated over periods ranging from 3 to 5 years. Repairs and
maintenance, which do not extend the useful life-of the asset, are charged to expense as incurred. Gains and losses on
sales and retirements are reflected in the consolidated statements of operations.
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Advertising Costs

The Company expenses production costs of print advertisements on the first date the advertisements take place.
Advertising expense included in selling, general and administrative expense was approximately $0.6 million, $0.2
million and $0.1 in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The Company follows Statement of Financial Accounting Standards, or FAS, No. 142, Goodwill and Intangible
Assets, or FAS 142. Goodwill represents the excess of purchase price over the fair values assigned to the net assets
acquired in business combinations. FAS 142 requires that goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible assets be tested
for impairment on an annual basis. In assessing the recoverability of goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible assets,
market values and projections regarding estimated future cash flows and other factors are used to determine the fair value
of the respective assets,. If these estimates or related projections change in the future, the Company may be reqmred to
record impairment charges for-these assets. -

FAS 142 requires the Company to compare the fair value of an indefinite-lived intangible asset to its carrying
amount. If the carrying amount of an indefinite-lived intangible asset exceeds its fair value, an impairment loss is
recognized. Fair values for goodwill and other indefinite-lived intangible assets are determined based on discounted cash
flows, market multiples, or appraised values as appropriate.

The Company assesses the fair value of our goodwill annually or earlier if events occur or circumstances
change that would more likely than not reduce the fair value of our goodwill below its carrying value. These events or
circumstances would include a significant change in business climate, including a significant, sustained decline in an
entity’s market value, legal factors, operating performance indicators, competition, sale or disposition of a significant
portion of the busirzss, or other factors, If the Company determines that significant impairment has occurred, it would be
required to write off the impaired portion of goodwill. Impairment charges could have a matenial adverse effect on our -
financial condition and results of operations. '

The Company’s trademarks are indefinite lived-assets, and accordingly are not amortized. The Company tests
its trademarks for impairment or a change from indefinite lived assets to definite lived assets at least once a year in the
fourth quarter, or between testing dates if an impairment condition or event is determined to have occurred.

The Company has other intangible assets consisting of patented and non-patented technologies, customer
relationships and distribution networks. These intangible assets are amortized over their expected economic lives
ranging from 4 to 12.3 years. The lives were determined based upon the expected use of the asset, the estimated average
life of the replacement parts of the reporting units products, the stability of the industry, expected changes in and
replacement value of distribution networks and other factors deemed appropriate.

In accordance with FAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets, the
Company evaluates quarterly whether events or circumstances have occurred that indicate the remaining estimated useful
lives of their definite-lives intangible assets may warrant revision or that the remaining balance of such assets may not be
recoverable. The Company uses an estimate of the related undiscounted cash flows over the remaining life of the asset
in measuring whether the asset is recoverable.” There was no impairment of definite-lived intangible or other long-lived
assets during 2006 and 2005.

Revenue Recognition

The Company follows the revenue recognition guidance in Staff Accounting Bulletin, or SAB, 101 and SAB
104. The Company’s revenue recognition policies by product type are as follows:

Revenue Recognition Policy for Wander Prevention, [nﬁmt Protection, Asset/Staff Location and Identification,
and Vibration Monitoring Systems :

Hardware and software revenue is recognized when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the goods are
shipped and title has transferred, the price is fixed or determinable and collection of the sales proceeds is reasonably
assured. Revenue from the sale of software implementation services and consuliing services is recognized as the services
are performed. Revenue from post-contract support services is recognized over the term of the agreement. When
software arrangements include multiple elements to which contract accounting does not apply, the individual elements
are accounted for separately if vendor specific objective evidence, or VSOE, of fair value exists for the undelivered
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elements. Generally, the residual method is applied in allocating revenue between detivered and undelivered elements. If
VSOE does not exist, the revenue on the completed arrangement is deferred until the earlier of VSOE being established
or all of the undelivered elements are delivered or performed with the following exceptions: if the only undelivered
element is post contract support, the deferred amount is recognized ratably over the post contract support period, and if
the only undelivered element is services that do not require significant production, modification or customization of the
software, the deferred amount is recognized as the services are performed. Maintenance revenue is deferred and
recognized ratably over the terms of the maintenance agreements.

Revenue Recognition Policy for VeriMed and Other Implantable Systems and Services

The Company markets the implantable microchip, insertion kits and scanners under the name VeriMed. The
Company’s distributors are separate legal and economic entities, and the Company does not have any ownership interest -
in any of these entities. Additionally, the Company has hired sales staff to market VeriMed directly to hospitals, and
physicians.

The sale of the VeriMed patient identification system will include the implantable microchip, scanners,
insertion kits and patient registration forms. These items will be sold directly and through distributors with a limited
warganty period. The Company also generally indemnifies its distributors against third party claims of intellectual
property infringement. Following the implantation of a microchip, the patient is given the option of completing a
registration form and subscribing to the VeriMed Patient Registry. It is the Company’s intention to charge an annual fee
for this registration service and subscription to the VeriMed Patient Registry. Currently, the Company does not pay a
database fee to any third party providers.

Product Revenue — Implantable Systems

Revenue from the sale of the implantable microchip kits and scanners are recorded at gross amounts. Until the
amount of returns can be reasonably estimated, the Company does not recognize revenue until after the products are
shipped to customers and title has transferred, provided that a purchase order has been received or a contract has been
executed, the price is fixed or determinable, there are no uncertainties regarding customer acceptance, the period of time
in which the distributor or physician has to return the product has elapsed and collection of the sales proceeds is
reasonably assured. Once the level of returns can be reasonably estimated, revenue (net of expected returns) will be
recognized at the time of shipment and the passage of title, assuming there are no uncertainties regarding customer
acceptance. [f uncertainties regarding customer acceptance exist, revenue will not be recognized until such uncertainties
are resolved. The Company has one distribution arrangement that provides for sales on a consignment basis. The
Company intends to recognize revenue from consignment sales to this distributor after receipt of notification from the
distributor of product sales to the distributor’s customers provided that a purchase order has been received or a contract
has been executed with the distributor, the sales price is fixed or determinable, the period of time the distributor has to
return the product as provided in its distributor agreement has elapsed and collectability is reasonably assured.

Management believes the product sales are multiple deliverables that can be divided into separate units of
accounting under the guidance provided in EITF 00-21 and SOP 97-2. The sale of the scanners, one of the deliverables,
is considered a separate product sate (separate unit of accounting). Software is included in this product. The software is
bundled with the scanner which allows the number on the implantable microchip to be read. This software is not sold
separately, the scanner has no value without it, there are no post contract support agreements or after sale services,
upgrades, customization or training services. Management believes that within this product the scanner and software are
not separate deliverables as defined in EITF 00-21 because as separate units they have no value to the customer on a
stand-alone basis, there is no objective and reliable evidence of fair value of undelivered elements since they are never
delivered independently and the arrangement does not include a general right of return.

Management also believes that SOP 97-2 is not relevant for these same reasons. The implantable microchip and
insertion kits are another deliverable and are accounted for as a separate unit of accounting because they also have value
to customers on a stand-alone basis if the service fee for subscription information maintained by the Company is
objectively determinable. The microchips, which are a component of the insertion kits, are sold separately from the
scanners and have independent usefulness. '

Services Revenue — Implantable Systems

The services for maintaining subscriber information on a database maintained by the Company will be sold as a
stand-alone contract and treated according to the terms of the contractual arrangements then in effect. Revenue from this
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service will generally be recognized over the term of the subscription period or the terms of the contractual arrangements
then in effect.

The above revenue recognition policies notwithstanding, with respect to the sales of products and services sold
in tandem, the revenue recognition policy will follow the ultimate arrangements to be negotiated between independent
third parties or related parties, subject to the aforementioned revenue recognition criteria and determining whether there
is VSOE.

Warranties

The Company provides certain warranties on all of its products. Provisions for future warranty costs are based
on management’s best estimates and are recorded when revenue on product sales is recognized. The warranty periods for
the Company’s implantable microchip products range from 15 to 60 days. The warranty periods for the Company’s other
products range from one to three years. Management determines the warranty provision based on known product
failures, historical experience, and other currently available evidence.

Warranty expense was approximately $0.6 million and $0.2 million during 2006 and 2005. The Company did
not incur warranty expense in 2004. The following is an analysis of the changes in product liability:

Balance, January 1, 2005 ..ottt et e s eae s s enbe e S -
Balances acquiretd ... et r s 251
PrOVISION FOT WATTANEY .ouiiiiii ittt ettt ia et e aa b e e eab e e as b asb e bt emt st et erbesbaemn 187
Costs charged 10 ACCTUAIS......... o e et sr e e e a st (119)
Balance, December 31, 20005 e e e e 319
PTOVISION fOF WaITANEY ..o s sr e e r b e sttt st st et e sa et aba 623
Costs charged 10 2CCTUALS ... oo ettt et e e e et eeaa e s s eamenens 455
Balance, December 31, 2000 ..ottt et sttt e et eeesn e e enntanseaneeneen S 487

Stock-Based Compensation

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) FAS 123
(revised 2004), Share Based Payment, or FAS 123R using the modified prospective transition method. Under this
method, stock-based compensation expense is recognized using the fair-value based method for all awards granted on or
after the date of adoption. Compensation expense for new awards granted after January 1, 2006 is recognized over the
requisite service period based on the grant-date fair value of those options. Prior to adoption, the Company used the
intrinsic value method under Accounting Principles Board (“APB”™) 25, and related interpretations and provided the
disclosure-only provisions of FAS 123. Under the intrinsic value method, no stock-based compensation had been
recognized in our consolidated statement of operations for options granted to the Company’s employees and directors
because the exercise price of such stock options equaled or exceeded the fair market value of the underlying stock on the
dates of grant.

FAS 123R requires forfeitures to be estimated at the time of grant and revised, if necessary, in subsequent
periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates. In our pro forma information required under FAS 123 for the
periods prior to January 1, 2006, the Company accounted for forfeitures as they occurred.

Compensation expense of approximately $0.1 million was recorded as 52,012 options were granted with a
weighted-average fair market value of $5.96 during 2006.

In December 2006, the Company issued 0.5 million shares of restricted common stock to its chairman and chief
executive officer, which will vest on December 31, 2008, The Company determined the value of the stock to be $4.5
miilion based on the estimated value of its common stock of $9.00 per share on the date of grant. The value of the
restricted stock is being amortized as compensation expense over the vesting period. The Company recorded
compensation expense of approximately $0.2 million in 2006 associated with the restricted stock. The 0.5 million
restricted shares have been considered outstanding as the chairman and chief executive officer is entitled to voting rights,
however, they are excluded in calculating the basic loss per share.

Stock-based compensation expense is reflected in the consolidated statement of operations in selling, general
and administrative expense.
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Through December 31, 2605, the Company followed the guidance of Accounting Principles Board, or (APB,)
Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, or APB 25, and Financial Accounting Standards Board
Interpretation No. 44, Accounting for Certain Transactions Involving Stock Compensation—an Interpretation of APB
Opinion No. 25, or FIN 44, in accounting for its stock-based compensation arrangements. Accordingly, prior to January
1, 2006, no compensation cost was recognized for any of the stock options granted to directors and employees when the
exercise price of each option equaled or exceeded the fair value of the underlying common stock as of the grant date for
each stock option. The Company has not granted any options to directors and employees at a price less than estimated
fair value on the date of grant,

Changes in the terms of stock option grants, such as extending the expiration of the option or changes in the
exercise price, generally have had accounting consequence. Accordingly, compensation expense was measured in
accordance with APB 25 and recognized over the vesting period. If the modified grant was fully vested, any additional _.
compensation cost was recognized immediately.

The Company accounts for equity instruments issued to non-employees in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standard, or FAS 123, Accounting for Stock-based Compensation and EITF Issue No. 96-18,
“Accounting for Equity Instruments that are Issued to Other than Employees or Acquiring, or in Conjunction with
Selling, Goods or Services,” which require that the fair value of these instruments be recognized as an expense over the
period in which the related services are rendered. During 2005 and 2004, the Company recorded $2.3 million and $0.3
million of expense, respectively, associated with such options.

On December 12, 2005, the Company’s board of directors approved accelerating the vesting on December 30,
20035 of all of the Company’s outstanding and unvested stock options previously awarded to employees, directors and
consultants and to one employee of Applied Digital and one employee of Digital Angel (to the extent not already vested
on that date), provided, however, that the grantee that acquires any shares pursuant to such an option (the vesting of
which has been accelerated) shall not be permitted to sell such shares until the earlier of: (i) the original vesting date
applicable to such option or {ii) the date on which such grantee’s employment terminates for any reason.

The purpose of accelerating the vesting of the employees’ and directors’ options was to enable the Company
to avoid recognizing in its statement of operations compensation expense associated with the options in future periods.
(In accordance with FAS 123(R) the Company would have been required to record compensation expense associated
with these options beginning January 1, 2006, as more fully discussed below.) As a result of the acceleration, the
Company avoided recognition of up to approximately $0.6 million of compensation expense in its statement of
operations over the course of the original vesting period, substantially all of which was avoided in 2006, Such expense is
included in the Company’s pro forma stock-based compensation footnote disclosure for 2005 presented below. FIN 44
requires the Company to recognize compensation expense under certain circumstances, such as a change in the vesting
schedule when such options are in the money on the date of the change, that would allow an employee to vest in an
option that would have otherwise been forfeited based on the award’s original terms. The Company would be required to
begin to recognize compensation expense over the new expected vesting period based on estimates of the number of
options that employees ultimately will retain that otherwise would have been forfeited, absent the modifications. The
majority of the accelerated options, absent the acceleration, would have been vested during the first half of 2006, with a
smaller percentage vesting over the next 30 months from December 31, 2006. Such estimates of compensation expense
would be based on such factors as historical and expected employee turnover rates and similar statistics. Of the stock
options exercisable for approximately 0.3 million shares that were affected by the acceleration of vesting, substantially
all of the $4.4 million of intrinsic value of the newly vested options was attributable to the Company’s executive officers
and directors. In 2006, as a result of the termination of certain employees whose options were in-the-money at the time
their options were accelerated and would have otherwise forfeited such options, the Company incurred additional equity
basad compensation of approximately $0.4 million.

The Company is unable to estimate the number of options that its emiployees and directors will ultimately retain
that otherwise would have been forfeited, absent the acceleration. Based on the current circumstance, the high
concentration of options awarded to officers and directors and the Company’s historical turnover rates, no compensation
expense tesulting from the new measurement date was recognized by the Company upon accelerating of the vesting on
December 30, 2005. yThe Company will recognize compensation expense in future periods, should a benefit be realized
by the holders of the aforementioned options, which they would not otherwise have been entitled to receive.
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The following table illustrates the effect on net loss and net loss per share attributable to common stockholders
if the Company had applied the fair value recognmon provisions of FAS 123 to stock-based employee compensation for
options granted under its plans:

2005 2004

Net loss attributable to common stockholder:

AS TEPOTTIEA. ...ciilieiiieeiis e erteaareets seaueasseare st saeaeraeses et s ere et et et s et e s et s edaas et s ed et nisne et nEe e e e ebe e ebe b e e ebe e, § (5,263 § (2,011)

Less: Total stock-based employee compensation
expense determined under fair value based

method for all aWArdS. ... ..ot e (L.178) (134)

S0 L0 47 ¢ o1 IO T RUTOR $ (6441 3. (2,145
Basic and diluted loss per share:

AS TEPOTIEA ... coeov i cieiieree ettt et en e e s e s et s e sr e e s e s e sa s rer e sR s b e R e e R e R n s r b nne b s e nsnes $ (1.0 3 (045

PO FOTINGA 11tvviiitiiiiis sttt sttt d st se s e b e e £ £ b bR b e e b e bbbk b e b b aba s e $§ (L22) § (048)

The Company’s computation of expected life was determined based on historical experience of similar awards
giving consideration to the contractual terms of the stock-based awards, vesting schedules and expectations about future
employee behavior. The interest rate was based on the U.S. Treasury Yield curve in effect at the time of grant. The
Company’s computation of expected volatility was based on the historical volatility of Applied Digital’s common stock.
Effective February 9, 2007, the Company’s computation of expected volatility will be based on the historical volatility of
the Company's common stock.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under the asset and liability approach for the financial accounting and
reporting for income taxes. Deferred taxes are recorded based upon the tax impact of items affecting financial reporting
and tax filings in different periods. A valuation allowance is provided against net deferred tax assets where the Company
determines realization is not currently judged to be more likely than not. The Company is part of the consolidated U.S.
federal income tax group with Applied Digital Solutions. Effective February 14, 2007, upon completion of the
Company’s initial public offering, Applied Digital’s ownership was reduced to 60.7% and the Company will be required
to file a separate federal income tax return in 2007. Income taxes are more fully discussed in Note 11.

Basic and Diluted Loss Per Common Share

Basic and diluted net loss per share attributable to common stockholders is computed by dividing the loss by the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted net loss per share attributable to
common stockholders is computed giving effect to all potentially dilutive common shares that were outstanding during
the period. Dilutive common shares consist of incremental shares issuable upon exercise of stock options and warrants to
the extent that the average fair value of the Company’s common stock for each period is greater than the exercise price
of the options and warrants, except where there is a loss attributable to the common stockholder. As of December 31,
2006 and 2003, stock options and warrants exercisable for approximately 2.5 million common shares were outstanding.
In addition, 0.5 million shares of restricted stock were outstanding at December 31, 2006. The 3.0 million stock options,
warrants, and restricted common shares were excluded from the calculation of diluted net loss per share attributable to
common stockholders (even if they were in-the-money) since their inclusion would have been anti-dilutive.

Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an
interpretation of FAS No. 109, or FIN 48, which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes. Previously, the
accounting for uncertainty in income taxes is subject to significant and varied interpretations that had resulted in diverse
and inconsistent accounting practices and measurements. Addressing such diversity, FIN 48 prescribes a consistent
recognition threshold and measurement attribute, as well as clear criteria for subsequently recognizing, derecognizing
and measuring changes in such tax positions for financial statement purposes. FIN 48 also requires expanded disclosure
with respect to the uncertainty in income taxes. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006.
The Company has not yet determined the impact of FIN 48 on consolidated financial position, results of operations, cash
flows or financial statement disclosures.
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In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standard 157 — Fair Value
Measurements, or FAS 157, FAS 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally
accepted accounting principles, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements: FAS 157 applies under other
accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair value measurements. Accordingly, FAS 157 does not require any
new fair value measurements. However, for some entities, the application of FAS 157 will change current practice. FAS
157 1s effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, and interim periods
within those fiscal years. The Company has not yet determined the impact of FAS 157 on consolidated financial
position, results of operations, cash flows or financial statement disclosures. :

In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108,
“Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial
Statements,” or SAB 108, that requires public companies to utilize a “dual approach” to assessing the quantitative effects
of financial misstatements. This dual approach includes both an income statement focused assessment and a balance
sheet focused assessment. SAB 108 is effective for annual financial statements covering the first fiscal year ending after
November 15, 2006. The Company does not expect that SAB 108 will have a material effect on results of operations or
financial condition.

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standard 158 — Employers’
Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans, or FAS 158. FAS 158 amends of FASB
Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R), or FAS 158. FAS 138 requires an employer to recognize the overfunded or
underfunded status of a defined benefit postretirement plan (other than a multiemployer plan) as an asset or liability in its
staternent of financial position and to recognize changes in the funded status in the year in which the changes occur
through comprehensive income. It also requires an employer to measure the funded status of a plan as of the date of its
year-end statement of financial position, with limited exceptions. Under FAS 158, the requirement to initially recognize
the funded status of a defined benefit postretirement plan and to provide the required disciosures is effective for us as of
the end of our first fiscal year ending after December 15, 2006. The requirement to measure plan assets and benefit
obligations as of the date of the employer’s fiscal year-end statement of financial position is effective for us for our first
fiscal year ending after December 15, 2008. The adoption of FAS 158 is not expected to have a material effect on our
consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows,

In February 2007, FASB issued SFAS No. 139, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities including an amendment of FAS 115. This statement provides companies with an option to report selected *
financial assets and liabilities at fair value. This statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15,
2007 with early adoption permitted. The Company is currently assessing the impact that the adoption of FAS 159 could
have on results of operations or financial position, if any. .

Rescarch and Development

Research and development costs are expensed as incurred and consist of development work associated with:the
Company’s existing and potential products. The Company’s research and development expenses relate primarily to
payroll costs for engineering personnel, costs associated with various projects, including testing, developing prototypes
and related expenses.

Deferred Offering Costs
At December 31 , 2006, the Corripany had aperoximately $5.1 million in.deferred- effering costs. These co's‘ts are

associated with the Company’s initial public offering, which was completed on February 14, 2007. As a result, these
costs will be recorded against the offering proceeds in additional paid in capital in the first quarter of 2007.

1

F-15




Inventories
December 31, December

3,
2006 2005
RAW INALETIAIS .eiiiisei it s ceiereeetr s es e ssnesererene ressresatesnressesasesnsasseseseaaseeseensenssesssesnanessnes $ 1,489 $ 726
WOTK TN PIOCESS c.eveeeieieicee ettt et re st s be s et sttt se e s e seese e e s e e se e e sbene et anes 1,255 445
FINIShed OOGS ...t bbb ase st s s et e e nenens 1.119 1,402
3,863 2,573
Allowance fOr EXCESS INMVENMEOTY .....oiveieieeeieeeeeteeeet e et seeseesesteseeseemeeresne st eiessesanssasasaseseenes (165) (96)

3 3,698 32477

Equipment
December 31, December
3,
2006 2005
Leasehold ImprovemMents .. ...ocoe ettt be st ettt e ear e $ 128 $ 15
EQUIPIMENT. ..ot seeest e st e e e e nr st bbbt g s s s st sas s et sas et st s s e ne s aes 1,639 1,186
SOBIWATE ...ttt e bbbttt e et g sae e nae s 227 133
1,994 1,344
Less accumulated depreciation ... i e e (1.044) 444

5 950 S 890

Depreciation and amortization expense amounted to approximately $0.6 million and $0.3 million for the years
ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. During the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company recorded an
equipment impairment charge of $0.2 miilion relating to the closing of operations in Vancouver, British Columbia (see
note 18).

Acquisitions

Acquisition gﬂ)-dtlvl;:—:-::&CI QOther net
Company acquired Date Acquired ” . et assets and
Price intangible T

— liabilities

assets _—

VHL, formerly EXT Wircless 331405 $13.283 $11,541 $ 1,742
Instantel InC. .....ccoeeveveveenane, 6/10/05 $24,737 $25,936 $£(1,199

VeriChip Heldings Inc.

On March 31, 2005, Applied Digital acquired EXI paying CDN$1.60 for each outstanding share of EXI (a total
of 10,265,178 EXI common shares were outstanding on March 31, 2005) payable in shares of Applied Digital’s common
stock based on the daily weighted-average closing price of its common stock quoted for the ten consecutive trading days
that ended three trading days before the closing. The resulting exchange ratic was 3.0295 shares of EXI's common stock
for each share of Applied Digital’s commeon stock. Accordingly, Applied Digital issued 3,388,407 shares of its common
stock valued at approximately $11.7 million to EXI’s shareholders. In addition, all existing EXI options and warrants
outstanding were converted pro rata, based upon the exchange ratio, into options or warrants exercisable into shares of
Applied Digital’ common stock. The value of the options and warrants exchanged was approximatety $0.7 million.
Included in the purchase price was approximately $0.9 million in acquisition costs consisting primarily of a finder’s fee
and legal and accounting related services that were direct costs of the acquisition. The total cost of the acquisition was
approximately $13.3 million.

Effective March 31, 2005, Applied Digital contributed EXI to the Company, under the terms of an exchange
agreement between Applied Digital and the Company dated June 9, 2005, in consideration for approximately 1.1 million
shares of the Company’s common stock.
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EXI, has developed patient wandering, maternity ward infant protection and asset location and identification
systems combining automated identification and real-time location technologies.

. The acquisition of EXI was accounted for under the purchase method of accounting. The excess of purchase
price over the fair value of the assets and liabilities of EXI was recorded as goodwill of approximately $5.0 million. The
intangible assets with a value of approximately $6.5 million are comprised of patents, trademarks, customer relationships
and distribution networks. These intangibles assets are being amortized over periods ranging from 4 to 12.3 years. The
trademarks have indefinite lives. The Company recorded amortization expense of approximately $0.6 million and $0.5
million in 2006 and 2005, respectively, associated with these intangible assets.

Instantel Inc.

On June 10, 2003, the Company’s subsidiary, VHI, entered into a share purchase agreement by and among
Instantel, Instantel Holding Company s.ar.]., Perceptis, L.P., VHI, the Company and Applied Digital to acquire 100% of
the common stock of Instantel. Applied Digital funded the acquisition, with such funding being recorded as a capital
coniribution to the Company. Under the terms of the agreement, Instantel became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the VHI.

The purchase price for Instantel was $24.5 million. The first payment of $22.0 million was paid in cash at the
closing of the transaction. The second payment was required to be made on the earlier of (i) the closing of the
Company’s initial public offering or (ii) September 30, 2006, Prior to September 30, 2006, in accordance with the share
purchase agreement, the Company was notified by Perceptis that it would exercise its right to receive the second
payment of the purchase price in the form of a cash payment of $2.5 million. In 2006, the Company paid Perceptis $2.1
million, which amount reflected a holdback of the amount due to Perceptis resulting from a pending $0.4 million
indemnification claim resulting from certain tax obligations. A final payment may be due upon resolution of this pending
indemnification claim. In addition, the Company incurred approximately $0.3 million in acquisition costs consisting’
primarily of legal and accounting related services that are direct costs of the acquisition.

Instantel, based in Ottawa, Canada, manufactures and sells healthcare security systems for the hospitat and long
term care markets and vibration monitoring for the commercial construction market,

The Instantel acquisition was accounted for under the purchase method of accounting. The excess of purchase
price over the estimated fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed of Instantel was recorded as goodwill of
311.0 million. In addition, the Company has recorded intangible assets of $14.9 miilion comprised of patents,
trademarks, customer relationships and distribution networks. These intangibles assets are being amortized over periods
ranging ffom 8.4 to | 1.8 years. The trademarks have indefinite lives. The Company recorded amortization expense of
approximately $1.2 million and $0.6 million in 2006 and 2005, respectively, associated with these intangibles.

During the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company completed its purchase price atlocations related to
both the EXI and Instantel acquisitions. The finalization of the purchase price allocation resulted in a decrease in
stockholder’s equity of $35,000 from the finalization of certain transaction related costs, resulting in an adjustment to
Applied Digital’s contributions.

In considering the benefits of the EXT and Instantel acquisitions, management recognized the strategic
complement of these businesses’ technologies and customer bases with the Company’s existing RFID implantable
micrachip business. The estimated fair value of the acquired intangible assets of EXI and Instantel were determined on
the basis of customer relationships, patents and other proprietary rights for technologies, contract lives and revenue,
distributor relationships and other factors related to distribution networks, and using discounted cash flow methodology.
Under this method, the Company estimated the cash flows that each of these intangible assets are expected to generate
over the course of their expected economic lives. Actual cash flows may differ significantly from these estimates. The
expected econotnic lives of these intangible assets were determined based upon the expected use of the asset, the ability
to extend or renew patents and other contractual provisions associated with the asset, the estimated average life of the
associated products, the stability of the industry, expected changes in and replacement value of distribution networks,
and other factors deemed appropriate,

In performing the expected life analysis, the Company determined that the acquired trademarks had indefinite
lives, In making this assessment, the Company evaluated whether there were any legal, regulatory, or contractual factors
limiting the useful lives of the acquired trademarks and the Company concluded that these factors did not limit the useful
lives of the acquired trademarks as of the dates of their acquisition. In addition, the Company evaluated and determined
that there were no competitive or economic factors, including technological advances or obsolescence of the related
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products, that limited the useful lives of the acquired trademarks. Given the Company’s market share, the proprictary
nature of the Company’s RFID products, and the current competitive environment, the Company is not aware of any
significant risk that the Company’s technology will be rendered obsolete in the foreseeable future. Therefore, the
Company concluded that based on (i} the current market positions for the acquired products; (ii} the overall expected
growth of the RFID technology in the Company’s market; (iii) the market presence provided by the established
distribution networks of EX1 and Instantel; (iv) the lack of legal, contractual or competitive factors limiting the useful
lives of the acquired trademarks; and (v) the conclusion that the trademarks will have value for the foreseeable future, the
Company had reasonable support to conclude that the acquired EXI and Instantel trademarks had indefinite lives.

The total purchase prices of EXI and Instantel were allocated as follows:

EX1 Instantel

CCUITEIE ASSEES .. vevereseeeiesrensseesotesssessseans it sasseasmeaseeatsrarseneasaensanereeararorbennsaensomsesacanneseessiisssns $ 3,112 $ 5,678
EUIPIMENT o et s e 191 493
Intangibles:

Patented and non-patented proprietary technology ... 3,710 1,720

TEAACINALKS oo veeeeeeeeeereeeeesemssennnaas BTSSP 1,131 3,790

Customer relationships ....... e eeteeetesateinteroneerneeeeeheeebeeaseerheabeeiA e oLt eheeet e e e e b e e i g o et ennenan s 895 3,390

Distribution Network .......coveoimeeireericiineennieoninis SO PPN 816 6,000
GOOAWIIL ..ottt ee s cee et e e erete s te s e e erasse e s e s b e e e s e b san seb bt s R s s ss s ss s ssamsnernsabe s beabes 4,989 ° 11,036
Current Habilities ...c..vvveeeiceeeiieieece et PO EUVSTUPRTOR SRR (1,057) (2,748)
Deferred tax liability.......... OO S RSSO PP (504) (4.622)

$ 13283 3 24737

In determining the purchase prices for EXI and Instantel, the Company considered various factors including:
(i) historical and projected revenue streams and operating cash flows of each company; (ii) their management teams; (ii1)
the potential to expand the market for the Company’s existing human implantable microchip business through their
existing distribution channels; (iv) the complementary nature of each of the Company’s product offerings as an extension
of the offerings of the other company and of the Company’s existing business; (v) similarities in corporate ‘culture; and
(vi} the opportunity for expanded research and development of the combined product offerings and the potential for new
product offerings. Based on the Company’s assessments, it determined that it was appropriate to offer purchase prices for
EXI and Instantel that resulted in the recognition of goodwill. Specifically, the Company’s management believed that
EXI’s business would grow, in large part because of its industry standing and because its asset/staff location and
identification business, infant protection business, and wander prevention business are, in the Company’s view, poised
for growth. The Company’s management believed that the growth would ultimately result in a favorable return on its
investment notwithstanding the amount of the purchase price that included amounts for goodwill. Moreover, the
Company’s management saw EXI’s customer base, sales force, research and development teams and management as
useful in developing its VeriMed system. The same analysis was undertaken with Instantel, giving recognition that
Instantel and EXI were competitors and that future results could be augmented by eliminating that competition, better '
serving customers with the best of both companies and eliminating redundancies. Based on such assessments, the
Company determined that the purchase prices offered were appropriate for the businesses acquired.

The results of EXI and Instantel have been included in the statement of operations from their respective
effective dates of acquisition. Unaudited pro forma results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2005 are
included below. The pro forma information assumes that the above acquisitions had occurred as of January 1, 2003, and
revenue is presented in accordance with the Company’s accounting policies. This summary is not necessarily indicative
of what the Company’s results of operations would have been had EXI and Instante] been owned and operated by the
Company during the period, nor does it purport to represent results of operations for any future periods.

Unaudited Pro
Forma for the Year
Ended December

3,
‘ 2005

Nel reVeNUE . .ovvevvrvreeeieeenaes e TSSO P ROV SN S RS $ 24,554
Net loss attributable to common stockholder — basic and diluted...........ooooiiivninnn. (5,568)
Net toss per share— basic and diluted ..., (0.99)




Intangible Assets

The intormation set for the below about the Company’s acquired intangible assets as of December 31, 2006 is
based upon purchase price allocations related to the acquisitions of Instantel and EXI in 2005. The estimated fair values
of the acquired intangible assets were determined on the basis of customer relationships, patents and other proprietary
rights for technologies, contract lives and revenue, distributor relationships and other factors associated with distribution

-netwarks, and using cash flow methodology. Under this method, the Company estimated the cash flows that each of the
intangible assets are expected to generate over the course of their expected economic lives. Actual cash flows may differ
significantly from these estimates. :

The expected economic lives of these mtanglble assets were determined based upon an analysis of the
expected use of the asset, the Company’s ability to extend or renew patents and other contractual provisions associated
with the asset, the estimated average life of the associated products, the stability of the industry, expected changes in or
the costs the Company is likely to incur in finding alternative distribution networks or channels, and other factors
deemed appropriate. In performing the expected life analysis, the Company determined that its trademarks had indefinite
lives. In making this assessment, the Company evaluated whether there were any legal, regulatory, or contractual factors
limiting the useful lives of the acquired trademarks and it concluded that these factors did not limit the useful lives of the

acquired trademarks as of the dates of their acquisition.

Intangible assets consist of the following:

Weighted -
December 31, December 31, average lives
2006 2005 (in_years)
Trademarks .....oocovvrveeiiiiiinviiiiee e e b 4,921 h) 4,92] Indefinite
Patented and non-patented proprietary technology............ 5,430 5,430 12.11
Customer relationships ..., 4,288 4288 8.75
Distribution networks 6,816 6.176 8.14 .
Accumulated amortization .
Patented and non-patented proprietary technology ............ b 671 b 225
Customer relationships ..........oooovvoeicieeiiiiiieceeeea, 980 415
DHStribution NnetWoOTKS .......oveeieeeeee et eeemeseeeee e e, 1.237 420
$ 2,888 3 1,060
Net intangible asSets ........oovreceeeree e $ 18,567 § 19755

Estimated amortization expense for definite lived assets for the years ending December 31, is as follows:

2007 e e et r et e ene et et e teer e b bt e aeeneee e et eseeteens et eeereet e et et beneenneenanentens $ 1,816
ZOO0B ...ttt et st R bbbt e SRS ee etk e dren et s e eren Rt abesae s e R e ee et er e enentere 1,790
2009 ..t e e aa e b e b e ense s sent e et et A Tet e reb e e betnreanreannsnnesreenAneeteeetsanrennrenn 1,781
2000 e e ettt e e aeee e et er e et e aa et eneeteenteaeeaeeas et entsrtensranesan et earseinrerenneres 1,781
20011 e et te ittt e e eue e e R R SRS s e L b e te e e teeneese ARt eRe e R e et tb e s e ant et e nsetgens st oAt etbeneanentnenens . 1,781
TRETEATIET.......vcrieiee ettt er s st sesb s e se s e s ear st ab e sr et eresasssaneabess e s eresrenbareeiaiares : 4,697

$ 13,646

6. Goodwill

Goodwill consists of the excess of cost over fair value of net tangible and identifiable intangible asscts of
companies purchased. The Company applies the principles of SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations or FAS 141, and
uses the purchase method of accounting for acquisitions of subsidiaries.
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The carrying amount of Company’s goodwill by reporting unit (reporting units are those businesses for which
discrete financial information is available and upon which segment management makes operating decisions) is as
follows:

Healthcare .
Security Industrial Implantable Consolidated
Balance, December 31, 2005 .....ccooivvvivvimveee e $ 13,131 $ 3,851 3 - § 16982
Adjustment to purchase price allocation..........cccveiieieieeceae (789) (168) - (957)
Batance, December 31, 2006 ..........oooeeerememrrorressesrasnceesseancs $ 12,342 $ 3683 & - § 16,025

The Company’s goodwill, which resulted from the acquisitions of EXI and Instantel, is not dedﬁctible for
income tax purposes.

The goodwill allocated to the Company’s Healthcare and Security and Industrial reporting units resulted from
the acquisitions of EXI and Instantel during the first half of 2005. Accordingly, the Company was required to allocate the
acquired goodwill to each of these reporting units. The Company allocated the goodwill based on the relative percentage
of the allocation of the acquired intellectual property.

In the fourth quarters of 2006, and 2005, the Company tested goodwill at each reporting unit level. The
reporting units are those businesses, for which discrete financial information is available and upon which segment
management makes operating decisions, Healthcare and Security and Industrial reporting units did not have goodwill or
intangible assets in as of December 31, 2004. The business operations of the Company’s current reporting units are
described in Note 1.

The Company tests goodwill for impairment during the fourth quarter of every year. If the fair value of a
reporting unit exceeds its carrying value, then no further testing is required. However, if the carrying value of a reporting
unit exceeds its fair value, then an impairment charge would be recorded. The fair value of the Company’s reporting
units, substantially all of the operations of which were acquired during 2005, was based on valuations prepared by
management. Based on these assessments, there was no impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets at December
31, 200s.

Cash flow forecasts, growth rates, gross margin, fixed and variable cost structure, depreciation and amortization
expenses, corporate overhead, tax rates, and capital expenditures, among other data and assumptions related to the
financial projections upon which the valuation were based. The methodology used to determine the residual or terminal
enterprise values included the following factors: current leverage (E/V); leveraged beta - Bloomberg; unieveraged beta;
risk premium; cost of equity; after-tax cost of debt; and weighted average cost of capital.

Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities:
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities consist of the following:

December 31.

2006 2005
Accrued wages and payroll EXPENSES .......coovr i h) 527§ 1,116
ACCTUEH SEVETANICE 1ot iuieteerrreeereeresessestesee s ee st et b s sh s e esE s R s o r e b s s s Ra e b e s e e s b e an e s e bbbt 390 -
Acerued INCentive COMPENSALION ....oc.iiiviiiterieierierrre et e e e e s aees _ 744 -
ACCTUED PUTCRASES ....coeeiee et e 353 -
Accrued professional fEES ......c..ccvviriiiiiiiin s 1,079 798
WAITANLY HABIIEY c.ooooeeee e s 487 319
Other ACCTUEd EXDPENSES .ovvevieieieeieteriee e rre et e e e et e e b e bbb s e s 260 370
Income taxes PAYABIE ......c.oovovviiic e 220 281
DEfEITEA FEVENMEE ..cveieeeeeieie et et crte et rmese et e s sae e s s m et b st bbb 466 353
Deferred purchase price obligation ... 442 3.000

3 4,968 3 6237




Financing Agreements and Liquidity:

VHI, the Company’s wholly owned Canadian subsidiary, is a party to a credit agreement with the Royal Bank
of Canada. The credit facility provides for borrowings up to CDN $1.5 million, or approximately U.S. $1.3 mitlion at
December 31, 2006. Approximately $0.9 million was outstanding under the credit facility as of December 31, 2006.
The annual interest rate on the facility is the Royal Bank of Canada prime rate of interest plus 1%. The borrowing limit
is up 10 85% of eligible accounts receivable and up to 25% of eligible inventory. Under the terms of the agreement, the
Company must comply with certain reporting covenants and requirements. The loan is collateralized by all of the assets
of VHI. At December 31, 2006, VHI had aggregate net assets of approximately $10.1 million.

On October 6, 2006, January 19, 2007, February 8, 2007 and February 13, 2007, the Company amended its loan
agrzement with Applied Digital as more fully described in Note 16,

Stockholders’ Equity
Warrants

On August 21, 2002, the Company issued to IBM Credit LLC a warrant to acquire 410,889 shares of the
Company’s common stock at an exercise price of $0.225 per share, which represented management’s estimate of fair
value at the time of grant. The warrant was issued in connection with an amendment to a credit agreement between
Applied Digital, certain of its subsidiarics and IBM Credit LL.C. The warrant was exercisable on the date of grant and
expires on August 21, 2007. The fair value of the warrant of approximately $44,000 was reflected as a deemed dividend
to Applicd Digital. The fair value of the warrant was determined using the Black-Scholes valuation model and the
following assumptions:

WALTANT THEE 1.ttt s ea e r e s et eg e e b e s e s er e s e s nsesnesnss 5 years
Expected dividend YIeld...........ccoo..oommoreoeeeeoceiveeeseeeeoeeee oot 0.00%
Expected stock Price VOLAUIILY ..o 50%

RISK-TTEE IHETESE TAIE ..ottt e s et at et ne et e 331%

In connection with the acquisition of Instantel, the Company issued warrants to Satellite Strategic Finance
Partners, Ltd. and Satellite Strategic Finance Associates, LLC exercisable into 20,960 and 12,373 shares of the
Company’s common stock, respectively. The warrants are exercisable at an exercise price of $36.00 per share, subject to
certiin anti-dilution provisions, from June 10, 2005 through June 10, 2007. The warrants were valued at approximately
$1,000 using the Black-Scholes valuation model and the value of the warrants has been recorded as a deemed dividend to
Applied Digital.

Stock Option Plans

In April 2002, the Company’s board of directors approved the VeriChip Corporation 2002 Flexible Stock Plan,
or the VeriChip 2002 Plan. Under the VeriChip 2002 Plan, the number of shares for which options, SARs or
performance shares may be granted is approximately 2.0 million. As of December 31, 2006 approximately 1.7 million
options, net of forfeitures, have been granted to directors, officers and employees under the VeriChip 2002 Plan, and all
of the options granted were outstanding as of December 31, 2006. Approximately 1.7 million options are fully vested
and expire up to nine years from the vesting date and 50,000 options vest ratably over three years. As of December 31,
2006, no SARs have been granted under the VeriChip 2002 Plan.

On April 27, 2005, Applied Digilal’s board of directors approved the VeriChip Corporation 2005 Flexible Stock
Plan, or the VeriChip 2005 Plan. Under the VeriChip 2005 Plan, the number of shares for which options, SARs or
pertormance shares may be granted is approximately 0.3 million. As of December 31, 2006, no options have been
granted under the VeriChip 2005 Plan.

Under the Company’s stock option plans, including the VeriChip 2002 Plan, as amended in December 2006,
unless otherwise provided, no holder of an option award may exercise such option award if the Company’s common
stock is not then traded publicly on the bulletin board or on a stock exchange or other such market, except: (i) in
connection with a sale of all or part of the Company’s common stock, or (ii) within two months prior 1o the expiration
date of the option as provided in the stock option award (or as may be extended by the committee that administers such

plan).
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In addition, as of December 31, 2006, options exercisable for approximately 0.4 million shares of the
Company’s common stock have been granted outside of the Company’s plans. These options were granted at exercise
prices ranging from $0.25 to $8.55 per share, are fully vested and are exercisable for a period of up to seven years.

A summary of stock options for 2006, 2005, and 2004 is as follows:

Outstanding on Janvary 1
Granted

Exercised

Forfeited

Qutstanding on December 31

Exercisable on December 31 @

Shares available on December
31 for options that may be
granted

2006 2005
Weighted- Weighted-
Number Average Number Average
of Exercise of Exercise
Options | Price Options Price
2,055 $191 1,826 fo.s54
52 9.38 428 7.11
(8) 2.61 (159) 0.51
2,099 210 2,055 1.92
2,049 191 _ 2,055 1.92
203 243

2004
Weighted-
Number Average
of Exercise
Options Price
1,387 $035 .
674 1.72
(236) 2.82
1,826 0.54
1,351 0.33
152

() The total compensation expense associated with the options granted in 2006 was $0.1 million. The remaining amount
of the compensation expense to be recorded over the remaining vesting period of the options is approximately $0.2

million.

@ The intrinsic value of a stock option is the amount by which the fair value of the underlying stock exceeds the exercise
price of the option. The fair value of the Company’s common stock was estimated to be $6.50 at December 31, 2006
based upon its initial public offering price. As of December 31, 2006 the aggregate intrinsic value of all options

outstanding was $11.3 million.

The following table summarizes information about stock options at December 31, 2006 (in thousands, except

welghted-average amounts):

Range of
Exercise Prices
$0.0000 to $2.0250
$4.0501 to $6.0750
$6.0751 to $8.1000
$8.1001 to $10.1250
$18.2251 to $20.2500

- Qutstanding Stock Options

Exercisable Stock Options

Weighted-
Average Weighted- Weighted-
Remaining Average Average
Contractual Exercise Exercise
Shares Life Price Shares Price

1,622 3.6 $0.55 1,622 $0.55
67 7.2 5.1 67 5.1t
298 6.6 7.04 298 7.04
106 7.0 9.23 56 8.55

6 6.0 20.25 6 20.25
2,099 4.3 $2.10 2,049 3191

The weighted average per share fair values of grants made in 2006, 2005 and 2004 for the Company’s incentive
plans were $5.97, $9.60 and $1.98, respectively.

The Company granted to certain of its employees and directors options to purchase approximately 0.3 million
shares of its common stock during the period January 1, 2005 to August 11, 2005 that were granted at exercise prices
ranging from $6.93 to $8.55 per share and were equal to or greater than the estimated fair value of the underlying
common stock on the date of each grant, as determined by the Company’s management, Options exercisable for
approximately 0.2 million shares were granted with an exercise price of $6.93, which was the estimated fair value of the
Company’s common stock on the date of grant, and options exercisable for approximately 0.1 million shares were
granted at exercise prices greater than the estimated fair value on the dates of grant. The Company’s management
determined these values principally based upon internal valuation estimates as well as arm’s-length transactions
involving the fair value of the businesses it acquired. The assumptions used by management, include:
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¢ The Company’s projected operating performance;
s risk of non-achievement of projected operating performance; : <

s the purchase prices of the two businesses acquired during 2005, including the risk that the acquisitions may
not have been completed at certain interim valuation dates; and

r 1
LI

+ trends and comparable valuations in the broad market for privately-held and publicly-traded technology and
medical device companies. e ; \

Management’s valuation methodology, including terminal and enterprise value, was based on the following
factors: . S .
¢  Unlevered free cash flows for the Company’s implantable mlCI’OChlp business were projected for five years,
which was deemed to be the appropriate valuation period; . .
s  Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization, or EBITDA, was used to estimate terminal
value; :

»  Management considered the relevant multiples for RFID and medical device companies in determining the
appropriate terminal value multiple;

e A discount rate was applied to the net free cash flows and terminal value. The rate was determined based
on the risk free rate of the 10-year U.S. Treasury Bond plus an applicable market risk premium and the
specific risk premium associated with the Company’s facts and circumstances. (The-discount rate utilized
by the Company was the rate of return expected from the market or the rate of retum for a similar
investment with simtlar risks);

» The pﬁrchas.e prices of EXI and Instantel, adjusted for the risk that the acquisitions may not have been
' completed at certain interim valuation dates, were added to the value of the implantable microchip business
to determine enterprise value; and

+ Management computed the fully diluted value of each share of the Company’s common stock in order to
factor in the dilutive effect of reflecting in the money stock options and warrants at each valuation date.

In addition, the'Company granted options exercisable for approximately 0.1 million shares of common stock
during 2005 to consultants and employees of Applied Digital and one employee of Digital Angel. In accordance with .
FAS 123, the Company recorded an expense associated with these options based on an estimate of the fair value on each
date of grant (with the fair value of the Company’s common stock for grants from January 1, 2005 to August 11, 2005
being determined by management as discussed above) and using the Black-Scholes valuation model. The Company was
required to re-measure the compensation expense associated with these options on December 30, 2005, the date of
acceleration of the vesting of these options. (The Company accelerated the vesting of these options as more fully
discussed in Note 1.) This re-measurement was based on the estimated fair value of the Company’s common stock on
December 30, 2005, which was assumed to be the then estimated [PO value, and using the Black-Scholes valuation
model. This re-measurement resulted in compensation expense being recorded in 2005 based upon the fair value of these
stock options on the vesting date. In addition, during 2005 and 2004, the Company granted stock options to employees of
Applied Digital and other non‘-employées who had provided services to the Company. For these options, the Company
recognized compensation expense using the same methodology as was used for the comparable 2005 grants discussed
above. The Company recorded aggregate compensation expense of approximately $2.3 million and $0.3 mllhon durmg
the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectwely, in coninection with these stock optlons

) There are inherent uncertainties in making estimates about forecasts of future operating results and identifying
comparable companies and transactions that may be indicative of the fair value of the Company’s securities. The
Company believes that the estimates of the fair value of its common stock at each option grant date were reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Black-Scholes model, which the Company used to determine compensation expense, required the
Company to make several key judgments including:
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10.

11.

o the estimated value of the Company’s common stock;
* the expected life of issued stock options;
s the expected volatility of the Company’s stock price;

o the expected dividend yield to be realized over the life of the stock option; and

the risk-free interest rate over the expected life of the stock options.

The Company prepared these estimates based upon its historical experience, the stock price volatility of
comparable publicly-traded companies, including Applied Digital, and its best estimation of future conditions.

The weighted average per share fair value of grants made in 2006, 2005 and 2004 for the Company’s stock
options was $5.97, $9.60 and $1.98 respectively. The fair values of the options granted were estimated on the grant date
using the Black-Scholes valuation model based on the following weighted-average assumptions:

006 2005 2004
Expected dividend yield ... — — —
Expected stock price VOIAtilit .....ouever et 60% 50% 69%
Risk-free INETESt TALE ..........ccvivverereerrernresiese e e ecessbsesis st st e snsa s sb et e sn e 4.29% 3.84% 3.88%
Expected term (in YEars) ..ot 50 5.5 5.5

Selling, general and administrative expense:

For the Years Ended
December 31,

2006 2005 2004

Salaries and benefits ... $ 7,631 $ 6,631 $ 866
Depreciation and amortiZation ... 1,982 1,159 48
Legal and aCCOUntinNg.......oooimimieniniiriririsssiessesesee s 956 1,039 373
Sales and Marketing...........cccovovvermnrmrenesrer st ememese st s aranns 2,198 700 194
Trave! and entertailIment ..oo..veveeeeeeeeeeeceeeeee e sis st e e resaeresssasesssins 1,078 743 107
IISUTAIICE v evveeerereessrseseeeneeseeseeeeeseeesssbassabasbeanbesrsssesmesbesmsam et sn s enssessabe et 448 203 97
CONSUINE. ..ottt e eb e b e e 2.802 907 62
Other ..o et erresrr s s e e nieease o 525 1,040 183

S 1760 0§l 51930

(1) Included in salaries and benefits is $0.6 million, $2.3 million and $0.3 million of equity compensation expense,
inclusive of restricted stock, for the years 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, associated with stock options.

Income taxes:

The Company’s income taxes as presented are calculated on a separate tax return basis, although for 2006, 2005
and 2004, the Company’s U.S. operations are included in the consolidated federal income tax return filed by Applied
Digital. The Canadian operations are subject to Canadian taxes. The Company accounts for income taxes under the asset
and liability approach. Deferred taxes are recorded based upon the tax impact of items affecting financial reporting and
tax filings in different periods. A valuation allowance is provided against net deferred tax assets where the Company
determines realization is not currently judged to be more likely than not. .
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The provision for income taxes consists of:

'

For the Years Ended

“ . December 31,

Current: 2006 2005 2004
EINIEA STAIES ...ovevecreeueererereieeveere s eneaesrerereresesssaeessnseresas s sssesearssneraresassssenseses 3 - 3 - A -
CANAAA .o e st e st et 193 127 -
Current income tax provision.......... SO OV OTOTOPOTTURT RN 193 127 - -

Deferred: 2006 2005 2004
UIDIEEA SHATES cvcvveviecicieiciciie sttt b sas e $ - % - 5 -
CaNada ... e e ere s e e s (160) (7 -
Creferred income tax benefit.c....ooovvviviriiririninnriverasesasens eres et ratereaaes {160) (in -

' ' b 3 3 56 b -

VeriChip Corporation (Canada), formerly Instantel and EXI, file income tax returns in Canada. At December
31,2006, the Company considers earnings from its Canadian subsidiaries to be permanently reinvested and, accordingly,
no provision for U.S. federal and state taxes has been made for these earnings. Upon distribution of foreign subsidiary
earnings, the Company may be subject to U.S. income taxes (subject to an adjustment for foreign tax credits) and
withholding taxes payable to Canada. ' '

The tax effects of temporary differences and carryforwards that give rise to significant portions of deferred tax
assets and liabilities consist of the following:

December 31,

Deferred tax assets: .
L1abilities And TESETVES ........cuoiicreicieiriress st issessessssstesssastessssensesasesssstsssssersssarsassenioss B 547 % 194
Stock-based compensatlon 1,557 ' 1,309
Prepaid BXPEMSES. ... ... ittt .................... e .- , 33
Property and equIPMEt............iccuvvieiiieiis e erssrssssarsssss e e e asssnnein 96 14
Research and development tax credit..........coooviviiiiiiciii it 397 1,361
Nzt opier;iting loss carryforwards..........cccocvinerencrennencs e en e eeeaens S 6,486 3.458
Gross deferred tax assets.............ernn. OSSOSO O 9,083 . 6,369
Valuvation allowance (1.930) {4,383)
1,153 1,584
Deferred tax liabilities: ; ‘
Intangible assets......ccccoeeniirieinniensnneees e rerer R 6,044 6,821
Property and €qQUIPMENT ..............oooooeeeeooeeoeeeeeeeeee oo ee s esss et seeseeees s sesmseeeeeeneenen 4 -
" : ' _ ' 6,048 6.821
Net deferred tax liability ....ccooevvivivininieien v et b ettt ettt $ 4895 $ 4837

The deferred tax assets and liabilities are included in the following balance sheet captions:

December 31,

2006 2005
Current deferTed tAX ASSEL.......ovviivierir s iiriaeisaisasieirraressessersesmersesstssssssssasassessarsesseressens $ 520 $ 227
Long-term deferred tax Hability..........ccovoviivriiiniirs e e enes 5415 5,064

5 4895 $ 45837

The deferred tax liability related primarily to taxable temporary differences resulting from allocation of the
purchase price for EXI and Instantel.

F-25




The valuation allowance for U.S. deferred tax assets increased by approximately $3.5 million and $2.5 million
in 2006 and 2005, respectively, due mainly to the generation of net operating losses. The valuation allowance was
provided for U.S. net deferred tax assets that exceeded the level of existing U.S. deferred tax liabilities.

Approximate domestic and international (loss) income before provision for income taxes consists of:

For the Years Ended
. December 31,
DIOMIESHC ...t eee ettt en et et ese s esetsasant et sesens b s s ebesassbasaabassassbachassntassass § (908 § (6621) § (2,01 1)
Internationat................ OO SOOI 1.216 1,413

M&QML@M

The difference between the effective rate reflected in the provision for income taxes on loss before taxes and the amounts
determined by applying the applicable statutory U.S. tax rate are analyzed below:

. ) . % % %
Statutory tax (benefit) rate .........o..ccereererrseeeronen coevernenens e, ' (34) (38 BED)
State income taxes, net of federal benefits . . @ . 4 . (&)
Foreign income tax rate differential...............cooocoooriuorieiiieieiee s - (N .’ o (® ) -
Change in deferred tax asset valuation allowance ...........ccccoerivverni e, 48 ' 48 ' 38 -
- 1 _

t LA I O , i —3

Currently, the Company {exclusive of its Canadian subsidiaries) files a consolidated federal income tax return
with Applied Digital. On February 14, 2007, the Company completed an initial public offering of its common stock,
which reduced Applied Digital’s ownership to less than 80%. Therefore, in 2007, the Company will be required to file a
separate federal income tax return, At December 31, 2006, the Company had U.S. federal net operating loss
carryforwards (“NOLs™) of approximately $15.6 mllllOn for income tax purposes that expire in various amounts through
2026. The NOLs will be allocated in accordance with Treasury Regulation § 1. 1502-21T(b)(2)(iv), at the point that the
Company ceases to be a part of the consolidated tax return of Applied Digital. Based on the 2006 Tax Allocation
Agreement with Applied Digital, the Company will retain the NOLs described above subject to the future limitations as
described above (see Note 16 for a further description of the 2006 Tax Allocation Agreement). .

Based on the change of owncrshlp rules under IRC Section 382, if in the future the Company issues common
stock or additional equlty instruments convertible into shares of the Company’s common stock, which result in the
Company’s ownership change exceeding the 50% limitation threshold imposed by that section, all of the Company’s net
operating loss carryforwards may be significantly limited as to the amount of use in any particular year. ‘

The Canadian subsidiaries file separate income tax returns in Canada. Effective, January 1, 2006, two of the
VHI subsidiaries have been amalgamated with Instantel. The combined tax atiributes, including research and
development tax credit carryforwards, will be available to offset future taxablé income of the amalgamated entity. In
addition, as of December 31, 2006, VHI had Canadian non-capital loss carryforwards of $0.7 million that expire in 2012.
These loss calryforwards are anticipated to be used during 2007 and 2008. As of December 31, 2006, the Company
provided a valuation allowance of $0.1 million against their Canadian deferred tax assets as a result of the closing of
operations in Vancouver, British Columbia.

The Company’s goodwill, which resulted from the acquisitions of EXI and Instantel, is not deductible for
income tax purposes. -
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12. Loss per Share

A reconciliation of the numerator and denominator of basic and diluted net loss per share attributable to
common stockholders is provided as follows; ‘

For the Years Ended December 31,

Numerator: ’

Numerator for basic loss per share:
NEEIOBS - ceoveveieee e e arat st bttt bbb e 80 (6;,725) $ (5262 § (2,01 l)
Deemed dividend........ooooooii s e (1
Net loss attributable to common StOCKDOIAERS ...v.v.veveeeeee oo S () zggg § (5261) 3 (2,01 ! )
Denominator:

Denominator for basic and diluted loss per share:

Weighted average shares outstanding basic and diluted...........coooovvevvcneenen, 5,556 5279 4,444

Basic and diluted loss per share attributable to common stockholders........cccuveee.. b (1,21} 3 (1.00y 3 (0.45)

The following stock options and warrants outstanding as of December 31, 2006, 2005, 2004 were not included
in the computation of dilutive loss per share because the net effect would have been anti-dilutive:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
SHOCK OPLOMS - errrev oo eeees s ees e eessssesssss e ses s oo i 2099 2,055 1,826
WWATTANES 11rvvverisveieecessseees s tes s esssesssissassessteesseissaessatatsaesasese e ameneeeasneeensaeaeseemseeemeeenn 444 444 411
Restricted COMMON STOCK ..oiui ittt eeeeev e e e v enesaeaensas 500 - -
3,043 2,499 2,237

13. Segmented information: ~
The Company operates in three business segments: Healthcare Security, Implantable and Industrial.
Healthcare Security

Utilizing RFID technology, the Company’s Healthcare Security segment currently engages in marketing, selling
and developing the followmg products:

* infant protection systems used in hospital maternity wards and birthing centers to prevent infant abduction
and mother-baby mismatching;

» wander prevention systems used by long-term care facilities to locate and protect their residents; and

¢ an assct/staff location and identification system used by hospitals and other healthcare facilities to identify,
locate and protect medical staff, patients, visitors and medical equipment.

Implantable

The Company’s Implantable segment includes its VeriMed system using the implantable microchip, a human-
implantable RFID microchip that can be used in a variety of patient identification and security applications, Each
implantable microchip contains a unique verification number that is read when it is scanned by the Company’s scanner,
In October 2004, the U.S. Food and Drug Administration, or FDA, cleared the Company’s VeriMed systern for use in
medical applications in the United States,
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Industrial

The Company’s Industrial segment engages in marketing, selling and developing the following products:

e vibration monttoring instruments used by engineering, construction and mining professionals to monitor the
effects of human induced vibrations, such as blasting activity; and

¢ asset management systems used by industrial companies to manage and track their mobile equipment and
tools.

The following is the selected segment data as of and for the years ended December 31:

2006 Healthcare  Implantable Industrial  Corporate ~ Total
Security
Product TEVENUE ........coveeeeeeeeeeveeeceeeevennee $ 20,035 $ 116 $ 5,480 $ - % 25631
Services revenue .......ocoverevercein e 380 - 1,293 - 1,673
§ 20415 3 116 $ __ 6773 b - 3 27304
|
| Operating income (l0SS) .....c.eeverureeencreecnec 780 (4,273) 659 (3,047) (5,881)
Depreciation and amortization................ 1,705 42 640 $ 41 2,428
Interest and other income..........ccceveerueneee (49) - (8) - (57)
TNLErest EXPENSE .c.oivevicrereerrerererrerrreesnermraes 78 - - 790 868
Income (loss) before provision for
INCOME LAXES 1ovecreeerrerrererereesreesceenrerarees 751 (4,273) 667 (3,837) (6,692)
GoodWilL....ooeovrereveereceeececee e 12,342 - 3,683 - 16,025
Segmented asSets ......uevieerenierinerereonns 34,641 680 10,632 4,935 50,388
Expenditures for property and
EQUIPIMENE ......oovirvvresrisssrresneceeeree e 581 27 175 27 810
Healthcare
2005 Security Implantable Industrial Corporate Total
Product reVENUE .....ccoveevveeverrereereeeresnrennens $ 11,200 ) 638 $ 3252 $ - % 14,520
Services revenue ... v, 849 - 500 - 1,349
S 12,049 3 68 £ 3,752 3 - § 15869
Operating income (10SS) «.....occevvvvrverrnrnnns 947 (3,604) 488 (2,737 (4,926)
Depreciation and amortization.................. 971 28 971 b 28 1,383
Interest and other income............c.......... (49) - (14) - (63)
Interest EXPense .......ococcovcveeriresvssiseisias - - - 343 343
Income (loss) before provision for
IACOME FAXES «ooeveueraeeeeervrreeramrrnrrnenennes 996 (3,604) 502 (3,100) (5,206)
GOOAWIlL ..o 13,131 - 3,851 - 16,982
Segmented aSSELS ........oveuerrmensrrernnseeenes 36,257 741 10,238 1,202 48,438
Expenditures for property and
SQUIPIIENT ..ot eeae e 285 40 59 40 424
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Healthcare

2004 Security Implantable Industrial Corporate Total
Product TEVENUE ....c.ceeeveccmerereiiciniesiias 3 - 3 247 $ - $ - 3 247
Services revenue ..o, - - - - -
3 - ) 247 by - g - 3 247

Operating 108 ..o - (1,062) - (820) (1,882)
Depreciation and amortization.................. - 24 - 8 24 48
Interest and other income.........coceevvveenne. - (15) - - (15
Interest eXPense .....ooveeeveieecie e - - - 144 144
Loss before provision for -

INCOME LAXES 1voveeeeneenieeieee e eceeineeeaes - (1,047 - (964) 2,011
Goodwill ..., - - - - -
Seginented asSets .......c.vuuiereerierirerirenenss - 226 - 57 283
Expenditures for property and

EGUIPINENE 1.veveeiereecrieieiirieer e reer e - 16 - 16 32

Revenues are attributed to geographic areas based on the location of the assets producing the revenue.
Information concerning principal geographic areas for the year ended December 31 were as follows (in thousands):

United States Canada Consolidated
Year ended December 31, 2006:
N FEVIIUE e vtvt ettt ettt ettt eeeee et e e e e e e e e emee e e e e e eme e e eeeeeneeeeaneene $ 116 $ 27,188 $ 27,304
Long-lived tangible assets ......ccoovvevecivirnrciviennr s 126 824 950
Deferred tax Habilities .ooo.vvveveev e, - $ 5,415 $ 5415
United States Canada Consolidated
Year ended December 31, 2005:
NET TRVEIIUL ..oeeeie et b e e e e e e eseeesnenanens $ 68 $ 15801 $ 15,869
Long-lived tangible assets ..........cco.ovverivirererernrerenneseneenns S 132 758 890
Deferred tax Habillies ...oooviveieeieeer oo - ) $ 5,064 $ 5,064
: United States Canada Consolidated
Year ended December 31, 2004:
NELIEVEIUE ..ot ete st e et erat e et eeeseeetessneanneane b 247 by - $ 247
Long-lived tangible assets .........ccooceeieeieeeeee e 131 - 131
Deferred tax Habilities .........co.voovivivieiiisieesesse s saesseas - - $ -

Unasserted Claim—Potential Intellectual Property Conflict

Hughes, HID, any of their respective successors in interest, or any party to whom any of the foregoing parties
may have assigned its rights under the 1994 license agreement (see Note 1} may commence a claim against the Company
asserting that the Company is violating its rights. If such a claim is successful, sales of the Company’s implantable
microchip could be enjoined and the Company could be required to cease its efforts to create a market for it implantable
microchip until the patent expires in April 2008. In addition, the Company could be required to pay damages, which may

be substantial,

If the Company or Digital Angel is denied use of the patented technology in applications involving the
identification of human beings and security applications, the Company will not be able to purchase or sell any of its
products that incorporate the implantable microchip before the patent expires. The Company may be required to pay
royalties and other damages to third parties on products it has already purchased or will purchase from Digital Angel.
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15.

The Company has been publicly marketing and selling the implantable microchip for human identification and
security applications for approximately five years, Through December 31, 2006, there have been and are no pending or
threatened intellectual property claims challenging the Company’s marketing or selling activities. The Company’s supply
and development agreement with Digital Angel contains an indemnification provision. To the extent that such an
infringement claim is made, the Company believes it is entitled to indemnification pursuant to the supply and
development agreement with Digital Angel.

Under the circumstances, the accompanying financial statements make no provision with respect to the
unasserted claim described above.

Commitments and Contingencies
Operating Lease Commitments

The Company has entered into operating leases for office space with remaining terms through 2009 in Richmond, British
Columbia and Ottawa, Ontario. Minimum lease payments due under the operating leases for the next five years and
thereafier are presented in the table below. Rent accrued under the Company's office lease differs from the rent paid
because of the effect of escalation payments for certain operating expenses. Accrued rent is calculated by allocating total
fixed minimum rent payments, provided for in the lease on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Rentals of space, vehicles, and office equipment under operating leases amounted to approximately $2.0
million,
$1.9 million and $0.5 million, primarily attributable to office space, for the years ended Decemnber 31, 2006, 2005 and
2004, respectively.

Purchase Commitments

On March 4, 2002, the Company entered into a supply agreement with Digital Angel, an affiliate, to supply the
Company’s human-implantable microchip and RFID technology. Digital Angel is the Company’s sole supplier of the
implantable microchips relating to the Company’s business. Digital Angel may sell the human-implantable microchips
and RFID technology to third parties if the Company does not purchase certain prescribed minimum quantities or the
Company defaults in any obligation under the agreement, including the payment of money, and the default is not cured
within 90 days after receipt of written notice. On December 28, 2005, the agreement was amended and restated. The
amended and restated agreement is more fully discussed in Note 16. ‘

The approximate minimum payments required under operating leases, purchase commitments and employment
contracts that have initial or remaining terms in excess of one year at December 31, 2006, are as follows (in thousands):

Year Operating lease Purchase Employment
commitments commitments Contracts

2007 e s b 621 3 1,569 $ 420
2008 ...eoveevereintrrerrrr et e 21 2,542 462
2009 e e e 6 3,333 508
2000 . ceeeecererrrrr e et e ee et s - 4,623 508
2OT1 ottt - 4664 - 508
Thereafter. oovvriirre et eveniea e - 37.689 -

$ 648 $ 54420 b 2,406

Employment Contract

Effective December 5, 2006, the Company and its new CEO entered into an employment and non-compete
agreement. The agreement terminates five years from the effective date. The agreement provides for an annual base
salary of $420,000 with minimum annual increases for the first two years of 10% of the base salary and a discretionary
annual increase thereafter. Mr. Silverman is also entitled to a discretionary annual bonus and other fringe benefits. In
addition, it provides for the grant of 500,000 shares of restricted stock of the Company. The Company is required to
register the shares as soon as practicable. The stock is restricted and is accordingly subject to substantial risk of forfeiture
in the event that the CEO terminates his employment or the Company terminates his employment for cause on or before
December 31, 2008. If the CEQ’s employment is terminated prior to the expiration of the term of the agreement, certain
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significant payments become due to the CEO. The amount of such significant payments depends on the nature of the
termination. in addition, the employment agreement contains a change of control provision that provides for the payment
of five times the then current base salary and five times the average bonus paid to the CEO for the three full calendar
years immediately prior to the change of control, or the number of years that were completed commencing on the
effective date of the agreement and ending on the date of the change of control if less.than three calendar years. For all
purposes of this agreement, a change in control shall be deemed to occur if any person or entity (or persons or entities
acting as a group) acquires stock of the Company that, together with stock then held by such person, entity or group,
results in such person, entity or group holding more than fifty (50%) percent of the fair market value or total voting
power of the Company as well as the board of director members prior to the transaction no longer constituting a majority
of the board of director members following such transaction, Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following shall not be
deeraed a change in control: (1) the acquisition of stock by Applied Digital or its affiliates; (2) a public offering or sale to
the public of the Company’s stock; (3) a merger with another company, unless such merger also results in the board of
director members prior to such transaction not constituting a majority of the board members following such transaction.
Any outstanding stock options held by the CEO as of the date of his termination or a change of control become vested
and exercisable as of such date, and remain exercisable during the remaining life of the option. All severance and change
of control payments made in connection with the agreement must be paid in cash, except for a termination due to the
CEQ’s total disability, death, a constructive termination, or termination without cause, which may be paid in shares of
the Company’s common stock, subject to necessary approvals, or in cash at the CEO’s option.

Legel proceedings

The Company is engaged in certain legal actions in the ordinary course of business and the Company believes
that the ultimate outcome of these actions will not have a material adverse effect on our operating results, lquIdlty or
finaricial position,

Metro Risk

On January 10, 2005, the Company commenced an action in the Circuit Court for Palm Beach County, Florida,
against Metro Risk Management Group, LLC, or Metro Risk. In this suit, the Company has claimed that Metro Risk
breached the parties’ three international distribution agreements by failing to meet required minimum purchase
obhgatlons On July 1, 2005, Metro Risk asserted a counterclaim against the Company for breach of contract and fraud
in the inducement. Spec1ﬁcally, in its claim for breach of contract, Metro Risk alleged that the Company breached the
exclusivity provision of the parties’ distribution agreements by later signing a different distribution agreement with a
large distributor of medical supplies. Metro Risk asserted that the distribution agreement with this other distributor
included areas in Europe. Moreover, regarding its claim for fraud in the inducement, Metro Risk alleged that the
Compzany fraudulently induced Metro Risk into signing the distribution agreements by promising millions of dollars in
profits. By virtue of its counterclaim, Metro Risk seeks reliance damages in the amount of $155,000, which represents
the amount of money advanced by Metro Risk for the project, lost profits, and attorneys’ fees. Given the early stage of
the matter and because discovery has recently begun, counsel is currently unable to assess the Company’s risk.

The Company is a party to various legal actions, as either plaintiff or defendant, including the matter
identified above, arising in the ordinary course of business, none of which is expected to have a material adverse effect
on our business, financial condition or results of operations. However, litigation is inherently unpredictable, and the costs
and other effects of pending or future litigation, governmental investigations, legal and administrative cases and
proceedings, whether civil or criminal, setilements, judgments and investigations, claims or charges in any such matters,
and developments or assertions by or against us relating to us or to our inteilectual property rights and intellectual
property licenses could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating resuits.

16. Related Party Transactions

During the year ended December 31, 2005, Applied Digital provided certain general and administrative services
to the Company including, accounting, finance, payroll and legal services, telephone, rent and other misceltaneous items.
The costs of these services, which are included in the Company’s statement of operations in selling, general and
administrative expense, was determined based on the Company’s use of such services. In determining the estimated use
by the Company, Applied Digital determined the actual cost incurred for each of the services provided and determined
the allocation of each of such costs that were attributable to the Company’s operations.

The services provided and the basis of allocation were as follows:
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Accounting, finance and payroll services — these costs were allocated based upon a percentage of the
total labor dollars incurred by Applied Digital’s accounting, finance and payroll staff in performing
such functions for the Company;

Legal services — the costs were allocated based upon a percentage of Applied Digital’s general
counsel’s salary and benefits based upon the estimated time spent by its general counsel on the
Company’s legal issues;

Accounting fees — these costs were allocated based upon a percentage of the total fees charged by third
party accountants and considering the amount of such accounting fees that the Company would have
incurred if it was a stand-along entity until December 27, 2005. Subsequent to December 27, 20035, the
Company paid actual costs incurred;

Rent — the cost was determined based upon the amount of office space square footage used by the
Company’s employees; and

Telephone, office supplies and other costs — these costs were allocated based upon a pcrcentage of the
services or supplies that were deemed to be incurred by the Company.

On December 27, 2005, the Company entered into a transition services agreement with Applied Digital under
which Applied Digital agreed to provide the Company with certain administrative transition services, including payroll,
legal, finance, accounting, information technology, tax services, and services related to this offering. As compensation
for these services, the Company agreed to pay Applied Digital (i) approximately $62,000 per month for fixed costs
allocable to these services, (ii) Applied Digital’s reasonable out-of-pocket direct expenses incurred in connection with
providing these services that are not included in the agreement as a monthly fixed cost, {iii) Applied Digital’s expenses
incurred in connection with services provided to the Company in connection with the initial public offering of the
Company’s common stock, and (iv) any charges by third party service providers that may or may not be incurred as part
of the offering and that are attributable to transition services provided to or for the Company.

On December 21, 2006, the Company and Applied Digital entered into an amended and restated transition
services agreement, which became effective on February 14, 2007, the date of completion of the Company’s initial
public offering of the Company’s common stock. Prior to that time, the initial transition services agreement remained in
effect. The term of the amended and restated agreement will continue until such time as the Company requests Applied
Digital to cease performing transition services, provided that Applied Digital is not obligated to continue to provide the
transition services for more than twenty-four months following the effective date. Except for any request by the
Company that Applied Digital cease to perform transition services, subject to certain notice provisions, the agreement
may not be terminated by either party except in the event of a material default in Applied Digital’s delivery of the
transition services or in the Company’s payment for those services. The services to be provided by Applied Digital under
the amended and restated transition services agreement are the same as those provided under the initial agreement. The
estimated monthly charge for the fixed costs allocable to these services has been increased to approximately $72,000 per
month, primarily as the result of an increased allocation for office space.

The terms of the transition services agreement and the amendment and restatement of the agreement were
negotiated between certain of the Company’s former executive officers and certain executive officers of Applied Digital.
The Company’s and Applied Digital’s executive officers were independent of one another and the terms of the
agreement were based upon historical amounts incurred by Applied Digital for payment of such services to third parties.
Accordingly, the Company believes that it negotiated the best terms and conditions under the circumstances, however,
these costs are not necessarily indicative of the costs which would be incurred by the Company as an independent stand
alone entity.

Managemerit believes that the fees charged for these services are reasonable and consistent with what the
expenses would have been on a stand-alone basis. The costs of these services to the Company were $0.8 million, $0.5
million and $0.4 million in 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively, and are included in selling, general and administrative
expense on the consolidated statement of operations.

Loan Agreement with Applied Digital

Applied Digital has funded and financed the Company’s operations since inception, which has resulted in an
amount due to Applied Digital totaling $13.6 million (which included $0.8 million of accrued interest) and $8.9 at
December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. On December 27, 2005, the Company and Applied Digital converted the
amounts due to Applied Digital, including interest accrued, into a revolving line of credit under the terms of a loan
agreement, security agreement and a revolving line of credit note.
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On October 6, 2006, the Company entered into an amendment to the loan agreement which increased the
principal amount available thereunder to $13.0 million, and the Company borrowed an additional $2.0 million under the
agrezment to make the second purchase price payment with respect to its acquisition of Instantel. In connection with that
amendment, the interest rate was also changed to a fixed rate of 12% per annum. Previously, our indebtedness to Applied
Digital bore interest at the prevailing prime rate of interest as published from time to time by The Wall Street Journal.
That amendment further provided that the loan matured in July 2008, but could be cxtended at the option of Applied
Digital through December 27, 2010.

On January 19, 2007, February &, 2007 and February 13, 2007, we entered into further amendments to the
loan documents which increased the maximum principal amount of indebtedness that we may incur to $14.5 million. A
portion of this increase was used to cover approximately $0.7 million of intercompany advances made to us by Applied
Digital during the first week of January 2007. Upon the consummation of our initial public offering in February 2007,
the loan ceased to be a revolving line of credit, and we have no ability to incur additional indebtedness to Applied Digital
under the loan documents. The interest continues to accrue on the outstanding indebtedness at a rate of 12% per annum.
On February 14, 2007, the closing date of our initial public offering, we were indebted to Applied Digital in the amount
of $15.2 million, including $1.0 million of accrued interest and, in accordance with the terms of the loan agreement as
most recently amended on February 13, 2007, we repaid $3.5 million of our indebtedness to Applied Digital upon
consummation of our initial public offering. Effective with the payment of the $3.5 million, all interest which accrues on
the loan as of the last day of each month, commencing with February 2007, shall be added to the principal amount.
Commencing Janvary 1, 2008 through January 1, 2010, we are obligated to repay $300,000 on the first day of each
month. A final balloon payment equal to the outstanding principal amount then due under the loan plus all accrued and
unpaid interest will be due and payable on February 1, 2010,

The loan is collateralized by interests in all property and assets of the Company, including the stock of the
Company’s subsidiaries, but not by any of the property or assets of the Company’s subsidiaries.

.Interest expense incurred under the loan for the year ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004 was $0.9
mill:on, $0.3 million and $0.1 million, respectively. The previously floating rate of interest was negotiated between
Applied Digital and the Company: On October 6, 2006, the interest rate was modified as discussed above. The modified
interest rate was negotiated between the parties. Depending upon the Company’s future operating performance, this
interest rate may not be comparable to the terms that the Company could obtain from independent third parties.

2000 Tax Allocation Agreement

From the Company’s inception and through February 14, 2007, the date of completion of the Company’s
initial public offering, the Company has been included in Applied Digital’s federal consolidated income tax group, and
the Company’s federal income tax liability, if any, has been included in the consolidated federal income tax liability of
Applied Digital and its subsidiaries. Effective February 14, 2007, the Company is no longer part of the Applied Digital
consolidated income tax group under applicable provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and
regulations thereunder, and will file a separate tax return.

The Company has entered into a tax allocation agreement with Applied Digital providing for each of the
part:es’ obligations conceming various tax liabilities. Under the agreement, effective February 14, 2007, the Company is
gencrally liable for, and will indemnify Applied Digital if necessary, with respect to federal income taxes and any state
taxes measured by net income, and any interest or penalties thereon or additions to such tax that are either (i} imposed on
or incurred by the Company for any taxable period ending prior to February 14, 2007 or (ii) equitably apportioned to the
‘Company by Applied Digital for all tax periods beginning before and ending on or after February 14, 2007, The
Company is also liable for any other taxes (and any interest or penalties thereon or additions to such taxes) attributable to
the Company or the Company’s subsidiaries for any period. Likewise, Applied Digital will remain responsible for all
prior period taxes attributable to the other members of the consolidated group and will indemnify the Company with
respect to such liabilities.

Each member of a consolidated group for U.S. federal income tax purposes is jointly and severally liable for
the federal income tax liability of each other member of the consolidated group. Accordingly, although the tax allocation
agreement has allocated tax liabilities between Applied Digital and the Company, for any period in which the Company
was included in Applied Digital’s consolidated group, the Company could be liable in the event that any federal tax
liability was incurred, but not discharged, by any other member of the group. Applied Digital will indemnify the
Company for such liability, to the extent that such liability is not attributable to the Company, as described above.
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Certain states may require that the Company be included in a unitary or other combined tax return with
Applied Digital after February 14, 2007. If that occurs, Applied Digital will file such returns and our share of the actual
tax liability wilt be allocated to the Company in a manner consistent with the methodology historically followed by
Applied Digital and the Company.

Funding of Instantel Acquisition

As more fully discussed in Note 4, Applied Digital agreed to fund the cost of the Instantel acquisition in order
for the Company to affect the acquisition. Given that the Company did not provide Applied Digital with any specific
consideration for the transaction, the Company does not believe that the terms are comparable to terms that could be
obtained in transaction with independent third parties.

Supply Agreement

The Company executed a supply and development agreement dated March 4, 2002 with Digital Angel covenng
the manufacture and supply of its implantable microchip.

On December 27 2005 the Company entered into an amended and restated supply and development agreement
with Digital Angel. Under this agrecment, Digital Angel is the Company’s sole supplier of human-implantable
microchips.

The Company’s purchases of product under the supply and development agreement were approximately $0.4
million, $0.7 million, $0.1 million for years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 respectively. The supply and
development agreement with Digital Angel continues until March 2013, and, as long as the Company continues to meet
minimum purchase requirements (the minimum purchase requirements are $0.0 million in 2006 and approximately $0.9
million in 2007, respectively), the agreement will automatically renew annually under its terms until the expiration of the
last of the patents covering any of the supplied products. The agreement may be terminated prior to its stated term under
specified events, including as a result of a bankruptcy event of either party or an uncured default. In addition, Digital
Angel may sell the microchips to third parties if the Company does not take delivery and pay for a minimum number of -
microchips as specified in the agreement. Further, the agreement provides that Digital Angel shall, at the Company’s
option, furnish and operate a computer database to provide data collection, storage and related services for the
Company’s customers for a fee as provided. The Company does not currently utilize this service. A termination of the
Company’s supply and development agreement or the ability of Digital Angel to supply third parties due to failure by the
Company to meet its minimum purchase requirements or for any other reason would have a material adverse effect on
the Company’s business prospects.

The terms of the predecessor supply and development agreement and the amended and restated supply and
development agreement were negotiated by the executive officers of the respective companies and approved by the
independent members of each company’s board of directors.

Digital Angel relies solely on a production agreement with a subsidiary of Raytheon Company for the
manufacture of the human-implantable microchip products. The subsidiary utilizes Digital Angel’s equipment in the
production of the microchips. On April 28, 2006, Digital Angel entered into a new production agreement with the
subsidiary refated to the manufacture and distribution of glass-encapsulated syringe-implantable transponders, including
the human-implantable microchip products sold by the Company. This new agreement expires on June 30, 2010. (See
Notes | and 13.)

Legal Services

During the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company incurred legal fees, attributable to the
Company’s initial public offering, of $1.1 million and $0.1 million, respectively, to the Company’s legat counsel, Akin
Gump Strauss Hauer & Feld LLP, or Akin Gump. Tommy G. Thompson, a partner with Akin Gump, was a member of
the Company’s board of directors from July 2005 to March 8, 2007, and, as a result of his directorship services, holds
fully vested options to purchase 55,556 shares of the Company’s common stock.

Pledge Agreement

On August 24, 2006, Applied Digital pledged 65% of its ownership in the Company’s common stock to its
lender under the terms of a note and pledge agreement. The note is due in August 2009. This note replaced a previous
note issued by Applied Digital which was due in June 2007.
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17. Supplementary Cash Flow Information )

For the Years Ended December 31,

. 2006 2005 2004
[NCOME tAXES PAIA....oovieeiiieececece et eeeer et st S 437 $ 143 §
IREETESE PATH. e e e 46 2

$ 483 3 145 3

In 2006 and 20035, the Company had the following non-cash investing and financing activities (the Company
did rot have any non-cash investing and financing activities in 2004):

Year Ended
December 31,
2006 2005
Nor-cash investing and financing activities:
Deferred purchase 0blZation ..........coivccvrever s s e seessese st e aran s snsnnas $ (500 $ 3,000
OFFBFING COSIS .orvvr s esersssessessrese et e 1,015 714
Issuance of common shares to Applied Digital for the contribution of VeriChip Holdings : '

Inc. t0 VeriChip COormoration ............ocioiiiii ittt esse b st et e nasss s ssems s entetnssbebentons .- 12,719
Applied Digital contribution of Instantel Inc. to VeriChip Inc. .......ccocevvnininnicinienennn, — . - 21,043
Issuance of warrant's..........:.. .......................................................................................................... - 1

18. Exit and Disposal Activity

In November 2006, the Company made the decision to consolidate its healthcare security operations into an
existing facility located in Ottawa, Ontario, Canada to eliminate duplicative functions and to improve operating
efficizncies. The consolidation entailed the closing of operations in Vancouver, British Columbia. The Company expects
to complete the consolidation in the first quarter of 2007. As a result of the consolidation, through December 31, 2006,
the Company has recorded charges of $0.9 million, resulting from severance payments and related charges, fixed asset
impairment and valuation allowance for certain Canadian tax assets. The Company expects to record additional charges
during the first quarter of 2007 of approximately $0.3 million, consisting of charges relating to termination benefits.

Exit charges of $0.9 million recorded during the year ended December 31, 2006 resulting from the closing of
operations in Vancouver, British Columbia is reflected in the consolidated statement of operations in selling, general and
administrative expense.

19, Subsequent Events : - P

The Company and Merriman Curhan Ford & Co., as representative of the several underwriters named in an
underwriting agreement, (the "Underwriting Agreement"), entered into the Underwriting Agreement dated February 9,
2007. The Underwriting Agreement was entered into with respect to the common stock offered by the Company in
connection with its initial public offering, which commenced on February 9, 2007 and was completed on February 14,
2007. In connection with the offering, the Company agreed to issue and sell to the underwriters 3,100,000 newly issued
shares of the Company's common stock. The initial public offering price was $6.50 per share and the underwriting
discounts and commissions were $0.455 per share.

We and Applied Digital had granted to the underwriters an option, exercisable as provided in the Underwriting
Agreement to purchase up to an additional 465,000 shares of the Company's common stock, such shares being shares
currently owned by Applied Digital, at the initial public offering price of $6.50 per share, less underwriting discounts
and commissions. The option expired unexercised on March 11, 2007,

The Underwriting Agreement required that the Company reimburse the representatives for their expenses on a
non-accountable basis in the amount equal to 1.3% of the aggregate public offering price of the offered shares of
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common stock, which was paid at closing. In addition, the Company agreed to reimburse the underwriters $150,000 of
their legal fees incurred in connection with the offering.

The following table presents the unaudited pro forma consolidated balance sheet data at December 31, 20006, as
adjusted, to give effect to the Company’s receipt of the net proceeds from the sale of 3.1 million shares of common stock
at the initial public offering price of $6.30 per share, after deducting $1.8 million for underwriters discounts,
commissions and expenses, $2.5 million for the Company’s offering expenses not paid as of February 14, 2007 and $3.5
million for repayment of Note payable to Parent.

Pro Forma Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:

711 T OO OSSO PP OOUOUOY USSP ERPOVOO $ 13322
WOTKING CAPIAL 1evere e b s s bbb e 13,101
TOMAL ASSEES ..oooeeeiieieie ittt e ecetet e e ettt e e s st s eesesrerers e b tres s s basaannsaaasanssaaeassseaeennsaseeenneaeantae e ennes 67,019
TORAL dEDE..iive vt cvreereierere e e e eete i e e e e ee eeste e sesesseraasaa et aas e e es s eamesnnennbes nesanesnatnsRer e eas 10,988
Total stockholders’ BQUILY ..........oovceirrereeeeer e rsesnsanre e rerenenemaneneeas 34,488

The following table presents the unaudited pro forma capitalization of the Company’s as of December 31, 2006, adjusted
to give effect to the Company’s receipt of the net proceeds from the sale of 3.1 million shares of the Company’s common
stock at an initial public offering price of $6.50 per share, after deducting $1.8 million for underwriters discounts and
commissions, $6.2 million of offering expenses (inclusive of $5.1 million in deferred offering costs in December 31,
2006) as of February 14, 2007 and $3.5 million for repayment of Note payable to Parent.

As Adjusted
(unaudited)
Debt, including CUITEnt POTtION. ......oiveiireieirerneeesernevrsseses oo srsets et se s nr s se e s $ 10,988
Stockholders’ equity:
PrEfeITed SEOCK veemeeececee et e et se e e e e e e e st end e sre s s e e b e e s -
COIMMON SEOCK c- oo eteestetesssetss e sasesesseesea s ss e esaensasasesessaneeessasannsesnanesn ST 92
Additional paid — in capital..... ..o 51,482
Accumulated other comprehensive 1085.... .ot e, (37)
ACCUMUILATEd AETICIT. ...\ et e e e s (17.049)
Total stockholders” EQUILY.......ccoiiivirenimice et 34,488
Total CaPUBlIZALION «oeoveeecec et § 45476
20, Summarized Quarterly Data (unaudited)
First Second Third Fourth Full
2006 Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year
Total FEVENUE ....covvererrrrverevrerireereecaeeereereenrens $ 6,550 $ 6976 $ 6818 § 6960 § 27304
Gross profit......cveeeroreeneeie e 3,981 4,101 3,768 3,675 15,525
NELIOSS 1iiiiiiririrreeeee e ree s e e cereraras (1,021) (1,169) (1,261) (3,274) (6,725)
Basic and diluted net loss per share ........... $§ (018 § (©21) $ (©23) $ (05 S (1.21)
First Second Third Fourth Full
2005 Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year
TOtal TEVENUE ....o.eeeeeteeevsreerere e esreie e $ 15 $ 3022 $ 6078 3§ 6,754 3§ 15869
Gross Profit.....c.ceceeveenneneerenin e e, 5 2,050 3,593 3,826 9.474
Net loss attributable to common
stockholder......ocooocviiininicinreeeees (1,075) (1,346) (267) (2:573) (5,263)
Basic and diluted net loss per share
attributable to common stockholder ....... 3 ©24) 3 (0249 § (006 § (045 § (1.00)

(1) Loss per share is computed independently for each of the quarters presented.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE

Valuation and Qualifying Accounts (in thousands)

Additions

Balance at charged to Balance at

beginning cost and end of
Description of period expenses Deductions period
Valuation reserve deducted in the balance

sheet from the asset to which it applies:

Accounts receivable:
2006 Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 12 134 - 3 146
2005 Allowance for doubtful accounts - 22 10 12
2004 Allowance for doubtful accounts ' 13 - 13 -
Inventory: . : ,
2006 Allowance for excess and obsolescence $ 96 3 69. § - 3 165
2005 Allowance for excess and obsolescence : 79 17 _— 96
2004 Allowance for excess and obsolescence - 79 - 79
Deferred taxes:
2006 Valuation reserve $ 4385 % 3,545 % - 5 7,930
2005 Valuation reserve 1,899 2,486 - 4,385
2004 Valuation reserve 1,148 751 - 1,899
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors
EXI Wireless Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of EXI Wireless Inc. and subsidiaries as of December
31, 2004 and 2003 and the consolidated statements of operations, shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the years then
ended. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur responsibility
is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation, We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the EXI Wireless Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 and the results of their operations
and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with United States generally accepted accounting principles.

On February 22, 2005, we reported separately to the shareholders of the Company on the consolidated financial
staternents as at and for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, which consolidated financial statements were
prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

KPMG LLP (Signed)
Chartered Accountants

Vancouver, Canada
February 22, 2005
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EXIL.WIRELESS INC,

Consolidated Balance Sheets'i- + -
. (Expressed in United States dollars).
{Prepared in acecordance with United States GAAP): .
““December:31, 2004 and 2003 . .

o ) i 2004 2003
Assets .
Current assets:’ . . ‘
Cash....l.ocovvene OO U OO O OO S T RUUUR OOV $1,126,642 $1,025,292
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $22,514 (2003 —

S15,325).. oot 1,709,173 1,759,393
Tnventory (ROte 3) ...y emmerernreemreensnneenns s e s 409,731 266,402
Prepaid eXpenses .........iouusersrrrererrecornienens SV SOOI - 60411 ' 62,608
B : C I 3305957 3,113,695

Goodwill (note 4).0..0 e, eeeem et bede e et h e b A Attt E e b e bbb st b esersbeeeanatas 1,449,806 1,348,396
Property, plant and equipment (note 5).....ccccocvriiniirininnnnen, e eeee e bbbttt er et enens 189,455 293,670
Other intangible assets (note 6) .................. ereEuatt e e ae et es s e s e e s A eAeEb et e e en s an s erenenn P217,402 308,600
Deferred income taxes (NOLE 7)..........ccoiiiinnnnrcensinsre e tscreee oo seesssesssesensssesssenes 173,304 . 138,661
$5,337,924 $5,203,022
Liabilitiés and Stockholders’ Equity '
Current liabilities: ‘ .-
Accounts payable ... ... Cereenens vt eeceeeraner et s e e es - $714,666 $560,292
Accrued Habilities ... et ee e e s b en s : 393,551 313,877
Deferred teVENUE ......covermnenceeee e ereeenns bbb e 204,301 258,533
t _ 1,312,518 1,132,702
Stockholders’ equity:, ’
~Preferred stock: -
Authorized unlimited shares with no par value; nil outstanding in'2004 and
2003
Common stock: - . ) .
Authorized unlimited shares with no par value; 10,080,360 (2003 —
10,080,360) issued and outstanding
Share capital (NO1E 8).....c.ccereiiirrrennrernr e e enbe e © 4,396,803 4,396,803
Additional paid in capital ..............ocoeveereirennnn. ettt Lererecbnse e ninns " 124,363 119,571
Accumulated other comprehensive income — cumulative translation adjustment - 847,098 567,819
Accumulated defiCit .ouuioue. oottt ettt et aeann (1,342,858) (1,013,873)
S SR ST 714,025,406 4,070,320
$5,337,924 $5,203,022

Commitments (note 11)
Subsequent events (note 14)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

F-39 - .




EXI WIRELESS.INC,

Consolidated Statements of Operations
(Expressed in United States dollars)
(Prepared in accordance with United States GAAP)
Years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003

2004 2003
SBLES . .. eveeeeee e it st et vt e et e e e e et et ek e b re et re e e R e r e Sae s rm e e e et iA b ket s s e e e e nn e e $£6,003,687 $6,117,844
COSE OF SALES......eovieeeresrererr s ereer et ste et e e a e b e bR e g e s en s r e e re s s ne e e 1,762,622 1,734,680
4,241,065 4,383,164
Expenses: )
Research and development...........c.cocoiiiiniiiin e 917,902 741,272
Depreciation and amortization ..............c.ccoiiims e 280,440 291,419
General and administrative. ... .ccoveeveereceeerseeeeeenenas e reerehaeeeeereeeaaatraaaatreesarnranann 1,755,532 1,708,286
Selling and MarKELING. .......coviresmininiis it 1,488,394 1,221,642
4,442 268 3,962,619
Eamnings (loss) before undernoted ..........oovimniscn s (201,203) 420,545
Other earnings (expenses):
BEIEETESL. o veveevreeeseersseeneeerasnnsessasmnsaeesnsaeseensssasabsstsasnssansnseseenantatesasnaeessnrnensamnnnesinsusss 16,790 3,956
Foreign exchange 108S ....ccccoovvnniiiiiee ettt (168,781) (334,498)
(151,991) (330,542)
Earnings (1055} before inCOME tAXES ......oiiiieiiiiiniiniiie ettt (353,194) '90,003 .
Income tax expense (recovery) (note 7).
1T (- 1| SOOI PP RIS PRI - (40,001)
FULULE ...ttt te et e s e s e ec st s st sab e e b e AR ea s e et (24,209 (15,131)
(24,209 (55,132)
Net earnings (l0S8) ....cvvvvrvrcrireeirmemiciniini e eeuereenseseresnenaesananeresreneerein $(328,985) £145.,135
Earnings (loss) per share:
BASIC oottt et es et s e e s e nene e n et es e SR aL RS RES e b s e h e n e b s s $(0.03) $0.01
131111 =« IR U OO UO U STDT T O PO (0.03) 0.01
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding: _
BaSIC....oovicieiiiecininreeseseseesee e seeeesi s RV [R—— JORSORT VPP 10,080,360 10,080,360
DHIUEEA. ..ottt e sae e s e b s e sa s bbb an b raba b e aea s beresnes JRT 10,080,360 10,304,376

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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EX1 WIRELESS INC.

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity
{Expressed in United States dollars)
{Prepared in accordance with United States GAAP)
Years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003

Common stock Accumulated
. other Additional . Total
Accumulated comprehensive paid stockholders’
Number Amount deficit income (loss) in capital equity
Balance, ,

December 31, o _ - o

2002 e 10,080,360 § 4,396,803 $ "(1,159,008)" § (153,667) $ 100,015 $ 3,184,143
Net eamnings.......c...... " - - — 145,135 = - 145,135
Foreign currency ' . ' ,

translation............. . - - - " 721,486 - 721,486
Comprehensive _ )

NCOME..oeeeenne., ' . 866,621
Stock-based ) ,

compensation . ]

(note &) ........... - - - - 19,556 19,556
Balance, . ,

December 31, Ca . :

2003 . 10,080,360 4,396,803 (1,013,873 567,819 119,571 4,070,320
Net 1085 ..covvvcriccrernnne - - (328,985) - - (328,985)
Foreign currency

translation............. - - - 279,279 - 279,279
Comprehensive loss.. {49,706)
Stock-based

compensation

(note 8(2)) coveeren. - - - - 4,792 ., 4,792
Balance,

December 31,

2004 . 10,080,360 $ (1,342,858) §

4,396,803 $ 847,098 § -

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

“
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EXI WIRELESS INC.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows... ... . .
(Expressed in United States dollars),
(Prepared in accordance with United States GAAP)
Years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003

2004 2003
Cash provided by (used in):
Cash flows from operating écﬁvities: L o S
Net earnings (1088)......ccccorvrevnenn e B (328,985) 8 145,135
Adjustments to reconcﬂe net earnmgs (loss) to net cash used in operatmg N '
activities: .
Depreciation and amortization... 280,440 291,419
.+ Losson disposal of property, plant and equlpment ..................................... 935 -
‘ Future income taxes.. (24,209) (15,131)
Stock-based compensatlon ........................................................................... 4,792 19,556
Changes in non-cash working capital: -
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable............ooveevvvnisiinicnecsinsscesnens 168,583 5,952
Decrease (increase) in prepaid eXpenses.......iiinnnni 6,377 ' O(31,118) ¢
Decrease in income taxes payable ..., - . (40,001)
Decrease (increase) il iMVENIOTY.........cicecreneeererermeecnie s st e seeeeeene (113,866) 10,930
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 103,654 (133,283)
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities ‘ 51,781 - {674,964)
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue...... ... i (68,042) 54,879
. 81,460  '(366,626)
Cash flo‘ws from investing activities: ot
Payments for property, plant and equipment...............coooiiiiiiiniere e (58,842) (99,812) .
Proceeds on sale of property, plant and equipment............ooooieiiiriccnncece 9,156 e
Expenditures on intellectual Property.........oococniiesncsennenscnececenencnssinees. (9,387) (12,191)-
(59,073) (112,003)
Cash flows from financing activities: ©. - - . . Lo o
Repayment of obligation under capital lease.............coeendd eereeenenens = - (39,492)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash ........... ST SOOI SURONTURON et : - 78,963 247,575
Increase (decrease) i CASH co.vveiiiiicieiicirerrarrrier i e s s eme s e e s eme e e 101,350 (270,546)
Cash, beginning of Year ... ..o, oo st ba s 1,025,292 1,295,838
Cash, €N OF VAL .....cvietiiceecreise s e ass s s s s s s sans et et s asaes $ 1,126642 § 1,025,292
Supplementary information:
Interest eXpense Paid ... s $ 526 $ 9,748

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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1. Operations:

EX1 Wireless Inc. (the “Company™) was incorporated under the Alberta Business Corporation Act on July 12,
1996 and was continued under the Canada Business Corporation Act on June 2, 1999,

The Company is a radio frequency identification (RFID) based asset management and security company. The
Company’s principal business activity is the development and marketing of solutions, which help organizations extract
the greatest value from their assets and manage them to their highest potential and secure them from theft or loss. The
Company currently derives its revenue from the sale of security-based wireless tagging solutions and inventory and asset
tracking system software into healthcare, construction and energy markets.

2. Significant accounting policies:
(a) Consolidation:

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries,
EXI Wireless Systems Inc. and EX1 Solutions iInc. (formerly Advanced Delivery Sotutions Limited (*ADSL")} and
HOUNDware Corporation. All significant inter-company transactions and balances have been eliminated.

(b) Inventory:

Raw materials inventory is valued at the lower of cost and replacement cost. Finished goods inventory is
valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost of finished goods includes the cost of raw material and
direct labour.

{c) Property, plant and eqz)ipment:

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of government assistance received. Depreciation of
property, plant and equipment is recorded on a straight-line basis using the following estimated useful life:

Asset - . Estimated useful life Rate

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years 20%
Computer qUIPMENE .....c..covevveeeeereeereire oo 3 -5 years 20% - 33%
Computer software........cc....... i 2 years 50%

Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the lease term or five years, whichever is
shorter, '

{d) Acquired technology and other intangible assets:

Acquired core technology and other intangible assets are stated at cost and are amortized by the straight-line
methaod over their estimated useful life of three to five years. Acqmred technology and intangible assets used solely for
the purpose of research and development are expensed immediately in the year of acquisition.

(e) Goodwill:

Goodwill is the residual amount that results when the purchase price of an acquired business exceeds the sum
of the amounts allocated to the identifiable assets acquired, less liabilities assumed, based on their fair values. Goodwill
is allocated as of the date of the business combination to the Company’s reporting units that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the business combination.

Goodwill has an indefinite use, is not amortized and is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the goodwill might be impaired. The impairment test is carried out in’
two steps. In the first step, the carrying amount of the reporting unit is compared with its fair value. When the fair value
of a reporting unit exceeds its carrying amount, goodwill of the reporting unit is considered not to be impaired and the
second step of impairment test is unnecessary. The second step is carried out when the carrying amount of a reporting
unit exceeds its fair value, in which case the implied fair value of the reporting unit’s goodwill is compared with its
carrying amount to measure the amount of the impairment loss, if any. The implied fair value of the reporting unit’s
goodwill is determined in the same manner as the value of goodwill is determined at the time of a business combination
described in the preceding paragraph, using the fair value of the reporting unit as if it was the purchase price. When the
carrying amount of goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of the goodwill, an impairment loss is recognized in an
amount equal to the excess and is presented as a separate line item in the earnings statement-before extraordinary items
and discontinued operations.
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The Company performed its annual goodwill impairment test on December 31, 2004 and concluded that no

impairment charge was required for goodwill related to continuing operations. As at December 31, 2004, the Company is
operating in two operating segments and reporting units {see note 10).

() Impairment of long-lived assets:

The Company monitors the recoverability of long-lived assets, based on estimates using factors such as
expected future asset utilization, economic outlook and future cash flows expected to resuit from the use of the related
assets or be realized on sale. The Company recognizes an impairment loss if the projected undiscounted aggregate future
cash flows are less than the carrying amount. The amount of impairment charge, if any, is defined as the excess of the
carrying value over its fair value.

{g) Foreign currency translation;

The Company’s functional or primary operating currency is the Canadian dollar. The Company’s financial
statements are prepared in Canadian dollars before translation to the US dollar reporting currency. The Company
translates transactions in currencies other than the Canadian dollar at the exchange rate in effect on the transaction date.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in a currency other than the Canadian dotllar are translated at the exchange
rates in effect at the balance sheet date. The resulting exchange gains and losses are recognized in earnings.

Amounts reported in Canadian dollars have been translated into the US dollar reporting currency as follows:
assets and liabilities are translated into US dollars at the rate of exchange in effect at the balance sheet date and revenue
and expense items are translated at the average rates for the period. Unrealized gains and losses resulting from the
translation into the reporting currency are accumulated in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), a separate
component of stockholders’ equity.

th) Research and development costs:
Research and development costs are expensed as incurred.
(i) Warranty:

The Company provides certain warranties on its products. Provisions for future warranty costs based on
management’s best estimates are recorded when revenue on product sales is recognized. The warranty period for the
majority of the products ranges between one and three years. Management determines the warranty based on known
product failures (if any), historical experience, and other currently available evidence.

2004 2003
Balance, beginning of Year..........cooovoveveeeeeeieeieeeinee e § 66546 § 144993
Accruals for warranties issued 54,816 61,992
Accruals related to pre-existing warranties (including changes in
CSHIMALES) e e eeerereeeeresitesee st e et sesrse b s e e emeesarassbasssnssessasesaseanis - (120,050)
Settlements made (in cash or kind) ... (54,623) (20,389)
Balance, end 0f ¥ear......cc.coooiviiiiiiicii e e $ 66,739 § 66,546

(i} Pension plan:

The Company has a defined contribution plan for its employees. The Company accrues its obligations under
pension plans as the empioyees render the services necessary to earn the pension benefits. During the year ended
December 31, 2004, the Company expensed $39,023 (2003 — $25,734) for the defined contribution plan.

(k) Use of estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual amounts may ultimately differ from these estimates. Significant areas
requiring the use of management estimates relate to the determination of collectibility of accounts receivable, net
recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment, goodwill and other intangibles, useful lives for depreciation and
amortization, investment tax credits recoverable and provisions for warranties.
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() Revenue recognition:

Hardware and software revenue is recognized when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the goods
are shipped and title passes, the price is fixed or determinable and collection of the sales proceeds is reasonably assured.

Revenue from the sale of software implementation services and consulting services is recognized as the
services are performed. Revenue from post-contract support services is recognized over the term of the agreement.

When software arrangements include muitiple elements to which contract accounting does not apply, the
individual elements are accounted for separately if vendor specific objective evidence (“VSOE”) of fair value exists for
the undelivered elements, Generally, the Company applies the residual method in allocating revenue between delivered
and undelivered elements. If VSOE does not exist, the revenue on the completed arrangement is deferred until the earlier
of (a) VSOE being established or (b) all of the undelivered elements are delivered or performed, with the following
exceptions: if the only undelivered element is post-contract support (PCS), the entire fee is recognized ratably over the
PCS period, and if the only undelivered element is service, the entire fee is recognized as the services are performed.

Maintenance revenue is deferred and recognized ratably over the terms of the maintenance agreements.
{m} Stock-based compensation:

As permitted under SFAS No.123, “Accounting for Stock-based Compensation” (“FAS” 123), the Company
has zlected to apply Accounting Principles Board (“APB") Opinion No. 25 and related Interpretations in accounting for
its stock-based compensation arrangements. Accordingly, no compensation cost is recognized for any of the Company’s
equity instruments granted to directors and employees when the exercise price equals or exceeds fair value of the
underlying common stocks as of the grant date for each stock option. FAS 123 uses a fair value method of calculating the
cost of stock option grants. Had compensation cost for employee stock option plan been determined by the fair value
metaod, net income (loss) and earnings (loss) per share would have been as follows:

2004 2003
Reported net income (1088) ...ovveereeeieri s $(328,985) $145,135
Stock-based employee compensation expense determined under the fair _
value based Method .....oooveivieieiriieeree ettt (90,450) (75,272)

Pro forma net income (LOSS) oot $(419,435) $69,863
Earnings (loss) per share — basic and diluted:

ASTEPOMEA ..ot veve s sc st mesencne $(0.03) $0.01

PrO fOFITIA oottt bbb s men $(0.04) fo0.01

The fair value of each option is estimated as at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model
with the following weighted-average assumptions: dividend yield 0%, expected volatility 110%, risk-free interest rate
4.45% and expected average option term of five years. The weighted-average fair value of the value of the options
graated to employees during the year ended December 31, 2004 was $0.71 per option (2003 — $0.36).

(n} Income taxes:

Income taxes are accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “decounting for Income Taxes”, which
requires the use of the asset and liability method. Under this method, deferred income taxes are recognized for the future
tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statements carrying value and their respective income
tax bases (temporary differences). Changes in the net deferred tax asset or liability are generally inctuded in earnings.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years
in which temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred income tax assets and
liabilities of a change in tax rates is included in income in the period that includes the enactment date. Deferred income
tax assets are evaluated and if their realization is not considered “more likely then not™, a valuation allowance is
prcvided.

(o) Investment tax credits:

Investment tax credits are accounted for using the flow through method whereby such credits are accounted
for as a reduction of income tax expense in the period in which the credit arises.
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{p) Earnings (loss) per share:

Basic earnings (loss) per common share are computed by dividing net eamings by the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted earnings per common share is calculated using the treasury stock method and reflects the potential
dilution of securities by including stock options in the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for a
peried, if dilutive,

(q) Comprehensive Income (loss):

Comprehensive income (loss) is recognized and measured pursuant to SFAS No. 130, “Reporting
Comprehensive Income”. This standard defines comprehensive income as all changes in equity other than those resulting
from investments by owners and distributions to owners. Comprehensive income is comprised of two components, net
earnings (loss) and “other comprehensive income” (OCI). OCI refers to amounts that are recorded as an element of
stockholders’ equity but are excluded from net income because these transactions or events were attributed to changes
from non-owner sources.

(r) Comparative figures:

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the basis of presentation adopted in the
current year. :

{s) Recent accounting pronouncements:

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”™) issued revised Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (Revised 2004} entitled “Share-Based Payment” (“FAS No. 123”). This revised
statement addresses accounting for stock-based compensation and results in the fair value of all stock-based
compensation arrangements, including options, being recognized as an expense in a company’s financial statements as
opposed to supplemental disclosure in the notes to financial statements. The revised Statement eliminates the ability to
account for stock-based compensation transactions using APB Opinion No. 25. FAS No. 123R will be effective for the
Company as of January 1, 2006.

[n December 2004, the FASB issued FASB Statement No. 153, “Exchanges of Nonmonetary Assets”, which
eliminates an exception in APB 29 for nonmonetary exchanges of similar productive assets and replaces it with a general
exception for exchanges of nonmonetary assets that do not have commercial substance. This Statement will be effective
for the Company for nonmonetary asset exchanges occurring on or after January 1, 2006.

In November 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) issued Staternent of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 151 entitled “/nventory Costs — an amendment of ARB No. 43, Chapter 47 (“FAS No. 151").
This statement amends the guidance in ARB No. 43 to clarify the accounting for abnormal amounts of idle facility
expense, freight, handling costs and spoilage. FAS No. 151 requires that these items be recognized as current period
charges. The Company has adopted FAS No. 151, which had no effect on the consolidated financial statements.

3. Inventory:

' 2004 2003
Finished goods ...........cocoreennnreninnncnenns e bt e e e bbb s as $454,149 $365,864
Reserve for obsolete inventory........cooveveeecrieesinininoncsieens (44,418) (99,462)

$409,731 $266,402

4, Goodwill; .

" 2004 2003
OBt o ecrecececrcererr e e e e e srssnerarasannasaesan o ee e an e e ee s e e e emreene neneeaeens $2,209,825 $2,055,254
Accumulated aMOTTIZATION ......c.ovvvvvicieee e resssaeeseresnessans 760,019 706,858
Net BOOK VAIUIE ..ot e e esm e s $1,449,806 $1,348,396

The change in goodwill and its components is solely due to foreign exchange rate fluctuations.
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5. Property, plant and equipment:

Accumulated Net book

December 31, 2004 ’ Cost depreciation value
Furniture, fixtures and eqUipment. ......cccouvuereoiee e $466,106 $381,817 $84,289
COMPULET EQUIPITIEME ....c.eoeieeeeeeeceeeeeeeeee e eee e et e e aen b enseaeese s eeeneees 415,936 346,196 69,740
Compuier SOTTWATE.......coo e rrsrs e reae s 272,945 250,354 22,591
Leasehold improvements.......... T eeeree e i ereiee——er e e ——eaaibe e e eeteearteseatatssnrnreas 103,834 - 90,999 12,835
T - $1,258,821 $1,069,366 $189,455

) . Accumulated Net book

December 31, 2003 Cost depreciation value
Furniture, fixtures and equipment........cocoovveveeeerceeeeeeenceenes e $418,787 $298,1‘34 $120.653
Computer equipment t........coeeieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeneeeeeaereenes et es 400,815 291,846 108,969
COMPULET SOTEWATE. ,..veveeerirreieis e rese s essssretssessbesassbe s e s e ssnssbasseeas 256,071 210,180 45,891

Leasehold improvements .........occoeovenicicinnee, et 94,830 76,673 18,157
' $1,170,503 - $876,833 $293,670

6. Other intangible assets: . 7 '
2004 2003

Acquired technology and other intangible A8SEtS.......ccovivrervrnrirrrerirerereesesesnre s eerenrereees $699,719 $641,323
Accumnlated AMOMHIZAION c....o cviiiiiis ettt tsts e s e e s e e eeeeeeteeseetesteesesbeeanneas 482 317 332,723
Net book value............ OO $217,402 . $308,600

Intangible amortization expense for the year ended December 31, 2004 was $115,045 (2003 — $104,076).

7. Inc:ome taxes:

As at December 31, 2004, the Company has non-capital losses carried forward of approximately $521,000
(2005 - $220,000), federal and provincial investment tax credits available for carry forward of approximately $1,215,000
(2005 — $987,000) and scientific research and experimental development expenditures avatilable for carry forward of
approximately $715,000 (2003 — $258,000). Non-capital losses and investment tax credits available will begin to expire
in 2007 and 2009, respectively, Scientific research and development expenses can be carried forward indefinitely and
deducted against future taxable income otherwise calculated.

The provision for income tax differs from the amount obtained by applying the combined federal and
provincial income tax rates to the earnings before income taxes and discontinued operations. The difference relates to the

following items:

2004 2003
Combined Canadian federal and provincial income taxes at expected rates of 35.6% (2003 - ,
3780 et a e e et et et e et bes e s ana st et et s eteseenneanaseaes $(125,737) $33,841
Non-deductible permanent and other differences ..o 258,814 267,960
INVEStMENT tAX CIEAILS ..ot es et se e s s ere e st st e st emesr s st eraantarebanesrrares T (286,843)  (233,208) _
Change in valuation AHOWANCE oot e 129,557 (123,725)
TaX EXPENSE (TECOVETY ). cererierrrerer i tsrrrereseasesasassssseserarmsssasesssrres sereresssssasasasassasssssssasasasas o $(24,209)  $(55,132)

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and
liabilities at December 31, 2004 and 2003 are presented below:

2004 2003

Defeired tax assets: : S : . .
Deferred revenue ... OO $ - § 70407
INOD-CAPIEA] LOSSES 1ovviiviiiiiiiiireiscir s tes st sttt s e st te e s e e e eme e e e e e eeeeeeneeeaeenens 185,540 78,283

Scientific research and experimental development expenditures.................cccueue.e.... 170,170 93,678
Warranty and inventory valuation [ESEIVES ... ..cvvcvvrriisinsesrmisnrernrinsrssssereeerssasens 39,580 59,099




2004 2003

Property, plant and €QUIPIIENT.........ccooirrrmrr et st 26,204 -

Total gross deferred tax AS5e18......ocvircrecirerir et bbb e 421,494 301,467

Valuation AllOWANCE........ccooov e aead eeeeeerend SR (208,382) (78,825)
Dreferred TAX @SSELS ... ..oe e ceee ettt cse e e e e e e ee et e et e et e et sate saeeaaesasenat et et eerean 213,112 222,642
Deferred tax liabilities:

Property, plant and eqUIPMENt............ccoiiiiiniini e - (2,944)

INEANEIBIE ASSEES .....eeee e e e s e e s b b e s bt bbbt (37,808) (81,037

Total gross deferred tax lHabilities .......ccovcvveviiveceecieines s e (37,808) -(83,981)
INEt AETEITE LAX ASSEL.....eivvieeieeeeceee ettt rr ettt e e e s e s s e s e e eannesnessresseenaterenesenaneeanenn $ 175304 § 138,661

The net deferred tax assets related to discontinued operations, which are not included above, as at
December 31, 2004 are $60,334 (2003 — $62,591). The Company believes that realization of certain of their net deferred
tax asset is more likely than not. In assessing the realization of their deferred tax assets, the Company considered
whether it is more likely than not that some portion of all of their deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate
realization of their deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the period in
which temporary differences become deductible.

The Company considered projecied taxable income and tax planning strategies in making their assessment.
8. Share capital;
{a} Stock options:

On October 29, 1999, the Company authorized a special granting of 900,000 options to purchase common
shares. All options relating to this special grant were granted as at December 31, 2001.

Additionally, on May 30, 2000, the Company adopted a 2000 Share Option Plan {the “Plan™) which provides
for a maximum of 530,593 options to purchase common shares to be allocated to directors, officers, employces, and
consultants of the Company. Stock options are granted having exercise prices based on market prices at the date of grant.

For cach of the periods presented, the following stock options to employees, directors and officers were
outstanding:

2004 2003 )

Weighted ' Weighted
Number average Number average
of shares exercise price of shares exercise price

Outstanding, beginning of year...........cccvveene. s 1,263,500 § 0.81 1,744 834 § 0.93
Gramed ..o e 258,000 0.71 264,000 0.36
EXercised ..o e - - - -
CANCEIIEA ... esenen (628,500) 0.83 (745,334) 0.93
Outstanding, end of year........ooovvveicerceieieieeecc 893,000 % 0.84 1,263,500 § 0.81

At December 31, 2004, 617,000 (2003 — 1,097,000) of the stock options outstanding are held by officers and
directors of the Company with the remainder held by consultants and key emplovees of the Company. During the year
ended December 31, 2004, the Company expensed $4,792 (2003 - $19,556) for stock options issued to contractors. The
average vesting period for all options is three years.

Details of options outstanding at December 31, 2004 are as follows:

Weighted
Number of average Number of
options remaining options
Exercise Prices outstanding contractual life exercisable
BO00 w0 oottt 258,500 3.22 86,170
B0AL — 082 et 168,500 4.20 -
BOBZ — 124 e 322,500 2.63 172,507
BH.24 = LB6 ot 71.000 1.04 71,000




Weighted

Number of average Number of
optiens remaining options
Exercise Prices . cutstanding contractual life exercisable
BL86 — 2,07 e e s 13,000 0.62 13,000
B207 250 e e e s e : 59,500 (.34 59,500
893,000 2.80 402,177

(b) Warrants:

) 2004 2003

Warrants issued and outstanding ............c.cooeeveeicierneneeneens ettt 40,000 40,000

The exercise price of the warrants is $2.08 per common share. The warrants expire on October 31, 2005.

(c) The Company has a Share Compensation Arrangement (the “Arrangement”™) for non-management
directors. The total compensation for the vear ended December 31, 2004 is $35,113 (2003 - $29 ,969) which could be
settlad in cash or shares of the Company at the option of the Company If settled in shares, under the Arrangement, the
deemed price per share will be based upon the average closing price of the Company’s shares for fifteen days prior to
issuance. The Company has accrued this compensation, in accrued liabilities, at December 31, 2004.

9, Per share amounts:

Per share amounts are based on the weighted average number of common shares issued and outstanding
during the year. Fully diluted earnings per share assumes al! outstanding options have been exercised at the later of the
beginning of the fiscal period or the date of issuance. Where the impact of the conversion or exercise is anti-dilutive, the
conversions are not inctuded in the calculation of fully diluted per share amounts. The weighted average number of
shares ouistanding used in the computation of earnings (loss} per share were as follows:

2004 2003
Weighted average shares used in computation of basic earnings (loss) per share 10,080,360 10,080,360
Weighted average shares from assumed conversion of dilutive options......... - 224,016

Weighted average shares used in computation of diluted earnings (loss) per share
10,080,360 10,304,376

10. Segmented reporting:
(a} Business segments:

The Company has divided its operations into two separate business segments: “Healthcare”, which involves
the rzsearch and development, design, marketing and related consulting services for radio frequency identification
systems for the healthcare industry; “Industrial” which involves research and development, design, marketing, and
related consulting services for industrial inventory and asset tracking software systems.

The accounting policies for each of these segments are the same as described in note 2. The following
represents information used by management in assessing the performance of its operating business segments:

December 31, 2004 Healthcare Industrial Corporate Total
BaLES ettt $ 5171413 § 832274 § - § 6,003,687
Depreciation and amortization ..........cceeeveieeccveievevennnns 224,384 11,844 44,212 280,440
INTETESE BXPENSE ...ooviiiiiiiere ettt 313 23 190 526
[NEET2SE IMCOME. ..........ccoereeeeeieeei et een s (3,733) (10,567) (2,489) (16,790)
[ncome tax expense (TECOVELY) .covovvvirerieieieeecreecaeeressrasnas (25,259) {(1,050) - (24,209)
Net earnings (loss) for the year... 177,392 (121,128) (385,249) (328,985)
Additions to property, plant and eqmpment ....................... 52,920 5,922 - 58,842
SEIMENT ASSEES ....ovvvirreeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeteressre e e sreeresreereeeens 3,414,320 525,376 1,398,228 5,337,924
Goodwill .o e 1,449,806 - - 1,449,806

F-49




December 31, 2003 Healthcare . Industrial Corporate Total

Sales....ooiiiiieeeee TR $ 5317,232 $§ 800,612 §$ - § 6,117,844
Depreciation and amortization.............. ST 241,003 10,458 39,958 291,419
INtETESt EXPEISE -.oovieciecceieriectesce e ctsraeseneracenararsannresseens 6,560 224 2,965 9,749
INTETESE INCOMIL. .....cvvvevesteesreeeeieee e s s (2,193) (293) (1,470} (3,956)
Income tax eXpense (FECOVETY) ..ounrercmimnmmnnenmnnscscinnan, (71,540) (16,408) - {(55,132)
Net earnings (loss) for the year........cvvoveoeieeeece, 155,146 (81,971) 71,960 145,135
Additions to property, plant and equipment.........coovsinens 96,117 3,695 - 99,812
SEEMENT ASSELS 1vvvrveveee et rereiceciee s e st e 3,282,090 588,224 1,332,708 5,203,022

Goodwill ..o s 1,348,396 - - 1,348,396

The segment assets noted above are net of the assets of discontinued operations of nil (2003 —$34,631).

4

(b} Geographic segments:

All of the Company’'s assets and operations are located in Canada. The following table summarizes the
Company’s sales from continuing operations by geographic area:

2004 2003

CANAAA .. eevvevvrerse e ssesems oo O Teterenre e $ 837283 § 863,623
UUNIED SEALES .....o.eieiiveieeteeesiesr e esesse e sesee oo seees s sba b st s s s s s b e s r s e s E e as e e a e n e e st e se s nre 4,951,561 5,217,870
01 1T OO O SO OO OSSOSO SO UP PP PP PSP PP POIPI 214,843 36,351

$ 6,003,687 & 6,117,844

(c) Major customers:

Sales during the year to major customers included sales to one customer of $1,729,989 (2003 - §1,349,052)
and to another customer of $442,408 (2003 — $806,966).

11. Commitments:

Future minimum annual rental payments for operating leases are payable over the next five years are
approximately as follows:

L L J OO OO OO OO OSSOSO O $ 98,482
1T SO OSSO USSR PSSP , 164,245
P4 OO OSSO UY ST R PP 146,574
ZODB ..ottt et eae e e e s e eA bR Y A SRR bR 156,221
200D, et et ekt r s e 66,767

12. Related party transactions:

During the year, the Company paid legal fees of $69,044 (2003 — $51 053) to the Company’s legal counsel, of
which one of the partners is a Director of the Company. The Company paid consulting fees of nil (2003 - $18,945) to a
Director. These transactions are in the normal course of operations and are measured at the exchange amount, which is
the amount of consideration established and agreed by the related parties.

13. Financial instruments:
{a) Credit risk:

The Company, in its normal course of business, evaluates the financial condition of its customers on a regular
basis and examines credit history for any new custormer. In addition, the Company engaged the Export Development
Corporation to insure its receivables as of October 2000. This coverage provides insurance for 90% of certain
receivables.

(b) Fair values of financial instruments:.

The methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instruments for which
it is practical to estimate a value are as follows:
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(1) Short-term financial instruments:

The carrying amounts of these financial assets and liabilities are a reasonable estimate of their fair
values because of the short maturity of these instruments. Short-term financial assets comprise cash and
accounts receivable. Short-term financial liabilities comprise accounts payable, accrued liabilities and income
taxes payabie.

{c) Foreign exchange risk: .

Foreign exchange risk reflects the risk that the Company’s earnings will decline due to fluctuations in
exchange rates. Contracts billed in United States dollars by the Company are collected in the short-term and,
accordingly, the Company has determined there is no significant exposure to foreign currency fluctuations.

14. Subsequent events:

On January 27, 2005 the Company announced that it signed a definitive agreement with Applied Digital
Solutions (“ADSX™), where ADSX will acquire all of the issued and outstanding shares of the Company.

. A letter of intent for the acquisition was originally announced on November 3, 2004 and will be effected
through a plan arrangement under which ADSX will pay $1.33 (CAD $1.60) for each outstanding share of the Company
(approximately 10.1 million shares outstanding), payable in common shares of ADSX on the weighted daily average
closing price of ADSX common shares quoted on the Nasdaq Small Cap Market for the 10 consecutive trading days that
end 2 trading days before the closing.

Included in general and administrative expense for the year ended December 31, 2004 is $20,798 (2003 -
nit) for acquisition costs.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors
EX1 Wireless Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of EXI Wireless Inc. and subsidiaries as of March 31,
2005, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the three month

period then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management, Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of EXI Wireless Inc. and subsidiaries as of March 31, 2005, and the results of their operations and their cash
flows for the three month period then ended in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

The comparative figures for the three month period ended March 31, 2004 are unaudited.

KPMG LLP (signed)
Chartered Accountants

Vancouver, Canada
November 9, 2005

ehe
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EXI WIRELESS INC.

Consolidated Balance Sheets
(Expressed in United States dollars)
{Prepared in accordance with United States GAAP)

Assets
Current assets;

Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $25,009 (2004 —
822,518t s

INVERtOTY (NOEE 3} ..o

Prepaid BXPEMSES ....ovviieirie ettt st sre et

GOOAWIL (NOLE A).....oeoeeeeeeeeees e ettt ettt e teee e aeemeeaesaseraeereererrserennesbestes
Property, plant and equIpmMENt (NOLE 5).. . voveveveeeeeeeeeeereee e sneeen s
Other intangible asSels (N0 B) .....ivive vt
Deferred income taxes (NOte 7).......oociiirieciieiviiie ettt ees e e ane s

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

Current liabilities:
ACCOUNES PAVADIE ...t et
AcCrued Habilities ..o se st e st evae et e bt ensasnen
DefeITed TEVENUE .. .ovoi ettt ta b e ee e e e e eeee e e e ebbeeeans

Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock:
Authorized unlimited shares with no par value; nil outstanding in 2005 and
2004 Lot b e bt en st e
Common stock:
Authorized unlimited shares with no par value; 10,265,178 (2004 -
10,080,360) issued and outstanding
"Share capital (NOte 8)........cooeiii et e enes
Additional paid in CapItal ........ oo
Accumulated other comprehensive income — cumulative translation adjustment
Accumulated defICit .. .....oioiviiveeee e e e et

Commitments (note 11)
Subsequent events (note 14).

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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March 31, December 31,
2005 2004
$553,783 $1,126.642
1,981,918 1,709,173
413,420 409,731
31,114 60,411
2,980,235 3,305,957
1,440,697 1,449 806
190,865 189,455
188,799 217,402
174,202 175,304
$4,974,798 $5,337,924
$618,926 $714,666
184,842 393,551
200,490 204,301
1,004,258 1,312,518
4,554,076 4,396,803
124,363 124,363
821,384 847,098
(1,529,283) (1,342,858)
3,970,540 4,025,406
$4,974,798 $5,337,924




EXI WIRELESS INC,

Consolidated Statements of Operations
(Expressed in United States dollars)
(Prepared in accardance with United States GAAP)
Three month periods ended March 31, 2005 and 2004

2005 2004
(unaudited)
10T [ OO OO OOV UUU ROV BTURUUSEURUURUUUI $ 1985934 § 1,533,525
05t OF SIS ... cvieiceeeiei s e errerr e e s e s esint s s ba e et s saraestne s rr e e b e e snaa e peaeea et eerae st nne st aeate s 574,504 424,098
1,411,430 1,109,427
Expenses:
Research and development. ... ..o e 261,881 223,450
Depreciation and amOTHZALON ........oooieieieieee e e 61,546 66,617
General and admiInNISIEAIIVE. .....ivuvviirirricrineriseirirs s rsesssssaessesearesasansrssessesssnes 931,565 418,743
Selling and MArketing........cccoovemrrinn e e e 363,233 315,410
1,618,225 1,024,220
Earnings (loss) before undemnoted ... (206,795) 85,207
Other eamings (expenses):
34101 (-] PO OO U ST SO 2,405 1,084
Foreign exchange Zain ... 17,965 13,021
20,370 14,105
Earnings (loss) before inCOmMe taXes ....ccovieimeerinierericniiinii e i (186,425) 99,312
Income taxes {note 7):
CUITEML ..ottt ettt b et ae e s e sn s bt easen st easeseneessanenes - -
FUBUIE oo e - -
Net earnings (loss) for the period.........cooeovvenciiirnnen et $ (186,425} § 99,312
Earnings (loss) per share:
BaSIC ueeiciaitrirerirrisri ittt e e e em e es st me e neen et eme e e by 0.02) % 0.01
DHIIEA. ..ttt bbbt sbe bt e ba s sd bbb b s (0.02) 0.01
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding:
BaSIC..ccciiiiiie ettt 10,265,178 10,080,360
Diluted......ooooviee e s s s s 10,265,178 10,117,188

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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EXI WIRELESS INC.

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity
(Expressed in United States dollars),
{Prepared in accordance with United States GAAP),
Three month period’ended March 31, 2005 and 2004. -

»+% Common stock Accumulated
v other Total
Accumulated comprehensive Additional paid . stockholders’ \
Number Amount deficit income (loss) in capital * T equity -
Balance,
Dzcember 31, T , . . o e
2003 ..o, 10,080,360 $ 4,396,803 § (1,013,873) § 367,819 . % 119,571 $ 4,070,320
Net earnings .
(unaudited)........... - - 99,312 - - 99,312
Foreign currency Ce el
translation . o .
(unaudited).......... o - - - (55,667) ) - (55,667)
Comprehensive et
income
(unaudited).......... 43,645
Balance, March 31, - : : : Coe .
2004 (unaudited). -+10,080,360 $ 4,396,803 $ (914,561).% 512,152 $ . - 119571 & 4,113,965
Balance,
December 31, - - P
2004 ................... -10,080,360 $.4,396,803 $ (1,342,858) § 847,098 § . 124363-% 4,025,406
Net 1088 ..ccooveeeeieni, : - - (186,425) - e = (186,425)
Foreign currency CT
translation............ - - - (25,714) - - {25,714)
Comprehensive loss : i (212,139)
Stock: option
exercised.............. - 120,169 85,760 - - ’ - 85,760
Common shares - '
issued in lieu of
signing bonus a )
and consulting S
fess....... i - 64,649 71,513 - - - 71,513
Balance, March 31, ’ - ) o
2005 ., 10,265,178 $ 4,554,076 $ (1,529,283) §° 821,384 % 124363 § 3,970,540

- See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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EXI WIRELESS INC.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.
{Expressed in United States dollars) -
(Prepared in accordance with United States GAAP)
Three month periods ended March 31, 2005 and 2004

. - 2005 2004
. . (unaudited)
Cash provided by (used in): ;
Cash flow from operating activities: A
Net eamnings (loss) for the perlod ........................................................................... $ (186,425 § 99,312
Adjustments to reconcile nef earnings (loss) to net cash used in operating ‘
activities:
Depreciation and amortization.. . ; 61,546 66,617
Common shares issued in lieu of bonus and consultmg fees 71,513 -
Changes in non-cash working capital:
Decrease in accounts receivable ... (279,456) (278,534)
Decrease (increase) in prepaid eXpenses.......cieieiesecsesmn, 16,656 (34,274)
Decrease (Increase) in iNVEMTOTY ... .vrvvyvceescemeerrerr e e sresirate s b esssessnes 5,676 (10,525}
Increase {decrease) in accounts payable ..., - (89,954) 14,721
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities .........ocooeevrieecniec e (203,306) 31,848
Increase (decrease) in deferred TEVEMUE........ioiniiininensisnns oo (2,492) (15,904)
' (606,242) (126,739
Cash flow from investing activities: S
Payments for property, plant and equipment.....................ccccviniinn, (33,354) (23,933)
Proceeds on sale of property, plant and equipment ..., (3,506) (1,921)
(37,260) (25,854)
Cash flow from financing activities:

Common shares issued for cash ..o 85,760 -
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash ... (15,117) (14,864)'
Decrease il CASH ..o ettt s aa e et e (572,859) (167,457)
Cash, beginning of PEriod. ..o s 1,126,642 1,025,292
Cash, ENd Of PETIOU.........c.ccvcetieci e eresessseans st sb s $ 553,783 § 857,835
Supplementary information: - '

Interest expense paid..........coeeeeeeennnes frrete R $ - $ 526

Non-cash transaction: ’

71,513 § -

Common shares issued in lieu of bonus and consultmg feeS..covivcnirrrccerieereeene B

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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1. Operations:

EXI Wireless Inc. (the “Company™) was incorporated under the Alberta Business Corporation Act on July 12,
1996 and was continued under the Canada Business Corporation Act on June 2, 1999.

The Company is a radio frequency identification (RFID} based asset management and security company. The
Company’s principal business activity is the development and marketing of solutions, which help organizations extract
the greatest value from their assets and manage them to their highest potential and secure them from theft or loss. The
Company currently derives its revenue from the sale of security-based wireless tagging solutions and 1nventory and asset
tracking system software into healthcare, construction and energy markets.

2. Significant accounting policies:
(a) Consolidation:

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries,
EXI Wireless Systems Inc. and EXI Solutions Inc. (formerly Advanced Delivery Solutions Limited (*ADSL")} and
HOUNDware Corporation. All significant inter-company transactions and balances have been eliminated. These interim
financial statements, in the opinion of management, reflect all adjustments {(which include reclassification and normal
recurring adjustments), necessary for a fair presentation of the results for the interim periods presented.

(b) Inventory:

Raw materials inventory is valued at the lower of cost and replacement cost. Finished goods inventory is
valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost of finished goods includes the cost of raw material and
direct labour.

(c) Property, plant and equipment:

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of government assistance received. Depreciation of
property, plant and equipment is recorded on a straight-line basis using the following estimated useful life:

Asset Estimated uscful life Rate

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years 20%
COMPULET EQUIPTNIENT .c.covereaiarerereareeererereeneerereeacerennenesreneens 3 — 5 years 20%-33%
Computer SOFWATE .......cocoiieiicer oo 2years 50%

Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the lease term or five years, whichever is
shorter.

{d) Acquired technology and other intangible assets:

Acquired core technology and other intangible assets are stated at cost and are amortized by the straight-line
method over their estimated useful life of three to five years. Acquired technology and intangible assets used solely for
the purpose of research and development are expensed immediately in the year of acquisition.

(e) Goodwill:

Goodwill is the residual amount that results when the purchase price of an acquired business exceeds the sum
of thz amounts allocated to the identifiable assets acquired, less liabilities assumed, based on their fair values. Goodwill
is allocated as of the date of the business combination to the Company’s reporting units that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the business combination.

Goodwill has an indefinite use, is not amortized and is tested for impairment amiually, or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the goodwill might be impaired. The impairment test is carried out in
two steps. In the fitst step, the carrymg amount of the reporting unit is compdred with its fair value. When the fair value
of a reporting unit exceeds its canymg amount, goodwill of the reporting unit is considered not to be impaired and the
second step of impairment test is unnecessary. The second step is carried out when the carrying amount of a reporting
unit 2xceeds its fair value, in which case the implied fair value of the reporting unit’s goodwill is compared with its
carrying amount to measure the amount of the impairment loss, if any. The implied fair value of the reporting unit’s
goodwill is determined in the same manner as the value of goodwill is determined at the time of a business combination
described in the preceding paragraph, using the fair value of the reporting unit as if it was the purchase price. When the
carrying amount of goodwill exceeds the implied fair value of the goodwill, an impairment loss is recognized in an
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amount equal to the excess and is presented as a separate line item in the earnings statement before extraordinary items
and discontinued operations.

The Company performed its annual goodwill impairment test on December 31, 2004 and concluded that no
impairment charge was required for goodwill related to continuing operations. As at March 31, 2005, the Company is
operating in two operating segments and reporting units (see note 10).

() Impairment of long-lived assets:

The Company monitors the recoverability of long-lived assets, based on estimates using factors such as
expected future asset utilization, economic outtook and future cash flows expected to result from the use of the refated
assets or be realized on sale. The Company recognizes an impairment loss if the projected undiscounted aggregate future
cash flows are less than the carrying amount. The amount of impairment charge, if any, is defined as the excess of the
carrying value over its fair value.

(g) Foreign currency translation:

The Company’s functional or primary operating currency is the Canadian dollar. The Company’s financial
statements are prepared in Canadian dollars before translation to the US dollar reporting currency. The Company
translates transactions in currencies other than the Canadian dollar at the exchange rate in effect on the transaction date.
Monetary asscts and liabilities denominated in a currency other than the Canadian dollar are translated at the exchange
rates in effect at the balance sheet date. The resulting exchange gains and losses are recognized in earnings.

Amounts reported in Canadian dellars have been translated into the US dollar reporting currency as foltows:
assets and liabilities are translated into US dollars at the rate of exchange in effect at the balance sheet date and revenue
and expense items are translated at the average rates for the period. Unrealized gains and losses resulting from the
translation into the reporting currency are accumulated in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), a separate
component of stockholders’ equity. '

(h) Research and development costs.
Research and development costs are expensed as incurred.
(i} Warranty:

The Company provides certain warranties on its products. Provisions for future warranty costs based on
management’s best estimates are recorded when revenue on product sales is recognized. The warranty period for the
majority of the products ranges between one and three years. Management determines the warranty based on known
product failures (if any), historical experience, and other currently available evidence.

Three months Three months
ended ' ended
March 31, March 31,
2005 2004
(unaudited)
Balance, January I.......... et e ann $66,739 $66,546
Accruals for warranties issued ... 16,140 49,834
Settlements made (in cash or kind) (i6,611) (54,623)
Balance, March 31 ....ooocvvvririrc e nns $66,268 $61,757

(i) Pension plan:

The Company has a defined contribution plan for its employees. The Company accrues its obligations under
pension plans as the employees render the services necessary to earn the pension benefits. During the three months ended
March 31, 2005, the Company expensed $10,758 (Three months ended March 31, 2004 — $8,042) for the defined
contribution plan.

(k) Use of estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual amounts may ultimately differ from these estimates. Significant areas
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requiring the use of management estimates relate to the determination of collectibility of accounts receivable, net
recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment, goodwill and other intangibles, useful lives for depreciation and
amortization, investment tax credits recoverable and provisions for warranties.

(I) Revenue recognition:

Hardware and software revenue is recognized when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the goods
are shipped and title passes, the price is fixed or determinable and collection of the sales proceeds is reasonably assured.

Revenue from the sale of software implementation services and consulting services is recognized as the
services are performed. Revenue from post-contract support services is recognized over the term of the agreement.

When software arrangements include multiple elements to which contract accounting does not apply, the
individual elements are accounted for separately if vendor specific objective evidence (“"VSOE”) of fair value exists for-
the undelivered elements. Generally, the Company applies the residual method in atlocating revenue between delivered
and undelivered elements. If VSOE does not exist, the revenue on the completed arrangement is deferred until the earlier
of (a) VSOE being established or (b) all of the undelivered elements are delivered or performed, with the following
exceptions: if the only undelivered element is post-contract support (PCS), the entire fee is recognized ratably over the
PCS period, and if the only undelivered element is service, the entire fee is recognized as the services are performed.

Maintenance revenue is deferred and recognized ratably over the terms of the maintenance agreements.
o T v R L
(m) Stock-based compensation:

As permitted under SFAS No.123, “Accounting for Stock-based Compensation” {*FAS” 123), the Company
has elected to apply Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25 and related Interpretations in accounting for
its stock-based compensation arrangements, Accordingly, no compensation cost is recognized for any of the Company’s
equity instruments granted to directors and employees when the exercise price equals or exceeds fair value of the
underlying common stocks as of the grant date for each stock option. FAS 123 uses a fair value method of calculating the
cost of stock option grants. Had compensation cost for employee stock option plan been determined by the fair value
method, net income (loss) and earnings (loss) per share would have been as follows: o

b

Three months Three months
ended ended
March 31, March 31,
2005 - 2004
o ’ . ‘ (unaodited)
Reported net InComE (1055) ... vvvvievereeirrire e ieesc e s srsre e $(186,425) $99.312
Stock-based employee compensation expense determmed under
the fair value based Method .......coveieeeere s eeseen e (20,578) (15,504)
Pro forma net income (los_s) ...................................................... . $(207,003) $83,808
Earnings (loss) per share — basic and diluted:
As reported » ‘ $(0.02) $0.01
Pro forma........ . ' $(0.02) $0.01

The fair value of each option is estimated as at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model
with “he following weighted-average assumptions: dividend yield 0%, expected volatility 110%, risk-free interest rate
4.46% and expected average option term of five years. The weighted-average fair value of the value of the options
grantzd to employees during the three month period ended March 31, 2005 was nil per option (Three months ended
March 31, 2004 — $0.60).

(1) Income taxes:

Income taxes are accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes™, which
requires the use of the asset and liability method. Under this method, deferred income taxes are recognized for the future
tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statements carrying value and their respective income
tax bases (temporary differences). Changes in the net deferred tax asset or liability are generally included in earnings.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years
in which temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred income tax assets and
liabilities of a change in tax rates is included in income in the period that includes the enactment date. Deferred income
tax assets are ¢valuated and if their realization is not considered “more likely then not”, a valuation allowance is
provided.

F-59




{0) Investment tax credits:

Investment tax credits are accounted for using the flow-through miethod whereby such credits are accounted
for as a reduction of income tax expense in the period in which the credit arises.

(p) Earnings (loss) per share:

Basic earnings (loss) per common share are computed by dividing net eamings by the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding during the pertod.

Diluted earnings per common share is calculated using the treasury stock method and reflects the potential
dilution of securities by including stock options in the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for a
period, if dilutive.

(g) Comprehensive Income (loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) is recognized and measured pursuant to SFAS No. 130, “Reporting
Comprehensive Income”, This standard defines comprehensive income as all changes in equity other than those resulting
from investments by owners and distributions to owners. Comprehensive income is comprised of two components, net
earnings {loss) and other comprehensive income (OCI). OCI refers to amounts that are recorded as an element of
stockholders” equity but are excluded from net incomé because these transactions or events were attributed to changes
from non-owner sources.

(r) Comparative figures:

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the basis of presentation adopted in the
current year.

(5) Recent accounting pronouncements:

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) issued revised Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (Revised 2004) entitled “Share-Based Payment” (“FAS No. 1237). This revised
statement addresses accounting for stock-based compensation and results in the fair value of all stock-based
compensation arrangements, including options, being recognized as an expense in a company’s financial statements as
opposed to supplemental disclosure in the notes to financial statements. The revised Statement eliminates the ability to
account for stock-based compensation transactions using APB Opinion No. 25. FAS No. 123R will be effective for the
Company as of January |, 2006.

In December 2004, the FASB issued FASB Statement No. 153, “Exchanges of Nonmonetary Assets”, which
eliminates an exception in APB 29 for nonmonetary exchanges of similar productive assets and replaces it with a general
exception for exchanges of nonmonetary assets that do not have commercial substance. This Statement will be effective
for the Company for nonmonetary asset exchanges occurring on or after January 1, 2006.

In November 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 151 entitled “Inventory Costs — an amendment of ARB No. 43, Chapter 4”7 (“FAS No. 151”).
This statement amends the guidance in ARB No. 43 to clarify the accounting for abnormal amounts of idle facility
expense, freight, handling costs and spoilage. FAS No. 151 requires that these items be recognized as current period
charges. The Company has adopted FAS No. 151, which had no effect on the consolidated financial statements.

3. Inventory:

March 31, December 31,
2005 2004
Finished Z00dS ...o.vcvoreveriiccree e $462,049 $454,149
Reserve for obsolete INVENIOTY ..o (48,629) (44,418)
' $413,420 $409,731

4. Goodwill:
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March 31, December 31,

2005 2004
COST cvneveeietesreeuintereeeeeemeeteemeeaeereesbes b essasbe e satssnbnbesneare e s nanansssresbsmnanes $2,195,941 $2,209,825
Accumulated amortiZation ........vvvvvee e e 755,244 760,019

Net book valie .o.oveevrevnne... e s a et e r e $1,440,697 $1,449,806

The change in goodwill and its components is solely due to foreign exchange fluctuations.

5. Praperty, plant and equipment:

) . Accumulated Net book
March 31, 2005 Cost depreciation value
Furniture, fixtures and equipment..............cccccooniisiiinenescnnesnnns $ 464,886 % 390,774 § 74,112
COmPULEr SQUIPTIENE ...t s 440,669 357,332 83,337
COMPULET SOTEWATE. .....rveveierereeisacsnecacicececcac e eeemess s e st et nan s aenis 276,009 253,749 22,260

Leaszhold improvements ..ot 103,181 92.025 11,156
' $ 1284745 § 1,093,880 § 190,865

'

Accumulated Net book
December 31, 2004 . Cost depreciation value
Furniture, fixtures and eqUipment.. ... ... eevvrecriieeor et sseisenss $ 466,106 $ 381,817 § 84,289
COMPULET SQUIPITEIE «...oeeonieieeeirerarercerereeneerereeaesmn s ms s sessoresrsressenes 415,936 346,196 69,740
COMPULET SOTTWATC. ...ttt s 272,945 250,354 22,591
Leaszhold improvements ... ...ccooevereiie e cnnse s en s e 103,834 < 90,999 12,835

$ 1,258,821 $ 1,069,366 $ 189455

6. Other intangible assets: _ )
March 31, December 31,
2005 2004
Acquired technology and other intangible assets ... $ 695322 % 699,719
Accumulated aMOITIZAION ........oeceeeieieecieevccmeee e ererireresssssessireeaeans 506,523 482,317
Net book value ..o reenns rernen ettt $ 188,799 % 217,402

Intangible amortization expense for the three month period ended March 31, 2005 was $30,707 (Three months
ended March 31, 2004 — $28,326).

7. Income taxes:

As at March 31, 2005, the Company has non-capital losses carried forward of approximately $734,000,
federal and provincial investment tax credits available for carry forward of approximately $1,073,000 and scientific
resezrch and experimental development expenditures available for carry forward of approximately $663,000. Non-capital
losses and investment tax credits available will begin to expire in 2007 and 2009 respectively. Scientific research and
development expenses can be carried forward indefinitely and deducted against future taxable income otherwise
calculated.

The provision for income tax differs from the amount obtained by applying the combined federal and
provincial income tax rates to the earnings before income taxes and discontinued operations. The difference relates to the
following items:

Three months

Three months

ended ended
March 31, March 31,
2005 2004
(unaudited)
Combined Canadian federal and provincial income taxes at
expected rates of 35.6% (March 31, 2004 — 35.6%)............. $ {66,367 $ 35,355
' Non-deductiblé permanent and other differences.............cocco 14,579 1,217
Investment tax Credits......cocvvveeecnneesin e {90,600) -
Change in valuation alloWance...........ceevevinrenrremmrrenececns 142,388 (36,572)




Thrée months Three months

. ended ended
March 31, March 31,
2005 2004
R (unandited)
Tax expense........coowenen.. S reere ettt et g - % -

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and
liabilities at March 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004 are presented below:

Three month

period ended Year ended
March 31, December 31,
2005 2004

Deferred tax assets: -

INON-CAPIAL JOSSES «..oceoveeierierr et s s $ 261,261 % 185,540

Scientific research and experimental development expenditures.................... 236,067 170,170

Warranty and inventory valuation reSeIVES.........covrvevrererereeenermenennreinesnnes 40,755 39,580

Property, plant and eqUipment. ... 29,679 26,204

Total gross deferred 12X ASSELS.......covvuirviirerereeeeetnre e 567,762 421,494

Valuation alloWance.........vvveereireneeeene s e e eses s saseras semeeere s (350,770) (208,382)
DeferTed taX ASSEIS 1 vrieureeeeeeieeeieee e reeeeeer e e e eeeetesebase et s sba e be e e sabeaate e s enbesrn s sraeesaba ae 216,992 213,112
Deferred tax liabilities:

Intangible aSSets ..o (42,790) (37,808)
Net deferred taX AS5ET.. ..o beeses e ss st s e e e e e e s $ 174,202 § 175,304

The net deferred tax assets related to discontinued operations, which are not included above, as at March 31,
2005 are $59,953 (December 31, 2004 - $60,334). The Company believes that realization of certain of their net deferred
tax asset is more likely than not. In assessing the realization of their deferred tax assets, the Company considered
whether it is more likely than not that some portion of all of their deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate
realization of their deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the period in
which temporary differences become deductible.

The Company considered projected taxable income and tax planning strategies in making their assessment.
8. Share capital:
(a) Stock options:

On October 29, 1999, the Company authorized a special granting of 900,000 options to purchase commen
shares. All options relating to this special grant were granted as at December 31, 2001.

Add:tlonally, on May 30, 2000, the Company adopted a 2000 Share Option Plan (the “Plan”) which provides
for a maximum of 530,593 options to purchase common shares to be allocated to directors, officers, employees, ‘and
consultants of the Company. Stock options are granted having exercise prices based on market prices at the date of grant.

For each of the periods presented, the following stock options to employees, directors and officers were
outstanding:

March 31, 2005 December 31, 2004
Weighted Weighted
Number average Number average
of shares exercise price of shares exercise price
Outstanding, beginning of Year............ccocvvrimnsvenercncannns 893,000 §$ 0.84 1,263,500 % 0.81
[0 111 OO PSPPSR OOPP PSRRI - - 258,000 0.71
Exercised .ooovevieciciecersieeeee s vessvesssrnsssnssenssesnennneenns (120,000) 0.99 - -
Cancelled ..o (15,500) 0.65 (628,500) 0.83
Outstanding, end of year.............ccnniiinnncienn 757,500 § 0.85 893,000 § 0.84

F-62




At March 31, 2005, 617,000 (becember 3 l,.2004 — 617,000) of the stock options outstanding are held by
officcrs and directors of the Company with the remainder held by consultants and key employees of the Company. The
averzge vesting period for all options is three years.

.

Details of options outstanding at March 31, 2005 are as follows:

Weighted
* Number of average Number of
options remaining : options

Exercise prices . outstanding contractual life exercisable
BO0D =0T e ettt e 231,502 292 144,336
BOAL =082 ettt ettt e s saen et 150,166 3.96 47,506
SO82 1.2 oo bt Fans e . 232,332 - - 336 129,171
FE24 = 100 oo 71,000 0.80 71,000
$166-2.07..... Lttt e e e ae e s e ' 13,600 0.37 13,000
B 207 = 250 e e 59,500 : 0.01 59,500
' 757,500 258 464,513

(b} Warrants:
' March 31, December 31,
2005 . 2004
Warrants issued and outstanding...........cc.coceuee TS UNURURRURUIIIR 40,000 40,000

The exercise price of the warrants is $2.08 per common share, The warrants expire on October 31, 2005.

{(c) The Company has a Share Compensation Arrangement (the “Arrangement”’} for non-management
directors. The total compensation for the three month period ended March 31, 2005 is $5,501 (Three months ended
March 31, 2004 — $1,317) which could be settled in cash or shares of the Company at the option of the Company. If
settled in shares, under the Arrangement, the deemed price per share will be based upon the average closing price of the
Company’s shares for fifteen days prior to issuance. The Company has accrued this compensation in accrued liabilities
as at March 31, 2005,

9, Per share amounts:

Per share amounts are based on the weighted average number of common shares issued and outstanding
during the year. Fully diluted earnings per share assumes all outstanding options have been exercised at the later of the
beginning of the fiscal period or the date of issuance. Where the impact of the conversion or exercise is anti-dilutive, the
conversions are not included in the calculation of fully diluted per share amounts. The weighted average number of
shares outstanding used in the computation of eamnings (loss) per share were as follows:

March 31, March 31,
2005 2004
Weighted average shares used in computation of basic earnings (loss) per share .......... 10,265,178  -10,080,360
Weiglited average shares from assumed conversion of dilutive options...........ccoccuvueve. - 36,828
Computation of diluted earnings (loss) per share ..o 10,265,178 10,117,188

10. Segmented reporting:
(a) Business segments:

The Company has divided its operations into two separate business segments: “Healthcare”, which involves
the research and development, design, marketing and related consulting services for radio frequency identification
systems for the healthcare industry; “Industrial” which involves research and development, design, marketing, and
relatec consulting services for industrial inventory and asset tracking software systems.

The accounting policies for each of these segments are the same as described in note 2. The following
represents information used by management in assessing the performance of its operating business segments:
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March 31, 2005 Healthcare Industrial Corporate Total
T LN $ 1,726,208 $ 259726 $ T - $ 1,985,934
Depreciation and amortiZation..........ceecveeverresvevsnrseisrsesens 48,025 2,076 11,445 61,546
INTEreSt BXPENSE ...ovvvreciiinii et - - - -
INEETESt INCOMIC. .. oot e e e eee e eee e s e e b e (1,106) (1,299 - (2,405)
INCOME taX CXPENSE....covvrninririiiiriicriri e - - - -
Net earnings (loss) for the year..........ccoveveriicrenncnnnns 43,892 44,598 (274,915) (186,425)
Additions to property, plant and equipment...................... 33,354 - - 33,354
SeEMEnt ASSES oo 4,079,334 506,976 298,488 4,974,798
GOOAWILL ..ot rea e 1,440,697 - - 1,440,697

March 31, 2004 . Healthcare Industrial Corporate Total

(Unaudited)
BALES .ttt ———————————— $ 1,388,725 § 144800 % - § 1,533,525
Depreciation and amortization.........co.cvvninicinesienes. 53,063 2,655 10,899 66,617
INtErest EXPENSEe . ..o.voevieieeiee et 310 10 - 320
INLEreSt INCOIMIE. ... . vvvevevererereereeeereneee e v s e ireersenseresnreresreine. (738) (346) - (1,084)
INCOME 1aX EXPENSE...ccvieeereeeercrererer s rm e e e e - - - -
Net earnings (loss) for the year.........cocoeeeinnieinnenneneenee. 265,575 {69,292} {96,971) 69312
Additions to property, plant and equipment.............coc.o.c... 20,284 3,649 - 23,933
SEEMENE ASSELS .eveviieeeeeeeerneireree e emee s oo ere et e s ene s 3,614,894 513,739 1,176,873 5,305,506
GOOAWILL....oviiriiiiciccie e es e e 1,329,773 — - 1,329,773

The segment assets noted above are net of the assets of discontinued operations of nil (March 31, 2004 —
£34,131).

(b) Geographic segments:

All of the Company’s assets and operations are located in Canada. The following table summarizes the
Company’s sales from continuing operations by geographic area;

March 31, March 31,
2005 2004
{(unaudited)
CANAAA. .11 1 oaereevasraeeese s e peei e aene e eeceic et eece e eeaaaesee e e eas st eananbennane $ 246,169 § 201,108
UNIed SEALES 1oocvviivir e vrirerrerirs s sssa s e e e mep e eme e s me e 1,730,377 1,292,232
L1 ¢ =) U OO PO PRSPPSO 9,388 40,185

$ 1985934 § 1,533,525

{c) Major customers:

Sales during the threc month period ended March 31, 2005 to major customers included sales to one customer
of $563,805 (Three months ended March 31, 2004 — nil) and to another customer of $462,929 (Three months ended
March 31, 2004 — $488,072).

11. Commitments:

Future minimum annual rental payments for operating leases are payable over the next four years are
approximately as follows:

200800ttt e et es bbb e 163,255
2007 OO OO 145,633
2008.......ooteeiiereeeeeiertesbs s beseesbenset bt bbb s b eSS E Rt 155,240
2009 e e 66,348

12. Related party transactions:

During the three month period ended March 31, 2005, the Company paid legal fees of nil (Three months
ended March 31, 2004 - $9,940) to the Company’s legal counsel, of which one of the partners s a Director of the
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Company. This transaction is in the normal course of operations and are measured at the exchange amount, which is the
amount of consideration established and agreed by the related parties.

13. Financial instruments:
{a) Credit risk:

The Company, in its normal course of business, evaluates the financial condition of its customers on a regular
basis and examines credit history for any new customer. In addition, the Company engaged the Export Development
Corporation to insure its receivables as of October 2000. This coverage prov1des insurance for 90% of certain
receivables.

() }fatr values of financial instruments:

The methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instruments for which
it is practical to estimate a value are as follows:

(i) Short-term financial instruments:

The carrying amounts of these financial assets and liabilities are a reasonable estimate of their fair
values because of the short maturity of these instruments. Short-term financial assets comprise cash and
accourits receivable. Short-term financial liabilities comprise accounts payable, accrued liabilities and income
taxes payable. '

(¢) Foreign exchange risk:

Foreign exchange risk reflects the risk that the Company’s earnings will decline due to fluctuations in
exchange rates. Contracts billed in United States dollars by the Company are collected in the short-term and,
accordingly, the Company has determined there is no significant exposure to foreign currency fluctuations.

14. Subsequent Events

On March 31, 2005, the Company was acquired by Applied Digital Solutions (“ADSX"} where ADSX paid
$£1.23 (CADS1.60) for each outstandmg share of the Company (10,265,178 shares outstanding) payable in shares of
AD3X’s common stock based on the daily weighted-average closing price of its common stock quoted on the Nasdag
Small Cap Market for the ten consecutive trading days that ended three trading days before the closing.

Included in general and administrative expenses for the three month period ended March 31, 2005 is $532,176
(2004—nil) for acquisition costs.

Subsequent to the acquisition, the Company was renamed VeriChip Holdings Inc.

Subsequent to March 31, 2003, all outstanding stock options of the Company were exchanged for stock
options of ADSX.
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Report of Independent Registered Chartered Accountants

To the Board of Directors of Instantel Inc.

We have audited the balance sheets of Instantel Inc. as at December 31, 2004 and 2003 and the statements of
operations, shareholder’s equity and of cash flows for the years then ended. These ﬁnancml statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audits.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
{United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to
perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audit included consideration of internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our Ellldlt
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the -
Company as at December 31, 2004 and 2003 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As described in Note 13 to the financial statements, the ‘acéompanying financial statements of Instantel Inc. as-
at December 31, 2004 and 2003, and for the vears ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 have been restated.

On January 21, 2005, we reported separately to the shareholder of Instantel Inc. on financial statements for the
same periods, audited in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Canada and prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in Canada

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP - -

Chartered Accountants
Ottawa, Canada
January 21, 2005 except for notes 13 and 14 which are as of December 15, 2005
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INSTANTEL INC.

Balance Sheets .
as at December 31, 2004 and 2003
(in US dollars)

2004 2003
(Restated — Note 13)

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equiv'élents ................................................................................. $ 46,481 $ 167,451
ACCOURLS TECEIVADIE ....viiiiiii et ae e e e e e e s g seee e et sans 2,273,482 1,976,153 .
Inventories, net of allowance of $200,000 (2003 — $215,000) (Note 3)............ 1,529,993 1,370,161
Other cuITent assets ...oooovveeeee e b ebeebeesia st arreneraeereanas 406,532 343,804
: . : 4,256,488 3,857,569
CAPITAL ASSETS (NOE )it eeeeere e : 474,145 271,810
INTANGIBLE ASSETS (NOLE 5) ..oovioieiceeeeceerecee et cceenennnsd rrereeereees 6,270,000 9,690,000
GOODWILL.....oore e ere st se e e s as g s s et e ba bbb 592,547 592,547
' $ 11,593,180 $ 14,417,926
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Bank indebtedness (Note B) Crereeeree s e aeneas eeeeeeeeererenene $ 586,697 $ -
ACCOUNES PAYABLE ....c.coiiriiiieei ettt e e s 515,299 - 502,391
Accrued liabilities ............... bbbttt e es ' 357,495 350,490
-Income taxes payable (INOE T} ......ococviriininesicecenecc et eresrneaneas 328,711 5,947
‘Salary and benefits payable...............cccooiiinn 935,965 173,150
‘Financial instruments (INote 10).......covormvinvniceciecccicecees e - - 52,474
Deferred FBVEIUE .. . oiciieceieictieiveecee e ererr s brserssasaesrenasasasisnsssesensseansnessseaasnensn 60,000 -
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 8) ... e - 2,633,366
2,784,167 3,717,818
DEFERRED TAXES (NOtE 7) .vvoveiireiieiecnieseeese e e sreseeessessereesaressrssesescemsreseeesrea 2,674,706 3,818,000
LONG-TERM DEBT (NOE 8B} ......overerererererreeoeeesesessessssesesorcsssesssesssssssssssssesesnne 5,500,000 5,500,000
10,958,873 13,035,818
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Notes 9 and 11)
SHAF.EHOLDER’S EQUITY
Common stock
Authorized: unlimited, issued 6,251,601 (2003 ~ 6,25 ...cooccvcrvernciins 4,000,001 4,000,001
Accumulated defiCit .........over oot e r e esraee (3,365,694) (2,611,195)
Dther comprehensive incoOme {LOSS) ...vvvvvererererereeirere et - (6,698)
634,307 1,382,108

$ 11,593,180 3 14,417,926

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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INSTANTEL INC.

Statements of Operations

years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003
{in US dollars)

204 2003
(Restated — Note 13)
REVEIILE 1.1 vvvveeiiesieecre et e seeeesteeteeee e eteseeeetesmeseeteseeseeteseesasneseeneasenseneaneneeneanssansanens $13,594,918 $11,381,999
Co8t OF ZOOAS SOI cvueeeeeec et se e saree e s esns s rasmsmscrs 5,449,457 4,644,933
L (LT 1 11 =41 OSSO 8,145,461 6,737,066
Expenses :
‘ ReSEArch and dEeVElOPIMIEN .. ....o.sceeeersceeesseeereseseerereseeressseereseseereseesereeses 11,688,208 1,396,802
| SEIHNE v ececeiecer s e sre e e st s s s r e e bbb b sn e 942,822 661,703
‘ IMATKEIINE ...vevveevareresrsieisseeee e e e eec e e e e s s aenes s s e e se b sesr e srs ebes s assasan sreserrsasses 1,184,419 - 1,135,929
AQIMENISITATION. .. .ecuee e isireeceeerr v iaesaesassaerrassersrerarr e rarasaessastasssasasssnsrnnassarses 1,381,173 1,063,117
Amortization of Intangible @SSELs .......coooiivrieeeiceeeee e 3,420,000 - 3,420,000
INEEIESE EXPEIISE ... e reei e et e e st s sbe s e b ee e e ne st es s eneeseene et s essesrsssras 943,016 1,055,286
9,559,638 8,732,837
L05S DefOre HICOME LAXES.....c..eiveececeieccececarrencesnessnesmnsraenssessessssssnsssnsssnssrnessasssesssaesnnes (1,414,177) (1,995,771)
Provision for (recovery of) income taxes
CUITENE vvvvvveiesovssvesess s eesersensessseeeseseseeeseseseeeseeeeesseseeessesssesseseesesssssessseseeees 483,616 (273,010)
DEfITed .....oovic e e st se s eme e anr e (1,143,294) (522,000)
o (659,678) (795,010)
NE T LSS e e bbbt ba b et e s m et es b me e eseenenentesseasaarnres $(754,499) $(1,200,761)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

F-68




INSTANTEL INC.

Statements of Sharcholder’s Equity
years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003
(in US doliars)

Common stock Accumulated

Balance at December 31,

Net loss for the year.............
Change in fair value of
financial instruments.......

Balance at December 31,

Change in fair value of
interest rate SWap.............

Net loss for the year.............

Change in fair value of
financial instruments.......

Balance at December 31,
2004

other

comprehensive Total sharcholder’s

Retained earnings

Shares Amount (accumulated dcficit) loss equity
(Restated — Note 13) {Restated -Note 13}

6,251,601 § 4,000,001 8 (1,410,434) § (126,530) & 2,463,037
- - (1,200,761} - (1,200,761)
- - - 119,832 119,832

6,251,601 4,000,001 (2,611,195) (6',698) 1,382,108
- - - 126,530 126,530
- - (754,499) - (754,499)
- - - (119,832} (119,832)

6,251,601 $ 4,000,001 3 (3,365,694 $ - 5 634,307

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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INSTANTEL INC.

Statements of Cash Flows
years ended-December 31, 2004 and 2003
(in US dollars)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net 1088, ceerirereccienereece e,
Items not affecting cash:

AMOLTIZAIION ....ooiiivvivisisessissseerseistsiaiateaesteseessneeessesesneesnseesaneesane
Amortization of intangible assets ...t
DeferTed INCOMIE TAXES ..ovviceereeeeeeieeeaereressirseeesernessassresssssrensssareesern

Changes in non-cash operating working capital items

Accounts receivable........coco e
[NVENEOTIES ......cvecteeeeeetreceteee s e e es e cr s neeneeneiens
Other CUTENE ASSETS......oocieivreeveraeriivsre et sa ettt sie s
Income taxes payable...........ccin
Accounts payable...........oooiii
Accrued liabilities.........ccc.oecevvviererrnnnn, st
Salary and benefits payable ..o
. Deferred reVenUE ........ccooveicee et ettt

Cash provided by operating activities ..........cocerevevrvnmrnririeressrnrnesisisnnens

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of capital SSEL8 ....couviviieerrivere s errssere s asennas

Cash used in inVesting aCtiVIIES ....oovovier e sesrarernas

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from bank indebtedness ....cccoeeeeeeeeieeeeeeee e
Repayments of bank indebtedness ...
Repayment of long-term debt........ccooooinviiini,

Cash used in financing activities .........ccoveeeeeenemeeeecrirv s

DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ..o
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR........ovoveomvorerererererenen

Supplementary information:

Interest paid during the year...........coiiiennennesc e
Income taxes PAId.......ceceereeererreneiinrercriii e e

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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2004

2003

{Restated — Note 13)

$(754,499)  $(1,200,761)
203,253 195,227
3,420,000 3,420,000
(1,143,294) (522,000)
1,725,460 1,892,466
(297,329) (480,176)
(159,832) 166,754
(108,504) (85,219)
322,764 50,920
12,908 - - 81,647 -
7,005 . 52,421
762,815 (212,051)
60,000 -
2,325,287 1,466,762
(399,588) (199,557)
(399,588) (199,557)
2,930,025 1,510,271
(2,343,328)  (1,510,271)
{2,633,366)  (1,758,300)
(2,046,669)  (1,758,300)
(120,970) (491,095)
167,451 658,546
$46,481 $167,451
$952,334 $1,098,312
$177,999 $280,500




INSTANTEL INC. - .ot

Notes to the Financial Statements
. years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003
(in US dollars)

b v

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

On October 22, 2001, Instantel Inc. was acquired by Instantel Acquisition Corporation (“IAC”) 'a newly
created and wholly owned subsidiary of Instantel Holding Company SARL, a wholly owned subsidiary of Perceptis, L.P.
(“Perceptis”). Instantel Inc. and [AC were then amalgamated and continued under the laws of Ontario as Instante] Inc.

The Company is engaged in the manufacture and sale of electrenic monitoring and security equnpment 1
Instantel’s quality system is certified to the ISO 9001 quality standard. ‘

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES . . : -
Management responsibility

The preparation of the accompanying financial statements is the responsibility of management. This
responsibility includes the selection of appropriate accounting poticies and the exercise of careful judgment in
estaklishing reasonable and accurate estimates in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America, applied on a consistent basis and as appropriate in the circumstances.

Foreign currency translation

Effective October 21, 2001, the US dollar became the Company’s functiona'l currency as a result of the
continued growth of the Company’s business outside of Canada and the US dollar financing raised by the Company.

Monetary, assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than US doltars are translated at exchange
rates in effect at the balance sheet date. Revenue and expense items are translated at average rates of exchange for the
period. Translation gains or losses are included in the determination of net earnings for the period.

Invertories

All inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value, which includes a related portion of
overhead. All inventories are calculated using a standard cost system.

Capiial assets

Capital assets are recorded at cost less accumulated amortization. Amortization has been recorded on the
straight-line basis, designed to amortize the respective assets over their estimated useful lives. Application software is
amortized over twelve months, equipment over thirty-six months and leasehold improvements over the lesser of sixty |
meonths or the term of the lease. |

Expenditures for additions and improvements are capitalized; expenditures for maintenance and repairs are
charged to expense as incurred. When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost of assets and related : !
accurnulated amomzatlon are eliminated from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is reflected in the results of
operations.
Intangible assets and goodwill

. ]

Goodwill is not'subject to amortization but is tésted for impairment annuvally, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired. '

Acquired trademarks, customer relationships and technology are being amortized on a straight-line basis.over
a five-year period.

Impairment of long-lived assets

Instantel Inc. tests long-lived assets or asset groups for recoverability when events or changes in
circumnstances indicate that their carrying amount may not be recoverable. Circumstances which could trigger a review
include, but are not limited to: significant decreases in the market price of the asset; significant adverse changes in the
business climate or legal factors; accumulation of costs significantly in excess of the amount originally expected for the
acquisition or construction of the asset; current period cash flow or operating losses combined with a history of losses or
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a forecast of continuing losses associated with the use of the asset; and current expectation that the asset will more likely
than not be sold or disposed significantly before the end of its estimated useful life.

Recoverability is assessed based on the carrying amount of the asset and its fair value which is generally
determined based on the sum of the undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the use and the eventual disposal of
the asset. An impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount is not recoverable and exceeds fair value.

Revenue recognition

The Company sells through distribution channels and revenue is recognized at the time of product shipment to
customers and when all significant contractual obligations have been satisfied and collection is reasonably assured.

The Company does not accept purchase orders or contracts with return clauses although it may, at its sole
discretion, choose to accept customer returns,

Accruals for potential warranty claims and estimated sales returns, if any, are made at the time of shipment
and are based on contract terms and prior claims experience.

Guarantees

The Company has the following major type of guarantee that is subject to the accounting and disclosure
requirements of FASB Interpretation No. 45, Guarantor s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees,
Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others (“FIN 45™)..

Product warranties — The Company provides all customers with standard warranties on equipment for a period
of twelve months. The following table details the changes in the warranty liability:

. 2004 2003
Balance, beginning of period ... e $95,000 $150,000
Warranty COStS INCUITEA .....ocooiii it et sa st se s b st a e ssssbareeas (138,291) {91,068)
Warranties GSSUBH ..ot e s seasa s sabe bt cabentsaeeere st ernenenanen 138,291 91,068
Changes to accruals related to pre-existing Warranties ...........cc.ceeveueveeeveecceeeesererereceenon, 70,000 (55,000)
Balance, engd 0f PEriod ........cccciii ettt n e en e e s $165,000 $95,000

Deferred revenue

Revenue related to post-contract support (“PCS”), including technical support and unspecified when-and-if
available software upgrades, is deferred and recognized ratably over the PCS term.

Investment tax credits

Investment tax credits, which are carned as a result of qualifying research and development expenditures, are
recorded as a reduction to the income tax expense. The benefit is recognized when the Company has complied with the
terms and conditions of the applicable tax legislation or approved grant program and there is reasonable assurance of
realization, :

Income raxes

Income taxes are recorded using the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amount of
existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected 1o apply to taxable income in the years in which the
temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The measurement of deferred tax assets is reduced, if
necessary, by a valuation allowance for any tax benefits that are not expected to be realized.

Cash and cash equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less to be
cash equivalents.
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Financial instruments

The Company’s financial instruments, including accounts receivable, income taxes payable, accounts payable
and acerued liabilities are carried at values that approximate their fair values due to their relatively short maturity period.
The carrying amount of the long-term debt approximates its market value because the debt bears interest at rates
consistent with market rates for similar instruments.

Derivative instruments and hedging activities

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities” (SFAS 133”) and the corresponding amendments requires all derivatives, whether designated in hedging
relationships or not, to be recorded on the balance sheet at fair value. If the derivative is designated in a cash-flow hedge,
changes in the fair value of the derivative will be recorded in other comprehensive income (OCI) and will be recognized
in the statement of operations when the hedged items affect earnings.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements, Estimates include the allowance for bad debts, inventory
provision, valuation and amortization of capital and intangible assets, valuation of goodwill, and valuation of deferred
taxes. Actual results could differ from such estimates.

Recent accounting pronouncements

In November 2004, the FASB issued Statement No. 151, [nventory Costs-(“SFAS 1517}, SFAS 151 amends
the guidance in ARB No.43, Chapter 4, “Inventory Pricing,” to clarify the types of costs that should be expensed rather
than capitalized as inventory., SFAS 151 is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2005, or for the Company’s
Fiscal 2006 year end. The Company is currently evaluating the requirements of SFAS 151 and has not yet fully
determined the impact, if any, on the financial statements.

3. INVENTORIES

2004 2003
IMALETIAIS ... $ 809,701 % 778,647
WOIK D PrOCESS. ccecvverrrrerrisirerreernvnss e e e esnsasmssasseseenenns 349,162 369,650
Finished goods ...t 371,130 221,364

$ 1,529,993 $ 1,370,161

4. CAPITAL ASSETS
2004
Accumulated Net Book
. Cost Amortization Value
Application SOftWAre ..o e ceenene . 33,393 § 23,626 § 9,767
EQUIPMENE ..o 878,877 414,499 464,378
Leasehold improvements.......ccoooeevniennieienicneesennens 57,319 57,319 -
§ 969,589 § 495444 § 474,145
2003
Accumulated Net Book
Cost Amaortization Value
Application software ..........cooooeieiiiiiieieieeee. $ 27458 § 19,955 % 7.503
EQUIPIMENE oo e e 693,567 428,037 265,530
Leasehold improvements........cocoovvverereeenecncinenienninenn 57,319 52,542 4777

§ 778344 3 500,534 & 277810
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5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets consists of:

. 2004 2003
Trademarks. ........ooceeeiveeeeeeet v ts e bn e $ 4,600,060 $ 4,600,000
Customer relationships......oov v renens 6,200,000 6,200,000
TeChNOLOZY ..ottt eaeas 6,300,000 " 6,300,000
; . 17,100,000 17,100,000
Less accumulated amortization ............cococoeeveeeeeieiceeceeceeeennn, 10,830,000 7,410,000

$ 6,270,000 % 9,690,000

Amortization of intangible assets was $3,420,000 and $3,420,000 in fiscal 2004 and fiscal 2003, respectively.
The remaining estimated amortization expense related to intangible assets in existence as of December 31, 2004 is as
follows:

L L O T PO SN . $ . 3,420,000
2006 ...ttt s e s s st e ba s e s b s $ 2,850,000

6. BANK LINE OF CREDIT

The Company has a bank line of credit up to a maximum of $2,000,000 bearing interest at prime plus 1/2%
(2004 - 5.75%, 2003 — 4.5%). The line of credit expires October 1, 2005 and is sccured by a general security agreement
representing a first charge on all assets other than real property. Interest expenseé related to this line of credit in 2004 was
$11,617 (2003 - $5,179). '

7. INCOME TAXES .
2004 2003
(Restated — Note 13)
Income taxes recoverable (payable) from prior period ... h) (5,947) § 44973
Provision for current income taxes
Recovery of prior year investment tax Credits........oo.oocovrvieivrmrrvninsesersecseeenscenes - 581,723
Provision for current year iNCOME TAXES......ovvurirrrirsercrrsisrsneressssssnsnscsesesesssssonss (909,893) (668,517)
Current year investment tax Credits — CUITENT.........ccooevecnimrernc i 392,545 339,471
Current year investment tax credits — capital .......ccccoevvniiiiin e 33,732 20,333
' (483,616) 273,010
CAPIAL TAXES 1uiitrieiiecctietie et eeeee e et st et she e e e e s e e e e ebe et e e b bbb s b b s b e tentane {15,302) (33,300)
INSERIIMEIILS ..ottt e st e e ettt e st n s e e easseem e e ssseenssesbaessstaanssnnse 240,000 280,500
Payments and refinds...............ccccovimiiid i e e een {66,241) (581,723)
AJUSHMENS ...eceieeiiiis ettt et s e b e e ant b e seson 2,395 10,593
, ' (322,764) (50,920)
Income taxes recoverable (payable).........ccoccviininii $ (328,711) $ (3,947)
The tax effect of components of the deferred tax liabilities are as follows:
Deferred tax liabilities:
[NANGIDIE ASSELS ..vevevineeiirrnireirie vt bbb s $ 2,389,706 $ 3,500,000
Long-term debl.....ocooei s 285,000 318,000

$ 2,674,706 $ 3,818,000

8. LONG-TERM DEBT

2004 2003

Term toan, bearing interest at bank prime plus 1%, repayable in nine monthly
installments of $70,833 beginning on January 1, 2004 with the balance due on
October 1, 2004, Interest is payable monthly. The loan is secured by a general
SECUTILY AZPEEIMENT. o.veururerrseeeeeeeeeeeerereeesesasse s s e e s seeeeacmcoseeeresasarsaaresastissssassbniebsins 3 - $ 2,633,366
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2004 2003

Senior subordinated note, bearing interest at 14% per annuin repayable in twelve equal

quarterly principal installments of $458,333 beginning December 31, 2006. Interest is ‘ ‘
payable qUAIEELY. ... SRR 5,500,000 5,500,000

5,500,000 8,133,366

CUITENT POTTIOM. cuttiteere ittt et st n s n e e b b e s s b e e s R b et b et s b e nre s - 2,633,366

$ 5,500,000 % 5,500,000

Principal payments required over the next five years are as follows:

2005ummnneereeessesessessssesssssessssserasaseesssessssssssssssesesesesssessessesessseeseseseseressesesstsess s sses $ -
2006 eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeesesee ettt eesseseeeesssssssesasesesesessseren 458,334
B00T eeress oo eeseesessssseessesesisasasasas s o essssssssesesesessesesssssesesesesosens 1,833,333
200B.cmmmmmereeeesssesssesssssssesesessssessesessesessessssssesssssseeee : 1,833,333
2009.ummvvvvveererersssssessssssesmesseeeeeeeeeesessessessssssasassssesesen _ X 1,375,000

$ 5,500,000

9. LEASE COMMITMENT'

The Company rents office and manufacturing space. The Company is committed under an operating lease for
officz and manufacturing space to pay monthly amounts in Canadian dollars. The payment in U.S. dollars for the next
five years will be approximately:

2005 ueeererenerereressesssesssssssssassssssnsensrensrssasssessssmsssnsatsistsessntares $ 260,000

U 2006t tsesinisssitosssbe s s ssssor s RSB RLSRS SRR SRS SO PSR SRS PR SRS R AR RA RS R AR RR SRR e SRR m TR SRS 267,000
2007.......... 280,000
2ODB.c. e cececeterencerusensseessonestssrossensarenssnsstesssssassnasnaresnesns e et SRR O Sas RO sa RSO TR TS 285,000
200D . 1senrirnsrirernessessssrassas sarasse nenssarstossssrasosssnsasenssnsatens she nes et s et R R AR AR R PA R e Y R e d 119,000

$ 1,211,000

10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES
Interest rate risk '

There is a risk to the Company’s earnings that arises from fluctuation in interest rates and the degree of
volatility of these rates. To effectively manage this risk, the Company entered into an interest rate swap contract that
expired during fiscal 2004. The contract was designated as a hedge for reporting purposes. As at December 31, 2004, the
Company has no interest rate derivative contracts. The Company has established strict guidelines that are monitored
regularly and does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes. -

Foreign exchange risk

The Company’s earnings and cash flows may be negatively impacted by fluctuations in foreign exchange
rates. The exposure is primarily limited to the Canadian dollar. To manage this risk, the Company regularly enters into
foreign exchange forward contracts. These contracts are normally designated as a hedge for reporting purposes. As at
December 31, 2004, there were no foreign exchange forward contracts outstanding.

Fair value

The fair value of the interest rate swap contract is $NIL (2003-$52,474), is recorded as a current liability and
reflects the present value of the potential gain if settlement were to take place on December 31, 2004. The notional
amount of the contract at December 31, 2004 is $NiL (2003 — $2,431,250).

11. CONTINGENCIES ) . '

The Company is invelved in defending legal actions. In Management’s opinion these claims are without merit
and no provision has been made. The outcomes, however, are undetermined as to the result or the total cost of the
defense, The costs incurred are charged to the period in which they occur.

i
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12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Perceptis provided a guarantee, for all payments when due, to the holder of the Senior Subordinated
Promissory Note in the amount of $5,500,000. During fiscal 2004, the Company paid Perceptis $125,000 (2003 -
$125,000) for management services and $80,000 (2003 — $80,000) for expenses incurred on the Company’s behalf.

13. RESTATEMENT

The financial statements for 2004 and 2003 have been restated to reflect the correction of errors in the

reporting of cash, deferred revenue and income taxes.

The balance sheet for 2004 was restated to reclassify certain cash and cash equivalent balances previously

recorded in bank indebtedness.

Revenue totalling $60,000 previously reported in 2004 has been deferred, reducing revenues and increasing

the 2004 net loss and deficit.

The fotlowing adjustments were made to increase (decrease) income taxes compared to amounts previously

reported:

CUITENT INCOMIE TAX EXPEIISE ...covieeireeretriaesreraersistsrrrsreressrariessarssssessessesssasesssssssssessesssssesssssesnes
Deferred INCOME taX EXPENSE...ooveivierirereenteereereetereerieraesesesscseseesssresesnssssssasassessasessassansnrans

AdJUSIMENT 10 NEL 0SS L..oiviiiiiiiiiiieiriree e e sre st e et sae e s e e e s e e e enasaeseannsbess
Income tax PAYADIE ... bt eanan

Deferred tax Hability ..o e rasasansens

The effects of these restatements were as follows:

2004

1003

$111,000 $31,000
(33,000) 318,000

$78,000 $349,000

$142,000 $31,000

$285,000 $318,000

2004 2003
AS As
previously AS previously As
reported restated reported restated
At December 31:
Cash. e b} - 3 46,481 $ 167,451 § 167,451
Income tax recoverable ........ccocoveivienierernenne, - - 25,053 -
CUITENT ASSELS .vvvvrererrrerrere e sresiseeens 4,210,007 $ 4,256,488 3,882,622 3,857,569
Total @SSELS.....ccvriiciieiiireeie e ariens 11,546,699 11,593,180 14,442 979 14,417,926
Bank indebtedness.........cccoeviiinnnniinnnnns 540,216 586,697 - -
Deferred revVenue ... e - 60,000 - -
Income tax payable ..o, 186,711 328,711 - 5,947
Total current liabilities .............ccccocoeeeeeeeen. 2,535,686 2,784,167 3,711,871 3,717,818
Deferred tax lability ....ccoocoviiciniiciniiiinn, 2,389,706 2,674,706 3,500,000 3,818,000
Total liabilities .....c.cocveveiviriciiriiccriviis i, 10,425,392 10,958,873 12,711,871 13,035,818
Accumulated deficit ... {2,878,6594) (3,365,694} (2,262,195) (2,611,195)
Shareholder’s EQUItY ....oovvevisieisieessimesininens 1,121,307 634,307 1,731,108 1,382,108
For the years ended December 31:
ReVEnue.....ocooovieiiceceeeee e, 13,654,918 13,594,918 11,381,999 11,381,999
L5 (AT 10721 ¢ 4] T 8,205,461 8,145,461 6,737,066 6,737,066
Loss before income taxes.......o.ccocevvevevnverneonn, {1,354,177) (1,414,177) (1,995,771 (1,995,771}
Current income tax expense (recovery)......... 372,616 483,616 (304,010) (273,010)
Deferred income tax expense (recovery)....... (1,110,294) (1,143,294) (840,000) (522,000)
NEtLOSS. i, (616,499) (754,499) (851,761) (1,200,761)
Statement of Cash flows for the years ended
December 31:
Net oSS ..o (616,499) {754,499) (851,761} (1,200,761)
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2004 2003
As As

previously As previously As

reported restated reparted restated
Cash provided by operating activities........... 2,325,287 2,325,287 1,466,762 1,466,762
Cash used in investing activities ................... {399,588) (399,588) (199,557) (199,557)
Cash provided used in financing activities.... (2,093,150) (2,046,669) (1,758,300) (1,758,300)
Cash and Cash equivalents, end of vear........ - 46,481 167,451 167,451

14. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On June 10, 2005, through a sale purchase agreement, the Company became a wholly-owned subsidiary of
VeriChip Inc. The purchase price of the company was approximately US$22,500,000 paid in cash and up to an
additional $3.0 million to be paid in the future in some combination of cash, VeriChip Corporation common stock and
Applied Digital Solutions Inc. common stock, depending on whether VeriChip Corporation completes an initial public

offering of its common stock.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and the Shareholder of Instantel Inc. +

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Instantel Inc. {The “Company”) as of June 9, 2005 and
the statements of operations, shareholder’s equity and cash flows for the period January 1 to June 9, 2005. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audit. The balance sheet of the Company as at December 31, 2004 was audited
by other auditors whose report dated January 21, 2005, except for notes 13 and 14 which were as of December 15, 2005,
expressed an ungualified opinion on those statements. The comparative figures for the period of January [, 2004 to
June 9, 2004 are unaudited.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform an audit (o obtain reasonable assurance whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test ba51s evidence supporting -
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estirates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as of June 9, 2005 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the period then ended
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

MEYERS NORRIS PENNY LLP

Chartered Accountants
Calgary, Alberta
November 17, 2005
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INSTANTEL INC.

Balance Sheets at. -.'

June 9, December 31,
2005 2004
(restated)
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS .
Cash and cash equivalents...........evevnes TSSOSO NPT eveee s $ 3,669 § 46,481
ACCOUNTS TECEIVADIE .....viiiiiiiii e sirerrernen e reeevanseseesras s esseae s st ae e s re e is s 2,307,540 2,273,482
IV I OEIES e veee e iatteeeeeeceeesaeetseraesaasarasssssnses s s beeesasbesesbresasa st ensntae s v rneneesnsnnnnenn 1,710,861 1,529,993
Current portion of deferred income taxes.......coecvevvccininniciennin e, 126,936 C -
OMhEr CUITEIIE ASSEES ..uveiureiivrrirerrerrrerreressnrensasnsersesmeemeeseeasees e enrssssssssssassussisons 286,178 406,532
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS ..ot snssssacssassresnnens JR 4,435,215 4,256,488
ICAPITAL ASSETS ..o veeevivevereeereeesrsesresseesseseeereseseseseesseesesasssrasssasssarsnssnsnseesressnsssas 492,649 474,145
INTANGIBLE ASSETS ............................................................................................ 4,759,500 6,270,000
GOODWILL......c.cevevvreveens enessarereeheaesesasesseesseesseesseseeettietsiatsirteasesssenaseaan arare e antran 592,547, 592,547

10,279,910 11,593,180

ILlABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER’S (DEFICIT) EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Bank iNdebteaniess. ... uee i tcrs it ssie e ssisbes st bre s renanaesseermsne e e e areeeeennate 714,263 586,697
Accounts payable ... 81,496 515,299
ACCTUE HADIILIES ..o.oooveiieeeeeeeeeee ittt stre s ses s e s sebte s vsme e e s s rme e e e s areeernranns 714,814 357,495
Defetred FEVENUE ....ccoiiieceieece et ss s esssst s s b e e bn e sav e renasssnaesssannsteassannne 149,000 60,000
TAXES PAVADLE........eveeiee et cereeeeeeaeee et ssesse s s s ST 122,464 328,711
Salary and benefits payable ..o 1,682,253 935,965
Current portion of long term debt............... SOOI 5,500,000 -
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES........ccotrenerereeetreme e sississsasssssssssossssonns 8,964,290 2,784,167
IDEFERRED TAXES......iioevirirmeseisessssessisesesssassseseseesssnesassssesssressessnassasssaransesnens 1,537,900 2,674,706
LONG TERM DEBT ......ooooovirirrinersininmenrininrsisissesssissesssesosssesiebstsssisisssssssssssssinas - 3,500,000
TOTAL LIABILITIES ..ottt ssssss st e s e ss st sbasseres 10,502,190 10,958,873

COMMITMENTS & CONTINGENCIES

SHAREHOLDER'S (DEFICIT) EQUITY
Preferred stock : Authorized unlimited shares in 2005 and 2004, of $0 par

value; 0 shares issued and outstanding in 2005 and 2004 .. e - -
Common stock : Authorized unlimited shares in 2005 and 2004 of 50 par
value; 6,251,601 shares issued and outstanding in 2005 and 2004 .............. 4,000,001 4,000,001
DIBTICHL. .vveviiiiiiee ittt b s e ea e b e R et s (4,222,281) (3,365,694)
TOTAL SHAREHOLDER’S (DEFICIT) EQUITY ..o (222,280) 634,307

$ 10,279,910 § 11,593,180

See the accompanying notes to financial statements.
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INSTANTEL INC.

Statements of Operations

REVENUE ..ottt bbbt e b bt et e bt 4084t e e e et eean
Cost of goods sofd ........c.ooeemrirenec b

GrOSS MATGIN.....ooiiiiccicirvr e eraere e ar s ese e srnsese e s e b n s e se s sarasabesasenbesasn s snsabes

Research & developmient ...
SelliNg ..o e ————————————— et
MATKEUIIZ 1o vvvv vt ss s s bt sttt sttt s s en s
AdMINISIRATION. c..coviiiiiet i st ea s e neesra s e s rassbens
Amortization of INtangible ASSELS ...ocvovvviivvviiee e s
Interest eXPense ... vvvvrersirerecn s et

Loss from operations before iNCOME taXes ......c.cove i et s

Net 1085 Tor the PEriod.....covvciiiviece bbb ss b ee e
INEt 1085 PEI SHATE ...t ar st st ares

Weighted average common shares outstanding ..........cooveveueeieeecieeeeeeeeereserererevseans

See the accompanying notes to financial statements.
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For the Period Ended June 9,

2005 2004
(Unaudited)

$6,759,291 $5,539,772
3,226,520 2,315,057
3,532,771 3224715
1,039,504 676,401
648,786 377,083
1,091,808 509,025
952,401 472,152
1,510,500 1,510,500
367,086 443,643
(2,077,314) (764,089)
(43,015) (137,973)
1,263,742 545,588
$(856,587) $(356,474)
$(0.14) $(0.06)
6,251,601 6,251,601




INSTANTEL INC.

Statements of Shareholder’s Equity (Deficit)

For the Period Ended June 9, 2005 and the Year Ended December 31, 2004

Retained

Balance — December 31, 2003 .....

Net loss for the year........c.cccc....

Change in value of interest rate
SWAD c.ceverineniereererer s reeeenerereneas

Change in fair value of financial
instruments................ eeeraerienes

Balance — Decémber 31, 2004 .....

Net loss for the period..................
Balance — June 9, 2005 ...............

X Total
Common stock Earnings Accumulated other Shareholders
Shares Amount (Deficit) comprehensive loss Equity
6,251,601 $ 4,000,001 § (2,611,195 § (6,698) $ 1,382,108°
- - (754,499) - {754,499)
- - - 126,530 126,530
- - - (119,832) (119.832)
6,251,601 4,000,001 (3,365,694) - 634,307
- - (856,587) = (856,587)
6,251,601 § 4,000,001 § (4,222,281) § - (222,280)
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INSTANTEL INC.

Statements of Cash Flows

For the Period Ended June 9,

2005 2004
{(Unaudited)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES o
NELLOSS ... eeeeesseeermeens N eeeeeeeeeseeeesenniese s seens e ettt $  (856,587) $ . (356,474)
Items not affecting cash:
DIEPTECIATION ..ottt st ettt st se bbbt s en e e eeeseemnesas eenneen 132,656 - 85,605
Provision for doubtful ACCOUNLS .............cccveeveveierrrer s e e esrrerereessesarsenssaeeses 25,000 -
Provision for obsolete iNVENIOTY ......c..c.cev v ievecrrec et 395,000 -
Amortization of INtangible ASSES .........cveveevereiereeeesreeeieeasr ettt e 1,510,500 1,510,500
Deferred INCOIME tAXES ..iiiiiiiiiiiteerie et e e e reesceenseeseeenesmsenssenmseessesoreestessessasns (1,263,742) (545,588)

(57,173) 694,043
Changes in non-cash operating working capital items

ACCOUNTS TECEIVAIE ..ol e (59,058) 111,133
INCOME tAXES TECOVEIADIE ........oeeeeeeereriscvarsisrsrsiresssesesessssssesessessasssesensrssssassens - 25,053
INVENIOTIES ..ottt sre s snese s s s aaaranes (575,898) (198,029)
OtheT CUITENT ASSEES ...vveeeseeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseseseseseseesssesssesneneses ererererenenessssnaras 120,354 166,291
ACCOUNES PAYADIE ... e et (433,803) (314,170)
ACCIUE NADIHLIES «...veeeieeveireereeereee e eierstessae e e s crs s s s e se s saeeere et e e ban smsenns 357,319 95,232
[T 150 (=0 B U= 110 =TTV U UOSRURR 89,000 -
Income taxes payable ... e s (206,246) 79,802
Satary and benefits payable..........cccoveviiiinini e e e 746,288 151,588
OMRET. .o s e se e e s e e bt an e bannabaras - (45,776)
Cash (used in) provided by operating actiVities .........ccocvvrverernnreriservoirnsresinsnns (19,217) 765,167
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of capital 8S5ets ..ot e s (151,160} (67,227)
Cash used in Investing ACtiVItIes ..o s (151,160) (67,227}
FINANCING ACTIVITIES :
Increase in bank indebtedness ... ...ttt 127,565 -
Repayment of long term debt........cooiviiiiiie e - (417,351)
Cash provided by (used in) financing actiVities ..........cocvveirnerereescereneeccesenesiens 127,565 (417,351)
INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS .....coovivmcrervenrceetveeenns (42,812) 280,589
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF PERIOD ...........cocoeuenn... 46,481 167,451
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF PERIOD ..........ccoovovevrnieinirnenseens $ 3,669 § 448,040
Supplementary information
INEETESE PAIA ...ttt st bbb et a b s b s st ee s e eaneneereneees $ 367,885 % 476,552
INCOME tAXES PAI ...oiviiiiririieie ettt e n s ena e e st ea s er s b 279,828 § 43,055

See the accompanying notes to financial statements.
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. DESCRIPTION OF THE BUSINESS

The Company is incorporated under the laws of Ontario, Canada and is engaged in the manufacture and sale
of electronic monitoring and security equipment. Instantel’s quality system is certified to the ISO 9001 quality standard.
The company manufactures high-quality remote monitoring products in the areas of healthcare security and vibration
monitoring for a diverse customer base. Instantel Inc.’s Xmark® division specializes in smart tag technology for
protecting people and assets in healthcare environments. Its Hugs® product line is a popular RFID system for preventing
the abduction of newborn infants in hospitals, while the WatchMate® system is used in long-term care facilities to protect
wander-prone residents.

Instantel Inc. is a wholly owned subsidiary of Instantel s. ar. 1.
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Management responsibility

The preparation of the accompanying financial statements is the responsibility of management. This
responsibility includes the selection of appropriate accounting policies and the exercise of careful judgment in
establishing reasonable and accurate estimates in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America, applied on a consistent basis and as appropriate in the circumstances.

(Cash and cash equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investiients with an original maturity of three months or less to be
cash equivalents:

.

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding balances.
Management provides for probable uncollected amounts through a charge to earnings and a credit to a valuatlon account
based on its assessment of the current status of individual accounts.

Inventories

All inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value, which includes a related portion of -
overhead. lnventorles are reviewed periodically to determine if an allowance for obsolete and slow moving inventory is
required.

Capital assets

Capilal assets are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation and amortization are recorded
cn the straight-line basis, designed to amortize the respective assets over their estimated useful lives. Application
software is depreciated over twelve months, equipment over thirty-six months and lcasehold lmprovements over sixty
months.

Expenditures for additions and improvements are capitalized; expenditures for maintenance and repairs are
charged to expense as incurred. When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost of assets and related
accumulated amortization are eliminated from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is reflected in the resuits of
aperations.

Goodwill and intangible assets
Goodwill is not subject to amortization but tested for impairment annually or more often if events or changes

in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired. To date, it is management’s opinion that there has been no

impairment in the carrying value of goodwill. Therefore, no amount of impairment has been charged to earnings.

Acquired trademarks, customer relationships and technology are being amortized con a straight-line basis over ..
a five-year period.

Intellectual property costs

Patent costs and other costs such as legal opinions and licensing fees are expensed as incurred.
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Revenue recognition

The Company sells through distribution channels and revenue is recognized at the time of product shipment to
customers and when all significant contractual obligations have been satisfied and collection is reasonably assured.

The Company does not accept purchase orders or contracts with return clauses although it may, at its sole
discretion, choose to accept customer returns.

Accruals for potential warranty claims and estimated sales returns, if any, are made at the time of shipment
and are based on contract terms and prior claims experience.

Deferred Revenue Policy .

Post contract support {PCS) revenue is recognized, ratably, over the term of the agreement, since the selling
price of the appropriate maintenance portion of the contract price can be reasonably determined at the time of sale of the
initial license.

Income taxes

Income taxes are recorded using the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amount of
existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which the
temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The measurement of deferred tax assets is reduced, if
necessary, by a valuation allowance for any tax benefits that are not expected to be realized.

Investment tax credits

The company is entitled to investment tax credits (ITC’s) based on qualifying research and experimental
development costs incurred. These credits are recognized when there is reasonable assurance of their recovery using the
income tax reduction method. The ITC’s are subject to assessment and approval by the Canada Revenue Agency.
Adjustments, if any, are reflected in the year when such assessments are received.

Financial instruments

The Company’s financial instruments, including cash, short-term investments, accounts receivable, income
taxes receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities are carried at values that approximate their fair values due to
their relatively short maturity period. The carrying amount of the long-term debt approximates its market value because
the debt bears interest at rates consistent with market rates for similar instruments.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions, such as allowance for doubtful accounts and allowance for slow
moving and obsolete inventory that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from such estimates.

Derivative instruments and hedging activities

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities” (SFAS 133”) and the corresponding amendments requires all derivatives, whether designated in hedging
relationships or net, to be recorded on the balance sheet at fair value. If the derivative is designated in a cash-flow hedge,
changes in the fair value of the derivative will be recorded in other comprehensive income (OCI) and will be recognized
in the statement of operations when the hedged items affect earnings. See Note 10.

Foreign currency translation

Effective October 21, 2001, the US dollar became the Company’s functional currency as a result of the
continued growth of the Company’s business outside of Canada and the US dollar financing raised by the Company.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than US dollars are translated at exchange
rates in effect at the balance sheet date. Revenue and expense items are translated at average rates of exchange for the
period. Transaction gains or losses are included in the determination of net earnings for the period. The Company
recorded a gain of $36,866 in the current period and (2004 — $nil).
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During the period ended June 9, 2005, the Company revised its policy relating to the provision for obsolete
and slow moving inventory from three years to one year. The result of this change in estimate increased the amount of
the inventory allowance in the period ended June 9, 2005 by $188,000.

Change in company estimates

During the period ended June 9, 2005, the company changed its estimate relating to the collectibility of its
2ccounts receivable. As a result of this review, the Company increased its allowance for doubtful accounts by $25,000.

3, INVENTORIES

June 9, 2005 December 31, 2004
MAtETialS.....oviv e s $710,320 $809,701
TWOTK 1N PIOCESS. ....eeriveveriieneesesrnssresrenesiersrs s ssssas s sesnessssenes 539,501 349,162
Finished g00dS ......coovecirveerieeiecnereen s e 461,070 371,130
$1,710,891 $1,529,993

Inventories include an allowance for obsolete inventory of $395,000 (2004 — $190,000).

4. CAPITAL ASSETS
June 9, 2005
Accumulated Net Book
Cost Amortization Value
Application software ..., $24,952 $22,522 $2,430 |
EqQUIPIMENt ... 860,531 400,961 459,570
Leasehold improvements..........ccooninicniiinsininn e 40,406 9,757 30,649
$925,889 $433,240 $492.649
|
December 31, 2004 i
Accamulated Net Book
Cost Amortization Value
Application SOftWare ........cccvviiimisnsss s $ 33393 5 23626 § 9,767
EQUIPMENt .....overecireeicecec sttt 878,877 414,499 464,373
Leasehold improvements............ccccovniinennnonnn 57.319 57,319 -
$ 969,589 % 495444 § 474,145
5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets consist of:

June 9, 2005 December 31, 2004
TrademMAarks. .......coovvieiiciesenarenrrse s e seresre e sresneereseantas 3 4,600,000 $ 4,600,000
Customer relationships........c.cvviiiiiiinccc 6,200,000 6,200,000
TechnOlOZY ... ot e 6,300,000 6,300,000
17,100,000 17,100,000
Less accumulated amortization ..o, (12,340,500) (10,830,000)
$ 4,759500 % 6,270,000

During the period ended June 9, 2005, amortization of intangible assets in the amount of $1,510,500 (2004 —
- $3,420,000), was charged to earnings.

The estimated charge to earnings in the future will be $1,909,500 and $2,850,000 in the balance of 2005 and
2006 respectively.
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6. BANK LINE OF CREDIT

The Company has a bank line of credit up to a maximum of $2,000,000 bearing interest at prime plus 1/2%.
The line of credit is secured by a generai security agreement representing a first charge on all assets other than real
property. The company owed $714,263 as at June 9, 2005 and $586,697 as at December 31, 2004 under this credit

facility.
7. INCOME TAXES

. June 9, 2005 December 31, 2004

Income taxes payable from prior period..............ccocvveenee. $ (328,711) $ (5,947)

Provision for current income taxes, net of tax Credits...... (302,484) (909,893)
Provision for investment tax credits.........ccoooeoeeeeeinreinnne. 246,151 392,545
Current year investment tax credits — capital .................. 13,268 33,732

(43,015) (483,616)

Capital taxes ....oooeveiviciiceceeeeeee e (22,000) (15,302)
Installments .......coooeioiriieiiceie e 192,000 240,000

Payments and refunds ........ccoovovmvievvinnson s 87,828 (66,241)
AdJUSIMENS ..o (8,566) 2,395

(206,247) (322,764)

Income taxes payable ..o $ (122,464 § {328,711)

The tax effect of components of the deferred tax liabilities are as follows:

June 9, 2005 December 31, 2004

Deferred tax liabilities .
Intangible assets. ......ccoeiisiiiiieieceeeee e $ 1,623941 5 2,389,706
Long term debt.........ccooiiiiiiiiiiire e - 285,000
OLNEr ..o (86,041) ~
1,537,900 2,674,706
Deferred tax assets — CUrtent Portion...............coeccvrerenininnn. 126,936 -
$ 1,410,964 2,674,706

8. LONG-TERM DEBT
June ¢, 2005 December 31, 2004

Senior subordinated note, bearing interest at 14% per annum repayable in twelve
equal quarterly principal installments of $458,333 beginning December 31,
2006. Interest is payable qUANETLY. ...ccoovvvrrvrrirrers e ns s snseneaees $ 5500,000 % 5,500,000

Less: current portion of long term debt.........ccccviveeveiciiiecre e (5,500,000) -
‘ $ - 8 5,500,000

The full amount of the debt was guaranteed by the company’s parent company Instantel (sarl). The debt was
secured by an assignment of all capital assets excluding real estate.

The full amount of the debt was extinguished from the proceeds of the sale of common shares on June 9,
2005. See Note 13.
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9. LEASE COMMITMENT

The Company rents office and manufacturing space. The Company is committed under an operating lease for
offize and manufacturing space to pay monthly amounts in Canadian dollars. The payment in U.S. dollars for the next
five years will be approximately:

BalAnce 0F 2005 e ceeeeeeeeeeeeeieeectesirestee e e ere s s e e r e e s r AR e s e $ 56,000
01 SR OT TSSO RO PP PP PR PP PO PO ROTORRt 285,000
1) OO U TSR TP PP PP 298,000
1100 ST OO OO OO OO UOUO PP PPN 304,000
ZOOD oo e eeete et sover s easareseseeseass e eat s aaterb e s e s e Rt aRt ke et eb e s r e ea s sR b eaRe e e bR a R e e 127,000
[ o35 [OOSR OO UPOTOI SR PRPPPI $ 1,070,000

10. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES
Interest rate risk

There is a risk to the Company’s earnings that arises from fluctuation in interest rates and the degree of
volatility of these rates. To effectively manage this risk, the Company entered into an interest rate swap contract that
expired during fiscal 2004. The contract had been designated as a hedge for reporting purposes. The Company has
estzblished strict guidelines that are monitored regularly and does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for
tracling or speculative purposes.

Foreign exchange risk

The Company'’s earnings and cash flows may be negatively impacted by fluctuations in foreign exchange
rates. The exposure is primarily limited to the Canadian dollar.

11. CONTINGENCIES

The Company is involved in defending legal actions. In Management’s opinion these claims are without merit.
The outcomes, however, are undetermined as to the result or the total cost of the defense. The costs incurred are charged
to the period in which they occur. :

12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The parent company provided a guarantee, for all payments when due, to the holder of the Senior
Subordinated Promissory Note in the amount of $5,500,000. During the period ended June 9, 2005, the Company paid
the parent company $355,632 (2004 — $52,050) for management services and $35,604 (2004 -- $33,334) for expenses
incurred on the Company’s behalf,

13. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On June 10, 2005, through a sale purchase agreement, the Company became a wholly-owned subsidiary of
VeriChip Inc. The purchase price of the company was approximately US$22,500,000 paid in cash and up to an
additional $3.0 million to be paid in the future in some combination of cash, VeriChip Corporation common stock and
Applied Digital Solutions Inc. common stock, depending on whether VeriChip Corporation completes an initial public
offzring of its common stock.

F-87




